
March 12, 2024 Regular Board MeetingMarch 12, 2024 Regular Board Meeting

A Regular meeting of the Board of Education of Washtenaw Intermediate School District will be held beginning at 5:00 PM at the

WISD Teaching and Learning Center, 1819 S. Wagner Rd. Ann Arbor, MI  (734) 994-8100.

Tuesday, March 12, 2024 05:00 PM

1. 1. Call To Order - President Diane HockettCall To Order - President Diane Hockett

2. 2. Roll Call - Victoria Westmoreland, Administrative Assistant to theRoll Call - Victoria Westmoreland, Administrative Assistant to the
SuperintendentSuperintendent

3. 3. Approval of the AgendaApproval of the Agenda

March 12, 2024 Memo (p. 3)

4. 4. CommunicationsCommunications

5. 5. Public ParticipationPublic Participation

6. Special Presentations6. Special Presentations

A. Career Technical Education (CTE) and Applied Learning in WashtenawA. Career Technical Education (CTE) and Applied Learning in Washtenaw
CountyCounty

7. 7. Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice DialogueEquity, Inclusion, and Social Justice Dialogue

8. 8. Consent AgendaConsent Agenda

A. Approval: MinutesA. Approval: Minutes

February 27, 2024 Minutes (p. 230)

B. B. Approval: Superintendent's RecommendationsApproval: Superintendent's Recommendations

078-23-24 Employment Recommendations078-23-24 Employment Recommendations

New Hire_M. DiFranco (p. 234)

New Hire_T. Talley (p. 237)

079-23-24 Reclassification Requests079-23-24 Reclassification Requests

Reclassification_G. Myers (p. 240)

Reclassification_T. Woods (p. 248)

Reclassification_Position Number of Work Days (p. 250)

Reclassification_Position Title Change (p. 252)

Packet page 1 of 446

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892472
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892548
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892409
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893022
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892414
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892416
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892415
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893023


080-23-24 New Position Requests080-23-24 New Position Requests

New Position_Special Education Coordinator (p. 258)

New Position_Special Education Supervisor (p. 263)

081-23-24 Staff Retirement081-23-24 Staff Retirement

Retirement_L. O'Neal (p. 268)

082-23-24 New PAC Member from Saline Area Schools082-23-24 New PAC Member from Saline Area Schools

Parent Advisory Committee Recommendation (p. 270)

083-23-24 Chapelle Lease Renewal083-23-24 Chapelle Lease Renewal

Chapelle Lease Renewal (p. 280)

084-23-24 Early Literacy Coaching Contract084-23-24 Early Literacy Coaching Contract

Early Literacy Coaching Contract Memo (p. 305)

Early Literacy Coaching Contract (p. 306)

9. 9. Unfinished BusinessUnfinished Business

10. 10. New BusinessNew Business

A. Ypsilanti Community Schools Supplemental Pilot PlanA. Ypsilanti Community Schools Supplemental Pilot Plan

Supplemental Services Pilot Plan for Ypsilanti Community Schools (p. 315)

B. Board Policies - First ReadB. Board Policies - First Read

Board Policies - Memo (p. 323)

PO 1662 - Anti-harassment (p. 324)

PO 3362 - Anti-harassment (p. 343)

PO 4362 - Anti-harassment (p. 362)

PO 5517 - Anti-harassment (p. 381)

PO 1422 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 400)

PO 3122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 412)

PO 4122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 424)

11. 11. Other Items of BusinessOther Items of Business

12. Board of Education Reports12. Board of Education Reports

13. 13. Administrative ReportsAdministrative Reports

A. Superintendent’s ReportA. Superintendent’s Report

B. Retainer NewsletterB. Retainer Newsletter

February 2024 School Law Notes (p. 436)

14. 14. AdjournmentAdjournment

Packet page 2 of 446

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892411
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892412
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892417
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892413
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892419
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892475
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892421
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892429
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892418
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892423
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892425
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892427
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892428
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892422
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892424
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892426
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892430


March 12, 2024 Regular Board MeetingMarch 12, 2024 Regular Board Meeting

A Regular meeting of the Board of Education of Washtenaw Intermediate School District will be held beginning at 5:00 PM at the

WISD Teaching and Learning Center, 1819 S. Wagner Rd. Ann Arbor, MI  (734) 994-8100.

Tuesday, March 12, 2024 05:00 PM

1. 1. Call To Order - President Diane HockettCall To Order - President Diane Hockett

2. 2. Roll Call - Victoria Westmoreland, Administrative Assistant to theRoll Call - Victoria Westmoreland, Administrative Assistant to the
SuperintendentSuperintendent

3. 3. Approval of the AgendaApproval of the Agenda

March 12, 2024 Memo (p. 3)

4. 4. CommunicationsCommunications

5. 5. Public ParticipationPublic Participation

6. Special Presentations6. Special Presentations

A. Career Technical Education (CTE) and Applied Learning in WashtenawA. Career Technical Education (CTE) and Applied Learning in Washtenaw
CountyCounty

7. 7. Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice DialogueEquity, Inclusion, and Social Justice Dialogue

8. 8. Consent AgendaConsent Agenda

A. Approval: MinutesA. Approval: Minutes

February 27, 2024 Minutes (p. 7)

B. B. Approval: Superintendent's RecommendationsApproval: Superintendent's Recommendations

078-23-24 Employment Recommendations078-23-24 Employment Recommendations

New Hire_M. DiFranco (p. 11)

New Hire_T. Talley (p. 14)

079-23-24 Reclassification Requests079-23-24 Reclassification Requests

Reclassification_G. Myers (p. 17)

Reclassification_T. Woods (p. 29)

Reclassification_Position Number of Work Days (p. 31)

Reclassification_Position Title Change (p. 33)

Packet page 1 of 227Packet page 3 of 446

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892472
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892548
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892409
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893022
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892414
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892416
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892415
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/893023


080-23-24 New Position Requests080-23-24 New Position Requests

New Position_Special Education Coordinator (p. 39)

New Position_Special Education Supervisor (p. 44)

081-23-24 Staff Retirement081-23-24 Staff Retirement

Retirement_L. O'Neal (p. 49)

082-23-24 New PAC Member from Saline Area Schools082-23-24 New PAC Member from Saline Area Schools

Parent Advisory Committee Recommendation (p. 51)

083-23-24 Chapelle Lease Renewal083-23-24 Chapelle Lease Renewal

Chapelle Lease Renewal (p. 61)

084-23-24 Early Literacy Coaching Contract084-23-24 Early Literacy Coaching Contract

Early Literacy Coaching Contract Memo (p. 86)

Early Literacy Coaching Contract (p. 87)

9. 9. Unfinished BusinessUnfinished Business

10. 10. New BusinessNew Business

A. Ypsilanti Community Schools Supplemental Pilot PlanA. Ypsilanti Community Schools Supplemental Pilot Plan

Supplemental Services Pilot Plan for Ypsilanti Community Schools (p. 96)

B. Board Policies - First ReadB. Board Policies - First Read

Board Policies - Memo (p. 104)

PO 1662 - Anti-harassment (p. 105)

PO 3362 - Anti-harassment (p. 124)

PO 4362 - Anti-harassment (p. 143)

PO 5517 - Anti-harassment (p. 162)

PO 1422 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 181)

PO 3122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 193)

PO 4122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 205)

11. 11. Other Items of BusinessOther Items of Business

12. Board of Education Reports12. Board of Education Reports

13. 13. Administrative ReportsAdministrative Reports

A. Superintendent’s ReportA. Superintendent’s Report

B. Retainer NewsletterB. Retainer Newsletter

February 2024 School Law Notes (p. 217)

14. 14. AdjournmentAdjournment

Packet page 2 of 227Packet page 4 of 446

https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892411
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892412
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892417
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892413
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892419
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892475
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892421
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892429
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892418
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892423
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892425
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892427
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892428
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892422
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892424
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892426
https://app.eduportal.com/documents/view/892430


 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Board of Education 
 
FROM:  Naomi Norman, Superintendent 
 
DATE:  March 12, 2024 
 
RE:  Regular Meeting March 12, 2024 
 
Agenda Item 3: Approval of the Agenda: President Diane Hockett will ask for approval of the 
agenda. (p. 3) 
 
Agenda Item 4: Communications: There are no communications at this time.  
 
Agenda Item 5: Public Participation: Members of the public who wish to address the Board may 
do so at this time. 
 
Agenda Item 6: Special Presentations 
 
A. Career Technical Education (CTE) and Applied Learning in Washtenaw County: CTE Director, 
Ryan Rowe will present the Career Technical Education (CTE) and Applied Learning in Washtenaw County 
presentation to the Board. 
 
Agenda Item 7: Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice Dialogue: Superintendent Naomi Norman will 
facilitate the equity, inclusion, and social justice discussion. 
 
Agenda Item 8: Consent Agenda 
 
A. Approval:  Minutes:  Approval of the minutes of the February 27, 2024, regular meeting. (p. 7) 

 
B. Approval: Superintendent’s Recommendations:   

 
The Superintendent recommends the Board accept the following employment recommendations: 

 
078-23-24 Employment Recommendations: Please see the employment recommendations for: 
Mary Beth DiFranco as a School Social Worker. If approved by the Board Mary Beth DiFranco’s salary will 
be $84,6410.00, MA Step 12. All other fringe benefits are set forth in the Unit II contract. (p. 11) 
 
Traci Talley as a Legal Assistant. If approved by the Board Traci Talley’s salary will be $69,308.00, Grade 
7, Step 2. All other fringe benefits are set forth in the Non-affiliated manual. (p. 14) 
 

Packet page 3 of 227Packet page 5 of 446



The Superintendent recommends the Board accept the following reclassifications: 
 
079-23-24 Reclassification Requests:  Please see the reclassification requests for: 
Gregory Myers, current position: EISJ Project Specialist, 1.0 FTE, 230 workdays, Salary: Grade 5, Step 4, 
Non-affiliated bargaining. Recommended position: EISJ Program Manager, 1.0 FTE, 230 workdays, Salary: 
Grade 6, Step 4, Non-affiliated bargaining. (p. 17) 
 
Tiffany Woods, current position: Early Head Start Home Visitor, 0.5 FTE, 230 workdays, Salary: EC Grade 
2, Step 3, Unit I bargaining. Recommended position: Early Head Start Home Visitor, 1.0 FTE, 230 workdays, 
Salary: EC Gade 2, Step 3 Unit I bargaining. (p. 29) 
 
Vacant, current position: General Education Social Worker, 1.0 FTE, 185 workdays, Salary: NA, Unit II 
Bargaining. Recommended position: General Education Social Worker, 1.0 FTE, 205 workdays, Salary: NA, 
Unit II bargaining. (p. 31) 
 
Vacant, current position: Technician III – Human Resources 1.0 FTE, 230 workdays, Salary: NA, Non-
affiliated bargaining. Recommended position: Legal Assistant, 1.0 FTE, 230 workdays, Salary: Grade 7, 
Step 2, Non-affiliated bargaining. (p. 33) 
 

The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the following new position requests: 
 
080-23-24 New Position Requests: Please see the new position requests for: 
Special Education Coordinator (2), 2.0 FTE, 210 workdays, salary: $81,396.00 - $100, 034.00, Worksite: 
Teaching & Learning Center, Non-Affiliated bargaining. (p. 39) 
 
Special Education Supervisor (2), 1.0 FTE, 230 workdays, salary: $98,064.00 - $120,519.00, Worksite: 
Teaching & Learning Center, Non-Affiliated bargaining. (p. 44) 

 
The Superintendent recommends the Board accept the following retirement: 
 

081-23-24 Staff Retirement: Please see the staff retirement for: 
Lee O’Neal, effective December 31, 2024. Lee O’Neal has been employed with the WISD since January 
1, 2014, as a Teaching Assistant, first at High Point, and most recently at the Red Oak Young Adult 
Program. (p. 49) 
 
 The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the new PAC appointment from Saline 
Area Schools: 
 
082-23-24 New PAC Member from Saline Area Schools: Please see the memo from Executive 
Director of Special Education Deborah Hester Washington. Saline Area Schools has recommended Tara 
Hayes, a parent, to be appointed to the WISD Parent Advisory Committee (PAC). The terms of office for 
Tara Hayes would run through July 31, 2025. (p. 51) 
 
 The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the lease renewal with Ypsilanti Community 
Schools for a cost not to exceed $20,924.00: 
 

Packet page 4 of 227Packet page 6 of 446



083-23-24 Chapelle Lease Renewal: Please see the memo from Director of Operations Tanner Rowe. 
The administration is seeking to renew WISD’s lease with Ypsilanti Community Schools for Rooms 120 
and 128 at Chapelle Business Center, for the Early Childhood team to maintain occupancy through June 
30, 2025. These spaces are utilized for Early On, Early Intervention, and Early Head Start Services, and are 
conveniently located to serve Ypsilanti and Lincoln infants, toddlers, and families. The lease renewal is 
for one year commencing July 1, 2024, and running through June 30, 2025, at a monthly rate of $1,744.00, 
for a total of $20,924.00. (p. 61) 
 
 The Superintendent recommends the Board approve the Early Literacy Coaching Contract with 
Manchester Community Schools for a cost not to exceed $60,000.00: 
 
084-23-24 Early Literacy Coaching Contract: Please see the memo from Supervisor of Instruction 
Melissa Brooks-Yip, and Director of Instruction Jennifer Banks. The administration is recommending the 
addition of a contracted early literacy coach to the Washtenaw County Coaching Collaborative (WC3) 
professional learning network. This coach, operating out of Manchester Community Schools, will support 
Manchester teachers in implementing the Essential Instructional Practices in Early Literacy through June 
30, 2024, for a total cost of $60,000.00 – funded through the Michigan Department of Education Early 
Literacy Coaching Grant. (p. 86) 
 
Recommendation: The Superintendent recommends that the Board of Education approve the minutes 
and Superintendent’s recommendations in the Consent Agenda, as presented.  (Roll Call Vote) 
 
Agenda Item 9: Unfinished Business: 
  
Agenda Item 10: New Business:   
 
A. Ypsilanti Community Schools Supplemental Pilot Plan: Please see the memo from Deputy 
Superintendent Cherie Vannatter. Due to lower salaries and staffing shortages, Ypsilanti Community 
Schools (YCS) is not able to attract and retain special education staff. The administration recommends 
providing YCS with special education staff which would include two Speech Language Pathologists, two 
School Social Workers, and two Teacher Consultants through the Supplemental Services Pilot Plan. This 
pilot plan will help address non-compliance, improve student outcomes, and meet local district needs. 
(p. 96) 
 
Recommendation: Motion that the Board of Education approve the implementation of Supplemental 
Services as a Pilot Plan with Ypsilanti Community Schools. (Roll Call Vote) 
 
B. Board Policies – First Read: Please see the memo from Human Resources and Legal Services 
Supervisor Becky Mullins. (p. 104) 
 
Recommendation: Motion that the Board adopt the following policy revisions: 

- #1662 – Harassment (p. 105) 
- #3362 – Harassment (p.124) 
- #4362 – Harassment (p. 143) 
- #5517 – Harassment (p. 162) 
- #1422 – Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 181) 
- #3122 – Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 193) 

Packet page 5 of 227Packet page 7 of 446



- #4122 – Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 205) 
 
Recommendation: Motion that the Board of Education approve policies #1662 – Harassment, #3362 – 
Harassment, #4362 – Harassment, #5517 – Harassment, #1422 – Nondiscrimination & Equal 
Employment Opportunity, #3122 – Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity, #4122 – 
Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity, as presented. (Roll Call Vote) 
 
Agenda Item 11: Other Items of Business: 
 
Agenda Item 12: Board of Education Reports:  
 
Agenda Item 13: Administrative Reports:  
 
A. Superintendent’s Report: Superintendent Norman will address the Board.  
 
B. Retainer Newsletter:  The February 2024 edition of the School Law Notes from Thrun Law Firm is 
attached. (p. 217) 
 
Agenda Item 14: Adjournment 

Packet page 6 of 227Packet page 8 of 446



 

 
WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING MINUTES 
 

Tuesday, February 27, 2024 
 
The Washtenaw Intermediate School District Board of Education held a regular board meeting on Tuesday, 
February 27, 2024, in Washtenaw ISD's Teaching and Learning Center Board Room at 1819 South Wagner 
Road in Ann Arbor, Michigan. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by President Diane Hockett 
 
ATTENDANCE 
The following members were present:       
   Diane Hockett, President     
   Mary Jane Tramontin, Vice President   
   Theresa Saunders, Secretary  
   Steve Olsen, Trustee     
 
The following member was absent: 
   Sarena Shivers, Treasurer 
 
Quorum was met. 
     
Also present:  

Naomi Norman, Superintendent    
Cherie Vannatter, Deputy Superintendent 

   Brian Marcel, Associate Superintendent 
   Edward Manuszak, Executive Director for Early Childhood 
   Holly Heaviland, Executive Director of Community & School Partnerships 
   LaDawn White, Early Childhood Grant Manager 

Victoria Westmoreland, Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Motion by Steve Olsen, seconded by Mary Jane Tramontin, to approve the agenda, as presented. 
Ayes:  All. 
Nays:  None. 
Motion carried. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS: Associate Superintendent Brian Marcel reviewed the financial reports for December 
2023, noting that the report did not account for the most recent Budget Amendments approved at the 
February 13, 2024, Board of Education meeting. Early Childhood Grants Manager LaDawn White reviewed 
the January 2024 Head Start Financial Reports, noting that the summary page had been amended to include 
encumbrances, and that there was a printing error with pages 73-70. LaDawn fielded questions from the 
Board. 
 

Packet page 7 of 227Packet page 9 of 446



 
 
 
Page 2 – Regular Meeting – 02/27/2024 
 
 

Motion by Theresa Saunders, seconded by Mary Jane Tramontin, that the Board of Education approve 
the January 2024 Head Start Financial Reports, as presented. 
 
Voting yes: Theresa Saunders, Mary Jane Tramontin, Steve Olsen, Diane Hockett. 
Voting no: None. 
Motion carried. 
 
EQUITY, INCLUSION, AND SOCIAL JUSTICE DIALOGUE: Superintendent Naomi Norman facilitated the 
Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice (EISJ) discussion, sharing about the following: 

- An opportunity for the Board to engage in professional learning that is in line with equity work 
being facilitated at WISD. This was followed by a brief discussion about scheduling sessions.  

- The Family Literacy Initiative Campaign Kickoff will be hosted at the Washtenaw Community 
College Morris Lawrence Building on Sunday, March 10, 2024, from 1:00 pm – 5:00 pm. The event 
is intended to raise awareness surrounding the literacy crisis in Washtenaw County and its impact 
on the community, boost recruitment of volunteers and tutors to assist literacy partners, and 
engage in dialogue with federal, state, and local leaders who will be in attendance. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion by Mary Jane Tramontin, seconded by Steve Olsen, that the Board of Education approve the 
minutes and Superintendent’s recommendations in the Consent Agenda, as presented.  
 
Voting yes: Steve Olsen, Diane Hockett, Theresa Saunders, Mary Jane Tramontin. 
Voting no: None. 
Motion carried. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
The Board approved the minutes of the February 13, 2024, regular meeting. 
 
074-23-24 
The Board approved the following employment recommendations: 

- Charlie Jones as a CTE Data Entry & Reporting Specialist. 
- Kimberley Rock as a Teacher Consultant for WEOC/WAVE. 
- Michael Schwartz as a Teaching Assistant. 

 
075-23-24 
The Board approved the following reclassification requests: 

- Joy Taylor, WAVE Teacher Consultant, 1.0 FTE, 185 Workdays, Unit II Bargaining, to Transition 
Teacher Consultant, 1.0 FTE, 185 Workdays, Unit II Bargaining.  

- Vacant, Social Worker, Infant Mental Health Specialist, 0.6 FTE, 111 Workdays, Unit II Bargaining, 
to Social Worker, Infant Mental Health Specialist, 0.7 FTE, 129.5 Workdays, Unit II Bargaining.  

 
076-22-23  
The Board approved the following staff retirement: 

- Richard Korth, effective August 31, 2024. 
 
077-23-24 
The Board approved the following termination: 

- VerShawn Patrick, effective February 12, 2024. 

Packet page 8 of 227Packet page 10 of 446



 
 
 
Page 3 – Regular Meeting – 02/27/2024 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS – Robert Half Contract Amendment: Associate Superintendent Brian Marcel addressed the 
Board, sharing background information pertaining to the Robert Half Contract Agreement on behalf of 
Assistant Director of Technology & Data Services Mattew Cook, who could not attend the meeting. Brian 
Marcel shared the original contract that was approved by the Board in August of 2023 must be extended 
to meet technology and data services’ pertinent staffing needs.   
 
Motion by Steve Olsen, seconded by Theresa Saunders, that the Board authorize the administration to 
approve the amended contracted services agreement with Robert Half for LAN/WAN Support and 
Desktop Technical Support for a cost not to exceed $134,00.00, as presented. 
 
Voting yes: Mary Jane Tramontin, Steve Olsen, Diane Hockett, Theresa Saunders. 
Voting no: None. 
Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS – Universal Pre-K Selection Criteria 2024-2025: Executive Director for Early Childhood 
Edward Manuszak address the Board, first sharing that WISD’s selection criteria has been referenced as an 
exemplary model, then discussing the utilization and application of the Universal Pre-K Selection Criteria. 
Edward Manuszak fielded questions from the Board.  
 
Motion by Steve Olsen, seconded by Mary Jane Tramontin, that the Board approve the 2024 Universal 
Preschool Selection Criteria for GSRP, Head Start, and Early Head Start services, as presented.  
 
Voting yes: Theresa Saunders, Mary Jane Tramontin, Diane Hockett, Steve Olsen. 
Voting no: None. 
Motion carried. 
 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REPORTS: Trustee Steve Olsen spoke about the following: 

- Trustee Steve Olsen and Board President Diane Hockett have been working diligently with the Self-
Assessment team. This process allows for the WISD to identify possible systemic issues. Mary Jane 
Tramontin and Theresa Saunders thanked both Steve Olsen and Daine Hockett for serving on this 
team and noted the impact of the team’s work. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS – Superintendent’s Report: 
Superintendent Naomi Norman spoke about the following: 

- The A2Y Early Edition breakfast on Wednesday, February 21, 2024 featured local black writers, 
Marsalis Higgs and Elle Wright and book store owner, Carlos Franklin. They discussed their 
experiences in field of writing and publishing.  

- Deputy Superintendent Cherie Vannatter shared information on the Honey Creek re-authorization 
process. The WISD board will need to evaluate the school and renew the charter contract by June 
30, 2024.  WISD is administering a culture survey to staff, parents, and students to use as part of 
the evaluation.   

- Talent Together has been named one of the “Top 10 Education Innovations in the Country” by 
ASU+GSV.  

- MAISA’s instruction committee switched to a new format with the goal of improving coordination 
among instruction efforts. The committee decided to come together and apply for a math grant at 
the state level. If the funding is granted, this money will be used to provide a Math Coordinator at 
every ISD within the state. Board President Diane Hockett remarked on the strength of 
coordinating among ISDs.  

Packet page 9 of 227Packet page 11 of 446



 
 
 
Page 4 – Regular Meeting – 02/27/2024 
 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:03 p.m. 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Theresa Saunders, Secretary 
Washtenaw ISD Board of Education 

Packet page 10 of 227Packet page 12 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 

 
FROM:   Melissa Paschall, Special Education Principal 
 
DATE:      February 21, 2024 
                
RE:      New Hire Recommendation – Mary Beth DiFranco 
 
I would like to recommend Mary Beth DiFranco for employment as a School Social Worker. If 
approved by the Board, Mary Beth DiFranco’s salary will be $84,6410.00, MA Step 12. All other 
fringe benefits will be set forth in the Unit II contract. 
 
CC:   Cherie Vannatter, Deputy Superintendent 
  Deborah Hester-Washington, Executive Director of Special Education 

Cassandra Harmon-Higgins, Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal 
Services 

Packet page 11 of 227Packet page 13 of 446



 MARY B. DIFRANCO, LMSW
Michigan Licensed Clinical Social Worker

MI Dept. Of Education Full Approval School Social Worker

Education

2010 Eastern Michigan University MSW
Children and Family Concentration
School Social Work Certification

1988 Eastern Michigan University BSW              
Children and Family Concentration

Skills/Training

Trauma Informed Evidence Based Practices, 
Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, Motivational 
Interviewing, Solution Focused Therapy, Strengths 
Based Approaches, Ele’s Place Grief/Loss 
Facilitator, Special Education Eligibility Evaluator, 
Crisis Intervention-Suicide/Harm Assessment, 
Autism Evaluation Team member,  Early 
Childhood Developmental Disorders, 
Elementary/Middle School/High School Group 
Facilitator for Social Skills, Anxiety, Depression, 
Self-Esteem, Friendship, Trained in Safe Schools 
Training for Sexual Minority Youth, UofM 
TRAILS program and Michigan Collaboration for 
Mindfulness in Education

SCHOOL BASED SOCIAL WORK
2010-Current  School Social Worker-School Based Mental Health Provider
Early On/Early Childhood Elementary School, Middle School, High School 
Ann Arbor, Dexter and Lincoln Consolidated Public Schools
Presence Learning virtual educational therapy staffing company

- Multi-Disciplinary Team Member for assessments and evaluation of students for Special Education
services and/or 504 plans
-Facilitate weekly groups for students on social skills, social emotional goals, anger management,
anxiety/depression, self-esteem, impulse control, attention issues using Evidence Based intervention
and Play Therapy approaches                                                                                          -Conducted
individual sessions with students using evidence-based play therapy
-Early Childhood Early On assessments and provider
-Utilized assessment protocols such as the ADOS 2, Achenbach, BASC, CDI, Conners EC, DECA, 
Piers Harris, RCMAS, SCQ, CARS, SSRS 
-Serve as the EPHY (education Project for homeless youth) Advocate
-Responsible for Crisis Intervention, Grief counseling, Suicide/Violence Assessment
-Responsible for Tienet service capture documentation and IEP Medicaid billing
-Assist in the development of District Crisis Protocol and Manual
-Assist families with Community Resources for assistance with food, clothing, shelter, medical needs
and Autism medical evaluations
-Provided mental health support, mindfulness skills training to school staff as needed
-Assisted with creation of social emotional virtual learning curriculum videos to support students
during pandemic

MEDICAL SOCIAL WORK

2021-2022 IHA-Trinity Health Pediatric Clinic Care Manager
-Collaborates with members of the health care team, parents, you adult patients to ensure the delivery
of quality patient centered healthcare services
-Empowers patients who are at risk by providing self-management support and patient education to
manage their health
-Provides targeted interventions in specialty population to ensure proper triaging of the patient and
appropriate delivery of care in accordance with established protocols
-Coordinates the care and triage to appropriate outpatient community services and /or triage to
emergency services or inpatient services of patients

-EPIC trained

Henry Ford Health Systems
Outpatient Child/Adol/Adult Intake Coordinator

-Conducted all New Patient Assessments and crisis intervention
-Participated in Quality Improvement team meetings to enhance system of new patient referrals and
treatment
-Responsible for triage of patients during crisis situations
-Maintained updated resources for Clinicians
-Responsible for monthly stats on new patient referrals
-Sustained professional relationships with other clinics to ensure continuum of care for patients
Recover Coordinator-NIH Lung Health Study                                                      -Responsible for
retaining Lost to Follow-Up study participants                            ---Conducted 3, 6, 9 month study 
visits with participants per NHI protocols                                         -Facilitated weekly support group 
for study participants for smoking cessation.    --Co-organized Hospital’s Great American Smoke-out                                                                                   

Packet page 12 of 227Packet page 14 of 446



Chemical Dependency Counselor                                                                         -Assisted with 
development and implementation of Hospital’s first Nicotine Dependency Clinic                                                                                                    
-Co-created Program Protocol Manual and Counselor Interview questions                      -Responsible 
for Conducting interviews and hiring staff                                            -Counseled patients referred by 
physicians for smoking cessation treatment           -Assessed for nicotine dependence and treatment 
and then made recommendations to physicians for  patient nicotine replacement prescription 
treatment 

Community Organization Social Work
 
Adoption Advocates Adoption Home Study Evaluator                                      -Responsible for 
conducting Home Study evaluation and reports for potential adoptive families
-Initiated background checks, gathered medical records, employment verification, income status                                                                                                       
-Conducted extensive interview with parents on social history, daily routines, feelings about the 
possible adoption, and other things relevant to the adoption process                                                                                                                 
-Oversaw home inspection to determine a safe environment for a child ie.  looking for things like 
smoke detectors and other safety features                                            -Compiled written detailed 
Home Study report for submission to adoption agency

Spectrum Human Services Case Manager                                                                  -Responsible 
for overseeing the medical, educational, psycho-social needs of 26 youth ages 9- 14 who were in 
foster care due to abuse/neglect in their home environment
-Implemented trainings with residential care staff on Family Dynamics, Abuse/Neglect impact on 
youth and Professional Boundaries
-Coordinated Updated Service Plan reports to DHS
-Crisis intervention as needed with youth in care
-Facilitated anxiety, depression and social skills support groups with youth in foster care 

United Methodist Retirement Community Social Worker                                    -Worked closely 
with families assisting their older loved one across the continuum of care from independent to 
assisted living settings within the retirement community                                                                                                              
-Facilitated Grief/Loss support group with residents                                               -Advocated for 
residents’ self-determination choices to be supported by retirement community                                                                                                                     
-Assessed residents for activities of daily living status and mental wellness

Packet page 13 of 227Packet page 15 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE:      March 8, 2024 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 

 
FROM:   Cassandra Harmon-Higgins 
  Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services  
                
SUBJECT:     Recommendation to Hire 
 
 
This is a recommendation to hire Traci Talley in the position of Legal Assistant for the 
Washtenaw Intermediate School District (WISD) Human Resources (HR) & Legal Department. 
Ms. Talley has twelve (12) years of valuable experience working as Legal Assistant (and Office 
Manager) for a multi-attorney law firm. Ms. Talley has been working for the WISD as a 
contractor (via Phoenix Services, LLC) for approximately seven (7) months, and in that time has 
proven to be reliable, organized, efficient, and an exceptionally hard worker. She has provided 
much needed assistance in balancing the team’s caseloads.  
 
With all that has been proverbially thrown her way, she has managed to show initiative and 
compassion with the variety of issues handled. She’s also participated in several training 
courses/webinars for the benefit of the Department/organization. We are collectively pleased 
with her work; I am confident that the team and organization will continue to benefit from her 
hire.  
 
If approved by the WISD Board, Ms. Talley would be a Non-Affiliated employee starting at a 
Grade 7, Step 2 (based on her years of experience), 230 days/year, with an annual salary of 
$69,308; all other fringe benefits are set forth in the Non-Affiliated Manual.  
 

Packet page 14 of 227Packet page 16 of 446



TT Traci. Talley

PROFESSIONAL
SUMMARY

Diligent and conscientious Legal Assistant with 12+ years experience in contract,
employment, and family law. Skilled in fulfilling legal research needs, and
providing expert case management support. Successful at maintaining complex
docket systems, tracking deadlines and coordinating depositions and settlement
conferences. Career highlights include creating and implementing policies and
procedures for a new firm, providing administrative and legal support to multiple
attorneys throughout high profile cases, resulting in favorable outcomes for our
clients. I am a Client-focused, resolution driven Legal Assistant with a history of
exemplary-rated performance.

SKILLS Legal Research
Organization
Time management
Client Relations
Written and verbal communication
Records Management
Word Processing and Data Entry
Spreadsheet and Database
Management

Problem solving
SAP ERP
TimeNet Law
Clio
PACER
Red Rover
New World
Office Suite

WORK HISTORY 07/2023 to CURRENTCONTRACTOR / HR AND LEGAL SERVICES

Phoenix Services, LLC

Providing skilled administrative and legal support to the Human Resources
and Legal Services Department including, but not limited to, processing
and managing various leave requests, assist with maintaining attendance
database, reviewing and processing contracts, scheduling and
coordinating meetings, data entry, work-flow tracking, file maintenance and
records management, drafting, reviewing and editing documents and
correspondences, conducting legal research, and performing duties and
responsibilities requiring knowledge of federal and state employment laws
and regulations as well as of the District's Collective Bargaining
Agreements, Board Policies and Administrative Guidelines, managing
special projects as assigned by Executive Director HR and Legal Services.

02/2023 to 07/2023CONTRACTOR / SALES

Kelly Services, LLC

Assisting customers with scheduling and coordinating training, for various
lasers and their applications, utilizing the company's SIS database to track

Packet page 15 of 227Packet page 17 of 446



training missions and processing training jobs
Working with SAP ERP software to assist customers with assessing their
after sales training needs, preparing quotes, processing sales orders,
invoicing, ordering training supplies, preparing shipments of supplies to
training sights, and reconciling training expenses.

01/2011 to 01/2023LEGAL ASSISTANT/OFFICE MANAGER

Green Johnson Mumina & D'Antonio | Oklahoma City, OK

Providing administrative and legal support for attorneys; fielding inbound calls,
reviewing and routing incoming mail; preparing and processing outgoing mail and
faxes, arranging for specialized mail, or service of process as required; serving
as a liaison between attorneys and clients; communicating effectively with clients,
colleagues and court personnel; sourcing and verifying important case
intelligence; maintaining case record system; drafting, proofing editing and filing
legal documents, facilitating the meeting of deadlines, keeping multiple agendas,
exercising independent judgment in determining priority level of all work assigned
on a daily basis, assuring that high priority items are completed in a timely
manner; performing conflict screening checks; entering all timekeepers and
expenses for clients utilizing TimeNet Law, and Clio, and preparing and mailing
invoices to clients, processing retainer payments.

EDUCATION 01/1987Foothills Adult Center

Packet page 16 of 227Packet page 18 of 446



Washtenaw ISD Position Change / Upgrade Form

The supervisor of the position should complete and sign this form if you are anticipating an upgrade
/reclassification, title/duties change and/or a salary/market increase for the position. Please note that 
the final decision on classification of the subject position will be made by the Executive Cabinet and 
the Superintendent.

Change Recommended

Please select all that apply

Position change

Salary Level /Wage

Location

FTE

Bargaining Unit

Work days

Account Split

Other

Employee Name:

Please enter the employee name, incumbent name, or "Vacant"

Department

Gregory Myers

Achievement Initiatives

Supervisor

Current Position Title

Recommended Position Title

Current Position Number

Recommended Position Number

Current Bargaining Unit

Recommended Bargaining Unit

Jennifer Banks

EISJ Project Specialist

EISJ Program Manager

51.00.299.01

51.00.299.01

Non-Affliliated

Non-Affliliated

Current Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Recommended Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Current FTE

Recommended FTE

Current Number of Work Days

Recommended Number of Work Days

Should the Current Position Remain?

Remain

Delete

Grade 5/ Step 4

Grade 6/ Step 4

1

1

230

230

Current Account 1

Current Account 1 Split

Current Account 2

Current Account 2 Split

Current Account 3

Current Account 3 Split

Current Account 4

11.1299.1590.000.0000.09100.0000

85

22.1299.1590.000.0000.09100.0000

15

Current Account 4 Split

Recommended Account 1

Recommended Account 1 Split

Recommended Account 2

Recommended Account 2 Split

Recommended Account 3

Recommended Account Split 3

11.1299.1590.000.0000.09100.0000

85

22.1299.1590.000.0000.09100.0000

15

Recommended Account 4

Recommended Account 4 Split

Current Location

Worksite/Desk Location

Recommended Location

WOrksite/Desk Location

TLC/ Achievement Initiatives

TLC/ Achievement Initiatives

Packet page 17 of 227Packet page 19 of 446



Rational for Position Change

Briefly explain how this position has changed, giving concrete examples of the changes

Effective Date

Date new duties were assigned or changes made

List Positions/Employees Performing Similar Work

Do you know of/are you aware of any other positions or employees assigned/performing work similar 
to that of this position in its new description? If so, please list position titles or names of incumbents

The EISJ Project Specialist was initially developed to support our local districts to build awareness 

and provide coaching to develop educators' racial literacy. In addition to supporting our local 

districts, Greg has also taken on the responsibility of supporting departments within the WISD. He 

has been planning and facilitating the WISD's Equity Teams, meeting with department leaders and 

staff members, providing coaching, participating as a leader on the Equity Leadership Team, and 

attending cabinet-level professional level to support WiSD leaders. Moreover, in 2023 Greg 

received his CCAR practitioner certification from the Pacific Education Group (PEG). PEG 

recognized him as "being a leader in the movement toward racial equity and transforming your 

organizational environment." Greg is a team player willing to support the AI team and teams 

across the WISD. His commitment to racial equity and supporting leaders and team members is 

above and beyond the initial expectations of the EISJ Project Specialist position. The value he 

brings to the WISD should be honored, through this position upgrade.

07/01/2023

No

Department Head Comments

Department Head

Naomi Norman 06/30/2023

Finance Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Comments

Finance Comments

Finance

SAP 01/16/2024

Human Resources Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Ccomments

Human Resources Comments

Human Resources / Executive Admin Review

CD Harmon-Higgins 08/10/2023

Superintendent Comments

Superintendent

Naomi Norman 01/16/2024

Grade 9 (former GR 6), Step 2 Retroactive to 7/1/23; need updated JD. (Two JDs attached; HR 

needs clarification prior to issuing conditional offer regarding education required for the position).

Packet page 18 of 227Packet page 20 of 446



WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Position Description

Job Title: EISJ Program Manager

Department: Achievement Initiatives
Reports to: Director of Instruction
FLSA Status: Exempt (230 Days)
Prepared By: Jennifer Banks, Ph.D., Director of Instruction
Date Prepared: June 30, 2023
Approved by: Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins, Esq.

Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services
Approval Date:

The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student while providing
high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and collaboration.

The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality, boundary spanning,
educational system that educates all children through an equitable, inclusive, and holistic approach.

SUMMARY:
The Achievement Initiatives (AI) EISJ Project Manager provides synergy for the development of equity, inclusion,
and social justice practices among WISD leaders, local district leaders, the WISD’s collaborative partners, and the
educators that the Achievement Initiatives Team serves.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Program Outcomes

● Promotes and sustains a strong sense of collectivism among Achievement Initiatives Team members and
WISD cabinet leaders.

● Fosters a culture of collaboration between the Team, the Team’s collaborative partners, and other WISD
departments.

● Works to deepen the understanding and application of the racial equity curricula to the work of the
Achievement Initiatives Team, the educator networks, and the Team’s collaborative partners.

● Ensures that the WISD’s Educational Equity Policy and six questions are applied consistently in
problem-solving and decision-making.

● Manages the budget for the Achievement Initiative team’s Culture and Diversity efforts
● Supports WISD and LEA leaders to design and plan systemically around racial equity

Core Competencies:
Emotional Intelligence

● Cultivates trust
● Takes a nonjudgmental approach
● Believes that our best work happens in community and connection with one another
● Employs care and compassion when engaging with their own vulnerability and the vulnerability of others
● Fosters a sense of interdependence
● Is in the continuous pursuit of joy, self-care, and community in order to sustain their work.

Packet page 19 of 227Packet page 21 of 446



● Tolerant of ambiguity

Attending to Application and Practice
Engages culturally relevant facilitative practices in order to:

● Facilitate an introduction into social justice via an examination of social identities, the intersectionality of
those identities, and their impact on adult development.

● Hold space for open and honest dialogue about the impact of social identities on educational practices as it
applies to the Achievement Initiatives Team and the Team’s collaborative partners.

● Articulate strategies that can be employed when engaging dominant cultural practices that perpetuate the
marginalization of non-dominant groups.

● Sustain an adult learner’s co-construction of histories that illuminate racial disparities, both past and
contemporary.

● Maintain the consistent application of the Courageous Conversations about Race Protocol (the four
agreements, six conditions, and the compass) in an effort to illuminate the role of race and its impact on
the planning, implementation, and assessment of programming focused on advancing the application of
the principles of racial equity as it applies to the Achievement Initiatives Team and the Team’s
collaborative partners.

● Affirm an adult learner’s equity and social justice vision as well as guide them in their growth and
development in a way that is compassionate.

● Design and facilitate of WISD’s Equity Teams
● Support cabinet leaders in leading racial equity by attending cabinet-level professional development and

contributing to developing the racial consciousness of the group.

Attending to Project Collaboration

● Contributes to the collaborative planning and development of equity and social justice professional
development offerings for teachers and educational leaders (e.g. professional learning series, how to
sessions, film series and other things as developed).

● Engages in identity-based coaching and development of educators, the Achievement Initiatives Team, and
the Team’s collaborative partners.

● Facilitates interdepartmental planning and enactment of collaborative work with the Achievement
Initiatives Team.

● Listens to and discerns where people are in applying deep knowledge of racial equity and social justice to
their work.

● Manages and provides coaching support around racial equity

Inquiring about project impact and growth

● Gives and receives feedback from adult learners in ways that foster growth and transformational
development.

● Advises the development of evaluative tools related to equity, social justice, and inclusion professional
learning sessions and seminars.

Social Justice and Racial Equity Mindsets and Dispositions

● Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position
responsibilities.

● Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts educational
inequities in student achievement outcomes.

● Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified in

Packet page 20 of 227Packet page 22 of 446



the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency, racial
equity, and systemic and structural inequities.

● Committed to the life-long work of developing one’s anti-racist, anti-oppressive skills, and liberation
mindsets; applies these mindsets to all aspects of the position’s duties and responsibilities.

● Demonstrates the ability to examine the impact of education inequities in student development outcomes
as it aligns with race, ethnicity, and socio-economic status.

● Maintains a working anthology of anti-racist, anti-oppressive, and liberation scholarship that is used to
inform personal and collective planning and decision-making.

● Works towards social justice in all areas of their life, especially in schools and on behalf of students.
● Is a critical thinker and engages in on-going self-reflection to monitor the evolution of their mindsets.
● Brings a deep awareness of social identity of self in relationship to others to their relationships and

collaborative work.
● Applies the mindset of being both a teacher and learner.
● Practices both-and thinking.
● Balances confidence and a sense of authority with humility.
● Is keen on the delicate nature of tolerating the ambiguity of unfinished business for self and others; is

persistent in supporting the learner with their development in the racial equity and social justice
developmental process.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES:

● N/A

QUALIFICATIONS:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily.
Alternative requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be considered.
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE:

● Minimum of a high school diploma; bachelor’s degree or higher preferred.*
● Can demonstrate the knowledge and application of a working anthology of anti-racist, anti-oppressive, and

liberation scholarship.
● Has experience with facilitating and/or mediating adult learners with exceptional success.
● Has evidence of collaborative efforts with groups of adult learners and the impact of their collaborative

work.
● Can demonstrate the impact of efforts made towards social justice and racial equity in all areas of life,

especially in schools and on behalf students and their communities.
● Can demonstrate the impact of the practice of employing emotional intelligence to foster a sense of

collaboration and collectivism.
● Has served on a community-driven board such as a school, advisory, and/or governing board for a public

institution.
● Has participated in voicing the perspectives and concerns of the community in public forums (e.g. a

podcast, community-based radio broadcast, community forum, and/or panel).
● Has facilitated conversations that aim to foster the social construction of race and the impact that it has on

Packet page 21 of 227Packet page 23 of 446



the conditions that shape life outcomes

CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS:

● Certified in specific equity-focused approaches for adult learning such as Courageous Conversation
practitioner certification; Justice Leaders certified trainer.

LANGUAGE SKILLS:

● Ability to work effectively and collaboratively with other departments, agencies, and individuals across
the state of Michigan

● Ability to write reports, business correspondence, and procedure manuals.
● Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of educators, customers,

and the general public.
● Ability to express self clearly; both orally and in writing.

TECHNICAL SKILLS:

● Demonstrated proficiency in the use of a personal computer (PC) or MAC in a networked environment to
utilize the Internet and other electronic communications mechanisms such as email, conferencing, bulletin
boards, etc.

● Excellent knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing,
spreadsheets, database and presentation software) and other technology to support efficient and effective
office operation is required.

● Ability to create web-based forms and documents.
● Ability to read and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures,

governmental regulations and forms.
● Ability to integrate technology into the everyday work flow is necessary.
● Ability to implement new technologies.

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS:

● Ability to apply the concepts of basic math, algebra and geometry consistent with the duties of this
position.

REASONING ABILITY:

● Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where only
limited standardization exists.

● Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.
● Exhibit high level of professionalism with the ability to handle confidential information, use good

judgment, plan and handle complex projects and maintain a flexible attitude.
● Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts and draw valid conclusions.

INTERPERSONAL SKILLS:

● Ability to work independently with management guidance.

Packet page 22 of 227Packet page 24 of 446



● Possess excellent customer service and communication skills with a client-centered focus.
● Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics.
● Ability to take initiative; work well with others as a collaborative team member and exhibit good

communication skills.
● Ability to work effectively and collaboratively with other departments, agencies and individuals.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to stand, walk, sit, talk, see and hear.
The employee is occasionally required to stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl and reach with hands and arms. The
employee is continuously repeating the same hand, arm or finger motion many times. The employee must
occasionally lift and/or move up to 35 pounds such as books and training material. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distant vision and the ability to adjust focus. This position requires the
individual to travel and/or drive to various off-site locations. The position requires the individual to sometimes
work irregular or extended work hours and meet multiple demands from several people.

ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while
performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals
with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The noise level in the work environment is quiet to loud depending upon the activity in the particular part of the
day. The employee may be required to be outdoors for periods of time, and therefore subject to varying weather
conditions, for purposes of accomplishing the essential functions of this job.

FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION:
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples of work
and to detail the required knowledge, skills and ability as well as the acceptable experience and training for the
position. The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to assign, direct and control
the duties of employees under supervision. The WISD retains and reserves any and all rights to change, modify,
amend, add to or delete from any portion of this description in its sole judgment.

This position description is not a contract for employment.

The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. The
District will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both
prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.

TERMS:
Contract, salary and other employment conditions to be established by the Board of Education as reflected in the
Non-Affiliated Staff Manual. Starting salary ranging (dependent upon experience) from $70,113 – $86,168.

Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace and District policy requires drug testing for all
potential employees.

It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the basis of

Packet page 23 of 227Packet page 25 of 446



race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, age, height, weight, familial status, marital status, genetic
information, sexual orientation or any legally protected characteristic, in its educational programs, activities,
admissions, or employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972 Educational Amendments, executive
order 11246 as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all other pertinent state and federal
regulations.

The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student
while providing high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and
collaboration.

The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality,
boundary-spanning, educational systems that educate all children through an equitable, inclusive, and
holistic approach.

SUMMARY:
The Coordinator, English Learner/Refugee Initiatives will provide in-person and virtual leadership and
instructional direction to school districts regarding curriculum, instruction, assessment, tiered levels of
support, school improvement, school leadership, teacher leadership, and systems thinking in the area of
English Language Development. You will provide direct coaching to educators and leaders, and
collaborate in-person and virtually with peers to create resources and guidance tools (e.g., curriculum,
parent materials, best practices in program design, etc.). This position will receive intense professional
learning on meeting the social and emotional needs of Afghan and Ukrainian newcomer students and
their families, including conflict trauma response strategies. This position will work to build capacity at
the local district level to support students and their families long-term. This position is grant-funded for
two years.

We are seeking a dynamic, collaborative individual to assist districts and schools with implementing
high-quality learning and equitable access for newcomer students, specifically Afghan and Ukrainian
arrivals.

Your strategic and technical expertise will be focused on meeting the needs of students with limited and
interrupted schooling. Specifically, deep expertise is needed in secondary learners with emerging literacy
skills, appropriate placement of secondary students into the high school continuum, and developing
robust programming to meet the diverse needs of newcomer students and their extended family
members.

You will serve as a resource and collaborate with ISD and statewide EL staff, parents, local school
administrators and staff, curriculum councils, government and community agencies, universities, and
professional organizations on matters related to Newcomer English Learners.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:
• Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position

responsibilities.
• Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts

educational inequities in student achievement outcomes.

Packet page 24 of 227Packet page 26 of 446



• Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified
in the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency,
racial equity, and systemic and structural inequities.

• In collaboration with the Achievement Initiatives Department, identifies, plans, organizes, designs,
and implements learning opportunities and instruction, both at the district and county level in
support of English learner instruction and refugee student support

• Facilitates interdepartmental planning and enactment of collaborative work with the Achievement
Initiatives Team.
• Recognizes the role student motivation and engagement play in literacy instruction and learning.
• Recognizes that family, caregivers, and a student’s culture are all instrumental to their literacy
learning.
• Believes that our best work happens in community and connection with one another;
• Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position
responsibilities;
• Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts

educational inequities in student achievement outcomes, particularly in literacy learning;
• Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified

in the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency,
racial equity, and systemic and structural inequities;

• Is committed to the ethical use of data to best serve children and equitable classroom instruction;
• Is knowledgeable and committed to Culturally Relevant, Responsive, and Sustaining Teaching
practices.
• Manages, organizes, and responds to Q&A via email, phone, digital means, and/or face-to-face
concerning K-3 literacy instruction and English learner support;
• Attends relevant county and state-wide committee meetings as a critical and intelligent contributing

member with an equity lens.
• OTHER DUTIES AS ASSIGNED.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES:
• N/A.

QUALIFICATIONS:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily.
Alternative requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be
considered. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability
required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE:
● Master’s degree in ESL, bilingual/multicultural education, or related field required.
● Valid Michigan teaching certificate with proper ESL (NS) or Bilingual Education endorsement

required.

Packet page 25 of 227Packet page 27 of 446



● Four or more years of related experience including classroom teaching experience with English
Learners. Experience coordinating district EL/Title III programs and secondary school experience
preferred.

● Deep understanding of educational systems, legal issues, policies, research, and trends in
education.

● Ability to analyze programming for English Learners and offer recommendations based on the
unique needs of newcomer English Learners.

● Ability to identify achievement, attendance, behavior, opportunity, or resource gaps.
● Ability to develop and implement action plans aligned with program goals and student data.
● Ability to engage in leadership and advocacy in support of newcomer students and families.
● Deep understanding of the impact of culture and trauma on student success.
● Experience coaching and facilitating adult learning in small and large group settings.
● Ability to properly utilize tools and equipment necessary in conducting professional development

workshops.
● Effectively manage multiple tasks and demonstrate effective time management skills to meet

deadlines.
● Demonstrated success with supporting logistics for adult learning;
● Use of technology as an instructional and organizational tool;
● Excellent oral and written communication skills;
● Such alternatives to the above qualifications as the WISD Board may find appropriate and

acceptable

CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS:
• Current valid driver’s license required.

LANGUAGE SKILLS:
• Ability to work effectively and collaboratively with other departments, agencies, and individuals across

the state of Michigan
• Ability to write instructional plans for adult learners, professional correspondence, and procedures.
• Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of educators, and the
general public.
• Ability to express self clearly, both orally and in writing.

TECHNICAL SKILLS:
• Demonstrated proficiency in the use of a personal computer (PC) or MAC in a networked

environment to utilize the Internet and other electronic communications mechanisms such as email,
conferencing, bulletin boards, etc.

• Excellent knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing,
spreadsheets, database, and presentation software) and other technology to support efficient
and effective office operation is required.

• Ability to create web-based forms and documents.
• Ability to read and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures,

governmental regulations, and forms.
• Ability to integrate technology into the everyday workflow is necessary.
• Ability to implement new technologies.

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS:

Packet page 26 of 227Packet page 28 of 446



• Ability to apply the concepts of basic math, algebra, and geometry consistent with the duties of
this position.

REASONING ABILITY:
• Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where

only limited standardization exists.
• Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.
• Exhibit a high level of professionalism with the ability to handle confidential information, use
good judgment, plan and handle complex projects and maintain a flexible attitude.
• Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts and draw valid conclusions.

INTERPERSONAL SKILLS:
● Ability to work independently with management guidance.
● Possess excellent customer service and communication skills with an educator and student-centered

focus.
● Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics.
● Ability to take initiative; work well with others as a collaborative team member and exhibit good

communication skills.
● Ability to work effectively and collaboratively with other departments, agencies, and individuals

Page 3 of 4
PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to
enable individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to stand, walk, sit, talk, see
and hear. The employee is occasionally required to stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl, and reach with hands and
arms. The employee is continuously repeating the same hand, arm, or finger motion many times. The
employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 35 pounds such as books and training material.
Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, distant vision, and the ability to adjust
focus. This position may require extended virtual time on conferencing software and may require the
individual to travel and/or drive to various off-site locations. The position requires the individual to
sometimes work irregular or extended work hours and meet multiple demands from several people.

ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.

The noise level in the work environment is quiet to loud depending upon the activity in the particular
part of the day. The employee may be required to be outdoors for periods of time, and therefore subject
to varying weather conditions, for purposes of accomplishing the essential functions of this job.

FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION:
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples
of work, and detail the required knowledge, skills, and ability as well as the acceptable experience and

Packet page 27 of 227Packet page 29 of 446



training for the position. The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to
assign, direct and control the duties of employees under supervision. The WISD retains and reserves any
and all rights to change, modify, amend, add to or delete from any portion of this description in its sole
judgment.

This position description is not a contract for employment.

The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.
The District will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and
encourages both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the
employer.

TERMS:
Contract, salary, and other employment conditions are to be established by the Board of Education as
reflected in the Non-Affiliated Staff Manual. This is a grant-funded position; the continuation of this
position relies on the continued grant funding. 210 days. Starting salary ranging (dependent upon
experience) from $79,800- $98,073.

Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace and District policy requires drug
testing for all potential employees.

It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the
basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, age, height, weight, familial status, marital
status, genetic information, sexual orientation or any legally protected characteristic, in its educational
programs, activities, admissions, or employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972
Educational Amendments, executive order 11246 as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 and all other pertinent state and federal regulations

Page 4 of 4

Packet page 28 of 227Packet page 30 of 446



Washtenaw ISD Position Change / Upgrade Form

The supervisor of the position should complete and sign this form if you are anticipating an upgrade
/reclassification, title/duties change and/or a salary/market increase for the position. Please note that 
the final decision on classification of the subject position will be made by the Executive Cabinet and 
the Superintendent.

Change Recommended

Please select all that apply

Position change

Salary Level /Wage

Location

FTE

Bargaining Unit

Work days

Account Split

Other

Employee Name:

Please enter the employee name, incumbent name, or "Vacant"

Department

Tiffany Woods

Early Childhood

Supervisor

Current Position Title

Current Position Number

Current Bargaining Unit

Current Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Recommended Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Current FTE

Alicia Kruk

Home Visitor, Early Head Start

52.00.212.06

Unit I

ECGR2 Step3

ECGR2 Step3

0.5

Recommended FTE

Current Number of Work Days

Recommended Number of Work Days

Should the Current Position Remain?

Remain

Delete

Current Account 1

Current Account 1 Split

Current Account 2

1

230

230

11.1212.1290.997.3437.00000.0000

100

Current Account 2 Split

Current Account 3

Current Account 3 Split

Current Account 4

Current Account 4 Split

Recommended Account 1

Recommended Account 1 Split

11.1212.1290.997.3437.00000.0000

100

Recommended Account 2

Recommended Account 2 Split

Recommended Account 3

Recommended Account Split 3

Recommended Account 4

Recommended Account 4 Split

Current Location

Worksite/Desk Location

Rational for Position Change

Briefly explain how this position has changed, giving concrete examples of the changes

Effective Date

Date new duties were assigned or changes made

List Positions/Employees Performing Similar Work

Do you know of/are you aware of any other positions or employees assigned/performing work similar 
to that of this position in its new description? If so, please list position titles or names of incumbents

TLC and Remote

Cheryl Carpenter is vacating her .5 FTE Home Visitor position to move into a 1.0 ECS position. 

Tiffany will increase from .5 to 1.0.

07/01/2023

This is a long standing position, there are multiple Home Visitors, Early Head Start.

Packet page 29 of 227Packet page 31 of 446



Department Head Comments

Department Head

Edward J. Manuszak II 06/23/2023

Finance Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Comments

Finance Comments

Finance

SAP 01/16/2024

Human Resources Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Ccomments

Human Resources Comments

Human Resources / Executive Admin Review

CD Harmon-Higgins 06/23/2023

Superintendent Comments

Superintendent

Naomi Norman 01/16/2024

Change in FTE (0.5 to 1.0) No change in Grade or Step

Packet page 30 of 227Packet page 32 of 446



Washtenaw ISD Position Change / Upgrade Form

The supervisor of the position should complete and sign this form if you are anticipating an upgrade
/reclassification, title/duties change and/or a salary/market increase for the position. Please note that 
the final decision on classification of the subject position will be made by the Executive Cabinet and 
the Superintendent.

Change Recommended

Please select all that apply

Position change

Salary Level /Wage

Location

FTE

Bargaining Unit

Work days

Account Split

Other

Employee Name:

Please enter the employee name, incumbent name, or "Vacant"

Department

Vacant

Community & School Partnerships

Supervisor

Current Position Title

Recommended Position Title

Current Position Number

Recommended Position Number

Current Bargaining Unit

Recommended Bargaining Unit

DarNesha Green

General Education Social Worker

Same

26.00.216.06

26.00.216.06

Unit II

Unit II

Current Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Recommended Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Current FTE

Recommended FTE

Current Number of Work Days

Recommended Number of Work Days

Should the Current Position Remain?

Remain

Delete

NA

NA

1

1

185

205

Current Account 1

Current Account 1 Split

Current Account 2

Current Account 2 Split

Current Account 3

Current Account 3 Split

Current Account 4

11.1216.1440.000.2251.00000.0000

100

Current Account 4 Split

Recommended Account 1

Recommended Account 1 Split

Recommended Account 2

Recommended Account 2 Split

Recommended Account 3

Recommended Account Split 3

11.1216.1440.000.2252.00000.0000

100

Recommended Account 4

Recommended Account 4 Split

Current Location

Worksite/Desk Location

Recommended Location

WOrksite/Desk Location

Rational for Position Change

Briefly explain how this position has changed, giving concrete examples of the changes

TLC- Special Ed Department outside of DarNesha Green's current office.

Same

The request is only to change the number of days to be worked from 185 to 205. This would align 

the position with other CSP social workers working with young people.

Packet page 31 of 227Packet page 33 of 446



Effective Date

Date new duties were assigned or changes made

List Positions/Employees Performing Similar Work

Do you know of/are you aware of any other positions or employees assigned/performing work similar 
to that of this position in its new description? If so, please list position titles or names of incumbents

Department Head Comments

Department Head

Holly Heaviland 09/26/2023

Finance Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Comments

10/01/2023

Currently working to fill three 1.0 FTE vacancies at 205 days. Changing the number of days for this 

position would align this role with the three vacancies.

Finance Comments

Finance

SAP 01/16/2024

Human Resources Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Ccomments

Human Resources Comments

Human Resources / Executive Admin Review

CD Harmon-Higgins 09/27/2023

Superintendent Comments

This was updated in NWS already.

Superintendent

Naomi Norman 01/16/2024

Packet page 32 of 227Packet page 34 of 446



���������	
�������������

�����������������������
����
�������
������������
�
��
���������������������
�
��
����
�����
��������������������������������
������������������

����������������������
�������
�
�����������
�
��
�������������������

����
����������������������
	�� ��
����������!����
������� ������"��������������������������������������

���������!������#�	����$���#���
��%��&����
�
���'�
$��������(������!��
)������������*���+������������������������������
�����������������,-����,.�������-�����/(��������0
�	��12�����"��������

!����	
��� ���������

����
��"��������������

����
�� ���������

���*�����"��������������

���*����� ������&����
�
���'�
"�����������&����
�
���'�


 ���������2�����32
��
�������
�
���444�3�2�����"��������#�����(��
���56�66�789�6:56�66�789�6:*��3(���
�
���*��3(���
�
���

 ����������"����!������#�	��"���������������"����!������#�	�� ������%��"�����������%�� ������*���������$����.���"�����������*���������$����.���!��������� ���������

���"���
�;"���
�.����

*�(�3��
����������
������)��*(�!������
���������������������

��<�����=>>796796

 ������(������> ������(������>�!��
 ������(������7 ������(������7�!��
 ������(������9 ������(������9�!��
 ������(������5

>>�>789�>=76�666�6666�66666�?=66>777�>789�>=76�666�6666�66666�?=6688

 ������(������5�!��
"�����������(������>"�����������(������>�!��
"�����������(������7"�����������(������7�!��
"�����������(������9"�����������(������!��
�9

>>�>789�>=76�666�6666�66666�?=66>777�>789�>=76�666�6666�66666�?=6688

"�����������(������5"�����������(������5�!��
 ������#���
��$����
��.����#���
��"�����������#���
��$)���
��.����#���
��"�
������������

��� �����&�
����������
�������
�����

�����������������
	
���������������������������������
�# �2"
�# �2"
#�����.����������������	��
���������������
�������������������������������������������
���
�@�
�
���
�����A��������������
���������������������
���������
������������������
����
������������������
���	��������������

Packet page 33 of 227Packet page 35 of 446



����������	
��	
������������������
������������
������
������������������������������������������
������	��������������
�������
�
������
��������������������������������
����������������������������
�������
����������������������������������������������� ����
����������������������������
������������!����	��
�������"�
�#�������	��
�������"�
$%�&'()*+,&-..-+/ 01�11�10123��
����4�����
�4������45��� �����#�������

06�07�1012 3��
����#�������3��
���89: 06�07�1012"��
��;���������4�����
�4������45��� �����#��������"��
��;���������#�������"��
��;������������<��������4����;�����$%�&'()*+,&-..-+/ 01�16�1012��������������#�������
=4 �>�
��?

�������������@'*)-�@*()'+ 06�71�1012

Packet page 34 of 227Packet page 36 of 446



Page 1 of 4  

WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 
Job Title: Legal Assistant  
FTE: 1.0 (230 days/annual) 
Department:  Human Resources and Legal Services 
Reports To:  Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services 
FLSA Status:  Non-Exempt 
Prepared By:  Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services 
Preparation Date: February 16, 2024 
Approved By:  Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins Esq. 

Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services 
Approval Date: February 21, 2024 
 
The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student while 
providing high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and collaboration. 
 
The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality, boundary- spanning, 
educational system that educates all children through an equitable, inclusive, and holistic approach. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Legal Assistant provides skilled administrative support to the Human Resources and Legal Department in 
the following areas: legal correspondence, research, investigations, leaves/FMLA, ADA, contracts, and records 
request/management. Perform duties/responsibilities requiring knowledge of federal/state employment laws 
and regulations, as well as the District’s collective bargaining agreements, board policies and administrative 
guidelines. The Legal Assistant stays current on the above-referenced areas, agreements, policies, and laws to 
assist with District compliance. The position requires initiative, confidentiality, superior organizational skills, 
time management and a demonstrated ability to communicate effectively and work collaboratively with a team.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  

• Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position 
responsibilities. 

• Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts 
educational inequities in student achievement outcomes. 

• Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified in 
the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency, racial 
equity, and systemic and structural inequalities. 

• Familiar with complex legislation (e.g. ADA, FMLA, FLSA, PERA, etc.).  
• Familiar with WISD Non-Affiliated Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreements (e.g., Unit I CBA, Unit II 

CBA, and Unit III CBA), to draft correspondence and/or reply to employee inquiries. 
• Maintains accurate HR records in compliance with state and federal guidelines and District policies. 
• Familiar with WISD Board Policies/Administrative Guidelines; exercising discretion in disseminating 

information and explaining policies/procedures as directed. 
• Conducts legal research of regulations/laws to assist with the preparation of legal 

advice/correspondence. 
• Drafts, proofreads, and edits correspondence. 
• Assists in preparing and proofing/editing, labor relations materials/documents including CBAs, LOAs 

and MOUs.  
• Collects, organizes, and maintains documents/evidence, as needed, for District investigations. 
• Maintains and processes confidential and sensitive information. 
• Manages various leave requests and facilitates communication between employees, HR team members, 

and relevant Administrators.  

Packet page 35 of 227Packet page 37 of 446



Page 2 of 4  

• Responsible for handling subpoenas received by HR & Legal on behalf of the District.  
• Develops/drafts/edits job descriptions.  
• Creates new HR forms and internal processes as needed.  
• Schedules and coordinates meetings. 
• Assists in maintenance of attendance database. 
• Manages special projects as assigned by the Executive Director of HR and Legal Services. 
• Attends and participates in staff meetings, workshops, webinars, and conferences to increase 

professional knowledge.  
• Provide training to support staff regarding internal HR procedures. 
• Provides back-up assistance to HR Team and other support staff, as required. 
• Provides back-up assistance to the WISD Fingerprinting office; complies with Michigan State Police 

rules/regulations.  
• Maintains regular and predictable attendance.  
• OTHER RELEVANT DUTIES AS ASSIGNED. 

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE:  
• Associate's/Bachelor’s degree in related field preferred. 
• Minimum of five (5) years of legal secretarial or paralegal experience in a legal/educational setting 

required. 
• Familiarity with relevant employment legislation (e.g. ADA, FMLA, FOIA, FLSA, PERA, etc.) and 

understanding of legal terminology and documents. 
• Proficient in Microsoft Word and Excel.   
• Knowledge of computer software and access and reporting to web-based information sites.  
• Notary Public preferred. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. Alternative 
requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be considered. The 
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
LANGUAGE SKILLS:  

• Communicates clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; fosters positive working relationships.  
• Attention to detail and ability to edit documents to ensure error free communication. 
• Ability to communicate and instruct others.  
• Excellent telephone presence.  
• Ability to develop, understand and follow detailed written procedures.  

 
TECHNICAL SKILLS:  

• Working knowledge of the Microsoft Office suite (Microsoft Word, Excel, and PowerPoint, e.g.) and 
Apple software and devices. 

• Ability to use a personal computer (PC) in a networked environment to utilize the Internet and other 
electronic communication mechanisms such as email conferencing.  

• Knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing, spreadsheets, 
database) is required.  

• Ability to multi-task and meet deadlines.  
• Ability to organize, prioritize and work independently, as well as cooperatively with diverse groups.  

 
REASONING ABILITY: 

• Exhibit a high level of professionalism with the ability to handle confidential information, use good 
judgment, plan and handle complex projects and maintain a flexible attitude. 

Packet page 36 of 227Packet page 38 of 446



Page 3 of 4  

• Ability to work under pressure. 
• Ability to see the task through to a successful conclusion. 
• Ability to perform job with little or no supervision.  
• Ability to initiate and complete tasks independently.  
• Demonstrated ability to begin and complete work assignments in a cooperative and efficient manner.  
• Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form. 
• Demonstrated ability to solve practical problems and interpret a variety of instructions.  
• Ability to perform assigned responsibilities in a manner consistent with excellent customer service.  

 
INTERPERSONAL SKILLS: 

• Possess excellent customer service and communication skills with a client-centered focus. 
• Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics. 
• Ability to take the initiative, work well with others as a collaborative team member and exhibit good 

communication skills. 
 
MATHEMATICAL SKILLS:  

• Demonstrated ability to be accurate in computations. 
• Demonstrated ability to quickly learn and follow formulas/procedures. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit, use hands to finger, handle, or 
feel; reach with hands and arms; talk and hear. The employee frequently is required to stand and walk. The 
employee is occasionally required to kneel or crouch. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 
25 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, color vision, and ability to adjust 
focus.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY: 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while 
performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals 
with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
The noise level in the work environment is quiet to loud, depending upon the activity in the particular part of the 
day. Occasionally the employee may be required to be outdoors for a short period of time, and therefore subject 
to varying weather conditions, for purposes of accomplishing the essential functions of this job.  
 
FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION: 
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples of 
work and to detail the required knowledge, skills and ability as well as the acceptable experience and training 
for the position. The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to assign, direct 
and control the duties of employees under supervision. The WISD retains and reserves any and all rights to 
change, modify, amend, add to or delete from any portion of this description in its sole judgment. This position 
description is not a contract for employment.  
 
The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. The District 
will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 
prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 
  

Packet page 37 of 227Packet page 39 of 446



Page 4 of 4  

 
TERMS: 
Salary and other employment conditions to be established by the Board of Education as reflected in the Non-
Affiliated Staff Manual. Starting salary (dependent upon experience) $66,977 - $82,317. 
 
Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace. 
 
Employees shall remain free of any alcohol or nonprescribed controlled substance in the workplace throughout 
his/her employment at the district. 
 
It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, age, height, weight, familial status, marital status, genetic 
information, sexual orientation or any legally protected characteristic, in its educational programs, activities, 
admissions, or employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972 Educational Amendments, executive 
order 11246 as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all other pertinent state and Federal 
regulations. 
 

Packet page 38 of 227Packet page 40 of 446



New Position Recommendation

Position Title: Special Education Coordinator (2)

FTE: 2

# of Workdays/Year:  210

Salary: Per Non-Affiliated Manual

Worksite: Teaching & Learning Center

Bargaining Unit: Non-Affliliated

Department: Special Education 

Packet page 39 of 227Packet page 41 of 446



Page 1 of 4 
 

Washtenaw Intermediate School District  
Job Description 

  
Job Title:   Special Education Coordinator – 210-Day 
Department:   Special Education Services 
Reports To:   Special Education Principal  
FLSA Status:   Exempt 
Prepared By:  Deborah Hester-Washington 

Executive Director of Special Education 
Prepared Date:  October 25, 2023 
Approved By:   Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins, Esq.  

 Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
Approved Date:  November 3, 2023 
 
The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student while 
providing high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and collaboration. 
 
The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality, boundary-
spanning, educational system that educates all children through an equitable, inclusive, and holistic 
approach.  
 
SUMMARY:  
The Coordinator of Special Education position entails training, coaching, systems support, team 
collaboration. They will also implement systems of leadership, support, professional development, guidance 
and monitoring for special education and related service staff/supports assigned to schools and/or programs 
operated by Washtenaw ISD, LEAs, and PSAs in Washtenaw County. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES:  
• Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position 

responsibilities. 
• Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts 

educational inequities in student achievement outcomes.  
• Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified in 

the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency, racial 
equity, and systemic and structural inequities. 

• Implement systems of training, coaching and support for educational staff who support students with 

disabilities, to ensure they are provided with research-based, specially designed instruction that meets 

the unique needs of all students. 

• Knowledgeable about IDEA/MARSE rules and regulations to able to provide training, guidance, support, 

and monitoring for school personnel with compliance. 

• Collaborate with Special Education teams with identifying, planning, organizing, designing, and 

implementing learning opportunities for instruction. 

• Design, coordinate, and deliver professional development related to special education services and 

instruction to members of the educational team. 

• Assist with determining training and professional development needs based on data collected by 

members of the special education team. 

• Review data to assist with determining systems and best practice strategies. 

• Assist Special Education Supervisors and Principals with the evaluation of special education staff. 

• Partners with school personnel to ensure that activities of daily operations are conducted effectively and 

efficiently to support the education of students with disabilities.  

Packet page 40 of 227Packet page 42 of 446



Page 2 of 4 
 

• Build strong partnerships with school leaders, instructional personnel, and district personnel to build 

support for students with disabilities. 

• Participates as a member of the School Leadership Team in the development and implementation of 

standard operating procedures across schools. 

• Assist with conducting student observations for appropriate placements. 

• Supports WISD vision and mission to enhance achievement for all students. 
• Supports a team-based approach to designing, planning, and implementing coordinated education 

systems. 
• Demonstrates excellent customer service. 
• Maintains regular predictable attendance. 
• OTHER RELATED DUTIES AS ASSIGNED 
 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES  
• N/A 
 
QUALIFICATIONS:  
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. 
Alternative requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be considered.  
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE: 
• Master’s Degree or higher preferred. 
• Five (5) years or more of relevant experience in Special Education preferred.  
• Must possess strong communication, interpersonal and organizational skills. 
• Must be able to use technology efficiently and appropriately. 
• Demonstrated ability to work effectively with both classroom teachers and administrators at all levels. 
• Strong facilitation skills. 
• Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics. 
• Excellent customer service and a client-centered focus. 
• Ability to write logically, clearly, and persuasively. 
• Skills and desire to work in a collaborative team with others. 
• Attention to detail and excellent follow-through required. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES: 
• Ability to provide training, guidance, support, monitoring, and direct supervision for school and district 

personnel to assist schools in implementing special education and related services in compliance with 

the IDEA and related federal and state laws, rules, and regulations.  

• Ability to effectively direct, plan, and implement plans for programs in a school-based environment.  

• Thorough knowledge of Federal, State, and District laws, policies, procedures, and best practices 

regarding student discipline and instruction. 

• Strong leadership and interpersonal skills with the ability to lead people and provide direction. 

• Ability to interpret policy and procedures. 

• Ability to communicate effectively with students, staff, and the public from diverse cultural, social, 

economic, and educational backgrounds. 

• Ability to work collaboratively with colleagues and contribute to a diverse workplace through ideas and 

experience.  

• Ability to organize, prioritize, and manage work assignments in an efficient manner and within 

established timeframes. 

Packet page 41 of 227Packet page 43 of 446



Page 3 of 4 
 

LANGUAGE SKILLS: 

• Ability to read, analyze and interpret general educational periodicals, professional journals, or 
governmental regulation.  

• Ability to write reports, business correspondence and procedural manuals.   
• Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of administrators, parents 

the general public. 
 
TECHNICAL SKILLS: 
• Demonstrated proficiency in the use of a personal computer (PC) or MAC in a networked environment to 

utilize the Internet and other electronic communication mechanisms such as email conferencing. 
• Knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing, spreadsheets, database, 

and presentation software) and other technology to support efficient and effective office operation is 
required. 

• Ability to multi-task. 
• Ability to meet timelines. 
• Ability to organize, prioritize and work independently, as well as cooperatively with diverse groups. 
• Ability to read and interpret technical procedures, governmental regulations, and forms. 
 
REASONING ABILITY: 
• Highly proficient in subject areas of reasoning, problem solving, organizational dynamics and emotional 

intelligence. 
• Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where only 

limited standardization exists. 
• Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form. 
 
INTERPERSONAL SKILLS: 
• Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics. 
• Ability to take the initiative, work well with others as a collaborative team member and exhibit good 

communication skills. 
• Ability to work effectively and collaboratively with other departments, agencies, and individuals. 
 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully 
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to speak or listen. While performing 
the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit, walk, and stand. The employee may be 
occasionally required to bend and/or twist at the trunk. The employee is continuously repeating the same 
hand, arm, or finger motion many times while typing and writing. The employee must occasionally lift and/or 
move up to 50 pounds such as educational tools. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close 
vision, distant vision, and the ability to adjust focus. The ability to travel to other buildings is required. The 
position requires the individual to sometimes work irregular or extended work hours and meet multiple 
demands from several people. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY: 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while 
performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals 
with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 

Packet page 42 of 227Packet page 44 of 446



Page 4 of 4 
 

The noise level in the work environment is quiet to loud depending upon the activity during a particular part 
of the day. Occasionally the employee may be required to be outdoors for a short period of time, and 
therefore, subject to varying weather conditions, for the purpose of accomplishing the essential functions of 
this job. 
 
FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION: 
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples of 
work and to detail the required knowledge, skills and ability as well as the acceptable experience and training 
for the position.  The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to assign, direct 
and control the duties of employees under supervision.  The WISD retains and reserves any and all rights to 
change, modify, amend, add to or delete from any portion of this description in its sole judgment. 
 
This position description is not a contract for employment. 
 
The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  The 
District will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages 
both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 
 
TERMS:   
Contract, salary and other employment conditions to be established by the Board of Education as reflected in the 
Non-Affiliated Staff Manual Starting salary ranging (dependent upon experience) $81,396 – 100,034. 
 
Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace.  
 
The employee shall remain free of any alcohol or nonprescribed controlled substance in the workplace throughout 
his/her employment at the District. 
 
It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the basis of 
race, sex, age, color, national origin, religion or handicap in its educational programs, activities, admissions, or 
employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972 Educational Amendments, executive order 11246 as 
amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all other pertinent state and Federal regulations. 
 

Packet page 43 of 227Packet page 45 of 446



New Position Recommendation

Position Title: Special Education Supervisor (2 Positions)

FTE: 1.0

# of Workdays/Year:  230

Salary: Per the NA Manual

Worksite: Teaching & Learning Center

Bargaining Unit: Non-Affliliated

Department: Special Education 

Packet page 44 of 227Packet page 46 of 446



Page 1 of 4  

WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT  
DISTRICT POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 
Job Title:  Supervisor, Special Education Services 
FTE:   1.0 (230 days/annual) 
Department:  Special Education  
Reports To:  Executive Director of Special Education 
FLSA Status:  Exempt 
Prepared By:  Deborah Hester-Washington 
   Executive Director of Special Education 
Prepared Date: November 21, 2023  
Approved By:  Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins, Esq. 

Executive Director, HR, and Legal Services 
Approved Date: February 27, 2024 

 
The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student while 
providing high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and collaboration. 

 
The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality, boundary- 
spanning, educational system that educates all children through an equitable, inclusive, and holistic approach. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Supervisor is responsible for leadership, program management, supervision, data management and 
analysis for programs and services for students. In addition, this position provides leadership in collaboration 
with respect to designing programs and services with local constituent districts. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES: 
• Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position 

responsibilities. 
• Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts 

educational inequities in student achievement outcomes. 
• Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified in 

the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency, racial equity, 
and systemic and structural inequities. 

• Maintains positive professional relationships with students, staff, parents, administration, and community. 
• Oversee, coordinate, and adhere to a vision for services and activities for special education staff. 
• Provide supervision of multiple special education teams/groups and staff. 
• Promotes and coordinates interagency collaboration and efforts involved in the support of students with 

disabilities within the county. 
• Understands the IEPT process for all students. 
• Keeps informed of all legal requirements governing special education and shares this information with 

district staff. 
• Develops and provides budget recommendations and provides expenditure control on established budgets 

for WISD programs and services to the Executive Director of Special Education.  
• Assists in the recruitment, selection, and recommendation for hiring of special education, related service, 

and support service staff. 
• Participates as a member of the district administrative teams, including acting as a committee member of 

the Special Education Administration Meetings (SEAM). 
• Prepares local, state, federal and WISD reports related to special education and submits appropriate 

reports to the Executive Director of Special Education.  
• Represents the agency in public matters related to the education of students with disabilities. 
• Demonstrates effective human relations and communication skills. 

Packet page 45 of 227Packet page 47 of 446



Page 2 of 4  

• Prepares and supervises the preparation of reports, records, lists, budget, and all other paperwork 
required or appropriate. 

• Attends meetings and conferences as needed. 
• Abides by all applicable rules, regulations, policies procedures and statutes (Federal and State). 
• Performs other administrative duties as required by the Executive Director of Special Education 
• Attends Board meetings as needed. 
• Regular predictable attendance. 
• OTHER DUTIES MAY BE ASSIGNED. 
 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES 
Supervises and evaluates the work of special education staff assigned to provide instruction, services, and 
support. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. 
Alternative requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be considered. 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE: 
• Master’s degree in special education (or related field) AND approval in one area of Special Education 

REQUIRED. 
• Full or temporary approval as a Michigan Supervisor of Special Education REQUIRED. 
• Three (3) years of administrative and/ or managerial experience in Special Education PREFERRED. 
• Three (3) years of teaching experience in the area of Special Education REQUIRED. 
• Experience working with and understanding various types of disabilities. 
• Demonstrated knowledge of local, state, and federal laws and regulations affecting Special Education. 
• Professional maturity and elevated levels of discretion, integrity, and organizational skills. 
• Demonstrated leadership and interpersonal skills. 
• Demonstrated knowledge of current trends in Special Education and impact of the trends on the special 

education community. 
• Demonstrated consultation, training, group facilitation and process skills required. 
• Evidence of strong knowledge in curriculum development and behavior interventions and support. 
• Effective verbal and written communication skills, including the ability to effectively work with staff, other 

agencies, and the general public. 
• Ability to comprehend the dynamics and sensitivity of an organization's culture and the ability to solve 

related problems. 
• A strong commitment to working cooperatively and collaboratively with local district and WISD personnel. 
 
LANGUAGE SKILLS: 
• Ability to read, analyze and interpret general educational periodicals, professional journals, or 

governmental regulation. 
• Ability to draft reports, business correspondence and procedural manuals. 
• Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of administrators, parents, 

and the general public. 
• Ability to gather and disaggregate relevant data. 
 
TECHNICAL SKILLS: 
• Ability to use a personal computer (PC) or MAC in a networked environment to utilize the Internet and 

other electronic communications mechanisms, such as email conferencing. 
• Knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing, spreadsheets, database, 

and presentation software) is required. 

Packet page 46 of 227Packet page 48 of 446



Page 3 of 4  

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS: 
• Ability to maintain program and grant budgets. 
• Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using whole numbers, common 

fractions, and decimals. 
• Ability to compute rate, ratio, and percent and to draw and interpret bar graphs. 
 
REASONING ABILITY: 
• Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where only 

limited standardization exists. 
• Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. While performing the duties of this job, the 
employee is frequently required to sit, walk, and stand. The employee is occasionally required to bend and or 
twist at the trunk. The employee is continuously repeating the same hand, arm or finger motion many times. 
The employee is frequently required to talk or listen. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 
fifty pounds such as books and teaching material. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close 
vision, distant vision, and the ability to adjust focus. The ability to travel to other buildings is required. The 
position requires the individual to sometimes work irregular or extended work hours and meet multiple 
demands from several people. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY: 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters 
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. The noise level in the work environment is 
quiet to loud depending upon the activity in the particular part of the day. Occasionally the employee may be 
required to be outdoors for a brief period of time, and therefore subject to varying weather conditions, for the 
purpose of accomplishing the essential functions of this job. 
 
FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION: 
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples of 
work and to detail the required knowledge, skills, and ability as well as the acceptable experience and training 
for the position. The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to assign, direct 
and control the duties of employees under supervision. The WISD retains and reserves all rights to change, 
modify, amend, add to, or delete from any portion of this description in its sole judgment. 
 
This position description is not a contract for employment. 
 
The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. The 
District will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages 
both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 
 
TERMS: 
Salary, and other employment conditions to be established by the Board of Education as reflected in the Non-
Affiliated Staff Manual. Starting salary starting (dependent upon experience) $98,064 - $120,519 (230-work days). 
 
Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace. 
 
Employees shall remain free of any alcohol or nonprescribed controlled substance in the workplace 
throughout his/her employment at the district. 
It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the basis of 

Packet page 47 of 227Packet page 49 of 446



Page 4 of 4  

race, sex, age, color, national origin, religion or handicap in its educational programs, activities, admissions, or 
employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972 Educational Amendments, executive order 11246 as 
amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all other pertinent state and Federal regulations. 

Packet page 48 of 227Packet page 50 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 
 
FROM:   Cassandra Harmon-Higgins, Esq. Executive Director of Human Resources 
 
DATE:      March 5, 2024 
                
RE:      Retirement Notification  
 
Attached please find Mr. Lee O’Neal’s retirement letter, effective December 31, 2024. Mr. O’Neal 
has been employed with the WISD since January 1, 2014, as a Teaching Assistant first at High 
Point and most recently at our Young Adult Red Oak Program.  
 
The Administration recommends that the Board accepts Mr. O’Neal’s letter of retirement. We 
wish him well in his future endeavors.  
 
CC:  Cherie Vannatter, Deputy Superintendent 
  Brian Marcel, Associate Superintendent 
   
 
 

Packet page 49 of 227Packet page 51 of 446



1

Nicole Hubler

To: Brian Marcel
Subject: RE: Retire

From: Brian Marcel  
Sent: Monday, March 4, 2024 4:10 PM 
To: Lee O'Neal <loneal@washtenawisd.org>; Cassandra Harmon-Higgins <charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org> 
Subject: RE: Retire 
 
Hi Lee, 
 
Congratulations on your decision to retire! How exciting for you! 
 
The most important thing is to make sure that you are in contact with the Michigan Office of Retirement Services. I 
included a link below with their contact information. They recommend filing for retirement with them on their forms at 
least 3 months before your retirement effective date. 
 
https://www.michigan.gov/orsschools/contact-ors 
 
Also, to be eligible for any payment of unused sick leave from WISD, you need to provide notice of your retirement, 
which you have now done. 
 
HR will also pass this information on to Deborah Hester-Washington and Chandra Dumas for planning purposes. 
 
Brian 
 
From: Lee O'Neal <loneal@washtenawisd.org>  
Sent: Monday, March 4, 2024 2:32 PM 
To: Cassandra Harmon-Higgins <charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org>; Brian Marcel <bmarcel@washtenawisd.org> 
Subject: Retire 
 
I go to retire 2024 and my  last day be  December, 31 2024. please let me know if and need to do 
something else. 
 
Lee O' Neal jr. 
 

Packet page 50 of 227Packet page 52 of 446



Packet page 51 of 227Packet page 53 of 446



Packet page 52 of 227Packet page 54 of 446



Packet page 53 of 227Packet page 55 of 446



Packet page 54 of 227Packet page 56 of 446



Packet page 55 of 227Packet page 57 of 446



Packet page 56 of 227Packet page 58 of 446



Packet page 57 of 227Packet page 59 of 446



Packet page 58 of 227Packet page 60 of 446



Packet page 59 of 227Packet page 61 of 446



Packet page 60 of 227Packet page 62 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 

 
FROM:   Tanner Rowe, Director of Operations 
 
DATE:      February 23, 2024 
                
SUBJECT:     Chapelle Lease Renewal  
 
The administration recommends that the WISD Board of Education authorize the administration to 
execute the lease renewal with Ypsilanti Community Schools for Rooms 120 and 128 at Chapelle Business 
Center, 111 S. Wallace Blvd., Ypsilanti, MI 48197 for a cost not to exceed $20,924. 
 
Our Early Childhood department is currently leasing space at the Chapelle Business Center which is owned 
and operated by Ypsilanti Community Schools. Currently the Early Childhood team occupies classrooms 
120 and 128 for a total of 1,718 square feet of space.  These spaces are utilized for Early On, Early 
Intervention and Early Head Start (EHS) services which provide space for Ypsilanti and Lincoln infants, 
toddlers, and families.  It is located in a convenient setting, with ample free parking making it a great space 
to serve the families in this area.    
 
The lease renewal is for a one (1) year period commencing July 1, 2024 and running through June 30, 
2025. The annual lease amount is $20,924.  Base rent is $1,432 per month, utilities are prorated at $312, 
which brings the total monthly amount to $1,744, equivalent to $12.18 per square foot. Funding for these 
spaces will be through Early On federal funding and Early Head Start funding. 
 
 

Packet page 61 of 227Packet page 63 of 446



Packet page 62 of 227Packet page 64 of 446



Packet page 63 of 227Packet page 65 of 446



Packet page 64 of 227Packet page 66 of 446



Packet page 65 of 227Packet page 67 of 446



Packet page 66 of 227Packet page 68 of 446



Packet page 67 of 227Packet page 69 of 446



Packet page 68 of 227Packet page 70 of 446



Packet page 69 of 227Packet page 71 of 446



Packet page 70 of 227Packet page 72 of 446



Packet page 71 of 227Packet page 73 of 446



Packet page 72 of 227Packet page 74 of 446



Packet page 73 of 227Packet page 75 of 446



Packet page 74 of 227Packet page 76 of 446



Packet page 75 of 227Packet page 77 of 446



Packet page 76 of 227Packet page 78 of 446



Packet page 77 of 227Packet page 79 of 446



Packet page 78 of 227Packet page 80 of 446



Packet page 79 of 227Packet page 81 of 446



Packet page 80 of 227Packet page 82 of 446



Packet page 81 of 227Packet page 83 of 446



Packet page 82 of 227Packet page 84 of 446



Packet page 83 of 227Packet page 85 of 446



Packet page 84 of 227Packet page 86 of 446



Packet page 85 of 227Packet page 87 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 

 
FROM:   Melissa Brooks-Yip, Supervisor of Instruction, Achievement Initiatives and Dr. 

Jennifer Banks, Director of Instruction, Achievement Initiatives 
 
DATE:      February 27, 2024 
                
SUBJECT:     Early Literacy Coaching Contract with Manchester Community Schools 

 
We recommend that the WISD Board of Education approve a contract with Manchester 
Community Schools to provide an early literacy coach for the remainder of the 2023-2024 
school year at a cost not to exceed $60,000.00. 
 
Manchester Community Schools will provide an early literacy coach (PreK-3) who will join the 
Washtenaw County Coaching Collaborative (WC3) professional learning network. The coach will 
support Manchester teachers in implementing the Essential Instructional Practices in Early 
Literacy. The funding source is a Michigan Department of Education Early Literacy Coaching 
Grant, which aligns with our commitment to high-quality literacy instruction for all. 
 
The $60,000.00 cost covers time for coaching services from the date of contract approval 
through June 30, 2024. Erica Rodriguez-Hatt, Coordinator for Early Literacy and Literacy 
Coaching Initiatives, will supervise the coach's work. This contract will advance early literacy, a 
key priority in our EISJ policy. Additionally, improving early literacy outcomes for all students 
regardless of race, gender, or socioeconomic status supports our equity, inclusion, and social 
justice commitments. Early intervention can help close achievement gaps and ensure all 
students are reading proficiently by third grade. 
 

 

Packet page 86 of 227Packet page 88 of 446



Packet page 87 of 227Packet page 89 of 446



Packet page 88 of 227Packet page 90 of 446



Packet page 89 of 227Packet page 91 of 446



Packet page 90 of 227Packet page 92 of 446



Packet page 91 of 227Packet page 93 of 446



Packet page 92 of 227Packet page 94 of 446



Packet page 93 of 227Packet page 95 of 446



Packet page 94 of 227Packet page 96 of 446



Packet page 95 of 227Packet page 97 of 446



Packet page 96 of 227Packet page 98 of 446



Packet page 97 of 227Packet page 99 of 446



Packet page 98 of 227Packet page 100 of 446



Packet page 99 of 227Packet page 101 of 446



Packet page 100 of 227Packet page 102 of 446



Packet page 101 of 227Packet page 103 of 446



Packet page 102 of 227Packet page 104 of 446



Packet page 103 of 227Packet page 105 of 446



 

    
 

 
 

DATE: March 12, 2024 
 

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent and 
Members of the WISD Board of Education 

FROM: Becky L. Mullins 
Supervisor, Human Resources and Legal Services 

RE: Updated Policies – First Read 
 
 

 
The Policy Committee1 recommends adoption of the proposed policy changes to the following as 
attached: 

WISD Board Policies - 
Policy #’s 1662/3362/4362/5517 – Harassment 
Policy #’s 1422/3122/4122 – Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity 

 
Below are highlights of the Policy Committee’s recommendations to the Board: 

 
These policies have been revised to reflect changes in terminology and definitions, terms, and processes that 
are consistent with the latest regulations released by the United States Department of Education (USDOE), 
specifically Title IX regulations that were effective as of August 2020. 

 
These revisions should be adopted in order to maintain accurate policies. 

 

 
Enclosure 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Steve Olsen (Board Trustee), Mary Jane Tramontin (Board Vice President), Naomi Norman (Superintendent), Brian Marcel (Associate 
Superintendent), Cherie Vannatter (Deputy Superintendent), Cassandra Harmon-Higgins (Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services), 
and Becky Mullins (Supervisor of Human Resources and Legal Services) 

Packet page 104 of 227Packet page 106 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Title: ANTI-HARASSMENT 

Code: po1662 

1662 - ANTI-HARASSMENT 

General Policy Statement 

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free 
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all 
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all 
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of 
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another 
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board. 

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against discriminatory harassment based on race, color, 
national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, 
ancestry, or genetic information (collectively, "Protected Classes") that are protected by Federal civil 
rights laws (hereinafter referred to as "unlawful harassment"), and encourages those within the School 
District community as well as tThird pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such 
problems. The Board will investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful 
harassment is substantiated, the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its 
reoccurrence, and remedy its effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful 
harassment will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action. 

[ ] The District will offer counseling services to any person found to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, and, where appropriate, the person(s) who committed the unlawful harassment. 

For purposes of this policy, "School District community" means students, administrators, and 
professional and classified staff, as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

For purposes of this policy, "third parties" include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on 
School District property (e.g., visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), 
vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who 
come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related events/activities 
(whether on or off School District property). 

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy 

The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of 
the following prohibited acts: 

Draf
t

Packet page 105 of 227Packet page 107 of 446



A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation. 
  

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment. 
  

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of 
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges 
comprises part of one's supervisory duties.  

  
Definitions 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal 
resolution to the alleged harassment. 
  
Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment, 
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution 
to the alleged harassment. 
  
School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s):  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday – 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 
  
Bullying 
  
Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and 
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and 
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected 
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical 
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is 
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work 
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or 
work performance or participation; and may involve: 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 106 of 227Packet page 108 of 446



A. teasing; 
  

B. threats; 
  

C. intimidation; 
  

D. stalking; 
  

E. cyberstalking; 
  

F. cyberbullying;  
  

G. physical violence; 
  

H. theft; 
  

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment; 
  

J. public humiliation; or 
 

K. destruction of property.  

  
Harassment 
 
"Harassment" means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written, 
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that: 
 

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to 
his/her property; 
  

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, 
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or 
  

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school.  

 
Sexual Harassment 
  
Pursuant toFor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 
Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, "sexual harassment" is defined as: 
  
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature, when: 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 107 of 227Packet page 109 of 446



A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an 
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity. 
  

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
educational decisions affecting such individual.  
  

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational 
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning 
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an 
educational program or activity.  

 
Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of anyeither gender against a person of the 
same or anotheropposite gender. 
  
Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education 
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed 
solely by Policy 2266. 
  
Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms. 
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
  

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations. 
  

B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact. 
  

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion, 
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular 
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be 
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances. 
  

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions of a sexual nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about 
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually 
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds 
or whistles; obscene telephone calls. 
  

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or 
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich 
may embarrass or offend individuals. 
  

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting or pinching; obscene gestures. 
  

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities. 
  

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own 
sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 108 of 227Packet page 110 of 446



I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic 
relationship. 
  

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks, 
or groin. 
  

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another.                                           
 Remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about 
one's own sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

L. In the context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to 
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where 
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work 
environment. 
  

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School 
District community into a student's personal space and personal life. 
  

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature.  

  
Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits, 
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive 
employment or educational environment. 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Sexual conduct/relationships with students by District employees or any other 
adult member of the School District community is prohibited, and any teacher, administrator, coach, 
or other school authority who engages in sexual conduct with a student may also be guilty of the 
criminal charge of "sexual battery". The issue of consent is irrelevant in regard to such criminal charge 
and/or with respect to the application of this policy to District employees or other adult members of 
the School District community.] 
  
Race/Color Harassment 
  
Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the 
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, 
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class 
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the 
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets, 
and/or negative references relative to racial customs. 
  
Religious (Creed) Harassment 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 109 of 227Packet page 111 of 446



Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves 
religious slurs. 
  
National Origin/Ancestry Harassment 
  
Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal 
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose 
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's 
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment 
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such 
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs. 
  
Disability Harassment 
  
Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is 
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling condition, such as negative comments 
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such 
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic 
information. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) 
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”): 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in 
order to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender 
with which they feel most comfortable. The same individual(s) assigned to serve as Compliance 
Officer(s) may also be assigned to serve as the District's Section 504 Compliance Officer(s) /ADA 
Coordinator(s) and/or Title IX Coordinator(s). Additionally, by appointing two (2) Compliance Officers, 
there should also be a Compliance Officer available to investigate a claim of harassment that pertains 
to the other Compliance Officer.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
 
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 

Draf
t

Packet page 110 of 227Packet page 112 of 446



 
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311_______________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
 
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103________ 
(Office Address) 
 
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org___________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
  
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
 
Associate Superintendent____________________________ 
(School District Title) 
 
(734) 994-8100 extension 1402________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
 
1819 S, Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103_________ 
(Office Address) 
 
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org___________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the 
District's web site ( ) and: 
  

A. ( X) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E. ( ) _______________________________. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply with 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a prompt 
and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about "unwelcome" 

Draf
t

Packet page 111 of 227Packet page 113 of 446



conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  
Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an 
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official.  Upon receipt of a report of alleged 
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or 
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and 
Respondent.  In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident. 
  
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment is obligated, in accordance with this 
policy, to report such observations to the Compliance Officer(s) within two (2) days. Additionally, any 
Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is expected to intervene to stop the 
harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention dangerous, in which case the staff 
member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or local law enforcement officials, as 
necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer(s) or designee must contact the 
Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or Complainant's parents/guardians if the Complainant is 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) days to advise of the Board's intent to investigate the 
alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct 
  
Members of the School District community, which includes all staff, and third parties along with Third 
Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator, 
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes 
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the District's Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer within two 
(2) days of receiving the report of harassment.at his/her first convenience. 
  
Members of the School District community and Third Parties or third parties who believe they have 
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird 
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, 
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scomplaining 
individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no 
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort 
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential 
witnesses are available. 
  
If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with 
Policy 5517.01 - Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the 
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful 
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal shall report the act of bullying, 

Draf
t

Packet page 112 of 227Packet page 114 of 446



aggressive behavior and/or harassment to the one of the Anti-HarassmentCompliance Officer(s) who 
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual 
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance 
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the 
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall suspend 
the his/herPolicy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the 
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the 
Principal informed of the status of the Policy 1662 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a 
copy of the resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with 
the determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as "Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers" for 
the District. They are hereinafter referred to as the "Compliance Officers". 
  
[NOTE: School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in order 
to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender with 
which they feel most comfortable. The Compliance Officers may also serve as the District's Section 
504 and Title IX Coordinators.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
  
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually: 

A. ( ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 113 of 227Packet page 115 of 446



B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) _______________________________.  

The Compliance Officers will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about "unwelcome" 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  
Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a visitor to the District, or receive complaints that are initially filed with 
a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school 
building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process 
(depending on the request of the person alleging the harassment or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to conduct such a process. 
In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members 
of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the incident. 
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment of a student is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the Compliance Officers within two 
(2) business days. Additionally, any Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is 
expected to intervene to stop the harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or 
local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance 
Officer or designee must contact the student, if age eighteen (18) or older, or the student's parents if 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) business days to advise s/he/them of the Board's intent to 
investigate the alleged misconduct, including the obligation of the Compliance Officer or designee to 
conduct an investigation following all the procedures outlined for a formal complaint. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 1662 F1) 
  
Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Program or Activities, any Any employee or other member of the School District community 
or tThird pParty (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they haves/he has been subjected to 
unlawful harassment or retaliation may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through either the 
procedures described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the 
Complainant's claims of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding 
whether the charges are substantiated. informal or formal procedures as described below. Further, a 
process for investigating claims of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision 

Draf
t

Packet page 114 of 227Packet page 116 of 446



regarding whether the claim of legally prohibited harassment or retaliation, was substantiated are set 
forth below. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment or retaliation, timelines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a 
complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and 
potential witnesses are available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be 
completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being 
received). 
  
The informal and formal procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any 
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States 
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
("EEOC"). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stop inappropriate behavior and 
to investigate and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint 
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District 
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful harassment or retaliation.  third party who believes 
s/he has been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a 
precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those 
circumstances where the Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it. and will 
only be utilized where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to 
participate in such process. 
  
The Complainant Employees, other members of the School District community, or third parties who 
believe that they have been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against may proceed immediately to the 
formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may 
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District 
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However, all complaints of 
harassment involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District community, 
or a third party against a student will be formally investigated. Similarly, any allegations of sexual 
violence will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe in an individual feels that 
s/he is being unlawfully harassed and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the individual should tell or 
otherwise inform the Respondent that the alleged harassing harasser that the conduct is unwelcome 
and must stop. Such direct communication should not be utilized in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. The Complainant complaining individual should address the allegedly harassing conduct as 
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals 
when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainant individual if requested to do 
so. An Complainant individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent 
about the allegedly inappropriate conduct may file inform the harasser of his/her complaint is not 
prohibited from otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain 

Draf
t

Packet page 115 of 227Packet page 117 of 446



types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
A ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully harassed may make an informal 
complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2) 
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level 
employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an 
informal resolution as described below on his/her own, or appoint another individual to facilitate an 
informal resolution. 
  
The Board'sSchool District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other 
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully 
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending 
upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual claiming unlawful 
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainant individual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the 
behavior to the Respondentalleged harasser. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the 
school building or office where the Respondentindividual whose behavior is being 
questioned works or attends. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation 
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the 
individual claiming harassment and the individual accused of harassment to work out a 
mutual resolution. Such a meeting is not appropriate in circumstances involving sexual 
violence.  

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance 
Officer/or designee is directed will exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal 
complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is 
Parties who are dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant, may 
proceed to file a formal complaint and, as stated above, either party parties may request that the 
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the 
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations 
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process, if the individual elects to file a formal 
complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 116 of 227Packet page 118 of 446



The ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation hereinafter referred to as the "Complainant", may file a formal 
complaint, either orally or in writing, with a teacher, Principal, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, 
or other District officialemployee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment 
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should 
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs 
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher, 
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialemployee, either orally or in writing, about any 
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance 
Officer/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the 
parties reasonably informed of the status of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is 
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by 
the Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the 
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be 
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be 
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation, 
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or 
the Respondentalleged harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees with his/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance 
Officer may still take whatever actions deemed s/he deems appropriate in consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will 
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation. ( ) TheA Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to 
do so by the Compliance Officer. 
  
Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formal individual alleged to 
have engaged in the harassing or retaliatory conduct, hereinafter referred to as the "Respondent", 
that a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the 
allegations and provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including 
the Board's Anti-Harassment Policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to 
submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 117 of 227Packet page 119 of 446



Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will attempt 
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen 
(15) business days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations.  

 
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver 
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation 
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful 
harassment/retaliation of the Complainant. Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
harassment. The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances., including the ages and maturity levels of those involved. In determining if 
discriminatory harassment or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be 
used. The Compliance Officer may consult with the Board's legal counsel before finalizing the report to 
the Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the 
Compliance Officer/ or the designee, the Superintendent must either issue a written final decision 
regarding whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. 
A copy of the Superintendent's final written decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the 
Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
                             OR 
  
[ [X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party's his/her receipt of the Superintendent's final written decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representative within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 

Draf
t

Packet page 118 of 227Packet page 120 of 446



disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.  
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Tthird 
Pparty alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the 
right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with 
this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[ X] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 
  
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the 
Respondentindividual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as possible, 
consistent with the Board's legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform 
with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this policy and 
related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted by law. 
Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed.  Additionally, the Respondent must be provided the 
Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation process will be 
advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent. 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer or his/her designee will instruct all 
members of the School District community and third parties who are interviewed about the importance 
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is 
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns or that s/he 
provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment. 
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All 
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant 
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the 
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter., including the ages and maturity levels of those 
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider 
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, 
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 

Draf
t

Packet page 119 of 227Packet page 121 of 446



  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the 
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall 
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
  
Any act of retaliation against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation is prohibited. 
  
Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child Student Abuse/Sexual Misconduct 
  
State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a childstudent 
with a disability under the age of twenty-one (21) or that a child under the age of eighteen (18) who has 
suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or condition of a nature that 
reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately report that knowledge or suspicion to 
the proper authorities, which must include protective services;  for students under the age of 18 is 
children's protective services agency, and for students 18 and over is adult protective services agency.   
See Admin Guideline 1662 for more information. 
 
has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or condition of a nature 
that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately report that knowledge or suspicion 
to the county children's services agency. If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the 
Compliance Officer or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably 
indicates abuse or neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance 
with State law and Board Policy. 
  
Any reports made to a county children's protective services agency, adult’s protective services agency or 
to local law enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and 

Draf
t

Packet page 120 of 227Packet page 122 of 446



responsibility to continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a 
designee may work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no 
event shall the harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without 
good cause after consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to 
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall 
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the 
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where 
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment 
in general, will be age and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/ 
responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 

Draf
t

Packet page 121 of 227Packet page 123 of 446



policy; 
  

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and 
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 
  

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the 
Complainant and/or the Respondent, complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including 
no contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 
  

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or 
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 
  

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the 
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 
  

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the 
alleged discrimination or harassment; 
 
[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the District concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 
  

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including 
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 
of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 
  

O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party 
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 
  

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged perpetrator/responding party of the allegations 
constituting a potential violation of this policy; 
  

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the complainant and alleged perpetrator in advance of any 
interview or hearing; copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondent in 
advance of any interview, meeting, or hearing; 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 122 of 227Packet page 124 of 446



R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary 
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent.complainant or the alleged perpetrator. 

 
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 
  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 201820214 

 
 
Legal 

Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. 

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA) 

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq, Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq. 

42 U.S.C. 1983 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The Handicappers’ Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq. 

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq. 

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01 

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006 

National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis – May 2008 

 Draf
t

Packet page 123 of 227Packet page 125 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Title: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update Revised ANTI-HARASSMENT 

Code: po3362 

Adopted: August 21, 2012 

3362 - ANTI-HARASSMENT 

General Policy Statement 

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free 
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all 
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all 
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of 
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another 
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board. 

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against harassment based on race, color, national 
origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age (except as authorized 
by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic information 
(collectively, "Protected Classes") that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to 
as unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well 
as tThird pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board will 
investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is substantiated, 
the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its 
effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to 
appropriate disciplinary action. 

[ ] The District will offer counseling services to any person found to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, and, where appropriate, the person(s) who committed the unlawful harassment. 

For purposes of this policy, "School District community" means students, administrators, and 
professional and support staff, as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

For purposes of this policy, "third parties" include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on 
School District property (e.g., visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), 
vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who 
come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related events/activities 
(whether on or off School District property). 

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy 

The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of 
the following prohibited acts: 

DRAFT

Packet page 124 of 227Packet page 126 of 446



A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation. 
  

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment. 
  

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of 
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges 
comprises part of one's supervisory duties. 

  
Definitions 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal 
resolution to the alleged harassment. 
  
Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment, 
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution 
to the alleged harassment. 
  
School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s):  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday – 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 
  
Bullying 
  
Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and 
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and 
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected 
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical 
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is 
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work 
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or 
work performance or participation; and may involve: 
  

A. teasing; 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 125 of 227Packet page 127 of 446



B. threats; 
  

C. intimidation; 
  

D. stalking; 
  

E. cyberstalking; 
  

F. cyberbullying; 
  

G. physical violence; 
  

H. theft; 
  

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment; 
  

J. public humiliation; or 
  

K. destruction of property. 
  
 
Harassment 
 
"Harassment" means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written, 
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that: 
  

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to 
his/her property; 
  

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, 
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or 
  

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school. 
  
Sexual Harassment 
  
Pursuant toFor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 
Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, "sexual harassment" is defined as: 
  
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature, when: 
  

A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an 
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity. 
  

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
educational decisions affecting such individual. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 126 of 227Packet page 128 of 446



C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational 
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning 
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an 
educational program or activity. 

  
Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of eitherany gender against a person of the 
same or oppositeanother gender. 
  
Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex Education 
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed 
solely by Policy 2266. 
  
Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms. 
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
  

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations. 
  

B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact. 
  

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion, 
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular 
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be 
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances. 
  

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions of a sexual nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about 
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually 
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds 
or whistles; obscene telephone calls. 
  

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or 
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich 
may embarrass or offend individuals. 
  

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures. 
  

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities. 
  

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own 
sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic 
relationship. 
  

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks, 
or groin. 
  

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another. 

DRAFT

Packet page 127 of 227Packet page 129 of 446



  
Remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about 
one's own sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

L. In the context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to 
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where 
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work 
environment. 
  

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School 
District community into a student's personal space and personal life. 
  

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature. 

  
Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits, 
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive 
employment or educational environment. 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Sexual conduct/relationships with students by District employees or any other 
adult member of the School District community is prohibited, and any teacher, administrator, coach, 
or other school authority who engages in sexual conduct with a student may also be guilty of the 
criminal charge of "sexual battery". The issue of consent is irrelevant in regard to such criminal charge 
and/or with respect to the application of this policy to District employees or other adult members of 
the School District community.] 
  
Race/Color Harassment 
  
Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the 
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, 
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class 
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the 
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets, 
and/or negative references relative to racial customs. 
  
Religious (Creed) Harassment 
  
Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves 
religious slurs. 
  
National Origin/Ancestry Harassment 

DRAFT

Packet page 128 of 227Packet page 130 of 446



  
Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal 
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose 
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's 
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment 
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such 
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs. 
  
Disability Harassment 
  
Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is 
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling condition, such as negative comments 
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such 
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic 
information. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) 
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”): 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in 
order to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender 
with which they feel most comfortable. The same individual(s) assigned to serve as Compliance 
Officer(s) may also be assigned to serve as the District's Section 504 Compliance Officer(s)/ADA 
Coordinator(s) and/or Title IX Coordinator(s). Additionally, by appointing two (2) Compliance Officers, 
there should also be a Compliance Officer available to investigate a claim of harassment that pertains 
to the other Compliance Officer.] 
  
_____________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 

DRAFT

Packet page 129 of 227Packet page 131 of 446



  
  
__________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the 
School District's web site (X ) and: 
  

A. (X ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E. ( ) ___________________________________. 

  
The Compliance Officer(s) ( ) is ( ) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply with 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a prompt 
and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about "unwelcome" 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  
Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an 
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official.  Upon receipt of a report of alleged 
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or 

DRAFT

Packet page 130 of 227Packet page 132 of 446



formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and 
Respondent.  In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident. 
  
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment is obligated, in accordance with this 
policy, to report such observations to the Compliance Officer(s) within two (2) days. Additionally, any 
Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is expected to intervene to stop the 
harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention dangerous, in which case the staff 
member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or local law enforcement officials, as 
necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer(s) or designee must contact the 
Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or Complainant's parents/guardians if the Complainant is 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) days to advise of the Board's intent to investigate the 
alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct 
  
Members of the School District community, which includes all staff, and third parties along with Third 
Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator, 
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes 
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer within two 
(2) days of receiving the report of harassment.at his/her first convenience. 
  
Members of the School District community or third partiesand Third Parties who believe they have 
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird 
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, 
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scomplaining 
individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no 
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort 
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential 
witnesses are available. 
  
If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with 
Policy 5517.01 – Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the 
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful 
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal will report the act of bullying, 
aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theone of the Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) who 
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual 
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance 
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the 
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall 
suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the 
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal 
informed of the status of the Policy 3362 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a copy of 

DRAFT

Packet page 131 of 227Packet page 133 of 446



the resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the 
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as "Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers" for 
the District. They are hereinafter referred to as the "Compliance Officers". 
[NOTE: School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in order 
to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender with 
which they feel most comfortable. In addition, the Compliance Officers may also serve as the District's 
Section 504 and Title IX Coordinators.] 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
____________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually: 

A. ( ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) ________________________________. 

The Compliance Officers will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about "unwelcome" 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 

DRAFT

Packet page 132 of 227Packet page 134 of 446



not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a visitor to the District, or receive complaints that are initially filed with 
a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school 
building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process 
(depending on the request of the member of the School District community alleging harassment or 
the nature of the alleged harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to 
conduct such a process. In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All members of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that 
are reported to them to the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the 
incident. 
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment of a student is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the Compliance Officers within two 
(2) business days. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer or designee must contact the student, if age 
eighteen (18) or older, or the student's parents if under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) business 
days to advise s/he/them of the Board's intent to investigate the alleged misconduct, including the 
obligation of the Compliance Officer or designee to conduct an investigation following all the 
procedures outlined for a formal complaint. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 3362 F1) 
  
Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities, anyAny employee or other member of the School District community 
or Third Partythird party (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they haves/he has been 
subjected to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through the procedures 
described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims 
of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated.either the informal or formal procedures as described below. Further, a process for 
investigating claims of harassment and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the claim 
of legally prohibited harassment was substantiated are set forth below. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment, timelines are flexible for initiating 
the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint within thirty 
(30) calendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely 
manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 
  
The informal and formal procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any 
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States 
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
("EEOC"). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is promptly to stop inappropriate behavior and 
to investigate and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint 

DRAFT

Packet page 133 of 227Packet page 135 of 446



procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District 
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful harassment or retaliation.third party who believes 
s/he has been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a 
precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those 
circumstances where the Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it. and will 
only be utilized where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to 
participate in such process. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees, other members of the School District community, or third parties who 
believe that they have been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against may proceed immediately to the 
formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may 
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complainants involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District 
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However, all complaints of 
harassment involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District community, 
or a third party against a student will be formally investigated. Similarly, any allegations of sexual 
violence will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe inan individual feels that 
s/he is being unlawfully harassed and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the individual should tell or 
otherwise inform the Respondent that the alleged harassing harasser that the conduct is unwelcome 
and must stop. Such direct communication should not be utilized in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. The Complainantcomplaining individual should address the allegedly harassing conduct as 
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals 
when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainantindividual if requested to do 
so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent 
about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform the harasser of his/her complaint is not 
prohibited from otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain 
types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
A Ccomplainant individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully harassed may make an informal 
complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2) 
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level 
employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an 
informal resolution as described below on his/her own, or appoint another individual to facilitate an 
informal resolution. 
  
The Board's School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other 
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully 
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending 
upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual claiming unlawful 
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 134 of 227Packet page 136 of 446



A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the 
behavior to the Respondentalleged harasser. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the 
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individual whose behavior is 
being questioned works or attends. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation 
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the 
individual claiming harassment and the individual accused of harassment to work out a 
mutual resolution. Such a meeting is not appropriate in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance 
Officer/ or designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal 
complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant 
isParties who are dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may 
proceed to file a formal complaint. And, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the 
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the 
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations 
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,if the individual elects to file a formal 
complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
The ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation hereinafter referred to as the "Complainant", may file a formal 
complaint, either orally or in writing, with a teacher, Principal, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, 
or other District employeeofficial. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment 
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should 
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs 
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher, 
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialemployee, either orally or in writing, about any 
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance 
Officer/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably 
informed of the status of the investigation and the decision decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is based 
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the 
Complainant. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 135 of 227Packet page 137 of 446



If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the 
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be 
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be 
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation, 
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or 
the Respondentalleged harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance 
Officer may still take whatever actions deemeds/he deem appropriate in consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will 
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation. The( ) A Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to 
do so by the Compliance Officer. 
  
Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to 
have engaged in the harassing or retaliatory conduct, hereinafter referred to as the "Respondent", 
that a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the 
allegations and provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including 
the Board's Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to 
submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will attempt 
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business 
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver 
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation 
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful 
harassment/retaliation of the ComplainantComplainant has been subjected to unlawful harassment. 
The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the circumstances., 
including the ages and maturity levels of those involved. In determining if discriminatory harassment or 

DRAFT

Packet page 136 of 227Packet page 138 of 446



retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. ( ) The Compliance Officer may 
consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the 
Compliance Officer/or the designee, the Superintendent must either issue a final written decision 
regarding whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. 
A copy of the Superintendent's finalwritten decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the 
Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[X ] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final written decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representative within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Third 
Partythird party alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also 
reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in 
accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its 
designee. 
  
[X ] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 
  
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, 
the Respondentindividual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as 

DRAFT

Packet page 137 of 227Packet page 139 of 446



possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to 
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this 
policy and related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted 
by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must be 
provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent. 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or his/her designee will instruct all 
members of the School District community and third parties who are interviewed about the importance 
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is 
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns or that s/he 
provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment. 
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All 
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant 
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the 
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter, including the ages and maturity levels of those 
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider 
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, 
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the 
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall 
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil right law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or the 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 138 of 227Packet page 140 of 446



The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
  
Any act of retaliation against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation is prohibited. 
  
Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child Student Abuse/Sexual Misconduct 
  
State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a child student 
under the age of eighteen (18) or that a person with a disability receiving services as a student from the 
school regardless of age who has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, 
disability or condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately 
report that knowledge or suspicion to the proper authorities, which must include protective services; for 
students under the age of 18 is children's protective services agency, and for students 18 and over is 
adult protective services agency.   See Admin Guideline 1662 for more information. 
county children's services agency. If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the Compliance 
Officer or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably indicates 
abuse or neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance with 
State law and Board Policy. 
  
Any reports made to a county children's protective services agency, adult’s protective services agency  
or to local law enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and 
responsibility to continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a 
designee may work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no 
event shall the harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without 
good cause after consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to 
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall 
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the 
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where 
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment 
in general, will be age and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 139 of 227Packet page 141 of 446



B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/
responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy; 

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 

D. written witness statements;

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage of 
the incident); 

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the Complainant
and/or the Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no contact 
orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the dates the 
parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the alleged
discrimination or harassment; 

[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 

DRAFT

Packet page 140 of 227Packet page 142 of 446



following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this policy 
and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, including 
their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation of an 
alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be maintained 
regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this policy.  It is best 
practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, along with the 
date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed and/or presented 
during the training.] 

O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged perpetrator/responding party of the allegations
constituting a potential violation of this policy; 

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondentcomplainant and alleged
perpetrator in advance of any interview, meeting, or hearing; 

R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent.complainant or the alleged perpetrator. 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 

© Neola 201820214 

Legal 

Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. 

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA) 

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq. 

42 U.S.C. 1983 

DRAFT

Packet page 141 of 227Packet page 143 of 446



42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The Handicappers’ Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq. 

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq. 

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01 

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006 

National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis – May 2008 

 

DRAFT

Packet page 142 of 227Packet page 144 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Section: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update 

Title: ANTI-HARASSMENT 

Code: po4362 

4362 - ANTI-HARASSMENT 

General Policy Statement 

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free 
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all 
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all 
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of 
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another 
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board. 

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against harassment based on race, color, national 
origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age (except as authorized 
by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic information 
(collectively, Protected Classes) that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to as 
unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well 
as tThird pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board will 
investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is substantiated, 
the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its 
effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to 
appropriate disciplinary action. 

[ ] The District will offer counseling services to any person found to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, and, where appropriate, the person(s) who committed the unlawful harassment. 

For purposes of this policy, School District community means students, administrators, and 
professional and support staff, as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

For purposes of this policy, third parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on 
School District property (e.g., visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), 
vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who 
come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related events/activities 
(whether on or off School District property). 

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy 

DRAFT

Packet page 143 of 227Packet page 145 of 446



The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of 
the following prohibited acts: 
  

A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation. 
  

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment. 
  

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of 
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges 
comprises part of one's supervisory duties. 

  
Definitions 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant  is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal 
resolution to the alleged harassment. 
  
Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment, 
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution 
to the alleged harassment. 
  
School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and support staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s):  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday – 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 
  
Bullying 
  
Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and 
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and 
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected 
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical 
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is 
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work 
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or 
work performance or participation; and may involve: 

DRAFT

Packet page 144 of 227Packet page 146 of 446



  
A. teasing; 

  
B. threats; 

  
C. intimidation; 

  
D. stalking; 

  
E. cyberstalking; 

  
F. cyberbullying; 

  
G. physical violence; 

  
H. theft; 

  
I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment; 

  
J. public humiliation; or 

  
K. destruction of property. 

  
Harassment 
 
Harassment means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written, 
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that: 
  

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to 
his/her property; 
  

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, 
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or 
  

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school. 
  
Sexual Harassment 
  
Pursuant toFor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 
Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, sexual harassment is defined as: 
  
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature, when: 
  

A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an 
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 145 of 227Packet page 147 of 446



B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
educational decisions affecting such individual. 
  

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational 
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning 
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an 
educational program or activity. 

  
Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of eitherany gender against a person of the 
same or oppositeanother gender. 
  
Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex Education 
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed 
solely by Policy 2266. 
  
Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms. 
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
  

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations. 
  

B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact. 
  

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion, 
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular 
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be 
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances. 
  

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions of a sexual nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about 
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually 
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds 
or whistles; obscene telephone calls. 
  

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or 
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich 
may embarrass or offend individuals. 
  

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures. 
  

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities. 
  

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own 
sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic 
relationship. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 146 of 227Packet page 148 of 446



J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks, 
or groin. 
  

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another. 
  
Remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about 
one's own sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

L. In the context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to 
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where 
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work 
environment. 
  

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School 
District community into a student's personal space and personal life. 
  

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature. 

  
Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits, 
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive 
employment or educational environment. 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Sexual conduct/relationships with students by District employees or any other 
adult member of the School District community is prohibited, and any teacher, administrator, coach, 
or other school authority who engages in sexual conduct with a student may also be guilty of the 
criminal charge of sexual battery. The issue of consent is irrelevant in regard to such criminal charge 
and/or with respect to the application of this policy to District employees or other adult members of 
the School District community.] 
  
Race/Color Harassment 
  
Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the 
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, 
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class 
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the 
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets, 
and/or negative references relative to racial customs. 
  
Religious (Creed) Harassment 
  
Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 

DRAFT

Packet page 147 of 227Packet page 149 of 446



from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves 
religious slurs. 
  
National Origin/Ancestry Harassment 
  
Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal 
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose 
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's 
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment 
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such 
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs. 
  
Disability Harassment 
  
Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is 
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling condition, such as negative comments 
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such 
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic 
information. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) 
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”): 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in 
order to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender 
with which they feel most comfortable. The same individual(s) assigned to serve as Compliance 
Officer(s) may also be assigned to serve as the District's Section 504 Compliance Officer(s)/ADA 
Coordinator(s) and/or Title IX Coordinator(s). Additionally, by appointing two (2) Compliance Officers, 
there should also be a Compliance Officer available to investigate a claim of harassment that pertains 
to the other Compliance Officer.] 
  
_____________________________ 
(Name) 
  
 Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 148 of 227Packet page 150 of 446



1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
__________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
  
 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the 
School District's web site (X ) and: 
  

A. (X ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E. ( ) ___________________________________.  

  
The Compliance Officer(s) ( ) is ( ) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply with 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a prompt 
and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about unwelcome 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 149 of 227Packet page 151 of 446



Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an 
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official.  Upon receipt of a report of alleged 
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or 
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and 
Respondent.  In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident. 
  
 
  
Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct 
  
Members of the School District community, which includes all staff, and third parties along with Third 
Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator, 
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes 
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer within two 
(2) days of receiving the report of harassment.at his/her first convenience. 
  
Members of the School District community or third partiesand Third Parties who believe they have 
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird 
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, 
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scomplaining 
individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no 
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort 
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential 
witnesses are available. 
  
If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with 
Policy 5517.01 – Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the 
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful 
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal will report the act of bullying, 
aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theone of the Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) who 
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual 
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance 
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the 
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall 
suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the 
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal 
informed of the status of the Policy 4362 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a copy of 
the resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the 
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 

DRAFT

Packet page 150 of 227Packet page 152 of 446



The Board designates the following individuals to serve as Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers for 
the District. They are hereinafter referred to as the Compliance Officers. 
[NOTE: School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in order 
to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender with 
which they feel most comfortable. In addition, the Compliance Officers may also serve as the District's 
Section 504 and Title IX Coordinators.] 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
____________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually: 

A. ( ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) ________________________________. 

The Compliance Officers will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about unwelcome 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a visitor to the District, or receive complaints that are initially filed with 

DRAFT

Packet page 151 of 227Packet page 153 of 446



a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school 
building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process 
(depending on the request of the member of the School District community alleging harassment or 
the nature of the alleged harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to 
conduct such a process. In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All members of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that 
are reported to them to the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the 
incident. 
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment of a student is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the Compliance Officers within two 
(2) business days. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer or designee must contact the student, if age 
eighteen (18) or older, or the student's parents if under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) business 
days to advise s/he/them of the Board's intent to investigate the alleged misconduct, including the 
obligation of the Compliance Officer or designee to conduct an investigation following all the 
procedures outlined for a formal complaint. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 4362 F1) 
  
Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities, anyAny employee or other member of the School District community 
or Third Partythird party (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they haves/he has been 
subjected to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through the procedures 
described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims 
of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated.either the informal or formal procedures as described below. Further, a process for 
investigating claims of harassment and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the claim 
of legally prohibited harassment was substantiated are set forth below. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment, timelines are flexible for initiating 
the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint within thirty 
(30) calendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely 
manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 
  
The informal and formal procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any 
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States 
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
(EEOC). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is promptly to stop inappropriate behavior and 
to investigate and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint 
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District 
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful harassment or retaliation.third party who believes 
s/he has been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a 
precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those 

DRAFT

Packet page 152 of 227Packet page 154 of 446



circumstances where the Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it. and will 
only be utilized where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to 
participate in such process. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees, other members of the School District community, or third parties who 
believe that they have been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against may proceed immediately to the 
formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may 
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District 
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However, all complaints of 
harassment involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District community, 
or a third party against a student will be formally investigated. Similarly, any allegations of sexual 
violence will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe inan individual feels that 
s/he is being unlawfully harassed and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the individual should tell or 
otherwise inform the Respondent that the alleged harassing harasser that the conduct is unwelcome 
and must stop. Such direct communication should not be utilized in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. The Complainantcomplaining individual should address the allegedly harassing conduct as 
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals 
when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainantindividual if requested to do 
so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent 
about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform the harasser of his/her complaint is not 
prohibited from otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain 
types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
A Ccomplainant individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully harassed may make an informal 
complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2) 
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level 
employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an 
informal resolution as described below on his/her own, or appoint another individual to facilitate an 
informal resolution. 
  
The Board's School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other 
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully 
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending 
upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual claiming unlawful 
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the 
behavior to the Respondentalleged harasser. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 153 of 227Packet page 155 of 446



B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the 
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individual whose behavior is 
being questioned works or attends. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation 
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the 
individual claiming harassment and the individual accused of harassment to work out a 
mutual resolution. Such a meeting is not appropriate in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance 
Officer/ or designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal 
complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant 
isParties who are dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may 
proceed to file a formal complaint. And, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the 
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the 
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations 
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,if the individual elects to file a formal 
complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
The ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation hereinafter referred to as the Complainant, may file a formal 
complaint, either orally or in writing, with a teacher, Principal, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, 
or other District employeeofficial. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment 
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should 
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs 
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher, 
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialemployee, either orally or in writing, about any 
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance 
Officer/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably 
informed of the status of the investigation and the decision decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is based 
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the 
Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the 

DRAFT

Packet page 154 of 227Packet page 156 of 446



Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be 
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be 
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation, 
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or 
the Respondentalleged harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance 
Officer may still take whatever actions deemeds/he deem appropriate in consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will 
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation. The( ) A Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to 
do so by the Compliance Officer. 
  
Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to 
have engaged in the harassing or retaliatory conduct, hereinafter referred to as the Respondent, that 
a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and 
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including the Board's 
Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to submit a written 
response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will attempt 
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business 
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver 
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation 
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful 
harassment/retaliation of the ComplainantComplainant has been subjected to unlawful harassment. 
The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the circumstances., 
including the ages and maturity levels of those involved. In determining if discriminatory harassment or 
retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. ( ) The Compliance Officer may 
consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the Superintendent. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 155 of 227Packet page 157 of 446



Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the 
Compliance Officer/or the designee, the Superintendent must either issue a final decision regarding 
whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of 
the Superintendent's finalwritten decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the 
Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[X ] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final  written decision. 
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representative within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Third 
Partythird party alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also 
reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in 
accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its 
designee. 
  
[X ] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 
  
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, 
the Respondentindividual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as 
possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to 
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this 
policy and related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted 

DRAFT

Packet page 156 of 227Packet page 158 of 446



by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must be 
provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent. 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or his/her designee will instruct all 
members of the School District community and Third Parties who are interviewed about the importance 
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is 
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns or that s/he 
provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment. 
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All 
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant 
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the 
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter, including the ages and maturity levels of those 
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider 
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, 
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the 
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall 
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil right law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or the 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 157 of 227Packet page 159 of 446



Any act of retaliation against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation is prohibited. 
  
Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child Abuse/Sexual Misconduct 
  
State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a child under the 
age of eighteen (18) or that a person with a disability receiving services as a student from the school 
regardless of age has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or 
condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately report that 
knowledge or suspicion to the county children's services agency. If, during the course of a harassment 
investigation, the Compliance Officer or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged 
conduct reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be 
made in accordance with State law and Board Policy. 
  
Any reports made to a county children's services agency or to local law enforcement shall not terminate 
the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and responsibility to continue to investigate a 
complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a designee may work cooperatively with 
outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no event shall the harassment investigation be 
inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without good cause after consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to 
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall 
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the 
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where 
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment 
in general, will be age and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information (ESI), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/ statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/ 
complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 

DRAFT

Packet page 158 of 227Packet page 160 of 446



and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 
  

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and 
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 
  

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the 
Complainant and/or the Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including 
no contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 
  

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or 
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 
  

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the 
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M.  copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the 
alleged discrimination or harassment; 
 
[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 
  

M. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including 
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 

DRAFT

Packet page 159 of 227Packet page 161 of 446



of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 
  

N. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party 
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 
  

O. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged perpetrator/responding party of the allegations 
constituting a potential violation of this policy; 
  

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondentcomplainant and alleged 
perpetrator in advance of any interview, meeting, or hearing; 
  

Q. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary 
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent.complainant or the alleged perpetrator. 

  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 
  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 201820234 

 
 
Legal 

Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. 

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA) 

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq. 

42 U.S.C. 1983 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The Handicappers Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq. 

DRAFT

Packet page 160 of 227Packet page 162 of 446



The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq. 

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01 

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006 

National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis May 2008 

 

DRAFT

Packet page 161 of 227Packet page 163 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

  
Section: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021 

Title: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021 Revised ANTI-
HARASSMENT 

  
Code: po5517 

  
Adopted: May 22, 2012 

 
 
 
5517 - ANTI-HARASSMENT 
  
General Policy Statement 
  
It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free 
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all 
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all 
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of 
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another 
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board. 
  
The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against discriminatory harassment based on race, color, 
national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age (except as 
authorized by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic 
information (collectively, Protected Classes) that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter 
referred to as unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well 
as Third Partiesthird parties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board 
will investigate all allegations of unlawful harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is 
substantiated, the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and 
remedy its effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to 
appropriate disciplinary action. 
  
[ ] The District will offer counseling services to any person found to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, and, where appropriate, the person(s) who committed the unlawful harassment. 
  
For purposes of this policy, School District community means students, administrators, and 
professional and support staff, as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
For purposes of this policy, third parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on 
School District property (e.g., visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), 
vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who 
come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related events/activities 
(whether on or off School District property). 
  

Packet page 162 of 227Packet page 164 of 446



Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy 
  
The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of 
the following prohibited acts: 
  

A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation. 
  

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment. 
  

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of 
unlawful harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating harassment charges 
comprises part of one's supervisory duties. 

  
Definitions 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant  is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal 
resolution to the alleged harassment. 
  
Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment, 
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution 
to the alleged harassment. 
  
School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and support staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s):  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday – 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 
  
Bullying 
  
Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and 
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and 
the bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected 
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical 
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is 
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work 

Packet page 163 of 227Packet page 165 of 446



environment; cause discomfort or humiliation, or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or 
work performance or participation; and may involve: 
  

A. teasing; 
  

B. threats; 
  

C. intimidation; 
  

D. stalking; 
  

E. cyberstalking; 
  

F. cyberbullying; 
  

G. physical violence; 
  

H. theft; 
  

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment; 
  

J. public humiliation; or 
  

K. destruction of property. 
  
Harassment 
  
Harassment means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written, 
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that: 
  

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to 
his/her property; 
  

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, 
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or 
  

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school. 
  
Sexual Harassment 
  
Pursuant toFor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 
Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, sexual harassment is defined as: 
  
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature, when: 
  

Packet page 164 of 227Packet page 166 of 446



A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an 
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity. 
  

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
educational decisions affecting such individual. 
  

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational 
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning 
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an 
educational program or activity. 

  
Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of anyeither gender against a person of the 
same or anotheropposite gender. 
  
Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex Education 
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed 
solely by Policy 2266. 
  
Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms. 
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
  

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations. 
  

B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact. 
  

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion, 
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular 
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be 
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances. 
  

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions of a sexual nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about 
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually 
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds 
or whistles; obscene telephone calls. 
  

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or 
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich 
may embarrass or offend individuals. 
  

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures. 
  

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities. 
  

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own 
sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

Packet page 165 of 227Packet page 167 of 446



I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggests the desire for a romantic 
relationship. 
  

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks, 
or groin. 
  

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another. 
  

L. Remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about 
one's own sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School 
District community into a student's personal space and personal life. 
  

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature. 

  
Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits, 
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive 
employment or educational environment, or such that it is intended to, or has the effect of, denying or 
limiting a student's ability to participate in or benefit from the educational program or activities. 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Sexual conduct/relationships with students by District employees or any other 
adult member of the School District community is prohibited, and any teacher, administrator, coach, 
or other school authority who engages in sexual conduct with a student may also be guilty of the 
criminal charge of sexual battery. The issue of consent is irrelevant in regard to such criminal charge 
and/or with respect to the application of this policy to District employees or other adult members of 
the School District community.] 
  
Race/Color Harassment 
  
Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the 
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, 
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class 
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the 
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets, 
and/or negative references relative to racial customs. 
  
Religious (Creed) Harassment 
  
Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 

Packet page 166 of 227Packet page 168 of 446



directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves 
religious slurs. 
  
National Origin/Ancestry Harassment 
  
Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal 
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose 
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's 
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment 
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such 
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs. 
  
Disability Harassment 
  
Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is 
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling condition, such as negative comments 
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such 
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic 
information. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) 
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”): 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in 
order to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender 
with which they feel most comfortable. The same individual(s) assigned to serve as Compliance 
Officer(s) may also be assigned to serve as the District's Section 504 Compliance Officer(s) /ADA 
Coordinator(s) and/or Title IX Coordinator(s). Additionally, by appointing two (2) Compliance Officers, 
there should also be a Compliance Officer available to investigate a claim of harassment that pertains 
to the other Compliance Officer.] 
  
__________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 

Packet page 167 of 227Packet page 169 of 446



(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
 
  
_________________________ 
(Name) 
  
 Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
 
 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the 
School District's web site (X ) and: 
  

A. (X ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site.  
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E.B. ( ) __________________________ . 

  
The Compliance Officer(s) ( ) is ( X) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply 
with applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a 
prompt and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about unwelcome 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  

Packet page 168 of 227Packet page 170 of 446



Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an 
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official.  Upon receipt of a report of alleged 
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or 
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and 
Respondent.  In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident. 
  
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment is obligated, in accordance with this 
policy, to report such observations to the Compliance Officer(s) within two (2) days. Additionally, any 
Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is expected to intervene to stop the 
harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention dangerous, in which case the staff 
member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or local law enforcement officials, as 
necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer(s) or designee must contact the 
Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or Complainant's parents/guardians if the Complainant is 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) days to advise of the Board's intent to investigate the 
alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct 
  
Students and other members of the School District community along with Third Partiesand third 
parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to a teacher, administrator, 
supervisor or other District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes severe, 
pervasive, or persistent. Any teacher, administrator, supervisor, or other District employee or official 
who receives such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the District's Anti-Harassment Compliance 
Officer within two (2) days of receiving the report of harassment.( ) at his/her first convenience ( ) 
within two (2) school days. 
  
Members of the School District community and Third Parties, which includes students, or third parties 
who believe they have been unlawfully harassed are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process 
that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect 
the Complainant'scomplaining individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-
curricular programs. While there are no time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this 
policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct 
occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. 
  
If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with 
Policy 5517.01 – Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the 
reported misconduct may have created a hostile learning environment and may have constituted 
unlawful discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal shall report the act of 
bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theone of the Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
who shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves 
Sexual Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the 
grievance process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates 

Packet page 169 of 227Packet page 171 of 446



the allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall 
suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the 
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal 
informed of the status of Policy 5517 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a copy of the 
resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the 
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers for 
the District. They are hereinafter referred to as the Compliance Officers. 
[NOTE: School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in order 
to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender with 
which they feel most comfortable. The Compliance Officers may also serve as the District's Section 
504 and Title IX Coordinators.] 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
____________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually: 

A. ( ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) _____________________________________. 

Packet page 170 of 227Packet page 172 of 446



The Compliance Officers will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about unwelcome 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the student, other member of the School District 
community or third party in those instances where concerns have not resulted in the filing of a formal 
complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in an informal process. 
Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a visitor to the District, or receive complaints that are initially filed with 
a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school 
building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process 
(depending on the request of the person alleging the harassment or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to conduct such a process. 
In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members 
of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the incident. 
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment of a student is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the Compliance Officers within two 
(2) business days. Additionally, any Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is 
expected to intervene to stop the harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or 
local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance 
Officer or designee must contact the student, if age eighteen (18) or older, or the student's parents if 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) school days to advise s/he/them of the Board's intent to 
investigate the alleged misconduct, including the obligation of the Compliance Officer or designee to 
conduct an investigation following all the procedures outlined for a formal complaint. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure 
  
Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities, anyAny student who believes that they haves/he has been subjected 
to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through the procedures described 
below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims of 
harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated.either the informal or formal procedures as described below. Further, a process for 
investigating claims of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding 
whether the claim of legally prohibited harassment or retaliation was substantiated are set forth 
below. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment or retaliation, time lines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a 
complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and 
potential witnesses are available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be 
completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being 
received). 
  

Packet page 171 of 227Packet page 173 of 446



The informal and formalprocedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of a 
student to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States Department 
of Education Office for Civil Rights. 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stop inappropriate behavior and to 
investigate and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint 
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student who believes s/he has been unlawfully 
harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a 
formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those circumstances where the 
Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it.  
  
Students who believe that they have been unlawfully harassed may initiate their complaint through this 
informal complaint process, but are not required to do so. The informal process is only available in those 
circumstances where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to 
participate in the informal process. 
  
The ComplainantStudents who believe that they have been unlawfully harassed or retaliated may 
proceed immediately to the formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the 
informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the 
formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District 
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However, all complaints of 
harassment involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District community 
against a student will be formally investigated. Similarly, any allegations of sexual violence will be 
formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe instudent feels that s/he is 
being unlawfully harassed and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the individual should tell or 
otherwise inform the Respondent that the allegedly harassingharasser that the conduct is unwelcome 
and must stop. Such direct communication should not be utilized in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. The complaining individual The Complainant should address the allegedly harassing conduct 
as soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel 
individuals when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainant individual if 
requested to do so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach 
the Respondent about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform the harasser of his/her 
complaint is not prohibited from otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with 
regard to certain types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may 
advise against the use of the informal complaint process. 
  
A ComplainantA student who believes she/he has been unlawfully harassed may make an informal 
complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator in the 
school the student attends; 2) to the Superintendent or other District-level employee; and/or 3) directly 
to one of the Compliance Officers. 
  

Packet page 172 of 227Packet page 174 of 446



All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an 
informal resolution as described below on his/her own, or appoint another individual to facilitate an 
informal resolution. 
  
The Board'sSchool District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide students who believe 
they are being unlawfully harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their 
concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantstudent 
claiming unlawful harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of 
the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantstudent about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the 
behavior to the Respondent.alleged harasser. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the 
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individual whose behavior is 
being questioned works or attends. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation 
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the 
student claiming harassment and the individual accused of harassment to work out a mutual 
resolution. Such a meeting is not appropriate in circumstances involving sexual violence. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance 
Officer/ or designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal 
complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant 
isParties who are dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may 
proceed to file a formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the 
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the 
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations 
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,if the student elects to file a formal 
complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
The ComplainantA student who believes s/he has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation hereinafter referred to as the Complainant, may file a formal 
complaint, either orally or in writing, with a teacher, principal, or other District employee at the 
student’s school, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, or another District officialemployee who 
works at another school or at the district level. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful 
harassment and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, 
individuals should make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the 
conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant 
informs a teacher, principal, or other District officialemployee at the student’s school, Superintendent, 
or other District employee, either orally or in writing, about any complaint of harassment or retaliation, 

Packet page 173 of 227Packet page 175 of 446



that employee must report such information to the Compliance Officer/ or designee within two (2) 
business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably 
informed of the status of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is based 
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the 
Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the 
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be 
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be 
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation, 
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or 
the Respondentalleged harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance 
Officer may still take whatever actions deemeds/he deem appropriate in consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will 
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation. ( ) AThe Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to 
do so by the Compliance Officer. 
  
Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to 
have engaged in the harassing or retaliatory conduct, hereinafter referred to as the Respondent, that 
a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and 
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including the Board's 
Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to submit a written 
response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will attempt 
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business 
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 

Packet page 174 of 227Packet page 176 of 446



  
D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 

Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 
  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver 
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation 
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful 
harassment/retaliation of the Complainant. Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
harassment. The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances., including the ages and maturity levels of those involved. In determining if 
discriminatory harassment or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. ( 
) The Compliance Officer may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the 
Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within ten (10) school days of receiving the report of the Compliance 
Officer/ or the designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding 
whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of 
the Superintendent's final decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within ten (10) 
school days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent shall issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[ [X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representatives within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the student alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation 
pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation 
conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed 
appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[ X] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 

Packet page 175 of 227Packet page 177 of 446



  
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the complainant, 
the Respondentindividual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as 
possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to 
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this 
policy and its related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must 
be provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent. 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or his/her designee will instruct all 
members of the School District community and Third Parties who are interviewed about the importance 
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is 
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns or that s/he 
provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment. 
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All 
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant 
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the 
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter, including the ages and maturity levels of those 
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider 
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, 
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the 
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall 
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its reoccurrence, and remedy its effects. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 

Packet page 176 of 227Packet page 178 of 446



policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person from making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanction/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.  
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
 
Any act of retaliation against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation is prohibited. 
  
Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child Abuse/Sexual Misconduct 
  
State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a student under 
the age of eighteen (18) or that a person with a disability receiving services as a student from the school 
regardless of age has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or 
condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately report that 
knowledge or suspicion to the to the proper authoritiescounty children's services agency. For students 
under the age of 18 is children's protective services agency; for students 18 and over is adult protective 
services agency.  If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the Compliance Officer or a 
designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably indicates abuse or 
neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance with State law and 
Board Policy. 
  
Any reports made to a county children's services agency, adult service agency, or to local law 
enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and responsibility to 
continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a designee may 
work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no event shall the 
harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without good cause after 
consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to 
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall 
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the 
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where 
appropriate. All training, as well as information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment in 
general, will be age and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  

Packet page 177 of 227Packet page 179 of 446



The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information (ESI), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral 
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged 
violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 
  

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and 
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 
  

J. documentation of any supportiveinterim measures offered and/or provided to the Complainant 
and/or the Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no contact 
orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the dates the 
parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 
  

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or 
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 
  

Packet page 178 of 227Packet page 180 of 446



L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment; 

[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 
of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 

O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged perpetrator/responding party of the allegations
constituting a potential violation of this policy; 

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondentcomplainant and alleged
perpetrator in advance of any interview, meeting, or hearing; 

R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent.complainant or the alleged perpetrator. 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 

© Neola 20182024 

Legal 

Packet page 179 of 227Packet page 181 of 446



Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. 

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA) 

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq. 

U.S.C. 1983 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The Handicappers Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq. 

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq. 

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01 

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006 

National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis May 2008 

 

Packet page 180 of 227Packet page 182 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Title:   NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY  

Code:   po1422 

Adopted:   New Policy 

 
 
 
1422 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
  
The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including 
sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family 
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category, 
(collectively, Protected Classes), in its programs and activities, including employment opportunities. 
  
Definitions: 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an 
informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 
  
Respondent  is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is 
seeking an informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 
  
District Community means students and Board District employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term day or days as used in this policy means a business 
day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours.  
  
For purposes of this policy, “military status” refers to a person's status in the uniformed services, 
which includes the performance of duty, on a voluntary basis, or involuntary basis, in a uniformed 
service including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty for 
training, full-time National Guard duty. It also includes the period of time for which a person is absent 
from employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to 
perform any such duty as listed above. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 181 of 227Packet page 183 of 446



District Compliance Officers 
  
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’s Compliance Officers (also known 
as Civil Rights Coordinators) (hereinafter referred to as the COs). 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a 
female CO in order to provide Complainantscomplainants with the option to report their concerns to 
an individual of the gender with which they feel most comfortable. The COs may also serve as the 
District’s Section 504 Compliance Officer/ADA Coordinator and Title IX Coordinator. Additionally, by 
appointing two (2) COs, there should always be a CO available to investigate a claim of 
discrimination/retaliation that pertains to the other CO.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
 
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311_______________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
 
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103________ 
(Office Address) 
 
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org___________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
  
  
____________________________ 
(Name) 
 
Associate Superintendent____________________________ 
(School District Title) 
 
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
 
1819 S, Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103_________ 
(Office Address) 
 
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org___________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School 
District's web site ( ) and: 
  

A. (X ) in the staff handbooks. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 182 of 227Packet page 184 of 446



A. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

B. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E. ( ) _____________________________. 

  
The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to comply with applicable Federal and 
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to address in a prompt and equitable manner 
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation or denial of equal access. The COs shall 
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (as 
amended), Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendment Act 
of 1972,Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as amended), and the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1975 is provided to staff members and the general public. ( ) Any sections of the 
District's collective bargaining agreements dealing with hiring, promotion, and tenure need to contain a 
statement of nondiscrimination similar to that in the Board's statement above. In addition, any gender-
specific terms should be eliminated from such contracts. [END OF OPTIONS] A copy of each of the Acts 
and regulations on which this notice is based onis available upon request from the CO.based may be 
found in the CO’s office. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation 
  
Employees are required to encouraged to promptly report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or 
retaliation to an administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official so that the Board District may 
address the conduct. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District-level employee or official who 
receives such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the CO ( ) at his/her first convenience ( ) within two 
(2) school days. All members of the School District community must report incidents of 
discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2) 
businessdays of learning of the incident/conduct. 
 
  
Employees who believe they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize 
the complaint process set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not 
adversely affect the Complainant's complaining individual's employment. While there are no time limits 
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as 
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. 
  
The COs will be available during regular school/work hours business days as defined above to discuss 
concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportscomplaints of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party, 
or received reports that are initially filed with another Board District employee.visitor to the District, 
or receive complaints that are initially filed with a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a 
complaint, either directly or through a school building administrator, a CO will begin either an 

Draf
t

Packet page 183 of 227Packet page 185 of 446



informal or formal process (depending on the request of the person alleging the 
discrimination/retaliation or the nature of the alleged discrimination/retaliation), Upon receipt of 
a report of alleged discrimination/retaliation, the CO will contact the Complainant and begin either an 
informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant's request and the nature of the 
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any person 
who files a complaint. In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members of the 
School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them 
to the CO within two (2) businessdays of learning of the incident/conduct. 
  
Any Board District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimination/retaliation is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the COs within two (2) business days. 
Additionally, any BoardDistrict employee who observes an act of unlawful discrimination/retaliation is 
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board District employees 
and/or local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the misconduct. Thereafter, the CO or 
designee must contact the Complainantemployee within two (2) businessdays to advise him/her of the 
Board's intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 1422 F2) 
  
Except for sex discrimination and/or Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - 
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities, any employee who alleges 
to have beenAny employee who believes that s/he has been subjected to unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation may seek resolution of the his/hercomplaint through the procedures described below. The 
formal complaint procedures involve an investigation of the individual’s claims of 
discrimination/retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals are encouragedshould make every 
effort to file a complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal 
complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within 
fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 
  
The procedures set forth in this policy are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to 
pursue a complaint of unlawful discrimination or retaliation with the United States Department of 
Education Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstop quickly inappropriate behavior 
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is 
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation.believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated or retaliated against. This informal 
procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only 
available in those circumstances where the  Complainant and the Respondent mutuallyparties (the 

Draf
t

Packet page 184 of 227Packet page 186 of 446



alleged target of the discrimination/retaliation and individual(s) alleged to have engaged in the 
discrimination) agree to participate in it. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees who believe that they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated 
against may proceed immediately to the formal complaint process, and the Respondent and 
CO’sindividuals who participate in the informal procedure may request that the informal process be 
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
 
All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District 
community andagainst a student will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safean individual feels that s/he is 
being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the 
individual should tell or otherwise inform the Respondent that person who engaged in the allegedly 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct that it is inappropriate and must stop. The Complainantcomplaining 
individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it occurs as possible. The COs are 
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals when taking this initial step or to intervene 
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or 
unwilling to directly approach the Respondent about the inappropriate conduct may fileinform the 
person who allegedly engaged in the unlawful misconduct of his/her concerns is not prohibited from 
otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain types of unlawful 
discrimination (e.g., sex discrimination),  such as sexual discrimination, the CO may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
An individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated againstA Complainant 
who alleges unlawful discrimination/retaliation may make an informal complaint, either orally or in 
writing: (1) to an administrator; (2) directly to one of the COs; and/or (3) to the Superintendent. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal 
resolution as described below, or appoint another individual to facilitate an informal resolution. 
  
The School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide the Complainant employees 
who believe they are being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against with a range of options aimed 
at bringing about a prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint 
and the wishes of the Complainant,individual claiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation, informal 
resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate his/her concerns to 
the Respondent.person who allegedly engaged in the discriminatory/retaliatory behavior. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 1422 – Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as 
a reminder to the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual 
whose behavior is being questioned works. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the 
Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the individual 
claiming discrimination/retaliation and the individual accused of engaging in the misconduct 
to work out a mutual resolution. 

Draf
t

Packet page 185 of 227Packet page 187 of 446



  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or 
designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within 
fifteen (15) businessdays of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Parties who are 
dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a 
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be 
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or if 
the Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the Compliance Officer(s) 
determines the allegations are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,individual 
elects to file a formal complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
A ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation (hereinafter referred to as the Complainant), may file a formal complaint, 
either orally or in writing, with a principal, the CO, Superintendent, or other District official-level 
employee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination and retaliation, 
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort 
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. If a Complainant 
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other District officiallevel employee, either orally or in writing, 
about any complaint of discrimination/retaliation, that employee must report such information to the 
CO/designee within two (2) businessdays. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the CO should keep the parties reasonably informed of the status 
of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, the 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is 
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by 
the Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the CO shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a 
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the 
reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the 
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but 
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the Respondent. 
person who allegedly engaged in the misconduct. In making such a determination, the CO should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still 
take whatever actions deemeds/he deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 186 of 227Packet page 188 of 446



Within two (2) businessdays of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal 
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation. 
  
Simultaneously, the CO will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to have engaged in 
the discriminatory or retaliatory conduct (hereinafter referred to as the Respondent), that a complaint 
has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and provided 
with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 1422 - Non- 
Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the 
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the CO or a designee will attempt to complete an 
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation within fifteen (15) businessdays of 
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the CO/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver a written report 
to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation and provides 
recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful discrimination/retaliation as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent has engaged in 
unlawful harassment/retaliation of the Complainant.Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation.  The CO's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances. In determining if discrimination or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence 
standard will be used. ( ) The CO may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report 
to the Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) businessdays of receiving the report of the CO or the 
designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges 
have been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision 
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
businessdays. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful discrimination/retaliation 
toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentComplainant was subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, s/he must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and 

Draf
t

Packet page 187 of 227Packet page 189 of 446



prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable, 
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) businessdays of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representatives within twenty (20) businessdays of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) businessdays of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal 
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other 
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[X ] The partiesComplainant may be represented, at their his/her own cost, at any of the above-
described meetings/hearings. 
 
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.The right of a person 
to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of 
other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights or the filing of a court 
case. Use of this internal complaint procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the 
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to 
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All 
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must 
be provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent(s). 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is 
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as 

Draf
t

Packet page 188 of 227Packet page 190 of 446



part of an investigation is expected not to to not disclose to tThird pParties any information that is 
learned or provided  s/he learns and/or provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the 
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State 
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the 
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involved in the matter. In those cases 
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, the Board may consider whether the 
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, consistent 
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against an employee, all 
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall be reasonably calculated to 
end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the 
Board nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because 
the person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or 
because that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused 
to participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Specifically, 
the Board will not retaliate against, coerce, intimidate, threaten or interfere with any individual 
because the person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, 
or because that individual made a charge, testified, assisted or participated in any manner in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, 
aided or encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected 
by those laws. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 189 of 227Packet page 191 of 446



Education and Training 

In support of this policy, the Board District promotes preventative educational measures to create 
greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or  designee shall provide 
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation 
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as 
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age 
and content appropriate. 

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 

The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy.  All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information (ESI), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy; 

B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/
responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy; 

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 

D. written witness statements;

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 

Draf
t

Packet page 190 of 227Packet page 192 of 446



result of a violation of this policy; 

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the
Complainant and/or Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no 
contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment; 

[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 
of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 

O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged Respondentperpetrator/responding party of the
allegations constituting a potential violation of this policy; 

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondent in advance of any
interview, meeting, or hearing; 

R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent. complainant or the alleged perpetrator 

Draf
t

Packet page 191 of 227Packet page 193 of 446



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 
  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 20182024 

 
 
Legal 

M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seq. 

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution 

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act 

20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act of 1974 

20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act 

42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

34 C.F.R. Part 110 (7/27/93) 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1964 

29 U.S.C. 701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

 

 Draf
t

Packet page 192 of 227Packet page 194 of 446



-Book: Policy Manual 

Title: NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

Code: po3122 

Adopted: August 21, 2012 

3122 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including 
sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family 
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category, 
(collectively, "Protected Classes"), in its programs and activities, including employment opportunities. 

Definitions: 

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an 
informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 

Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is 
seeking an informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 

School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term "day" or "days" as used in this policy means a 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday - 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 

For purposes of this policy, "military status" refers to a person's status in the uniformed services, 
which includes the performance of duty, on a voluntary basis, or involuntary basis, in a uniformed 
service including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty for 
training, full-time National Guard duty. It also includes the period of time for which a person is absent 
from employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to 
perform any such duty as listed above. 

DRAFT

Packet page 193 of 227Packet page 195 of 446



  
District Compliance Officers 
  
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’s "Compliance Officers" (also 
known as "Civil Rights Coordinators") (hereinafter referred to as the "COs"). 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a 
female CO in order to provide Complainants complainants with the option to report their concerns to 
an individual of the gender with which they feel most comfortable. The COs may also serve as the 
District’s Section 504 Compliance Officer/ADA Coordinator and Title IX Coordinator. Additionally, by 
appointing two (2) COs, there should always be a CO available to investigate a claim of 
discrimination/retaliation that pertains to the other CO.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
 
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School 
District's web site ( x) and: 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 194 of 227Packet page 196 of 446



A. (X ) in the staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) _____________________________. 

  
The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to comply with applicable Federal and 
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to address in a prompt and equitable manner 
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation or denial of equal access. The COs shall 
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (as 
amended), Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendment Act 
of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as amended), and the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1975 is provided to staff members and the general public. ( ) Any sections of the 
District's collective bargaining agreements dealing with hiring, promotion, and tenure need to contain a 
statement of nondiscrimination similar to that in the Board's statement above. In addition, any gender-
specific terms should be eliminated from such contracts. [END OF OPTIONS] A copy of each of the Acts 
and regulations on which this notice is based is available upon request from the CO.based may be 
found in the CO’s office. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation 
  
Employees are required to encouraged to promptly report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or 
retaliation to an administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official so that the Board may address 
the conduct. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District-level employee or official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the CO ( ) at his/her first convenience ( ) within two (2) school 
days. All members of the School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation 
that are reported to them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2) businessdays of learning of 
the incident/conduct. 
 
  
Employees who believe they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize 
the complaint process set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not 
adversely affect the Complainant's complaining individual's employment. While there are no time limits 
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as 
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. 
  
The COs will be available during regular school/work hours business days as defined above to discuss 
concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportscomplaints of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party, 
or received reports that are initially filed with another Board District employee.visitor to the District, 

DRAFT

Packet page 195 of 227Packet page 197 of 446



or receive complaints that are initially filed with a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a 
complaint, either directly or through a school building administrator, a CO will begin either an 
informal or formal process (depending on the request of the person alleging the 
discrimination/retaliation or the nature of the alleged discrimination/retaliation), Upon receipt of 
a report of alleged discrimination/retaliation, the CO will contact the Complainant and begin either an 
informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant's request and the nature of the 
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any person 
who files a complaint. In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members of the 
School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them 
to the CO within two (2) business days of learning of the incident/conduct. 
  
Any Board District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimination/retaliation is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the COs within two (2) business days. 
Additionally, any Board District employee who observes an act of unlawful discrimination/retaliation is 
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board District employees 
and/or local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the misconduct. Thereafter, the CO or 
designee must contact the Complainantemployee within two (2) business days to advise him/her of the 
Board's intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 3122 F2) 
  
Except for sex discrimination and/or Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - 
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities, any employee who alleges 
to have beenAny employee who believes that s/he has been subjected to unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation may seek resolution of the his/hercomplaint through the procedures described below. The 
formal complaint procedures involve an investigation of the individual’s claims of 
discrimination/retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals are encouragedshould make every 
effort to file a complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal 
complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within 
fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 
  
The procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to pursue 
a complaint of unlawful discrimination or retaliation with the United States Department of Education 
Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstop quickly inappropriate behavior 
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is 
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation.believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated or retaliated against. This informal 

DRAFT

Packet page 196 of 227Packet page 198 of 446



procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only 
available in those circumstances where the  Complainant and the Respondent mutuallyparties (the 
alleged target of the discrimination/retaliation and individual(s) alleged to have engaged in the 
discrimination) agree to participate in it. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees who believe that they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated 
against may proceed immediately to the formal complaint process and individuals who participate 
inseek resolution through the informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated 
at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District 
community andagainst a student will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safean individual feels that s/he is 
being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the 
individual should tell or otherwise inform the Respondent that person who engaged in the allegedly 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct that it is inappropriate and must stop. The Complainantcomplaining 
individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it occurs as possible. The COs are 
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals when taking this initial step or to intervene 
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or 
unwilling to directly approach the Respondent about the inappropriate conduct may fileinform the 
person who allegedly engaged in the unlawful misconduct of his/her concerns is not prohibited from 
otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain types of unlawful 
discrimination (e.g., sex discrimination),  such as sexual discrimination, the CO may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
An individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated againstA Complainant 
who alleges unlawful discrimination/retaliation may make an informal complaint, either orally or in 
writing: (1) to a building administrator; (2) directly to one of the COs; and/or (3) to the Superintendent 
or other District-level employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal 
resolution as described below, or appoint another individual to facilitate an informal resolution. 
  
The School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide the Complainant employees 
who believe they are being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against with a range of options aimed 
at bringing about a prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint 
and the wishes of the Complainant,individual claiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation, informal 
resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate his/her concerns to 
the Respondent.person who allegedly engaged in the discriminatory/retaliatory behavior. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 3122 – Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as 
a reminder to the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual 
whose behavior is being questioned works. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 197 of 227Packet page 199 of 446



C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the 
Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the individual 
claiming discrimination/retaliation and the individual accused of engaging in the misconduct 
to work out a mutual resolution. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or 
designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within 
fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Parties who are 
dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a 
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be 
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or if 
the Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the Compliance Officer(s) 
determines the allegations are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,individual 
elects to file a formal complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
A ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation (hereinafter referred to as the "Complainant"), may file a formal complaint, 
either orally or in writing, with a principal, the CO, Superintendent, or other District official-level 
employee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination and retaliation, 
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort 
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. If a Complainant 
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other District officiallevel employee, either orally or in writing, 
about any complaint of discrimination/retaliation, that employee must report such information to the 
CO/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the CO should keep the parties reasonably informed of the status 
of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, the 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is 
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by 
the Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the CO shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a 
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the 
reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the 
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but 
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the Respondent. 
person who allegedly engaged in the misconduct. In making such a determination, the CO should 

DRAFT

Packet page 198 of 227Packet page 200 of 446



consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still 
take whatever actions deemeds/he deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal 
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation. 
  
Simultaneously, the CO will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to have engaged in 
the discriminatory or retaliatory conduct (hereinafter referred to as the "Respondent"), that 
a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and 
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 3122 - 
Non- Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the 
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the CO or a designee will attempt to complete an 
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation within fifteen (15) business days of 
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the CO/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver a written report 
to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation and provides 
recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful discrimination/retaliation as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent has engaged in 
unlawful harassment/retaliation of the Complainant.Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation.  The CO's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances. In determining if discrimination or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence 
standard will be used. ( ) The CO may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report 
to the Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the CO or the 
designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges 
have been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision 
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 

DRAFT

Packet page 199 of 227Packet page 201 of 446



  
If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful discrimination/retaliation 
toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentComplainant was subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, s/he must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and 
prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable, 
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[x ] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representatives within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal 
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other 
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[ x] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 
 
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.The right of a person 
to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of 
other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights or the filing of a court 
case. Use of this internal complaint procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the 
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to 
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All 
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must 
be provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent(s). 

DRAFT

Packet page 200 of 227Packet page 202 of 446



  
During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is 
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as 
part of an investigation is expected not to to not disclose to third parties any information that is learned 
or provided  s/he learns and/or provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the 
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State 
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the 
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involved in the matter. In those cases 
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, the Board may consider whether the 
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, consistent 
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against an employee, all 
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall be reasonably calculated to 
end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Specifically, 
the Board will not retaliate against, coerce, intimidate, threaten or interfere with any individual 
because the person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, 
or because that individual made a charge, testified, assisted or participated in any manner in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, 

DRAFT

Packet page 201 of 227Packet page 203 of 446



aided or encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected 
by those laws. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to create greater 
awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall provide 
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation 
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as 
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age 
and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy.  All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to:  
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral 
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged 
violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 202 of 227Packet page 204 of 446



I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the
Complainant and/or Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no 
contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment; 

[REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be maintained regardless of whether there is 
an investigation of an alleged violation of this policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all 
staff members who participate in a training, along with the date, time and location of the 
training, and a copy of the materials reviewed and/or presented during the training.] 

N. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 

O. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged Respondentperpetrator/responding party of the
allegations constituting a potential violation of this policy; 

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondent in advance of any
interview, meeting, or hearing; 

Q. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent. complainant or the alleged perpetrator 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 

DRAFT

Packet page 203 of 227Packet page 205 of 446



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 201820214 

 
 
Legal 

M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seq. 

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution 

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act 

20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act of 1974 

20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act 

42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

34 C.F.R. Part 110 (7/27/93) 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1964 

29 U.S.C. 701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

 

DRAFT

Packet page 204 of 227Packet page 206 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Section: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021 

Title: NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

Code: po4122 

4122 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including 
sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family 
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category, 
(collectively, "Protected Classes"), in its programs and activities, including employment opportunities. 

Definitions: 

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an 
informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 

Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is 
seeking an informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 

School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term "day" or "days" as used in this policy means a 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday - 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 

For purposes of this policy, "military status" refers to a person's status in the uniformed services, 
which includes the performance of duty, on a voluntary basis, or involuntary basis, in a uniformed 
service including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty for 
training, full-time National Guard duty. It also includes the period of time for which a person is absent 

Draf
t

Packet page 205 of 227Packet page 207 of 446



from employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to 
perform any such duty as listed above. 
  
District Compliance Officers 
  
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’s "Compliance Officers" (also 
known as "Civil Rights Coordinators") (hereinafter referred to as the "COs"). 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a 
female CO in order to provide Complainants complainants with the option to report their concerns to 
an individual of the gender with which they feel most comfortable. The COs may also serve as the 
District’s Section 504 Compliance Officer/ADA Coordinator and Title IX Coordinator. Additionally, by 
appointing two (2) COs, there should always be a CO available to investigate a claim of 
discrimination/retaliation that pertains to the other CO.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
  
  
____________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
  
 

Draf
t

Packet page 206 of 227Packet page 208 of 446



The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School 
District's web site ( ) and: 
  

A. ( (X) in the staff handbooks. 
  

( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) _____________________________. 

  
The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to comply with applicable Federal and 
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to address in a prompt and equitable manner 
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation or denial of equal access. The COs shall 
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (as 
amended), Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendment Act 
of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as amended), and the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1975 is provided to staff members and the general public. ( ) Any sections of the 
District's collective bargaining agreements dealing with hiring, promotion, and tenure need to contain a 
statement of nondiscrimination similar to that in the Board's statement above. In addition, any gender-
specific terms should be eliminated from such contracts. [END OF OPTIONS] A copy of each of the Acts 
and regulations on which this notice is based is available upon request from the CO.based may be 
found in the CO’s office. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation 
  
Employees are required to encouraged to promptly report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or 
retaliation to an administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official so that the Board may address 
the conduct. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District-level employee or official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the CO ( ) at his/her first convenience ( ) within two (2) school 
days. All members of the School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation 
that are reported to them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2) business days of learning of 
the incident/conduct. 
 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 207 of 227Packet page 209 of 446



Employees who believe they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize 
the complaint process set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not 
adversely affect the Complainant's complaining individual's employment. While there are no time limits 
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as 
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. 
  
The COs will be available during regular school/work hours business days as defined above to discuss 
concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportscomplaints of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party, 
or received reports that are initially filed with another Board employee.visitor to the District, or 
receive complaints that are initially filed with a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a 
complaint, either directly or through a school building administrator, a CO will begin either an 
informal or formal process (depending on the request of the person alleging the 
discrimination/retaliation or the nature of the alleged discrimination/retaliation), Upon receipt of 
a report of alleged discrimination/retaliation, the CO will contact the Complainant and begin either an 
informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant's request and the nature of the 
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any person 
who files a complaint. In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members of the 
School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them 
to the CO within two (2) business days of learning of the incident/conduct. 
  
Any Board District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimination/retaliation is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the COs within two (2) business days. 
Additionally, any Board District employee who observes an act of unlawful discrimination/retaliation is 
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or 
local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the misconduct. Thereafter, the CO or designee 
must contact the Complainantemployee within two (2) business days to advise him/her of the Board's 
intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 4122 F2) 
  
Except for sex discrimination and/or Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - 
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities, any employee who alleges 
to have beenAny employee who believes that s/he has been subjected to unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation may seek resolution of the his/hercomplaint through the procedures described below. The 
formal complaint procedures involve an investigation of the individual’s claims of 
discrimination/retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals are encouragedshould make every 
effort to file a complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal 
complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within 
fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 

Draf
t

Packet page 208 of 227Packet page 210 of 446



  
The procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to pursue 
a complaint of unlawful discrimination or retaliation with the United States Department of Education 
Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstop quickly inappropriate behavior 
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is 
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation.believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated or retaliated against. This informal 
procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only 
available in those circumstances where the  Complainant and the Respondent mutuallyparties (the 
alleged target of the discrimination/retaliation and individual(s) alleged to have engaged in the 
discrimination) agree to participate in it. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees who believe that they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated 
against may proceed immediately to the formal complaint process and individuals who participate 
inseek resolution through the informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated 
at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District 
community andagainst a student will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safean individual feels that s/he is 
being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the 
individual should tell or otherwise inform the Respondent that person who engaged in the allegedly 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct that it is inappropriate and must stop. The Complainantcomplaining 
individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it occurs as possible. The COs are 
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals when taking this initial step or to intervene 
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or 
unwilling to directly approach the Respondent about the inappropriate conduct may fileinform the 
person who allegedly engaged in the unlawful misconduct of his/her concerns is not prohibited from 
otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain types of unlawful 
discrimination (e.g., sex discrimination),  such as sexual discrimination, the CO may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
An individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated againstA Complainant 
who alleges unlawful discrimination/retaliation may make an informal complaint, either orally or in 
writing: (1) to a building administrator; (2) directly to one of the COs; and/or (3) to the Superintendent 
or other District-level employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal 
resolution as described below, or appoint another individual to facilitate an informal resolution. 
  
The School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide the Complainant employees 
who believe they are being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against with a range of options aimed 
at bringing about a prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint 

Draf
t

Packet page 209 of 227Packet page 211 of 446



and the wishes of the Complainant,individual claiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation, informal 
resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate his/her concerns to 
the Respondent.person who allegedly engaged in the discriminatory/retaliatory behavior. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 4122 – Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as 
a reminder to the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual 
whose behavior is being questioned works. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the 
Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the individual 
claiming discrimination/retaliation and the individual accused of engaging in the misconduct 
to work out a mutual resolution. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or 
designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within 
fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Parties who are 
dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a 
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be 
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or if 
the Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the Compliance Officer(s) 
determines the allegations are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,individual 
elects to file a formal complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
A ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation (hereinafter referred to as the "Complainant"), may file a formal complaint, 
either orally or in writing, with a principal, the CO, Superintendent, or other District official-level 
employee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination and retaliation, 
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort 
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. If a Complainant 
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other District officiallevel employee, either orally or in writing, 
about any complaint of discrimination/retaliation, that employee must report such information to the 
CO/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the CO should keep the parties reasonably informed of the status 
of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, the 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is 
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by 
the Complainant. 

Draf
t

Packet page 210 of 227Packet page 212 of 446



  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the CO shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a 
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the 
reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the 
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but 
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the Respondent. 
person who allegedly engaged in the misconduct. In making such a determination, the CO should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still 
take whatever actions deemeds/he deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal 
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation. 
  
Simultaneously, the CO will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to have engaged in 
the discriminatory or retaliatory conduct (hereinafter referred to as the "Respondent"), that 
a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and 
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 4122 - 
Non- Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the 
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the CO or a designee will attempt to complete an 
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation within fifteen (15) business days of 
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the CO/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver a written report 
to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation and provides 
recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful discrimination/retaliation as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent has engaged in 
unlawful harassment/retaliation of the Complainant.Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation.  The CO's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances. In determining if discrimination or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence 
standard will be used. ( ) The CO may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report 
to the Superintendent. 

Draf
t

Packet page 211 of 227Packet page 213 of 446



  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the CO or the 
designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges 
have been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision 
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful discrimination/retaliation 
toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentComplainant was subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, s/he must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and 
prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable, 
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[ [X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representatives within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal 
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other 
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[X ] The partiesComplainant may be represented, at theirhis/her own cost, at any of the above-
described meetings/hearings. 
 
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.The right of a person 
to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of 
other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights or the filing of a court 
case. Use of this internal complaint procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 

Draf
t

Packet page 212 of 227Packet page 214 of 446



  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the 
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to 
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All 
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must 
be provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent(s). 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is 
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as 
part of an investigation is expected not to to not disclose to third parties any information that is learned 
or provided  s/he learns and/or provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the 
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State 
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the 
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involved in the matter. In those cases 
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, the Board may consider whether the 
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, consistent 
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against an employee, all 
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall be reasonably calculated to 
end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 213 of 227Packet page 215 of 446



Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Specifically, 
the Board will not retaliate against, coerce, intimidate, threaten or interfere with any individual 
because the person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, 
or because that individual made a charge, testified, assisted or participated in any manner in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, 
aided or encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected 
by those laws. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to create greater 
awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall provide 
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation 
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as 
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age 
and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy.  All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to:  
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral 
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged 
violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 214 of 227Packet page 216 of 446



F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 
  

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and 
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 
  

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the 
Complainant and/or Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no 
contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 
  

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or 
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 
  

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the 
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 
  

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the 
alleged discrimination or harassment; 
 
 [DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.]  
  

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including 
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 
of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 215 of 227Packet page 217 of 446



O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party 
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 
  

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged Respondentperpetrator/responding party of the 
allegations constituting a potential violation of this policy; 
  

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondent in advance of any 
interview, meeting, or hearing; 
  

R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary 
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent. complainant or the alleged perpetrator 

  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 
  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 20182023 

 
 
Legal 

M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seq. 

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution 

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act 

20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act of 1974 

20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act 

42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

34 C.F.R. Part 110 (7/27/93) 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1964 

29 U.S.C. 701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

 

Draf
t

Packet page 216 of 227Packet page 218 of 446



 

 

 

© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  This client newsletter is intended to provide helpful information on school law topics and is not intended as legal advice or opinion 
for specific facts, matters, situations, or issues. Legal counsel should be consulted about the application of this information to a specific circumstance or situation. 

School Law Notes 
February 29, 2024 THRUN 

Law Firm, P.C. 

ESSER Funds: Use Them or Lose Them! 
In 2020 and 2021, Congress enacted several relief packages 

allocating almost $200 billion nationally to support public schools 
during the COVID-19 pandemic and its aftermath. Those 
appropriations derive from the Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund, issued in phases known as ESSER I, 
ESSER II, and ESSER III (or the American Rescue Plan ESSER). 
Reportedly, MDE has received and allocated at least 90% of 
approximately $5.6 billion dollars in ESSER funds to local schools.  

As ESSER grants wind down, school officials should be aware of 
upcoming deadlines to avoid forfeiting funds. Schools must 
“obligate” ESSER grant money to eligible programs and 
expenditures by specific deadlines. Funds are obligated on the date 
the school enters into a written binding agreement for services. The 
obligation deadlines for ESSER I and ESSER II funds have passed, but 
the ESSER III obligation deadline is September 30, 2024.  

Obligation deadlines are not eligible for extension. If your school 
has not yet obligated all of its ESSER III grant money, now is the time 
to refer back to the school’s ESSER III Use of Funds Plan to identify 
additional projects. 

In addition to the obligation deadline, school officials must 
ensure satisfaction of the liquidation deadline. Schools must spend, 
or liquidate, the funds by December 30, 2024.  

 Unlike the obligation deadline, the ESSER III funds liquidation 
deadline is eligible for extension, as explained in MDE’s Septem-
ber 28, 2023 memo to Michigan public schools. MDE will receive 
liquidation extension requests for ESSER III funds between 
October 1, 2024 and December 1, 2024, and evaluate whether to 
submit requests to the U.S. Department of Education (DOE).  

Extensions, if granted, provide up to an additional 14 months to 
liquidate obligated funds. In January 2024, the DOE released an 
updated extension request form for ESSER III funds. That form 
requires MDE, on behalf of individual schools, to list examples of 
supporting documentation and to provide a cover letter explaining 
how the ESSER III liquidation extension request contributes to the 
“acceleration of academic success for students, including those 
furthest from opportunity and with the greatest need.” The 
extension form also asks for an “explanation” for late liquidation and 
a description of measures taken to liquidate in a timely fashion. DOE 
has issued guidance identifying situations that might warrant an 
extension.  

The ESSER III allocations were the largest of the COVID-19 relief 
funds, so the September 30, 2024 deadline is critical for schools to 
obligate those funds. Schools not expecting to spend the funds by the 
December 30, 2024 liquidation deadline should submit an extension 
request to MDE within the October 1 - December 1 window. 

•    •    •

Transactions 
ESSER Funds: Use Them or Lose Them! .................. 1 

Labor and Employment 
Newly Effective PERA Disclosure 

Requirements ........................................................... 2 
Probationary Teacher Non-Renewal 

Timelines .................................................................... 2 
Independent Contractor Rule Updated ................... 3 
Court Dismisses Teacher’s Claims Against 

School Regarding Mask Mandate ...................... 3 

Student Issues 
Filling You In on Oral Health Assessment 

Requirements ........................................................... 4 
No Parental Right to Opt Out of State 

Assessments............................................................... 5 

Special Education 
New Special Education Guidance .............................. 5 

Miscellaneous 
Comprehensive Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Training ..................................................................... 6 
 

Upcoming Speaking Engagements 

Title IX Training Registration Form 

 
 
 
 

JEFFREY J. SOLES RYAN J. NICHOLSON 

ROY H. HENLEY CRISTINA T. PATZELT 

MICHAEL D. GRESENS PHILIP G. CLARK 

CHRISTOPHER J. IAMARINO PIOTR M. MATUSIAK 

RAYMOND M. DAVIS JESSICA E. MCNAMARA 

MICHELE R. EADDY RYAN J. MURRAY 

KIRK C. HERALD ERIN H. WALZ 

ROBERT A. DIETZEL MACKENZIE D. FLYNN 

KATHERINE WOLF BROADDUS KATHRYN R. CHURCH 

DANIEL R. MARTIN MARYJO D. BANASIK 

JENNIFER K. STARLIN CATHLEEN M. DOOLEY 

TIMOTHY T. GARDNER, JR. AUSTIN M. DELANO 

IAN F. KOFFLER KELLY S. BOWMAN 

FREDRIC G. HEIDEMANN   

GORDON W. VAN WIEREN, JR. (of counsel) 

LISA L. SWEM (of counsel) 

 
 
 
 
 

THRUNLAW.COM 
East Lansing 

Novi 

West Michigan 
 
 

Packet page 217 of 227Packet page 219 of 446

https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/project/websites/mde/ofm/grants/grants/americanrescueplan_20220225_748925_7.pdf?rev=1bca0429d5be4af89ddbaece23e64631&hash=eaa85e774af40dcad7350210b148e01f
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/Memos/2023/09/Liquidation-Extension-Request-Letter.pdf?rev=7a8c7fadfd924e1ea5a6385931377048
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2024/01/ARP-Liquidation-Extension-Letter-1.9.24-final-for-signature-v3.pdf
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2024/01/ARP-Liquidation-Extension-Letter-1.9.24-final-for-signature-v3.pdf


 

 
School Law Notes  Page 2 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

Newly Effective PERA Disclosure 
Requirements 

Public Act 236 of 2023, effective February 13, 
2024, adds Section 11a to the Public Employment 
Relations Act. Section 11a requires within 30 days after 
hiring a bargaining unit employee, a school must 
provide employee information to the union 
representing that bargaining unit regardless of the 
employee’s dues paying status. Additionally, every 90 
days a school must provide that information to each 
bargaining unit employee’s union. Section 11a does not 
specify when the 90-day period starts. Therefore, 
schools should consider providing the first notice 
within 90 days of Section 11a’s effective date 
(February 13, 2024) and every 90 days after that first 
notice.  

The statute lists the following employee 
information schools must provide within 30 days of 
hire and every 90 days thereafter: 

• first, middle, and last name 
• department or agency 
• classification 
• primary work location address 
• home address, unless the employee has a 

confidential address under the Address 
Confidentiality Program Act, in which case the 
school must provide the designated address 
assigned 

• personal telephone number 
• personal email address 
• work email address 
• hire date 
• employee identification number, if applicable 
• part-time or full-time employment status 
• wage 

Section 11a does not specify a penalty for non-
compliance. But schools should still comply to mitigate 
against the risk of an unfair labor practice charge.  

•    •    • 

Probationary Teacher 
Non-Renewal Timelines 

 To avoid an unintended contract extension or 
obtainment of tenure, school officials must follow the 
applicable timelines and procedures to non-renew a 
probationary teacher’s contract.  

Probationary Period 

 Amendments to RSC Section 1249 (teacher 
evaluation) and to the Teachers’ Tenure Act 
(probationary period for non-tenured teachers) take 
effect July 1, 2024. For the rest of this school year, RSC 
Section 1249 remains unchanged. Teachers must serve 
an initial five-year probationary period and receive an 

“effective” or “highly effective” evaluation rating on 
their three most recent performance evaluations to 
acquire tenure. This five-year probationary period is 
reduced to four years if a teacher is rated “highly 
effective” on three consecutive annual year-end 
performance evaluations. If a teacher previously 
acquired tenure with another Michigan public school, 
the probationary period is only two years, unless 
reduced in duration or waived to allow immediate 
tenure. 

School officials must accurately compute the 
probationary period and apply the correct timelines for 
non-renewal. Different timelines apply depending on a 
teacher’s hire date or if a lengthy leave of absence or 
layoff interrupts the probationary period. We 
recommend that school officials create and regularly 
monitor a chart that identifies each teacher’s hire date, 
status as a previously tenured teacher, annual 
performance evaluation ratings, and expected date for 
acquiring tenure.  

Non-Renewal 

The Tenure Act states that “before the end of each 
school year, the controlling board shall provide the 
probationary teacher with a definite written statement 
as to whether or not the teacher’s work has been 
effective.” The Michigan Supreme Court has established 
June 30 as the uniform date for the end of the school 
year for Tenure Act purposes. For a teacher hired after 
the start of a school year, however, the hire date 
(known as the “anniversary date”) defines the end of 
the teacher’s probationary period, which is measured 
in “full school years.” 

For a probationary teacher who previously 
acquired tenure in another Michigan public school and 
is on the two-year probationary cycle, the teacher must 
receive a non-renewal notice at least 60 days before the 
end of the probationary period (i.e., May 1 or 60 days 
before the anniversary date). The board must authorize 
the non-renewal and provide written notice of non-
renewal to the teacher. For all other probationary 
teachers, the teacher must receive written notice of 
non-renewal at least 15 days before the end of the 
school year (i.e., June 15 or 15 days before the 
anniversary date). 

Administrators must allow sufficient time for the 
board to act to non-renew a probationary teacher’s 
contract and to provide written notice to that teacher 
within these timelines. The common belief that a school 
board “grants” tenure to a probationary teacher is not 
accurate. Rather, a probationary teacher automatically 
acquires tenure by operation of law upon the successful 
completion of the probationary period, unless the 
school board timely acts to non-renew the contract. 

Although non-renewal is within the board’s 
discretion, school officials must comply with statutory 

Packet page 218 of 227Packet page 220 of 446



 

 
School Law Notes  Page 3 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

procedures, timelines, and criteria to successfully non-
renew a probationary teacher’s contract. For example, 
administrators must ensure that the probationary 
teacher:  

(1) was evaluated in compliance with RSC Section 
1249 and board policy;  

(2) had an individual development plan in place 
for each year from the start of the probationary 
period; 

(3) received a mid-year review; and  
(4) received multiple classroom observations and 

ample opportunity to improve consistent with 
the Tenure Act. 

School officials must follow the applicable 
timelines and procedures required to properly make 
these important personnel decisions to avoid 
unintended consequences. 

•    •    • 

Independent Contractor Rule Updated  
The U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) recently 

published a final Independent Contractor Rule, 
effective March 11, 2024, which revises guidance on 
determining whether an individual is an employee or 
independent contractor under the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA).  

The National Labor Relations Board (NLRB), a 
federal agency whose standards the Michigan 
Employment Relations Commission often adopts, also 
revised its independent contractor standard. Effective 
March 11, 2024, DOL and NLRB will use the same 
analysis to determine whether an individual is an 
independent contractor or an employee. This analysis 
is important because misclassifying an individual as an 
independent contractor can result in penalties to a 
school for failing to: (1) deduct employment-related 
taxes, (2) make required retirement contributions, (3) 
offer insurance coverage, and (4) pay minimum wage, 
overtime, and paid leave. 

Previously, the DOL’s 2021 independent contractor 
analysis relied on two (core) factors, control and 
opportunity for profit or loss. The 2024 final rule 
instead uses a totality of the circumstances economic 
reality test by which all factors are weighed equally.  

The 2024 final rule aligns with Michigan courts’ 
current analysis, which follows an “economic realities 
test.” This test is consistent with the final rule under the 
FLSA, and includes the following factors: (1) 
opportunity for profit or loss depending on managerial 
skill, (2) investments by the worker and potential 
employer, (3) degree of permanence of the work 
relationship, (4) nature and degree of control, (5) 
extent to which the work performed is an integral part 

of the potential employer’s business, and (6) skill and 
initiative.  

To reduce the risk of incurring penalties for making 
an erroneous designation, school officials should 
carefully consider these factors and exercise caution 
when designating an individual as an independent 
contractor. For example, an independent contractor 
who provides counseling, speech therapy, or other 
specialized services to students on a full-time basis 
could be classified as an employee if that contractor 
works the full school year and school employees direct 
the contractor on how and when to complete tasks. 

If you are unclear about the employee or 
independent contractor status of an individual, please 
contact your Thrun labor and employment attorney for 
assistance. 

•    •    • 

Court Dismisses Teacher’s Claims Against 
School Regarding Mask Mandate 

The Michigan Court of Appeals recently ruled in 
favor of a school’s COVID-19 mask mandate. The court 
affirmed the dismissal of a lawsuit in which a teacher 
alleged disability discrimination and whistleblower 
retaliation after the school refused to exempt her from 
the mask mandate and reprimanded her for 
noncompliance. Tyler v Kalamazoo Pub Schs, COA 
Docket No. 363249 (January 18, 2024). 

For the 2021-22 school year, the Kalamazoo Public 
Schools (KPS) board of education adopted a policy that 
required its employees to wear masks at school. 
Teacher Patricia Tyler opposed the mandate and took a 
7-day leave of absence under the Family and Medical 
Leave Act.  

Upon returning, Tyler provided KPS with two 
doctors’ notes. One stated that she required “ample 
mask breaks when safely able to do so” due to 
overheating and anxiety; the other identified her 
return-to-work date. Neither note stated that Tyler 
should be exempt from the mask mandate, nor did they 
say that she had a disability that required more than 
intermittent mask breaks when safely able to do so. In 
response, KPS allowed Tyler to take breaks from mask 
wearing between classes and on her lunch break, but 
did not exempt her from the mandate at all times.  

In February 2022, Michigan Department of Health 
and Human Services and the Centers for Disease 
Control scaled back their mask advisory for indoor 
settings. Tyler then requested a mask exemption at all 
times based on her previous doctors’ notes. KPS denied 
the request. Tyler sued, asserting that KPS exceeded its 
statutory authority by imposing a mask mandate and 
that KPS unlawfully ignored her medical exemption.  

Packet page 219 of 227Packet page 221 of 446

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/01/10/2024-00067/employee-or-independent-contractor-classification-under-the-fair-labor-standards-act


 

 
School Law Notes  Page 4 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

Two days later, Tyler refused to wear a mask in 
front of students and in common areas. She told KPS 
administration that she “didn’t want to” wear a mask. 
KPS placed Tyler on paid administrative leave pending 
the outcome of an investigation and later issued a letter 
of reprimand for insubordination. At the end of the 
school year, KPS rescinded its mask mandate. Tyler 
amended her lawsuit to add that KPS violated 
Michigan’s Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act 
(PWDCRA) and the Whistleblowers’ Protection Act 
(WPA).  

KPS moved to dismiss the case, asserting that no 
material issues of fact existed supporting the PWDCRA 
and WPA claims. In other words, KPS claimed the 
parties did not dispute the factual issues, but Tyler’s 
claims still failed. Additionally, KPS argued the claims 
became moot with the mask mandate’s rescission. The 
trial court agreed and dismissed the case. Tyler 
appealed. The Michigan Court of Appeals agreed that 
the mask rescission rendered the case moot, but still 
analyzed the individual claims. 

PWDCRA Claim 

Under the PWDCRA, a “disability” is a physical or 
mental impairment that substantially limits a major life 
activity. Establishing a discrimination claim requires 
the employee to prove that: (1) the employee was 
disabled, (2) the employee’s disability was unrelated to 
the ability to perform job duties, and (3) the employee 
was discriminated against based on the disability.  

The Court of Appeals found that although anxiety 
may be a mental impairment that substantially limits a 
major life activity, Tyler failed to present evidence that 
mask wearing “induced anxiety that substantially 
limited her work, sleep, or breathing.” Tyler therefore 
did not establish that she was disabled and her claim 
failed.  

WPA Claim 

Under the WPA, an employer may not discharge, 
threaten, or otherwise discriminate against an 
employee who reports or is about to report a violation 
or suspected violation of a law, unless the employee 
knows that the report is false. Establishing a WPA claim 
requires the employee to prove that: (1) the employee 
engaged in protected activity, (2) the employee was 
discharged or discriminated against, and (3) a causal 
connection existed between the protected activity and 
the discharge or discrimination. 

The Court of Appeals ruled that Tyler failed to 
establish the second and third elements of a WPA claim. 
Although KPS placed Tyler on paid administrative leave 
and issued a letter of reprimand, she did not experience 
a loss of pay, demotion, or any other adverse action. 
Tyler also failed to establish a causal connection 
between the protected activity and the alleged 

discrimination. The court held that a closeness in time 
between protected activity and adverse action is not 
sufficient by itself to satisfy the required causal 
connection.  

While the COVID-19 pandemic may have ended, 
this decision reminds school officials to exercise 
caution when handling disability accommodation 
requests. School officials should maintain records of 
each step of the accommodation request process, 
including the medical documentation received and 
school action taken. Before disciplining an employee 
who potentially engaged in a protected activity, such as 
reporting a violation of the law or challenging a board 
policy, please contact legal counsel.  

•    •    • 

Filling You In on Oral Health 
Assessment Requirements 

The Michigan Department of Health and Human 
Services (MDHHS) demands the tooth, the whole tooth, 
and nothing but the tooth! Recently, the Michigan 
Legislature passed Public Act 316 of 2023, which 
amends the Public Health Code to require a child’s 
parent, guardian, or person in loco parentis (i.e., the 
person legally responsible for the child) to provide a 
dental oral assessment for the child before the child’s 
first school enrollment.  

Beginning with the 2024-2025 school year, a 
parent registering a child for the first time in 
kindergarten or first grade must have the child undergo 
a dental oral assessment (i.e., dental screening). The 
assessment must occur within six months before the 
start of school.  

This assessment can be conducted by: (1) a dentist 
or dental hygienist selected by the parent, (2) a 
qualified professional working through the local health 
department, or (3) at a pre-enrollment event (i.e., 
school registration). An assessment done at a local 
health department is free. If follow-up is necessary, the 
dental professional must give the parent a written 
statement that further treatments are required.  

At the time of school registration or not later than 
the first day of school, a parent must provide to the 
school either a written statement on MDHHS Form-
6067 from the dental professional or a written 
statement of exemption stating this requirement 
violates the parent’s personal religious beliefs. If the 
required statements are not provided, a school cannot 
exclude a child from attendance. 

The school must keep a record of each child’s 
assessment. Beginning in 2024, by November 1 of each 
year, the principal or administrator of each school must 
give MDHHS a summary of dental reports at the time 
new kindergarten and first grade students enter school. 

Packet page 220 of 227Packet page 222 of 446

https://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Adult-and-Childrens-Services/Children-and-Families/Healthy-Children-and-Healthy-Families/Oral-Health/MDHHS-6067.dotx?rev=576f0771b5fb4007a65ceb0de49450bd&hash=83F919E89BBB434C635A007967D68F01
https://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Adult-and-Childrens-Services/Children-and-Families/Healthy-Children-and-Healthy-Families/Oral-Health/MDHHS-6067.dotx?rev=576f0771b5fb4007a65ceb0de49450bd&hash=83F919E89BBB434C635A007967D68F01


 

 
School Law Notes  Page 5 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

The reports must be on forms provided by MDHHS, 
which have not yet been created. 

MDHHS further encourages schools to include 
information about dental assessments and the MDHHS 
Form 6067 in school registration packets and other 
distribution channels (i.e., social media, parent letters) 
to raise awareness about the requirements and the 
importance of good oral health.  

For more information about the Kindergarten Oral 
Health Assessment (KOHA) Program, please visit the 
MDHHS KOHA website or contact MDHHS at MDHHS-
KOHA@michigan.gov. 

•    •    • 

No Parental Right to Opt 
Out of State Assessments 

In the spring, students prepare for and take the 
Michigan Student Test of Educational Progress (M-
STEP). Some parents will submit opt-out requests to 
exempt their children from the M-STEP and other 
standardized tests, asserting opting out is their legal 
right.  

Michigan schools have no legal obligation to grant 
testing opt-out requests. The Revised School Code 
grants parents opt-out rights only for sex education and 
instruction in the characteristics or symptoms of 
diseases. Accordingly, schools may deny parent opt-out 
requests that do not fall within these mandates. 

Federal law similarly does not support a testing 
opt-out right. The Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals held 
that the “timing and content of examinations . . . are 
generally committed to the control of state and local 
authorities.” While recognizing a parent’s right to be 
involved in their child’s education, many federal court 
decisions acknowledge a school’s ultimate authority to 
control the manner and content of instruction. 

In a memo dated March 26, 2015, MDE stated that 
“there is no official ability in state or federal law for 
parents to have their child opt out of the assessments, 
without counting against their school and district’s 
participation rates.”  

In a March 2023 letter, MDE State Superintendent 
Michael Rice echoed this point: 

While we support parents in making 
choices for their children, there is no 
“opt-out” of state assessments under 
state or federal law. Students who are 
not assessed will count against their 
school's required 95 percent 
participation rate, which will create an 
incomplete picture of their school's 
performance. 

The legal standard is clear. There is no opt-out right 
from the M-STEP or other examinations. When a 
student is absent, either intentionally or 
unintentionally, during part(s) of a standardized test, 
school officials should consider arranging to have the 
student complete the missed part(s) in a makeup 
session. If you receive an opt-out request from a parent 
or organization, please contact a Thrun attorney to 
discuss an appropriate response. 

•    •    • 

New Special Education Guidance 
MDE recently issued two new special education 

guidance documents: “Least Restrictive Environment: 
Nonacademic Settings” and “Intersection of McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act and the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).”  

In December 2023, MDE issued “Least Restrictive 
Environment: Nonacademic Settings,” which analyzes 
the IDEA’s least restrictive environment mandate in the 
context of nonacademic and extracurricular settings. 
This mandate requires that schools provide opportuni-
ties for students with disabilities to participate in 
nonacademic and extracurricular services and 
activities with nondisabled students to the maximum 
extent appropriate to the student’s needs. To ensure 
access, the student’s IEP Team determines which 
supplementary aids, services, and accommodations are 
appropriate and necessary. 

Nonacademic and extracurricular services and 
activities may include athletics, transportation, health 
services, recreational activities, and school-sponsored 
special interest groups or clubs. Students with disabili-
ties are not guaranteed a position on a competitive 
team or club activity; rather, requirements apply 
uniformly to students with and without disabilities.  

In January 2024, MDE issued “Intersection of 
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act and the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.” This 
question-and-answer guidance addresses issues that 
involve both federal acts.  

McKinney-Vento defines “homeless children and 
youth” broadly as children and youth who: 

• share housing of other persons due to housing 
loss, economic hardship, or similar reason; 

• live in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or 
campgrounds due to the lack of adequate 
alternative accommodations; 

• live in emergency or transitional shelters; 
• are abandoned in hospitals; 
• have a primary nighttime residence that is a 

public or private place not designed for, or 
ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping 
accommodation for human beings, including 

Packet page 221 of 227Packet page 223 of 446

https://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/adult-child-serv/childrenfamilies/familyhealth/oralhealth/koha/schools
mailto:MDHHS-KOHA@michigan.gov
mailto:MDHHS-KOHA@michigan.gov
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/2016/08/31/OptOut_Positionb.pdf?rev=b07456df087d4c9b9745eac183ee4cb6
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/OEAA/M-STEP/S23-Superintendent-Parent-Letter.pdf?rev=1350cfd80dc14219a74132bc3b094463
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/LRE-NonacademicSettings.pdf?rev=54aa2a466b384dedb43b9340fc22b1ac#:%7E:text=According%20to%2034%20CFR%20%C2%A7300.117%20of%20the%20IDEA%2C%20which,forth%20in%2034%20CFR%20%C2%A7
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/LRE-NonacademicSettings.pdf?rev=54aa2a466b384dedb43b9340fc22b1ac#:%7E:text=According%20to%2034%20CFR%20%C2%A7300.117%20of%20the%20IDEA%2C%20which,forth%20in%2034%20CFR%20%C2%A7
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/McKinneyVento-IDEA.pdf?rev=5de405ad5bac4031aebaca657780b6a9
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/McKinneyVento-IDEA.pdf?rev=5de405ad5bac4031aebaca657780b6a9
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/McKinneyVento-IDEA.pdf?rev=5de405ad5bac4031aebaca657780b6a9


 

 
School Law Notes  Page 6 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned 
buildings, substandard housing, bus or train 
stations, or similar settings; 

• live in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned 
buildings, substandard housing, bus or train 
stations, or similar settings; and 

• are migratory children living in the above 
situations. 

The guidance also explains when students 
experiencing homelessness should attend their “school 
of origin” or “school of residency.” Several factors 
determine this issue, including the student’s best 
interests and the parent or guardian’s preference. The 
questions and answers in this guidance are fact-
intensive. We recommend school officials review them 
carefully. 

The MDE guidance document identifies various 
resources for schools assisting a student with a 
disability who is experiencing homelessness. MDE’s 
website contains additional related resources, 
including a list of regional coordinators.  

•    •    • 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Title IX Sexual 
Harassment Training 

Thrun Law Firm is offering its Comprehensive 
Title IX Sexual Harassment Training on March 6, 2024. 
This webinar satisfies training requirements for all 
K-12 employees who serve as Title IX Coordinators, 
Investigators, Decision-Makers, Informal Resolution 
Facilitators, or Appeals Officers under the current Title 
IX Grievance Process. Once the anticipated new federal 
regulations are published, we expect that additional or 
different training will be required. The publication date 
for the new regulations remains unknown. A detailed 
description of the webinar and the cost to attend is 
included on the attached registration form. We hope to 
see you there! 

•    •    • 

 

 

 

Packet page 222 of 227Packet page 224 of 446

https://www.michigan.gov/mde/services/school-performance-supports/educational-supports/programs/mckinney-vento-homeless


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

March 1, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Teacher Placement, Layoff, and 
Recall Webinar 

March 5, 2024 MSP School Safety 
Academy 

Jessica E. McNamara School Safety Legal 
Considerations 

March 6, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Special Education Evaluations: 
It’s Not Only About Eligibility 
Webinar 

March 6, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Jennifer K. Starlin 
Cristina T. Patzelt 

Title IX Comprehensive Training 
Webinar 

March 7, 2024 Monroe County ISD Michele R. Eaddy Section 504 

March 7 & 8, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Policy Implementation Meetings 
Webinar 

March 8, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Teacher Evaluation and Merit 
Pay Webinar 

March 13, 2024 SWMBO Raymond M. Davis Managing the New Labor Law 
Changes 

March 14, 2024 MNA Spring Conference Katherine Broaddus Contract Language from the Past 
Offers a Window to the Future – 
Pre-2011 Examples to Use and 
Avoid 

March 14, 2024 MNA Spring Conference Raymond M. Davis Unprohibited Subjects Revisited 

March 14, 2024 MNA Spring Conference Lisa L. Swem Top Ten Priorities at the Table 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference MaryJo D. Banasik Employment Relationships/ 
Employee Evaluations, Due 
Process and Discipline 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference MaryJo D. Banasik Common Contract Issues for 
School Officials 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Ryan J. Murray Collective Bargaining and Public 
Employee Relations Act (PERA) 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Piotr M. Matusiak  
Kelly S. Bowman 

Personnel Records 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Piotr M. Matusiak Disabilities and 
Accommodations and Family 
Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 

Packet page 223 of 227Packet page 225 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Timothy T. Gardner, Jr. Workplace Discrimination 
Issues/Teachers’ Tenure Act 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Mackenzie D. Flynn Workplace Privacy 
Considerations 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Cathleen M. Dooley Sexual Harassment 

March 15, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Dues Deduction and Teacher 
Discipline Webinar 

March 15, 2024 MNA Spring Conference Robert A. Dietzel Legal Update 

March 20, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

On Notice! Drafting Prior 
Written Notices that Cover Your 
Legal Bases Webinar 

March 21, 2024 MASA Region VII Raymond M. Davis New Labor Law Changes 

April 3, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Developing Legally Compliant 
IEPs = FAPE Webinar 

April 9, 2024 MSP School Safety 
Academy 

Jessica E. McNamara School Safety Legal 
Considerations 

April 16, 2024 Oakland Schools Michele R. Eaddy Special Education Discipline 

April 17, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

LRE and Placement – 
Considering the Full Continuum 
Webinar 

April 19, 2024 Calhoun ISD Raymond M. Davis Legal Update 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Piotr M. Matusiak Grievance Management: 
Effective Strategies for Collective 
Bargaining Agreement Disputes 

(8:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Ryan J. Nicholson A Year in the Life of a Business 
Official: From Budget Hearings 
to Election Deadlines  

(8:45 a.m. – 9:45 a.m.) 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Timothy T. Gardner, Jr. Collective Bargaining: 
Innovations and Advanced 
Strategies 

(9:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.) 

Packet page 224 of 227Packet page 226 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Katherine Broaddus Reintroduction of Prohibited 
Subjects of Bargaining and How 
It Affects Negotiations 

 (10:55 a.m. – 11:45 a.m.) 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Daniel R. Martin 
Jennifer K. Starlin 

Legal Update  

(1:15 p.m. – 2:00 p.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Christopher J. Iamarino Arbitrage Rebate Compliance 
and Strategies for Bonds in the 
Current Interest Rate 
Environment 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Michael D. Gresens 
Mackenzie D. Flynn 

Cash Flow and Short-Term 
Borrowing Options 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Ian F. Koffler Practical Implementation of the 
Inflation Reduction Act 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Daniel R. Martin 
Jennifer K. Starlin 

Legal Update 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO MaryJo D. Banasik 
Austin M. DeLano 

Collective Bargaining Basics 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Fredric G. Heidemann Construction: Dealing with 
Material and Performance 
Delays 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Ryan J. Nicholson Booster Clubs and Support 
Groups: Limiting Potential 
Liability 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Cathleen M. Dooley Employee Leave and 
Compensation: Get It Right or 
Pay the Price 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

Packet page 225 of 227Packet page 227 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

April 24, 2024 MSBO MaryJo D. Banasik 
Austin M. DeLano 

Everything You Need to Know 
About Employment Contracts 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Timothy T. Gardner, Jr. Payroll Processing and Legal 
Compliance 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Jennifer K. Starlin 
Piotr M. Matusiak 

Pupil Accounting Fundamentals 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Piotr M. Matusiak 
Mackenzie D. Flynn 

 

The Bond Passed: Now What 
About Construction Contracts? 

(8:20 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Michael D. Gresens Get to Know the L4029 and 
Other Property Tax Issues 

(8:20 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Daniel R. Martin Recent Developments in Labor 
and Employment Law 

(8:20 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Raymond M. Davis Collective Bargaining: 
Innovations and Advanced 
Strategies 

(8:20 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Ian F. Koffler Lessons Learned: Community 
Engagement During a Successful 
Bond Campaign 

(9:40 a.m. – 10:40 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Ryan J. Nicholson Cybersecurity: An Overview 

(1:15 p.m. – 2:30 p.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Ryan J. Murray Unemployment Claims 101 

(1:15 p.m. – 1:45 p.m.) 

April 30, 2024 MASA School Safety 
Summit 

Jessica E. McNamara School Safety Legal 
Considerations 

May 1, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Avoiding Mistakes in the MDR 
Process Webinar 

Packet page 226 of 227Packet page 228 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

May 6, 2024 MPAAA Jennifer K. Starlin Legal Update 

May 15, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Responding to State, OCR, and 
Due Process Complaints 
Webinar 

June 13 & 14, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Policy Implementation Meetings 
Webinar 

August 5, 2024 Charlevoix-Emmet ISD Lisa L. Swem School Law Update 

August 7, 2024 UP Administrators 
Academy 

Lisa L. Swem School Law Update 

September 5 & 6, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Policy Implementation Meetings 
Webinar 

December 5 & 6, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Policy Implementation Meetings 
Webinar 

 

Packet page 227 of 227Packet page 229 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


 

 
WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING MINUTES 
 

Tuesday, February 27, 2024 
 
The Washtenaw Intermediate School District Board of Education held a regular board meeting on Tuesday, 
February 27, 2024, in Washtenaw ISD's Teaching and Learning Center Board Room at 1819 South Wagner 
Road in Ann Arbor, Michigan. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by President Diane Hockett 
 
ATTENDANCE 
The following members were present:       
   Diane Hockett, President     
   Mary Jane Tramontin, Vice President   
   Theresa Saunders, Secretary  
   Steve Olsen, Trustee     
 
The following member was absent: 
   Sarena Shivers, Treasurer 
 
Quorum was met. 
     
Also present:  

Naomi Norman, Superintendent    
Cherie Vannatter, Deputy Superintendent 

   Brian Marcel, Associate Superintendent 
   Edward Manuszak, Executive Director for Early Childhood 
   Holly Heaviland, Executive Director of Community & School Partnerships 
   LaDawn White, Early Childhood Grant Manager 

Victoria Westmoreland, Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
Motion by Steve Olsen, seconded by Mary Jane Tramontin, to approve the agenda, as presented. 
Ayes:  All. 
Nays:  None. 
Motion carried. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTS: Associate Superintendent Brian Marcel reviewed the financial reports for December 
2023, noting that the report did not account for the most recent Budget Amendments approved at the 
February 13, 2024, Board of Education meeting. Early Childhood Grants Manager LaDawn White reviewed 
the January 2024 Head Start Financial Reports, noting that the summary page had been amended to include 
encumbrances, and that there was a printing error with pages 73-70. LaDawn fielded questions from the 
Board. 
 

Packet page 230 of 446



 
 
 
Page 2 – Regular Meeting – 02/27/2024 
 
 

Motion by Theresa Saunders, seconded by Mary Jane Tramontin, that the Board of Education approve 
the January 2024 Head Start Financial Reports, as presented. 
 
Voting yes: Theresa Saunders, Mary Jane Tramontin, Steve Olsen, Diane Hockett. 
Voting no: None. 
Motion carried. 
 
EQUITY, INCLUSION, AND SOCIAL JUSTICE DIALOGUE: Superintendent Naomi Norman facilitated the 
Equity, Inclusion, and Social Justice (EISJ) discussion, sharing about the following: 

- An opportunity for the Board to engage in professional learning that is in line with equity work 
being facilitated at WISD. This was followed by a brief discussion about scheduling sessions.  

- The Family Literacy Initiative Campaign Kickoff will be hosted at the Washtenaw Community 
College Morris Lawrence Building on Sunday, March 10, 2024, from 1:00 pm – 5:00 pm. The event 
is intended to raise awareness surrounding the literacy crisis in Washtenaw County and its impact 
on the community, boost recruitment of volunteers and tutors to assist literacy partners, and 
engage in dialogue with federal, state, and local leaders who will be in attendance. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion by Mary Jane Tramontin, seconded by Steve Olsen, that the Board of Education approve the 
minutes and Superintendent’s recommendations in the Consent Agenda, as presented.  
 
Voting yes: Steve Olsen, Diane Hockett, Theresa Saunders, Mary Jane Tramontin. 
Voting no: None. 
Motion carried. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
The Board approved the minutes of the February 13, 2024, regular meeting. 
 
074-23-24 
The Board approved the following employment recommendations: 

- Charlie Jones as a CTE Data Entry & Reporting Specialist. 
- Kimberley Rock as a Teacher Consultant for WEOC/WAVE. 
- Michael Schwartz as a Teaching Assistant. 

 
075-23-24 
The Board approved the following reclassification requests: 

- Joy Taylor, WAVE Teacher Consultant, 1.0 FTE, 185 Workdays, Unit II Bargaining, to Transition 
Teacher Consultant, 1.0 FTE, 185 Workdays, Unit II Bargaining.  

- Vacant, Social Worker, Infant Mental Health Specialist, 0.6 FTE, 111 Workdays, Unit II Bargaining, 
to Social Worker, Infant Mental Health Specialist, 0.7 FTE, 129.5 Workdays, Unit II Bargaining.  

 
076-22-23  
The Board approved the following staff retirement: 

- Richard Korth, effective August 31, 2024. 
 
077-23-24 
The Board approved the following termination: 

- VerShawn Patrick, effective February 12, 2024. 

Packet page 231 of 446



 
 
 
Page 3 – Regular Meeting – 02/27/2024 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS – Robert Half Contract Amendment: Associate Superintendent Brian Marcel addressed the 
Board, sharing background information pertaining to the Robert Half Contract Agreement on behalf of 
Assistant Director of Technology & Data Services Mattew Cook, who could not attend the meeting. Brian 
Marcel shared the original contract that was approved by the Board in August of 2023 must be extended 
to meet technology and data services’ pertinent staffing needs.   
 
Motion by Steve Olsen, seconded by Theresa Saunders, that the Board authorize the administration to 
approve the amended contracted services agreement with Robert Half for LAN/WAN Support and 
Desktop Technical Support for a cost not to exceed $134,00.00, as presented. 
 
Voting yes: Mary Jane Tramontin, Steve Olsen, Diane Hockett, Theresa Saunders. 
Voting no: None. 
Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS – Universal Pre-K Selection Criteria 2024-2025: Executive Director for Early Childhood 
Edward Manuszak address the Board, first sharing that WISD’s selection criteria has been referenced as an 
exemplary model, then discussing the utilization and application of the Universal Pre-K Selection Criteria. 
Edward Manuszak fielded questions from the Board.  
 
Motion by Steve Olsen, seconded by Mary Jane Tramontin, that the Board approve the 2024 Universal 
Preschool Selection Criteria for GSRP, Head Start, and Early Head Start services, as presented.  
 
Voting yes: Theresa Saunders, Mary Jane Tramontin, Diane Hockett, Steve Olsen. 
Voting no: None. 
Motion carried. 
 
BOARD OF EDUCATION REPORTS: Trustee Steve Olsen spoke about the following: 

- Trustee Steve Olsen and Board President Diane Hockett have been working diligently with the Self-
Assessment team. This process allows for the WISD to identify possible systemic issues. Mary Jane 
Tramontin and Theresa Saunders thanked both Steve Olsen and Daine Hockett for serving on this 
team and noted the impact of the team’s work. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS – Superintendent’s Report: 
Superintendent Naomi Norman spoke about the following: 

- The A2Y Early Edition breakfast on Wednesday, February 21, 2024 featured local black writers, 
Marsalis Higgs and Elle Wright and book store owner, Carlos Franklin. They discussed their 
experiences in field of writing and publishing.  

- Deputy Superintendent Cherie Vannatter shared information on the Honey Creek re-authorization 
process. The WISD board will need to evaluate the school and renew the charter contract by June 
30, 2024.  WISD is administering a culture survey to staff, parents, and students to use as part of 
the evaluation.   

- Talent Together has been named one of the “Top 10 Education Innovations in the Country” by 
ASU+GSV.  

- MAISA’s instruction committee switched to a new format with the goal of improving coordination 
among instruction efforts. The committee decided to come together and apply for a math grant at 
the state level. If the funding is granted, this money will be used to provide a Math Coordinator at 
every ISD within the state. Board President Diane Hockett remarked on the strength of 
coordinating among ISDs.  

Packet page 232 of 446



 
 
 
Page 4 – Regular Meeting – 02/27/2024 
 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:03 p.m. 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Theresa Saunders, Secretary 
Washtenaw ISD Board of Education 

Packet page 233 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 

 
FROM:   Melissa Paschall, Special Education Principal 
 
DATE:      February 21, 2024 
                
RE:      New Hire Recommendation – Mary Beth DiFranco 
 
I would like to recommend Mary Beth DiFranco for employment as a School Social Worker. If 
approved by the Board, Mary Beth DiFranco’s salary will be $84,6410.00, MA Step 12. All other 
fringe benefits will be set forth in the Unit II contract. 
 
CC:   Cherie Vannatter, Deputy Superintendent 
  Deborah Hester-Washington, Executive Director of Special Education 

Cassandra Harmon-Higgins, Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal 
Services 

Packet page 234 of 446



 MARY B. DIFRANCO, LMSW
Michigan Licensed Clinical Social Worker

MI Dept. Of Education Full Approval School Social Worker

Education

2010 Eastern Michigan University MSW
Children and Family Concentration
School Social Work Certification

1988 Eastern Michigan University BSW              
Children and Family Concentration

Skills/Training

Trauma Informed Evidence Based Practices, 
Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, Motivational 
Interviewing, Solution Focused Therapy, Strengths 
Based Approaches, Ele’s Place Grief/Loss 
Facilitator, Special Education Eligibility Evaluator, 
Crisis Intervention-Suicide/Harm Assessment, 
Autism Evaluation Team member,  Early 
Childhood Developmental Disorders, 
Elementary/Middle School/High School Group 
Facilitator for Social Skills, Anxiety, Depression, 
Self-Esteem, Friendship, Trained in Safe Schools 
Training for Sexual Minority Youth, UofM 
TRAILS program and Michigan Collaboration for 
Mindfulness in Education

SCHOOL BASED SOCIAL WORK
2010-Current  School Social Worker-School Based Mental Health Provider
Early On/Early Childhood Elementary School, Middle School, High School 
Ann Arbor, Dexter and Lincoln Consolidated Public Schools
Presence Learning virtual educational therapy staffing company

- Multi-Disciplinary Team Member for assessments and evaluation of students for Special Education
services and/or 504 plans
-Facilitate weekly groups for students on social skills, social emotional goals, anger management,
anxiety/depression, self-esteem, impulse control, attention issues using Evidence Based intervention
and Play Therapy approaches                                                                                          -Conducted
individual sessions with students using evidence-based play therapy
-Early Childhood Early On assessments and provider
-Utilized assessment protocols such as the ADOS 2, Achenbach, BASC, CDI, Conners EC, DECA, 
Piers Harris, RCMAS, SCQ, CARS, SSRS 
-Serve as the EPHY (education Project for homeless youth) Advocate
-Responsible for Crisis Intervention, Grief counseling, Suicide/Violence Assessment
-Responsible for Tienet service capture documentation and IEP Medicaid billing
-Assist in the development of District Crisis Protocol and Manual
-Assist families with Community Resources for assistance with food, clothing, shelter, medical needs
and Autism medical evaluations
-Provided mental health support, mindfulness skills training to school staff as needed
-Assisted with creation of social emotional virtual learning curriculum videos to support students
during pandemic

MEDICAL SOCIAL WORK

2021-2022 IHA-Trinity Health Pediatric Clinic Care Manager
-Collaborates with members of the health care team, parents, you adult patients to ensure the delivery
of quality patient centered healthcare services
-Empowers patients who are at risk by providing self-management support and patient education to
manage their health
-Provides targeted interventions in specialty population to ensure proper triaging of the patient and
appropriate delivery of care in accordance with established protocols
-Coordinates the care and triage to appropriate outpatient community services and /or triage to
emergency services or inpatient services of patients

-EPIC trained

Henry Ford Health Systems
Outpatient Child/Adol/Adult Intake Coordinator

-Conducted all New Patient Assessments and crisis intervention
-Participated in Quality Improvement team meetings to enhance system of new patient referrals and
treatment
-Responsible for triage of patients during crisis situations
-Maintained updated resources for Clinicians
-Responsible for monthly stats on new patient referrals
-Sustained professional relationships with other clinics to ensure continuum of care for patients
Recover Coordinator-NIH Lung Health Study                                                      -Responsible for
retaining Lost to Follow-Up study participants                            ---Conducted 3, 6, 9 month study 
visits with participants per NHI protocols                                         -Facilitated weekly support group 
for study participants for smoking cessation.    --Co-organized Hospital’s Great American Smoke-out                                                                                   

Packet page 235 of 446



Chemical Dependency Counselor                                                                         -Assisted with 
development and implementation of Hospital’s first Nicotine Dependency Clinic                                                                                                    
-Co-created Program Protocol Manual and Counselor Interview questions                      -Responsible 
for Conducting interviews and hiring staff                                            -Counseled patients referred by 
physicians for smoking cessation treatment           -Assessed for nicotine dependence and treatment 
and then made recommendations to physicians for  patient nicotine replacement prescription 
treatment 

Community Organization Social Work
 
Adoption Advocates Adoption Home Study Evaluator                                      -Responsible for 
conducting Home Study evaluation and reports for potential adoptive families
-Initiated background checks, gathered medical records, employment verification, income status                                                                                                       
-Conducted extensive interview with parents on social history, daily routines, feelings about the 
possible adoption, and other things relevant to the adoption process                                                                                                                 
-Oversaw home inspection to determine a safe environment for a child ie.  looking for things like 
smoke detectors and other safety features                                            -Compiled written detailed 
Home Study report for submission to adoption agency

Spectrum Human Services Case Manager                                                                  -Responsible 
for overseeing the medical, educational, psycho-social needs of 26 youth ages 9- 14 who were in 
foster care due to abuse/neglect in their home environment
-Implemented trainings with residential care staff on Family Dynamics, Abuse/Neglect impact on 
youth and Professional Boundaries
-Coordinated Updated Service Plan reports to DHS
-Crisis intervention as needed with youth in care
-Facilitated anxiety, depression and social skills support groups with youth in foster care 

United Methodist Retirement Community Social Worker                                    -Worked closely 
with families assisting their older loved one across the continuum of care from independent to 
assisted living settings within the retirement community                                                                                                              
-Facilitated Grief/Loss support group with residents                                               -Advocated for 
residents’ self-determination choices to be supported by retirement community                                                                                                                     
-Assessed residents for activities of daily living status and mental wellness

Packet page 236 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE:      March 8, 2024 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 

 
FROM:   Cassandra Harmon-Higgins 
  Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services  
                
SUBJECT:     Recommendation to Hire 
 
 
This is a recommendation to hire Traci Talley in the position of Legal Assistant for the 
Washtenaw Intermediate School District (WISD) Human Resources (HR) & Legal Department. 
Ms. Talley has twelve (12) years of valuable experience working as Legal Assistant (and Office 
Manager) for a multi-attorney law firm. Ms. Talley has been working for the WISD as a 
contractor (via Phoenix Services, LLC) for approximately seven (7) months, and in that time has 
proven to be reliable, organized, efficient, and an exceptionally hard worker. She has provided 
much needed assistance in balancing the team’s caseloads.  
 
With all that has been proverbially thrown her way, she has managed to show initiative and 
compassion with the variety of issues handled. She’s also participated in several training 
courses/webinars for the benefit of the Department/organization. We are collectively pleased 
with her work; I am confident that the team and organization will continue to benefit from her 
hire.  
 
If approved by the WISD Board, Ms. Talley would be a Non-Affiliated employee starting at a 
Grade 7, Step 2 (based on her years of experience), 230 days/year, with an annual salary of 
$69,308; all other fringe benefits are set forth in the Non-Affiliated Manual.  
 

Packet page 237 of 446



TT Traci. Talley

PROFESSIONAL
SUMMARY

Diligent and conscientious Legal Assistant with 12+ years experience in contract,
employment, and family law. Skilled in fulfilling legal research needs, and
providing expert case management support. Successful at maintaining complex
docket systems, tracking deadlines and coordinating depositions and settlement
conferences. Career highlights include creating and implementing policies and
procedures for a new firm, providing administrative and legal support to multiple
attorneys throughout high profile cases, resulting in favorable outcomes for our
clients. I am a Client-focused, resolution driven Legal Assistant with a history of
exemplary-rated performance.

SKILLS Legal Research
Organization
Time management
Client Relations
Written and verbal communication
Records Management
Word Processing and Data Entry
Spreadsheet and Database
Management

Problem solving
SAP ERP
TimeNet Law
Clio
PACER
Red Rover
New World
Office Suite

WORK HISTORY 07/2023 to CURRENTCONTRACTOR / HR AND LEGAL SERVICES

Phoenix Services, LLC

Providing skilled administrative and legal support to the Human Resources
and Legal Services Department including, but not limited to, processing
and managing various leave requests, assist with maintaining attendance
database, reviewing and processing contracts, scheduling and
coordinating meetings, data entry, work-flow tracking, file maintenance and
records management, drafting, reviewing and editing documents and
correspondences, conducting legal research, and performing duties and
responsibilities requiring knowledge of federal and state employment laws
and regulations as well as of the District's Collective Bargaining
Agreements, Board Policies and Administrative Guidelines, managing
special projects as assigned by Executive Director HR and Legal Services.

02/2023 to 07/2023CONTRACTOR / SALES

Kelly Services, LLC

Assisting customers with scheduling and coordinating training, for various
lasers and their applications, utilizing the company's SIS database to track

Packet page 238 of 446



training missions and processing training jobs
Working with SAP ERP software to assist customers with assessing their
after sales training needs, preparing quotes, processing sales orders,
invoicing, ordering training supplies, preparing shipments of supplies to
training sights, and reconciling training expenses.

01/2011 to 01/2023LEGAL ASSISTANT/OFFICE MANAGER

Green Johnson Mumina & D'Antonio | Oklahoma City, OK

Providing administrative and legal support for attorneys; fielding inbound calls,
reviewing and routing incoming mail; preparing and processing outgoing mail and
faxes, arranging for specialized mail, or service of process as required; serving
as a liaison between attorneys and clients; communicating effectively with clients,
colleagues and court personnel; sourcing and verifying important case
intelligence; maintaining case record system; drafting, proofing editing and filing
legal documents, facilitating the meeting of deadlines, keeping multiple agendas,
exercising independent judgment in determining priority level of all work assigned
on a daily basis, assuring that high priority items are completed in a timely
manner; performing conflict screening checks; entering all timekeepers and
expenses for clients utilizing TimeNet Law, and Clio, and preparing and mailing
invoices to clients, processing retainer payments.

EDUCATION 01/1987Foothills Adult Center

Packet page 239 of 446



Washtenaw ISD Position Change / Upgrade Form

The supervisor of the position should complete and sign this form if you are anticipating an upgrade
/reclassification, title/duties change and/or a salary/market increase for the position. Please note that 
the final decision on classification of the subject position will be made by the Executive Cabinet and 
the Superintendent.

Change Recommended

Please select all that apply

Position change

Salary Level /Wage

Location

FTE

Bargaining Unit

Work days

Account Split

Other

Employee Name:

Please enter the employee name, incumbent name, or "Vacant"

Department

Gregory Myers

Achievement Initiatives

Supervisor

Current Position Title

Recommended Position Title

Current Position Number

Recommended Position Number

Current Bargaining Unit

Recommended Bargaining Unit

Jennifer Banks

EISJ Project Specialist

EISJ Program Manager

51.00.299.01

51.00.299.01

Non-Affliliated

Non-Affliliated

Current Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Recommended Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Current FTE

Recommended FTE

Current Number of Work Days

Recommended Number of Work Days

Should the Current Position Remain?

Remain

Delete

Grade 5/ Step 4

Grade 6/ Step 4

1

1

230

230

Current Account 1

Current Account 1 Split

Current Account 2

Current Account 2 Split

Current Account 3

Current Account 3 Split

Current Account 4

11.1299.1590.000.0000.09100.0000

85

22.1299.1590.000.0000.09100.0000

15

Current Account 4 Split

Recommended Account 1

Recommended Account 1 Split

Recommended Account 2

Recommended Account 2 Split

Recommended Account 3

Recommended Account Split 3

11.1299.1590.000.0000.09100.0000

85

22.1299.1590.000.0000.09100.0000

15

Recommended Account 4

Recommended Account 4 Split

Current Location

Worksite/Desk Location

Recommended Location

WOrksite/Desk Location

TLC/ Achievement Initiatives

TLC/ Achievement Initiatives

Packet page 240 of 446



Rational for Position Change

Briefly explain how this position has changed, giving concrete examples of the changes

Effective Date

Date new duties were assigned or changes made

List Positions/Employees Performing Similar Work

Do you know of/are you aware of any other positions or employees assigned/performing work similar 
to that of this position in its new description? If so, please list position titles or names of incumbents

The EISJ Project Specialist was initially developed to support our local districts to build awareness 

and provide coaching to develop educators' racial literacy. In addition to supporting our local 

districts, Greg has also taken on the responsibility of supporting departments within the WISD. He 

has been planning and facilitating the WISD's Equity Teams, meeting with department leaders and 

staff members, providing coaching, participating as a leader on the Equity Leadership Team, and 

attending cabinet-level professional level to support WiSD leaders. Moreover, in 2023 Greg 

received his CCAR practitioner certification from the Pacific Education Group (PEG). PEG 

recognized him as "being a leader in the movement toward racial equity and transforming your 

organizational environment." Greg is a team player willing to support the AI team and teams 

across the WISD. His commitment to racial equity and supporting leaders and team members is 

above and beyond the initial expectations of the EISJ Project Specialist position. The value he 

brings to the WISD should be honored, through this position upgrade.

07/01/2023

No

Department Head Comments

Department Head

Naomi Norman 06/30/2023

Finance Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Comments

Finance Comments

Finance

SAP 01/16/2024

Human Resources Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Ccomments

Human Resources Comments

Human Resources / Executive Admin Review

CD Harmon-Higgins 08/10/2023

Superintendent Comments

Superintendent

Naomi Norman 01/16/2024

Grade 9 (former GR 6), Step 2 Retroactive to 7/1/23; need updated JD. (Two JDs attached; HR 

needs clarification prior to issuing conditional offer regarding education required for the position).

Packet page 241 of 446



WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT
Position Description

Job Title: EISJ Program Manager

Department: Achievement Initiatives
Reports to: Director of Instruction
FLSA Status: Exempt (230 Days)
Prepared By: Jennifer Banks, Ph.D., Director of Instruction
Date Prepared: June 30, 2023
Approved by: Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins, Esq.

Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services
Approval Date:

The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student while providing
high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and collaboration.

The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality, boundary spanning,
educational system that educates all children through an equitable, inclusive, and holistic approach.

SUMMARY:
The Achievement Initiatives (AI) EISJ Project Manager provides synergy for the development of equity, inclusion,
and social justice practices among WISD leaders, local district leaders, the WISD’s collaborative partners, and the
educators that the Achievement Initiatives Team serves.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Program Outcomes

● Promotes and sustains a strong sense of collectivism among Achievement Initiatives Team members and
WISD cabinet leaders.

● Fosters a culture of collaboration between the Team, the Team’s collaborative partners, and other WISD
departments.

● Works to deepen the understanding and application of the racial equity curricula to the work of the
Achievement Initiatives Team, the educator networks, and the Team’s collaborative partners.

● Ensures that the WISD’s Educational Equity Policy and six questions are applied consistently in
problem-solving and decision-making.

● Manages the budget for the Achievement Initiative team’s Culture and Diversity efforts
● Supports WISD and LEA leaders to design and plan systemically around racial equity

Core Competencies:
Emotional Intelligence

● Cultivates trust
● Takes a nonjudgmental approach
● Believes that our best work happens in community and connection with one another
● Employs care and compassion when engaging with their own vulnerability and the vulnerability of others
● Fosters a sense of interdependence
● Is in the continuous pursuit of joy, self-care, and community in order to sustain their work.

Packet page 242 of 446



● Tolerant of ambiguity

Attending to Application and Practice
Engages culturally relevant facilitative practices in order to:

● Facilitate an introduction into social justice via an examination of social identities, the intersectionality of
those identities, and their impact on adult development.

● Hold space for open and honest dialogue about the impact of social identities on educational practices as it
applies to the Achievement Initiatives Team and the Team’s collaborative partners.

● Articulate strategies that can be employed when engaging dominant cultural practices that perpetuate the
marginalization of non-dominant groups.

● Sustain an adult learner’s co-construction of histories that illuminate racial disparities, both past and
contemporary.

● Maintain the consistent application of the Courageous Conversations about Race Protocol (the four
agreements, six conditions, and the compass) in an effort to illuminate the role of race and its impact on
the planning, implementation, and assessment of programming focused on advancing the application of
the principles of racial equity as it applies to the Achievement Initiatives Team and the Team’s
collaborative partners.

● Affirm an adult learner’s equity and social justice vision as well as guide them in their growth and
development in a way that is compassionate.

● Design and facilitate of WISD’s Equity Teams
● Support cabinet leaders in leading racial equity by attending cabinet-level professional development and

contributing to developing the racial consciousness of the group.

Attending to Project Collaboration

● Contributes to the collaborative planning and development of equity and social justice professional
development offerings for teachers and educational leaders (e.g. professional learning series, how to
sessions, film series and other things as developed).

● Engages in identity-based coaching and development of educators, the Achievement Initiatives Team, and
the Team’s collaborative partners.

● Facilitates interdepartmental planning and enactment of collaborative work with the Achievement
Initiatives Team.

● Listens to and discerns where people are in applying deep knowledge of racial equity and social justice to
their work.

● Manages and provides coaching support around racial equity

Inquiring about project impact and growth

● Gives and receives feedback from adult learners in ways that foster growth and transformational
development.

● Advises the development of evaluative tools related to equity, social justice, and inclusion professional
learning sessions and seminars.

Social Justice and Racial Equity Mindsets and Dispositions

● Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position
responsibilities.

● Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts educational
inequities in student achievement outcomes.

● Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified in

Packet page 243 of 446



the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency, racial
equity, and systemic and structural inequities.

● Committed to the life-long work of developing one’s anti-racist, anti-oppressive skills, and liberation
mindsets; applies these mindsets to all aspects of the position’s duties and responsibilities.

● Demonstrates the ability to examine the impact of education inequities in student development outcomes
as it aligns with race, ethnicity, and socio-economic status.

● Maintains a working anthology of anti-racist, anti-oppressive, and liberation scholarship that is used to
inform personal and collective planning and decision-making.

● Works towards social justice in all areas of their life, especially in schools and on behalf of students.
● Is a critical thinker and engages in on-going self-reflection to monitor the evolution of their mindsets.
● Brings a deep awareness of social identity of self in relationship to others to their relationships and

collaborative work.
● Applies the mindset of being both a teacher and learner.
● Practices both-and thinking.
● Balances confidence and a sense of authority with humility.
● Is keen on the delicate nature of tolerating the ambiguity of unfinished business for self and others; is

persistent in supporting the learner with their development in the racial equity and social justice
developmental process.

SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES:

● N/A

QUALIFICATIONS:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily.
Alternative requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be considered.
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE:

● Minimum of a high school diploma; bachelor’s degree or higher preferred.*
● Can demonstrate the knowledge and application of a working anthology of anti-racist, anti-oppressive, and

liberation scholarship.
● Has experience with facilitating and/or mediating adult learners with exceptional success.
● Has evidence of collaborative efforts with groups of adult learners and the impact of their collaborative

work.
● Can demonstrate the impact of efforts made towards social justice and racial equity in all areas of life,

especially in schools and on behalf students and their communities.
● Can demonstrate the impact of the practice of employing emotional intelligence to foster a sense of

collaboration and collectivism.
● Has served on a community-driven board such as a school, advisory, and/or governing board for a public

institution.
● Has participated in voicing the perspectives and concerns of the community in public forums (e.g. a

podcast, community-based radio broadcast, community forum, and/or panel).
● Has facilitated conversations that aim to foster the social construction of race and the impact that it has on

Packet page 244 of 446



the conditions that shape life outcomes

CERTIFICATES, LICENSES, REGISTRATIONS:

● Certified in specific equity-focused approaches for adult learning such as Courageous Conversation
practitioner certification; Justice Leaders certified trainer.

LANGUAGE SKILLS:

● Ability to work effectively and collaboratively with other departments, agencies, and individuals across
the state of Michigan

● Ability to write reports, business correspondence, and procedure manuals.
● Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of educators, customers,

and the general public.
● Ability to express self clearly; both orally and in writing.

TECHNICAL SKILLS:

● Demonstrated proficiency in the use of a personal computer (PC) or MAC in a networked environment to
utilize the Internet and other electronic communications mechanisms such as email, conferencing, bulletin
boards, etc.

● Excellent knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing,
spreadsheets, database and presentation software) and other technology to support efficient and effective
office operation is required.

● Ability to create web-based forms and documents.
● Ability to read and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures,

governmental regulations and forms.
● Ability to integrate technology into the everyday work flow is necessary.
● Ability to implement new technologies.

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS:

● Ability to apply the concepts of basic math, algebra and geometry consistent with the duties of this
position.

REASONING ABILITY:

● Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where only
limited standardization exists.

● Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.
● Exhibit high level of professionalism with the ability to handle confidential information, use good

judgment, plan and handle complex projects and maintain a flexible attitude.
● Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts and draw valid conclusions.

INTERPERSONAL SKILLS:

● Ability to work independently with management guidance.

Packet page 245 of 446



● Possess excellent customer service and communication skills with a client-centered focus.
● Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics.
● Ability to take initiative; work well with others as a collaborative team member and exhibit good

communication skills.
● Ability to work effectively and collaboratively with other departments, agencies and individuals.

PHYSICAL DEMANDS:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to stand, walk, sit, talk, see and hear.
The employee is occasionally required to stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl and reach with hands and arms. The
employee is continuously repeating the same hand, arm or finger motion many times. The employee must
occasionally lift and/or move up to 35 pounds such as books and training material. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision, distant vision and the ability to adjust focus. This position requires the
individual to travel and/or drive to various off-site locations. The position requires the individual to sometimes
work irregular or extended work hours and meet multiple demands from several people.

ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while
performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals
with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The noise level in the work environment is quiet to loud depending upon the activity in the particular part of the
day. The employee may be required to be outdoors for periods of time, and therefore subject to varying weather
conditions, for purposes of accomplishing the essential functions of this job.

FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION:
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples of work
and to detail the required knowledge, skills and ability as well as the acceptable experience and training for the
position. The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to assign, direct and control
the duties of employees under supervision. The WISD retains and reserves any and all rights to change, modify,
amend, add to or delete from any portion of this description in its sole judgment.

This position description is not a contract for employment.

The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. The
District will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both
prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer.

TERMS:
Contract, salary and other employment conditions to be established by the Board of Education as reflected in the
Non-Affiliated Staff Manual. Starting salary ranging (dependent upon experience) from $70,113 – $86,168.

Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace and District policy requires drug testing for all
potential employees.

It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the basis of

Packet page 246 of 446



race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, age, height, weight, familial status, marital status, genetic 
information, sexual orientation or any legally protected characteristic, in its educational programs, activities, 
admissions, or employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972 Educational Amendments, executive 
order 11246 as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all other pertinent state and federal 
regulations.

Packet page 247 of 446



Washtenaw ISD Position Change / Upgrade Form

The supervisor of the position should complete and sign this form if you are anticipating an upgrade
/reclassification, title/duties change and/or a salary/market increase for the position. Please note that 
the final decision on classification of the subject position will be made by the Executive Cabinet and 
the Superintendent.

Change Recommended

Please select all that apply

Position change

Salary Level /Wage

Location

FTE

Bargaining Unit

Work days

Account Split

Other

Employee Name:

Please enter the employee name, incumbent name, or "Vacant"

Department

Tiffany Woods

Early Childhood

Supervisor

Current Position Title

Current Position Number

Current Bargaining Unit

Current Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Recommended Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Current FTE

Alicia Kruk

Home Visitor, Early Head Start

52.00.212.06

Unit I

ECGR2 Step3

ECGR2 Step3

0.5

Recommended FTE

Current Number of Work Days

Recommended Number of Work Days

Should the Current Position Remain?

Remain

Delete

Current Account 1

Current Account 1 Split

Current Account 2

1

230

230

11.1212.1290.997.3437.00000.0000

100

Current Account 2 Split

Current Account 3

Current Account 3 Split

Current Account 4

Current Account 4 Split

Recommended Account 1

Recommended Account 1 Split

11.1212.1290.997.3437.00000.0000

100

Recommended Account 2

Recommended Account 2 Split

Recommended Account 3

Recommended Account Split 3

Recommended Account 4

Recommended Account 4 Split

Current Location

Worksite/Desk Location

Rational for Position Change

Briefly explain how this position has changed, giving concrete examples of the changes

Effective Date

Date new duties were assigned or changes made

List Positions/Employees Performing Similar Work

Do you know of/are you aware of any other positions or employees assigned/performing work similar 
to that of this position in its new description? If so, please list position titles or names of incumbents

TLC and Remote

Cheryl Carpenter is vacating her .5 FTE Home Visitor position to move into a 1.0 ECS position. 

Tiffany will increase from .5 to 1.0.

07/01/2023

This is a long standing position, there are multiple Home Visitors, Early Head Start.

Packet page 248 of 446



Department Head Comments

Department Head

Edward J. Manuszak II 06/23/2023

Finance Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Comments

Finance Comments

Finance

SAP 01/16/2024

Human Resources Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Ccomments

Human Resources Comments

Human Resources / Executive Admin Review

CD Harmon-Higgins 06/23/2023

Superintendent Comments

Superintendent

Naomi Norman 01/16/2024

Change in FTE (0.5 to 1.0) No change in Grade or Step

Packet page 249 of 446



Washtenaw ISD Position Change / Upgrade Form

The supervisor of the position should complete and sign this form if you are anticipating an upgrade
/reclassification, title/duties change and/or a salary/market increase for the position. Please note that 
the final decision on classification of the subject position will be made by the Executive Cabinet and 
the Superintendent.

Change Recommended

Please select all that apply

Position change

Salary Level /Wage

Location

FTE

Bargaining Unit

Work days

Account Split

Other

Employee Name:

Please enter the employee name, incumbent name, or "Vacant"

Department

Vacant

Community & School Partnerships

Supervisor

Current Position Title

Recommended Position Title

Current Position Number

Recommended Position Number

Current Bargaining Unit

Recommended Bargaining Unit

DarNesha Green

General Education Social Worker

Same

26.00.216.06

26.00.216.06

Unit II

Unit II

Current Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Recommended Pay Rate/ Salary Level

Current FTE

Recommended FTE

Current Number of Work Days

Recommended Number of Work Days

Should the Current Position Remain?

Remain

Delete

NA

NA

1

1

185

205

Current Account 1

Current Account 1 Split

Current Account 2

Current Account 2 Split

Current Account 3

Current Account 3 Split

Current Account 4

11.1216.1440.000.2251.00000.0000

100

Current Account 4 Split

Recommended Account 1

Recommended Account 1 Split

Recommended Account 2

Recommended Account 2 Split

Recommended Account 3

Recommended Account Split 3

11.1216.1440.000.2252.00000.0000

100

Recommended Account 4

Recommended Account 4 Split

Current Location

Worksite/Desk Location

Recommended Location

WOrksite/Desk Location

Rational for Position Change

Briefly explain how this position has changed, giving concrete examples of the changes

TLC- Special Ed Department outside of DarNesha Green's current office.

Same

The request is only to change the number of days to be worked from 185 to 205. This would align 

the position with other CSP social workers working with young people.

Packet page 250 of 446



Effective Date

Date new duties were assigned or changes made

List Positions/Employees Performing Similar Work

Do you know of/are you aware of any other positions or employees assigned/performing work similar 
to that of this position in its new description? If so, please list position titles or names of incumbents

Department Head Comments

Department Head

Holly Heaviland 09/26/2023

Finance Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Comments

10/01/2023

Currently working to fill three 1.0 FTE vacancies at 205 days. Changing the number of days for this 

position would align this role with the three vacancies.

Finance Comments

Finance

SAP 01/16/2024

Human Resources Approval

Approve

Adjust, See Ccomments

Human Resources Comments

Human Resources / Executive Admin Review

CD Harmon-Higgins 09/27/2023

Superintendent Comments

This was updated in NWS already.

Superintendent

Naomi Norman 01/16/2024

Packet page 251 of 446



���������	
�������������

�����������������������
����
�������
������������
�
��
���������������������
�
��
����
�����
��������������������������������
������������������

����������������������
�������
�
�����������
�
��
�������������������

����
����������������������
	�� ��
����������!����
������� ������"��������������������������������������

���������!������#�	����$���#���
��%��&����
�
���'�
$��������(������!��
)������������*���+������������������������������
�����������������,-����,.�������-�����/(��������0
�	��12�����"��������

!����	
��� ���������

����
��"��������������

����
�� ���������

���*�����"��������������

���*����� ������&����
�
���'�
"�����������&����
�
���'�


 ���������2�����32
��
�������
�
���444�3�2�����"��������#�����(��
���56�66�789�6:56�66�789�6:*��3(���
�
���*��3(���
�
���

 ����������"����!������#�	��"���������������"����!������#�	�� ������%��"�����������%�� ������*���������$����.���"�����������*���������$����.���!��������� ���������

���"���
�;"���
�.����

*�(�3��
����������
������)��*(�!������
���������������������

��<�����=>>796796

 ������(������> ������(������>�!��
 ������(������7 ������(������7�!��
 ������(������9 ������(������9�!��
 ������(������5

>>�>789�>=76�666�6666�66666�?=66>777�>789�>=76�666�6666�66666�?=6688

 ������(������5�!��
"�����������(������>"�����������(������>�!��
"�����������(������7"�����������(������7�!��
"�����������(������9"�����������(������!��
�9

>>�>789�>=76�666�6666�66666�?=66>777�>789�>=76�666�6666�66666�?=6688

"�����������(������5"�����������(������5�!��
 ������#���
��$����
��.����#���
��"�����������#���
��$)���
��.����#���
��"�
������������

��� �����&�
����������
�������
�����

�����������������
	
���������������������������������
�# �2"
�# �2"
#�����.����������������	��
���������������
�������������������������������������������
���
�@�
�
���
�����A��������������
���������������������
���������
������������������
����
������������������
���	��������������

Packet page 252 of 446



����������	
��	
������������������
������������
������
������������������������������������������
������	��������������
�������
�
������
��������������������������������
����������������������������
�������
����������������������������������������������� ����
����������������������������
������������!����	��
�������"�
�#�������	��
�������"�
$%�&'()*+,&-..-+/ 01�11�10123��
����4�����
�4������45��� �����#�������

06�07�1012 3��
����#�������3��
���89: 06�07�1012"��
��;���������4�����
�4������45��� �����#��������"��
��;���������#�������"��
��;������������<��������4����;�����$%�&'()*+,&-..-+/ 01�16�1012��������������#�������
=4 �>�
��?

�������������@'*)-�@*()'+ 06�71�1012

Packet page 253 of 446



Page 1 of 4  

WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 
Job Title: Legal Assistant  
FTE: 1.0 (230 days/annual) 
Department:  Human Resources and Legal Services 
Reports To:  Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services 
FLSA Status:  Non-Exempt 
Prepared By:  Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services 
Preparation Date: February 16, 2024 
Approved By:  Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins Esq. 

Executive Director, Human Resources and Legal Services 
Approval Date: February 21, 2024 
 
The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student while 
providing high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and collaboration. 
 
The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality, boundary- spanning, 
educational system that educates all children through an equitable, inclusive, and holistic approach. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Legal Assistant provides skilled administrative support to the Human Resources and Legal Department in 
the following areas: legal correspondence, research, investigations, leaves/FMLA, ADA, contracts, and records 
request/management. Perform duties/responsibilities requiring knowledge of federal/state employment laws 
and regulations, as well as the District’s collective bargaining agreements, board policies and administrative 
guidelines. The Legal Assistant stays current on the above-referenced areas, agreements, policies, and laws to 
assist with District compliance. The position requires initiative, confidentiality, superior organizational skills, 
time management and a demonstrated ability to communicate effectively and work collaboratively with a team.  
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  

• Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position 
responsibilities. 

• Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts 
educational inequities in student achievement outcomes. 

• Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified in 
the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency, racial 
equity, and systemic and structural inequalities. 

• Familiar with complex legislation (e.g. ADA, FMLA, FLSA, PERA, etc.).  
• Familiar with WISD Non-Affiliated Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreements (e.g., Unit I CBA, Unit II 

CBA, and Unit III CBA), to draft correspondence and/or reply to employee inquiries. 
• Maintains accurate HR records in compliance with state and federal guidelines and District policies. 
• Familiar with WISD Board Policies/Administrative Guidelines; exercising discretion in disseminating 

information and explaining policies/procedures as directed. 
• Conducts legal research of regulations/laws to assist with the preparation of legal 

advice/correspondence. 
• Drafts, proofreads, and edits correspondence. 
• Assists in preparing and proofing/editing, labor relations materials/documents including CBAs, LOAs 

and MOUs.  
• Collects, organizes, and maintains documents/evidence, as needed, for District investigations. 
• Maintains and processes confidential and sensitive information. 
• Manages various leave requests and facilitates communication between employees, HR team members, 

and relevant Administrators.  

Packet page 254 of 446



Page 2 of 4  

• Responsible for handling subpoenas received by HR & Legal on behalf of the District.  
• Develops/drafts/edits job descriptions.  
• Creates new HR forms and internal processes as needed.  
• Schedules and coordinates meetings. 
• Assists in maintenance of attendance database. 
• Manages special projects as assigned by the Executive Director of HR and Legal Services. 
• Attends and participates in staff meetings, workshops, webinars, and conferences to increase 

professional knowledge.  
• Provide training to support staff regarding internal HR procedures. 
• Provides back-up assistance to HR Team and other support staff, as required. 
• Provides back-up assistance to the WISD Fingerprinting office; complies with Michigan State Police 

rules/regulations.  
• Maintains regular and predictable attendance.  
• OTHER RELEVANT DUTIES AS ASSIGNED. 

EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE:  
• Associate's/Bachelor’s degree in related field preferred. 
• Minimum of five (5) years of legal secretarial or paralegal experience in a legal/educational setting 

required. 
• Familiarity with relevant employment legislation (e.g. ADA, FMLA, FOIA, FLSA, PERA, etc.) and 

understanding of legal terminology and documents. 
• Proficient in Microsoft Word and Excel.   
• Knowledge of computer software and access and reporting to web-based information sites.  
• Notary Public preferred. 

 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. Alternative 
requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be considered. The 
requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
LANGUAGE SKILLS:  

• Communicates clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; fosters positive working relationships.  
• Attention to detail and ability to edit documents to ensure error free communication. 
• Ability to communicate and instruct others.  
• Excellent telephone presence.  
• Ability to develop, understand and follow detailed written procedures.  

 
TECHNICAL SKILLS:  

• Working knowledge of the Microsoft Office suite (Microsoft Word, Excel, and PowerPoint, e.g.) and 
Apple software and devices. 

• Ability to use a personal computer (PC) in a networked environment to utilize the Internet and other 
electronic communication mechanisms such as email conferencing.  

• Knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing, spreadsheets, 
database) is required.  

• Ability to multi-task and meet deadlines.  
• Ability to organize, prioritize and work independently, as well as cooperatively with diverse groups.  

 
REASONING ABILITY: 

• Exhibit a high level of professionalism with the ability to handle confidential information, use good 
judgment, plan and handle complex projects and maintain a flexible attitude. 

Packet page 255 of 446



Page 3 of 4  

• Ability to work under pressure. 
• Ability to see the task through to a successful conclusion. 
• Ability to perform job with little or no supervision.  
• Ability to initiate and complete tasks independently.  
• Demonstrated ability to begin and complete work assignments in a cooperative and efficient manner.  
• Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form. 
• Demonstrated ability to solve practical problems and interpret a variety of instructions.  
• Ability to perform assigned responsibilities in a manner consistent with excellent customer service.  

 
INTERPERSONAL SKILLS: 

• Possess excellent customer service and communication skills with a client-centered focus. 
• Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics. 
• Ability to take the initiative, work well with others as a collaborative team member and exhibit good 

communication skills. 
 
MATHEMATICAL SKILLS:  

• Demonstrated ability to be accurate in computations. 
• Demonstrated ability to quickly learn and follow formulas/procedures. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit, use hands to finger, handle, or 
feel; reach with hands and arms; talk and hear. The employee frequently is required to stand and walk. The 
employee is occasionally required to kneel or crouch. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 
25 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, color vision, and ability to adjust 
focus.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY: 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while 
performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals 
with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
The noise level in the work environment is quiet to loud, depending upon the activity in the particular part of the 
day. Occasionally the employee may be required to be outdoors for a short period of time, and therefore subject 
to varying weather conditions, for purposes of accomplishing the essential functions of this job.  
 
FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION: 
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples of 
work and to detail the required knowledge, skills and ability as well as the acceptable experience and training 
for the position. The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to assign, direct 
and control the duties of employees under supervision. The WISD retains and reserves any and all rights to 
change, modify, amend, add to or delete from any portion of this description in its sole judgment. This position 
description is not a contract for employment.  
 
The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. The District 
will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 
prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 
  

Packet page 256 of 446



Page 4 of 4  

 
TERMS: 
Salary and other employment conditions to be established by the Board of Education as reflected in the Non-
Affiliated Staff Manual. Starting salary (dependent upon experience) $66,977 - $82,317. 
 
Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace. 
 
Employees shall remain free of any alcohol or nonprescribed controlled substance in the workplace throughout 
his/her employment at the district. 
 
It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, age, height, weight, familial status, marital status, genetic 
information, sexual orientation or any legally protected characteristic, in its educational programs, activities, 
admissions, or employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972 Educational Amendments, executive 
order 11246 as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all other pertinent state and Federal 
regulations. 
 

Packet page 257 of 446



New Position Recommendation

Position Title: Special Education Coordinator (2)

FTE: 2

# of Workdays/Year:  210

Salary: Per Non-Affiliated Manual

Worksite: Teaching & Learning Center

Bargaining Unit: Non-Affliliated

Department: Special Education 

Packet page 258 of 446



Page 1 of 4 
 

Washtenaw Intermediate School District  
Job Description 

  
Job Title:   Special Education Coordinator – 210-Day 
Department:   Special Education Services 
Reports To:   Special Education Principal  
FLSA Status:   Exempt 
Prepared By:  Deborah Hester-Washington 

Executive Director of Special Education 
Prepared Date:  October 25, 2023 
Approved By:   Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins, Esq.  

 Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
Approved Date:  November 3, 2023 
 
The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student while 
providing high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and collaboration. 
 
The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality, boundary-
spanning, educational system that educates all children through an equitable, inclusive, and holistic 
approach.  
 
SUMMARY:  
The Coordinator of Special Education position entails training, coaching, systems support, team 
collaboration. They will also implement systems of leadership, support, professional development, guidance 
and monitoring for special education and related service staff/supports assigned to schools and/or programs 
operated by Washtenaw ISD, LEAs, and PSAs in Washtenaw County. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES:  
• Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position 

responsibilities. 
• Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts 

educational inequities in student achievement outcomes.  
• Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified in 

the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency, racial 
equity, and systemic and structural inequities. 

• Implement systems of training, coaching and support for educational staff who support students with 

disabilities, to ensure they are provided with research-based, specially designed instruction that meets 

the unique needs of all students. 

• Knowledgeable about IDEA/MARSE rules and regulations to able to provide training, guidance, support, 

and monitoring for school personnel with compliance. 

• Collaborate with Special Education teams with identifying, planning, organizing, designing, and 

implementing learning opportunities for instruction. 

• Design, coordinate, and deliver professional development related to special education services and 

instruction to members of the educational team. 

• Assist with determining training and professional development needs based on data collected by 

members of the special education team. 

• Review data to assist with determining systems and best practice strategies. 

• Assist Special Education Supervisors and Principals with the evaluation of special education staff. 

• Partners with school personnel to ensure that activities of daily operations are conducted effectively and 

efficiently to support the education of students with disabilities.  

Packet page 259 of 446



Page 2 of 4 
 

• Build strong partnerships with school leaders, instructional personnel, and district personnel to build 

support for students with disabilities. 

• Participates as a member of the School Leadership Team in the development and implementation of 

standard operating procedures across schools. 

• Assist with conducting student observations for appropriate placements. 

• Supports WISD vision and mission to enhance achievement for all students. 
• Supports a team-based approach to designing, planning, and implementing coordinated education 

systems. 
• Demonstrates excellent customer service. 
• Maintains regular predictable attendance. 
• OTHER RELATED DUTIES AS ASSIGNED 
 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES  
• N/A 
 
QUALIFICATIONS:  
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. 
Alternative requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be considered.  
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE: 
• Master’s Degree or higher preferred. 
• Five (5) years or more of relevant experience in Special Education preferred.  
• Must possess strong communication, interpersonal and organizational skills. 
• Must be able to use technology efficiently and appropriately. 
• Demonstrated ability to work effectively with both classroom teachers and administrators at all levels. 
• Strong facilitation skills. 
• Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics. 
• Excellent customer service and a client-centered focus. 
• Ability to write logically, clearly, and persuasively. 
• Skills and desire to work in a collaborative team with others. 
• Attention to detail and excellent follow-through required. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES: 
• Ability to provide training, guidance, support, monitoring, and direct supervision for school and district 

personnel to assist schools in implementing special education and related services in compliance with 

the IDEA and related federal and state laws, rules, and regulations.  

• Ability to effectively direct, plan, and implement plans for programs in a school-based environment.  

• Thorough knowledge of Federal, State, and District laws, policies, procedures, and best practices 

regarding student discipline and instruction. 

• Strong leadership and interpersonal skills with the ability to lead people and provide direction. 

• Ability to interpret policy and procedures. 

• Ability to communicate effectively with students, staff, and the public from diverse cultural, social, 

economic, and educational backgrounds. 

• Ability to work collaboratively with colleagues and contribute to a diverse workplace through ideas and 

experience.  

• Ability to organize, prioritize, and manage work assignments in an efficient manner and within 

established timeframes. 

Packet page 260 of 446



Page 3 of 4 
 

LANGUAGE SKILLS: 

• Ability to read, analyze and interpret general educational periodicals, professional journals, or 
governmental regulation.  

• Ability to write reports, business correspondence and procedural manuals.   
• Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of administrators, parents 

the general public. 
 
TECHNICAL SKILLS: 
• Demonstrated proficiency in the use of a personal computer (PC) or MAC in a networked environment to 

utilize the Internet and other electronic communication mechanisms such as email conferencing. 
• Knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing, spreadsheets, database, 

and presentation software) and other technology to support efficient and effective office operation is 
required. 

• Ability to multi-task. 
• Ability to meet timelines. 
• Ability to organize, prioritize and work independently, as well as cooperatively with diverse groups. 
• Ability to read and interpret technical procedures, governmental regulations, and forms. 
 
REASONING ABILITY: 
• Highly proficient in subject areas of reasoning, problem solving, organizational dynamics and emotional 

intelligence. 
• Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where only 

limited standardization exists. 
• Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form. 
 
INTERPERSONAL SKILLS: 
• Ability to build rapport with others and to serve diverse publics. 
• Ability to take the initiative, work well with others as a collaborative team member and exhibit good 

communication skills. 
• Ability to work effectively and collaboratively with other departments, agencies, and individuals. 
 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully 
perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with 
disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to speak or listen. While performing 
the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit, walk, and stand. The employee may be 
occasionally required to bend and/or twist at the trunk. The employee is continuously repeating the same 
hand, arm, or finger motion many times while typing and writing. The employee must occasionally lift and/or 
move up to 50 pounds such as educational tools. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close 
vision, distant vision, and the ability to adjust focus. The ability to travel to other buildings is required. The 
position requires the individual to sometimes work irregular or extended work hours and meet multiple 
demands from several people. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY: 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters while 
performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals 
with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 

Packet page 261 of 446



Page 4 of 4 
 

The noise level in the work environment is quiet to loud depending upon the activity during a particular part 
of the day. Occasionally the employee may be required to be outdoors for a short period of time, and 
therefore, subject to varying weather conditions, for the purpose of accomplishing the essential functions of 
this job. 
 
FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION: 
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples of 
work and to detail the required knowledge, skills and ability as well as the acceptable experience and training 
for the position.  The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to assign, direct 
and control the duties of employees under supervision.  The WISD retains and reserves any and all rights to 
change, modify, amend, add to or delete from any portion of this description in its sole judgment. 
 
This position description is not a contract for employment. 
 
The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  The 
District will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages 
both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 
 
TERMS:   
Contract, salary and other employment conditions to be established by the Board of Education as reflected in the 
Non-Affiliated Staff Manual Starting salary ranging (dependent upon experience) $81,396 – 100,034. 
 
Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace.  
 
The employee shall remain free of any alcohol or nonprescribed controlled substance in the workplace throughout 
his/her employment at the District. 
 
It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the basis of 
race, sex, age, color, national origin, religion or handicap in its educational programs, activities, admissions, or 
employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972 Educational Amendments, executive order 11246 as 
amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all other pertinent state and Federal regulations. 
 

Packet page 262 of 446



New Position Recommendation

Position Title: Special Education Supervisor (2 Positions)

FTE: 1.0

# of Workdays/Year:  230

Salary: Per the NA Manual

Worksite: Teaching & Learning Center

Bargaining Unit: Non-Affliliated

Department: Special Education 

Packet page 263 of 446



Page 1 of 4  

WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL DISTRICT  
DISTRICT POSITION DESCRIPTION 

 
Job Title:  Supervisor, Special Education Services 
FTE:   1.0 (230 days/annual) 
Department:  Special Education  
Reports To:  Executive Director of Special Education 
FLSA Status:  Exempt 
Prepared By:  Deborah Hester-Washington 
   Executive Director of Special Education 
Prepared Date: November 21, 2023  
Approved By:  Cassandra D. Harmon-Higgins, Esq. 

Executive Director, HR, and Legal Services 
Approved Date: February 27, 2024 

 
The WISD's Mission is to promote the continuous improvement of achievement for every student while 
providing high-quality service to our customers through leadership, innovation, and collaboration. 

 
The WISD’s Vision is to be a leader in empowering, facilitating, and delivering high-quality, boundary- 
spanning, educational system that educates all children through an equitable, inclusive, and holistic approach. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Supervisor is responsible for leadership, program management, supervision, data management and 
analysis for programs and services for students. In addition, this position provides leadership in collaboration 
with respect to designing programs and services with local constituent districts. 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES: 
• Demonstrates a strong commitment to equity, social justice, and inclusion in all practices and position 

responsibilities. 
• Demonstrates the ability to examine how his/her/their position (directly or indirectly) impacts 

educational inequities in student achievement outcomes. 
• Engages in reflection and ongoing learning and development on critical concepts and terms identified in 

the Washtenaw ISD Educational Equity Policy including concepts such as cultural proficiency, racial equity, 
and systemic and structural inequities. 

• Maintains positive professional relationships with students, staff, parents, administration, and community. 
• Oversee, coordinate, and adhere to a vision for services and activities for special education staff. 
• Provide supervision of multiple special education teams/groups and staff. 
• Promotes and coordinates interagency collaboration and efforts involved in the support of students with 

disabilities within the county. 
• Understands the IEPT process for all students. 
• Keeps informed of all legal requirements governing special education and shares this information with 

district staff. 
• Develops and provides budget recommendations and provides expenditure control on established budgets 

for WISD programs and services to the Executive Director of Special Education.  
• Assists in the recruitment, selection, and recommendation for hiring of special education, related service, 

and support service staff. 
• Participates as a member of the district administrative teams, including acting as a committee member of 

the Special Education Administration Meetings (SEAM). 
• Prepares local, state, federal and WISD reports related to special education and submits appropriate 

reports to the Executive Director of Special Education.  
• Represents the agency in public matters related to the education of students with disabilities. 
• Demonstrates effective human relations and communication skills. 

Packet page 264 of 446



Page 2 of 4  

• Prepares and supervises the preparation of reports, records, lists, budget, and all other paperwork 
required or appropriate. 

• Attends meetings and conferences as needed. 
• Abides by all applicable rules, regulations, policies procedures and statutes (Federal and State). 
• Performs other administrative duties as required by the Executive Director of Special Education 
• Attends Board meetings as needed. 
• Regular predictable attendance. 
• OTHER DUTIES MAY BE ASSIGNED. 
 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES 
Supervises and evaluates the work of special education staff assigned to provide instruction, services, and 
support. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS: 
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. 
Alternative requirements that may be appropriate and acceptable to the Board of Education may be considered. 
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill and/or ability required. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 
 
EDUCATION and/or EXPERIENCE: 
• Master’s degree in special education (or related field) AND approval in one area of Special Education 

REQUIRED. 
• Full or temporary approval as a Michigan Supervisor of Special Education REQUIRED. 
• Three (3) years of administrative and/ or managerial experience in Special Education PREFERRED. 
• Three (3) years of teaching experience in the area of Special Education REQUIRED. 
• Experience working with and understanding various types of disabilities. 
• Demonstrated knowledge of local, state, and federal laws and regulations affecting Special Education. 
• Professional maturity and elevated levels of discretion, integrity, and organizational skills. 
• Demonstrated leadership and interpersonal skills. 
• Demonstrated knowledge of current trends in Special Education and impact of the trends on the special 

education community. 
• Demonstrated consultation, training, group facilitation and process skills required. 
• Evidence of strong knowledge in curriculum development and behavior interventions and support. 
• Effective verbal and written communication skills, including the ability to effectively work with staff, other 

agencies, and the general public. 
• Ability to comprehend the dynamics and sensitivity of an organization's culture and the ability to solve 

related problems. 
• A strong commitment to working cooperatively and collaboratively with local district and WISD personnel. 
 
LANGUAGE SKILLS: 
• Ability to read, analyze and interpret general educational periodicals, professional journals, or 

governmental regulation. 
• Ability to draft reports, business correspondence and procedural manuals. 
• Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of administrators, parents, 

and the general public. 
• Ability to gather and disaggregate relevant data. 
 
TECHNICAL SKILLS: 
• Ability to use a personal computer (PC) or MAC in a networked environment to utilize the Internet and 

other electronic communications mechanisms, such as email conferencing. 
• Knowledge of productivity applications such as Microsoft Office (word processing, spreadsheets, database, 

and presentation software) is required. 

Packet page 265 of 446



Page 3 of 4  

MATHEMATICAL SKILLS: 
• Ability to maintain program and grant budgets. 
• Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using whole numbers, common 

fractions, and decimals. 
• Ability to compute rate, ratio, and percent and to draw and interpret bar graphs. 
 
REASONING ABILITY: 
• Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where only 

limited standardization exists. 
• Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS: 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to 
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. While performing the duties of this job, the 
employee is frequently required to sit, walk, and stand. The employee is occasionally required to bend and or 
twist at the trunk. The employee is continuously repeating the same hand, arm or finger motion many times. 
The employee is frequently required to talk or listen. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 
fifty pounds such as books and teaching material. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close 
vision, distant vision, and the ability to adjust focus. The ability to travel to other buildings is required. The 
position requires the individual to sometimes work irregular or extended work hours and meet multiple 
demands from several people. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL ADAPTABILITY: 
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters 
while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. The noise level in the work environment is 
quiet to loud depending upon the activity in the particular part of the day. Occasionally the employee may be 
required to be outdoors for a brief period of time, and therefore subject to varying weather conditions, for the 
purpose of accomplishing the essential functions of this job. 
 
FUNCTIONS OF POSITION DESCRIPTION: 
This position description has been prepared to define the general duties of the position, provide examples of 
work and to detail the required knowledge, skills, and ability as well as the acceptable experience and training 
for the position. The description is not intended to limit or modify the right of any supervisor to assign, direct 
and control the duties of employees under supervision. The WISD retains and reserves all rights to change, 
modify, amend, add to, or delete from any portion of this description in its sole judgment. 
 
This position description is not a contract for employment. 
 
The WISD is an equal opportunity employer, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. The 
District will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages 
both prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 
 
TERMS: 
Salary, and other employment conditions to be established by the Board of Education as reflected in the Non-
Affiliated Staff Manual. Starting salary starting (dependent upon experience) $98,064 - $120,519 (230-work days). 
 
Washtenaw Intermediate School District is a drug-free workplace. 
 
Employees shall remain free of any alcohol or nonprescribed controlled substance in the workplace 
throughout his/her employment at the district. 
It is the policy and commitment of the Washtenaw Intermediate School District not to discriminate on the basis of 

Packet page 266 of 446



Page 4 of 4  

race, sex, age, color, national origin, religion or handicap in its educational programs, activities, admissions, or 
employment policies in accordance with Title IX of the 1972 Educational Amendments, executive order 11246 as 
amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and all other pertinent state and Federal regulations. 

Packet page 267 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 
 
FROM:   Cassandra Harmon-Higgins, Esq. Executive Director of Human Resources 
 
DATE:      March 5, 2024 
                
RE:      Retirement Notification  
 
Attached please find Mr. Lee O’Neal’s retirement letter, effective December 31, 2024. Mr. O’Neal 
has been employed with the WISD since January 1, 2014, as a Teaching Assistant first at High 
Point and most recently at our Young Adult Red Oak Program.  
 
The Administration recommends that the Board accepts Mr. O’Neal’s letter of retirement. We 
wish him well in his future endeavors.  
 
CC:  Cherie Vannatter, Deputy Superintendent 
  Brian Marcel, Associate Superintendent 
   
 
 

Packet page 268 of 446



1

Nicole Hubler

To: Brian Marcel
Subject: RE: Retire

From: Brian Marcel  
Sent: Monday, March 4, 2024 4:10 PM 
To: Lee O'Neal <loneal@washtenawisd.org>; Cassandra Harmon-Higgins <charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org> 
Subject: RE: Retire 
 
Hi Lee, 
 
Congratulations on your decision to retire! How exciting for you! 
 
The most important thing is to make sure that you are in contact with the Michigan Office of Retirement Services. I 
included a link below with their contact information. They recommend filing for retirement with them on their forms at 
least 3 months before your retirement effective date. 
 
https://www.michigan.gov/orsschools/contact-ors 
 
Also, to be eligible for any payment of unused sick leave from WISD, you need to provide notice of your retirement, 
which you have now done. 
 
HR will also pass this information on to Deborah Hester-Washington and Chandra Dumas for planning purposes. 
 
Brian 
 
From: Lee O'Neal <loneal@washtenawisd.org>  
Sent: Monday, March 4, 2024 2:32 PM 
To: Cassandra Harmon-Higgins <charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org>; Brian Marcel <bmarcel@washtenawisd.org> 
Subject: Retire 
 
I go to retire 2024 and my  last day be  December, 31 2024. please let me know if and need to do 
something else. 
 
Lee O' Neal jr. 
 

Packet page 269 of 446



Packet page 270 of 446



Packet page 271 of 446



Packet page 272 of 446



Packet page 273 of 446



Packet page 274 of 446



Packet page 275 of 446



Packet page 276 of 446



Packet page 277 of 446



Packet page 278 of 446



Packet page 279 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 

 
FROM:   Tanner Rowe, Director of Operations 
 
DATE:      February 23, 2024 
                
SUBJECT:     Chapelle Lease Renewal  
 
The administration recommends that the WISD Board of Education authorize the administration to 
execute the lease renewal with Ypsilanti Community Schools for Rooms 120 and 128 at Chapelle Business 
Center, 111 S. Wallace Blvd., Ypsilanti, MI 48197 for a cost not to exceed $20,924. 
 
Our Early Childhood department is currently leasing space at the Chapelle Business Center which is owned 
and operated by Ypsilanti Community Schools. Currently the Early Childhood team occupies classrooms 
120 and 128 for a total of 1,718 square feet of space.  These spaces are utilized for Early On, Early 
Intervention and Early Head Start (EHS) services which provide space for Ypsilanti and Lincoln infants, 
toddlers, and families.  It is located in a convenient setting, with ample free parking making it a great space 
to serve the families in this area.    
 
The lease renewal is for a one (1) year period commencing July 1, 2024 and running through June 30, 
2025. The annual lease amount is $20,924.  Base rent is $1,432 per month, utilities are prorated at $312, 
which brings the total monthly amount to $1,744, equivalent to $12.18 per square foot. Funding for these 
spaces will be through Early On federal funding and Early Head Start funding. 
 
 

Packet page 280 of 446



Packet page 281 of 446



Packet page 282 of 446



Packet page 283 of 446



Packet page 284 of 446



Packet page 285 of 446



Packet page 286 of 446



Packet page 287 of 446



Packet page 288 of 446



Packet page 289 of 446



Packet page 290 of 446



Packet page 291 of 446



Packet page 292 of 446



Packet page 293 of 446



Packet page 294 of 446



Packet page 295 of 446



Packet page 296 of 446



Packet page 297 of 446



Packet page 298 of 446



Packet page 299 of 446



Packet page 300 of 446



Packet page 301 of 446



Packet page 302 of 446



Packet page 303 of 446



Packet page 304 of 446



 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
TO:          Naomi Norman, Superintendent; WISD Board of Education 

 
FROM:   Melissa Brooks-Yip, Supervisor of Instruction, Achievement Initiatives and Dr. 

Jennifer Banks, Director of Instruction, Achievement Initiatives 
 
DATE:      February 27, 2024 
                
SUBJECT:     Early Literacy Coaching Contract with Manchester Community Schools 

 
We recommend that the WISD Board of Education approve a contract with Manchester 
Community Schools to provide an early literacy coach for the remainder of the 2023-2024 
school year at a cost not to exceed $60,000.00. 
 
Manchester Community Schools will provide an early literacy coach (PreK-3) who will join the 
Washtenaw County Coaching Collaborative (WC3) professional learning network. The coach will 
support Manchester teachers in implementing the Essential Instructional Practices in Early 
Literacy. The funding source is a Michigan Department of Education Early Literacy Coaching 
Grant, which aligns with our commitment to high-quality literacy instruction for all. 
 
The $60,000.00 cost covers time for coaching services from the date of contract approval 
through June 30, 2024. Erica Rodriguez-Hatt, Coordinator for Early Literacy and Literacy 
Coaching Initiatives, will supervise the coach's work. This contract will advance early literacy, a 
key priority in our EISJ policy. Additionally, improving early literacy outcomes for all students 
regardless of race, gender, or socioeconomic status supports our equity, inclusion, and social 
justice commitments. Early intervention can help close achievement gaps and ensure all 
students are reading proficiently by third grade. 
 

 

Packet page 305 of 446



Packet page 306 of 446



Packet page 307 of 446



Packet page 308 of 446



Packet page 309 of 446



Packet page 310 of 446



Packet page 311 of 446



Packet page 312 of 446



Packet page 313 of 446



Packet page 314 of 446



Packet page 315 of 446



Packet page 316 of 446



Packet page 317 of 446



Packet page 318 of 446



Packet page 319 of 446



Packet page 320 of 446



Packet page 321 of 446



Packet page 322 of 446



 

    
 

 
 

DATE: March 12, 2024 
 

TO: Naomi Norman, Superintendent and 
Members of the WISD Board of Education 

FROM: Becky L. Mullins 
Supervisor, Human Resources and Legal Services 

RE: Updated Policies – First Read 
 
 

 
The Policy Committee1 recommends adoption of the proposed policy changes to the following as 
attached: 

WISD Board Policies - 
Policy #’s 1662/3362/4362/5517 – Harassment 
Policy #’s 1422/3122/4122 – Nondiscrimination & Equal Employment Opportunity 

 
Below are highlights of the Policy Committee’s recommendations to the Board: 

 
These policies have been revised to reflect changes in terminology and definitions, terms, and processes that 
are consistent with the latest regulations released by the United States Department of Education (USDOE), 
specifically Title IX regulations that were effective as of August 2020. 

 
These revisions should be adopted in order to maintain accurate policies. 

 

 
Enclosure 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Steve Olsen (Board Trustee), Mary Jane Tramontin (Board Vice President), Naomi Norman (Superintendent), Brian Marcel (Associate 
Superintendent), Cherie Vannatter (Deputy Superintendent), Cassandra Harmon-Higgins (Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services), 
and Becky Mullins (Supervisor of Human Resources and Legal Services) 

Packet page 323 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Title: ANTI-HARASSMENT 

Code: po1662 

1662 - ANTI-HARASSMENT 

General Policy Statement 

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free 
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all 
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all 
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of 
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another 
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board. 

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against discriminatory harassment based on race, color, 
national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, 
ancestry, or genetic information (collectively, "Protected Classes") that are protected by Federal civil 
rights laws (hereinafter referred to as "unlawful harassment"), and encourages those within the School 
District community as well as tThird pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such 
problems. The Board will investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful 
harassment is substantiated, the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its 
reoccurrence, and remedy its effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful 
harassment will be subject to appropriate disciplinary action. 

[ ] The District will offer counseling services to any person found to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, and, where appropriate, the person(s) who committed the unlawful harassment. 

For purposes of this policy, "School District community" means students, administrators, and 
professional and classified staff, as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

For purposes of this policy, "third parties" include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on 
School District property (e.g., visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), 
vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who 
come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related events/activities 
(whether on or off School District property). 

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy 

The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of 
the following prohibited acts: 

Draf
t

Packet page 324 of 446



A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation. 
  

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment. 
  

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of 
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges 
comprises part of one's supervisory duties.  

  
Definitions 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal 
resolution to the alleged harassment. 
  
Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment, 
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution 
to the alleged harassment. 
  
School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s):  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday – 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 
  
Bullying 
  
Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and 
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and 
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected 
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical 
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is 
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work 
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or 
work performance or participation; and may involve: 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 325 of 446



A. teasing; 
  

B. threats; 
  

C. intimidation; 
  

D. stalking; 
  

E. cyberstalking; 
  

F. cyberbullying;  
  

G. physical violence; 
  

H. theft; 
  

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment; 
  

J. public humiliation; or 
 

K. destruction of property.  

  
Harassment 
 
"Harassment" means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written, 
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that: 
 

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to 
his/her property; 
  

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, 
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or 
  

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school.  

 
Sexual Harassment 
  
Pursuant toFor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 
Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, "sexual harassment" is defined as: 
  
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature, when: 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 326 of 446



A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an 
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity. 
  

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
educational decisions affecting such individual.  
  

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational 
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning 
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an 
educational program or activity.  

 
Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of anyeither gender against a person of the 
same or anotheropposite gender. 
  
Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education 
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed 
solely by Policy 2266. 
  
Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms. 
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
  

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations. 
  

B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact. 
  

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion, 
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular 
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be 
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances. 
  

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions of a sexual nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about 
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually 
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds 
or whistles; obscene telephone calls. 
  

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or 
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich 
may embarrass or offend individuals. 
  

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting or pinching; obscene gestures. 
  

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities. 
  

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own 
sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 327 of 446



I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic 
relationship. 
  

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks, 
or groin. 
  

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another.                                           
 Remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about 
one's own sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

L. In the context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to 
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where 
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work 
environment. 
  

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School 
District community into a student's personal space and personal life. 
  

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature.  

  
Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits, 
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive 
employment or educational environment. 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Sexual conduct/relationships with students by District employees or any other 
adult member of the School District community is prohibited, and any teacher, administrator, coach, 
or other school authority who engages in sexual conduct with a student may also be guilty of the 
criminal charge of "sexual battery". The issue of consent is irrelevant in regard to such criminal charge 
and/or with respect to the application of this policy to District employees or other adult members of 
the School District community.] 
  
Race/Color Harassment 
  
Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the 
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, 
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class 
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the 
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets, 
and/or negative references relative to racial customs. 
  
Religious (Creed) Harassment 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 328 of 446



Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves 
religious slurs. 
  
National Origin/Ancestry Harassment 
  
Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal 
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose 
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's 
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment 
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such 
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs. 
  
Disability Harassment 
  
Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is 
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling condition, such as negative comments 
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such 
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic 
information. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) 
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”): 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in 
order to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender 
with which they feel most comfortable. The same individual(s) assigned to serve as Compliance 
Officer(s) may also be assigned to serve as the District's Section 504 Compliance Officer(s) /ADA 
Coordinator(s) and/or Title IX Coordinator(s). Additionally, by appointing two (2) Compliance Officers, 
there should also be a Compliance Officer available to investigate a claim of harassment that pertains 
to the other Compliance Officer.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
 
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 

Draf
t

Packet page 329 of 446



 
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311_______________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
 
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103________ 
(Office Address) 
 
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org___________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
  
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
 
Associate Superintendent____________________________ 
(School District Title) 
 
(734) 994-8100 extension 1402________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
 
1819 S, Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103_________ 
(Office Address) 
 
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org___________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the 
District's web site ( ) and: 
  

A. ( X) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E. ( ) _______________________________. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply with 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a prompt 
and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about "unwelcome" 

Draf
t

Packet page 330 of 446



conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  
Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an 
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official.  Upon receipt of a report of alleged 
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or 
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and 
Respondent.  In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident. 
  
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment is obligated, in accordance with this 
policy, to report such observations to the Compliance Officer(s) within two (2) days. Additionally, any 
Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is expected to intervene to stop the 
harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention dangerous, in which case the staff 
member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or local law enforcement officials, as 
necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer(s) or designee must contact the 
Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or Complainant's parents/guardians if the Complainant is 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) days to advise of the Board's intent to investigate the 
alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct 
  
Members of the School District community, which includes all staff, and third parties along with Third 
Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator, 
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes 
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the District's Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer within two 
(2) days of receiving the report of harassment.at his/her first convenience. 
  
Members of the School District community and Third Parties or third parties who believe they have 
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird 
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, 
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scomplaining 
individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no 
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort 
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential 
witnesses are available. 
  
If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with 
Policy 5517.01 - Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the 
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful 
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal shall report the act of bullying, 

Draf
t

Packet page 331 of 446



aggressive behavior and/or harassment to the one of the Anti-HarassmentCompliance Officer(s) who 
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual 
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance 
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the 
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall suspend 
the his/herPolicy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the 
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the 
Principal informed of the status of the Policy 1662 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a 
copy of the resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with 
the determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as "Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers" for 
the District. They are hereinafter referred to as the "Compliance Officers". 
  
[NOTE: School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in order 
to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender with 
which they feel most comfortable. The Compliance Officers may also serve as the District's Section 
504 and Title IX Coordinators.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
  
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually: 

A. ( ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 332 of 446



B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) _______________________________.  

The Compliance Officers will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about "unwelcome" 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  
Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a visitor to the District, or receive complaints that are initially filed with 
a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school 
building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process 
(depending on the request of the person alleging the harassment or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to conduct such a process. 
In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members 
of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the incident. 
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment of a student is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the Compliance Officers within two 
(2) business days. Additionally, any Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is 
expected to intervene to stop the harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or 
local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance 
Officer or designee must contact the student, if age eighteen (18) or older, or the student's parents if 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) business days to advise s/he/them of the Board's intent to 
investigate the alleged misconduct, including the obligation of the Compliance Officer or designee to 
conduct an investigation following all the procedures outlined for a formal complaint. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 1662 F1) 
  
Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Program or Activities, any Any employee or other member of the School District community 
or tThird pParty (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they haves/he has been subjected to 
unlawful harassment or retaliation may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through either the 
procedures described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the 
Complainant's claims of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding 
whether the charges are substantiated. informal or formal procedures as described below. Further, a 
process for investigating claims of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision 

Draf
t

Packet page 333 of 446



regarding whether the claim of legally prohibited harassment or retaliation, was substantiated are set 
forth below. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment or retaliation, timelines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a 
complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and 
potential witnesses are available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be 
completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being 
received). 
  
The informal and formal procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any 
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States 
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
("EEOC"). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stop inappropriate behavior and 
to investigate and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint 
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District 
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful harassment or retaliation.  third party who believes 
s/he has been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a 
precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those 
circumstances where the Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it. and will 
only be utilized where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to 
participate in such process. 
  
The Complainant Employees, other members of the School District community, or third parties who 
believe that they have been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against may proceed immediately to the 
formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may 
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District 
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However, all complaints of 
harassment involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District community, 
or a third party against a student will be formally investigated. Similarly, any allegations of sexual 
violence will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe in an individual feels that 
s/he is being unlawfully harassed and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the individual should tell or 
otherwise inform the Respondent that the alleged harassing harasser that the conduct is unwelcome 
and must stop. Such direct communication should not be utilized in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. The Complainant complaining individual should address the allegedly harassing conduct as 
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals 
when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainant individual if requested to do 
so. An Complainant individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent 
about the allegedly inappropriate conduct may file inform the harasser of his/her complaint is not 
prohibited from otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain 

Draf
t

Packet page 334 of 446



types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
A ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully harassed may make an informal 
complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2) 
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level 
employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an 
informal resolution as described below on his/her own, or appoint another individual to facilitate an 
informal resolution. 
  
The Board'sSchool District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other 
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully 
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending 
upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual claiming unlawful 
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainant individual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the 
behavior to the Respondentalleged harasser. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the 
school building or office where the Respondentindividual whose behavior is being 
questioned works or attends. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation 
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the 
individual claiming harassment and the individual accused of harassment to work out a 
mutual resolution. Such a meeting is not appropriate in circumstances involving sexual 
violence.  

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance 
Officer/or designee is directed will exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal 
complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is 
Parties who are dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant, may 
proceed to file a formal complaint and, as stated above, either party parties may request that the 
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the 
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations 
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process, if the individual elects to file a formal 
complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 335 of 446



The ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation hereinafter referred to as the "Complainant", may file a formal 
complaint, either orally or in writing, with a teacher, Principal, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, 
or other District officialemployee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment 
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should 
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs 
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher, 
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialemployee, either orally or in writing, about any 
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance 
Officer/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the 
parties reasonably informed of the status of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is 
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by 
the Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the 
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be 
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be 
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation, 
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or 
the Respondentalleged harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees with his/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance 
Officer may still take whatever actions deemed s/he deems appropriate in consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will 
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation. ( ) TheA Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to 
do so by the Compliance Officer. 
  
Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formal individual alleged to 
have engaged in the harassing or retaliatory conduct, hereinafter referred to as the "Respondent", 
that a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the 
allegations and provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including 
the Board's Anti-Harassment Policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to 
submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 336 of 446



Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will attempt 
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen 
(15) business days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations.  

 
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver 
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation 
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful 
harassment/retaliation of the Complainant. Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
harassment. The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances., including the ages and maturity levels of those involved. In determining if 
discriminatory harassment or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be 
used. The Compliance Officer may consult with the Board's legal counsel before finalizing the report to 
the Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the 
Compliance Officer/ or the designee, the Superintendent must either issue a written final decision 
regarding whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. 
A copy of the Superintendent's final written decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the 
Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
                             OR 
  
[ [X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party's his/her receipt of the Superintendent's final written decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representative within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 

Draf
t

Packet page 337 of 446



disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final.  
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Tthird 
Pparty alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the 
right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with 
this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[ X] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 
  
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the 
Respondentindividual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as possible, 
consistent with the Board's legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform 
with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this policy and 
related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted by law. 
Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed.  Additionally, the Respondent must be provided the 
Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation process will be 
advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent. 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer or his/her designee will instruct all 
members of the School District community and third parties who are interviewed about the importance 
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is 
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns or that s/he 
provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment. 
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All 
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant 
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the 
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter., including the ages and maturity levels of those 
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider 
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, 
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 

Draf
t

Packet page 338 of 446



  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the 
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall 
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
  
Any act of retaliation against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation is prohibited. 
  
Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child Student Abuse/Sexual Misconduct 
  
State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a childstudent 
with a disability under the age of twenty-one (21) or that a child under the age of eighteen (18) who has 
suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or condition of a nature that 
reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately report that knowledge or suspicion to 
the proper authorities, which must include protective services;  for students under the age of 18 is 
children's protective services agency, and for students 18 and over is adult protective services agency.   
See Admin Guideline 1662 for more information. 
 
has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or condition of a nature 
that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately report that knowledge or suspicion 
to the county children's services agency. If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the 
Compliance Officer or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably 
indicates abuse or neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance 
with State law and Board Policy. 
  
Any reports made to a county children's protective services agency, adult’s protective services agency or 
to local law enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and 

Draf
t

Packet page 339 of 446



responsibility to continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a 
designee may work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no 
event shall the harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without 
good cause after consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to 
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall 
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the 
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where 
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment 
in general, will be age and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/ 
responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 

Draf
t

Packet page 340 of 446



policy; 
  

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and 
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 
  

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the 
Complainant and/or the Respondent, complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including 
no contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 
  

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or 
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 
  

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the 
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 
  

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the 
alleged discrimination or harassment; 
 
[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the District concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 
  

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including 
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 
of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 
  

O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party 
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 
  

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged perpetrator/responding party of the allegations 
constituting a potential violation of this policy; 
  

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the complainant and alleged perpetrator in advance of any 
interview or hearing; copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondent in 
advance of any interview, meeting, or hearing; 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 341 of 446



R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary 
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent.complainant or the alleged perpetrator. 

 
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 
  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 201820214 

 
 
Legal 

Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. 

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA) 

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq, Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq. 

42 U.S.C. 1983 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The Handicappers’ Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq. 

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq. 

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01 

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006 

National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis – May 2008 

 Draf
t

Packet page 342 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Title: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update Revised ANTI-HARASSMENT 

Code: po3362 

Adopted: August 21, 2012 

3362 - ANTI-HARASSMENT 

General Policy Statement 

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free 
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all 
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all 
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of 
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another 
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board. 

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against harassment based on race, color, national 
origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age (except as authorized 
by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic information 
(collectively, "Protected Classes") that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to 
as unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well 
as tThird pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board will 
investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is substantiated, 
the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its 
effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to 
appropriate disciplinary action. 

[ ] The District will offer counseling services to any person found to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, and, where appropriate, the person(s) who committed the unlawful harassment. 

For purposes of this policy, "School District community" means students, administrators, and 
professional and support staff, as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

For purposes of this policy, "third parties" include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on 
School District property (e.g., visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), 
vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who 
come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related events/activities 
(whether on or off School District property). 

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy 

The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of 
the following prohibited acts: 

DRAFT

Packet page 343 of 446



A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation. 
  

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment. 
  

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of 
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges 
comprises part of one's supervisory duties. 

  
Definitions 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal 
resolution to the alleged harassment. 
  
Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment, 
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution 
to the alleged harassment. 
  
School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s):  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday – 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 
  
Bullying 
  
Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and 
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and 
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected 
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical 
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is 
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work 
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or 
work performance or participation; and may involve: 
  

A. teasing; 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 344 of 446



B. threats; 
  

C. intimidation; 
  

D. stalking; 
  

E. cyberstalking; 
  

F. cyberbullying; 
  

G. physical violence; 
  

H. theft; 
  

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment; 
  

J. public humiliation; or 
  

K. destruction of property. 
  
 
Harassment 
 
"Harassment" means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written, 
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that: 
  

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to 
his/her property; 
  

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, 
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or 
  

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school. 
  
Sexual Harassment 
  
Pursuant toFor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 
Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, "sexual harassment" is defined as: 
  
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature, when: 
  

A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an 
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity. 
  

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
educational decisions affecting such individual. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 345 of 446



C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational 
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning 
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an 
educational program or activity. 

  
Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of eitherany gender against a person of the 
same or oppositeanother gender. 
  
Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex Education 
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed 
solely by Policy 2266. 
  
Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms. 
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
  

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations. 
  

B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact. 
  

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion, 
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular 
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be 
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances. 
  

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions of a sexual nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about 
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually 
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds 
or whistles; obscene telephone calls. 
  

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or 
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich 
may embarrass or offend individuals. 
  

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures. 
  

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities. 
  

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own 
sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic 
relationship. 
  

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks, 
or groin. 
  

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another. 

DRAFT

Packet page 346 of 446



  
Remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about 
one's own sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

L. In the context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to 
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where 
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work 
environment. 
  

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School 
District community into a student's personal space and personal life. 
  

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature. 

  
Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits, 
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive 
employment or educational environment. 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Sexual conduct/relationships with students by District employees or any other 
adult member of the School District community is prohibited, and any teacher, administrator, coach, 
or other school authority who engages in sexual conduct with a student may also be guilty of the 
criminal charge of "sexual battery". The issue of consent is irrelevant in regard to such criminal charge 
and/or with respect to the application of this policy to District employees or other adult members of 
the School District community.] 
  
Race/Color Harassment 
  
Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the 
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, 
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class 
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the 
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets, 
and/or negative references relative to racial customs. 
  
Religious (Creed) Harassment 
  
Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves 
religious slurs. 
  
National Origin/Ancestry Harassment 

DRAFT

Packet page 347 of 446



  
Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal 
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose 
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's 
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment 
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such 
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs. 
  
Disability Harassment 
  
Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is 
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling condition, such as negative comments 
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such 
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic 
information. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) 
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”): 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in 
order to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender 
with which they feel most comfortable. The same individual(s) assigned to serve as Compliance 
Officer(s) may also be assigned to serve as the District's Section 504 Compliance Officer(s)/ADA 
Coordinator(s) and/or Title IX Coordinator(s). Additionally, by appointing two (2) Compliance Officers, 
there should also be a Compliance Officer available to investigate a claim of harassment that pertains 
to the other Compliance Officer.] 
  
_____________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 

DRAFT

Packet page 348 of 446



  
  
__________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the 
School District's web site (X ) and: 
  

A. (X ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E. ( ) ___________________________________. 

  
The Compliance Officer(s) ( ) is ( ) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply with 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a prompt 
and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about "unwelcome" 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  
Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an 
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official.  Upon receipt of a report of alleged 
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or 

DRAFT

Packet page 349 of 446



formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and 
Respondent.  In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident. 
  
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment is obligated, in accordance with this 
policy, to report such observations to the Compliance Officer(s) within two (2) days. Additionally, any 
Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is expected to intervene to stop the 
harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention dangerous, in which case the staff 
member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or local law enforcement officials, as 
necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer(s) or designee must contact the 
Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or Complainant's parents/guardians if the Complainant is 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) days to advise of the Board's intent to investigate the 
alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct 
  
Members of the School District community, which includes all staff, and third parties along with Third 
Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator, 
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes 
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer within two 
(2) days of receiving the report of harassment.at his/her first convenience. 
  
Members of the School District community or third partiesand Third Parties who believe they have 
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird 
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, 
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scomplaining 
individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no 
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort 
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential 
witnesses are available. 
  
If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with 
Policy 5517.01 – Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the 
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful 
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal will report the act of bullying, 
aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theone of the Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) who 
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual 
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance 
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the 
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall 
suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the 
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal 
informed of the status of the Policy 3362 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a copy of 

DRAFT

Packet page 350 of 446



the resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the 
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as "Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers" for 
the District. They are hereinafter referred to as the "Compliance Officers". 
[NOTE: School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in order 
to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender with 
which they feel most comfortable. In addition, the Compliance Officers may also serve as the District's 
Section 504 and Title IX Coordinators.] 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
____________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually: 

A. ( ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) ________________________________. 

The Compliance Officers will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about "unwelcome" 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 

DRAFT

Packet page 351 of 446



not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a visitor to the District, or receive complaints that are initially filed with 
a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school 
building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process 
(depending on the request of the member of the School District community alleging harassment or 
the nature of the alleged harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to 
conduct such a process. In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All members of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that 
are reported to them to the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the 
incident. 
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment of a student is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the Compliance Officers within two 
(2) business days. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer or designee must contact the student, if age 
eighteen (18) or older, or the student's parents if under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) business 
days to advise s/he/them of the Board's intent to investigate the alleged misconduct, including the 
obligation of the Compliance Officer or designee to conduct an investigation following all the 
procedures outlined for a formal complaint. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 3362 F1) 
  
Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities, anyAny employee or other member of the School District community 
or Third Partythird party (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they haves/he has been 
subjected to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through the procedures 
described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims 
of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated.either the informal or formal procedures as described below. Further, a process for 
investigating claims of harassment and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the claim 
of legally prohibited harassment was substantiated are set forth below. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment, timelines are flexible for initiating 
the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint within thirty 
(30) calendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely 
manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 
  
The informal and formal procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any 
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States 
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
("EEOC"). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is promptly to stop inappropriate behavior and 
to investigate and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint 

DRAFT

Packet page 352 of 446



procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District 
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful harassment or retaliation.third party who believes 
s/he has been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a 
precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those 
circumstances where the Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it. and will 
only be utilized where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to 
participate in such process. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees, other members of the School District community, or third parties who 
believe that they have been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against may proceed immediately to the 
formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may 
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complainants involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District 
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However, all complaints of 
harassment involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District community, 
or a third party against a student will be formally investigated. Similarly, any allegations of sexual 
violence will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe inan individual feels that 
s/he is being unlawfully harassed and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the individual should tell or 
otherwise inform the Respondent that the alleged harassing harasser that the conduct is unwelcome 
and must stop. Such direct communication should not be utilized in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. The Complainantcomplaining individual should address the allegedly harassing conduct as 
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals 
when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainantindividual if requested to do 
so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent 
about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform the harasser of his/her complaint is not 
prohibited from otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain 
types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
A Ccomplainant individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully harassed may make an informal 
complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2) 
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level 
employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an 
informal resolution as described below on his/her own, or appoint another individual to facilitate an 
informal resolution. 
  
The Board's School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other 
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully 
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending 
upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual claiming unlawful 
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 353 of 446



A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the 
behavior to the Respondentalleged harasser. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the 
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individual whose behavior is 
being questioned works or attends. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation 
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the 
individual claiming harassment and the individual accused of harassment to work out a 
mutual resolution. Such a meeting is not appropriate in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance 
Officer/ or designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal 
complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant 
isParties who are dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may 
proceed to file a formal complaint. And, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the 
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the 
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations 
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,if the individual elects to file a formal 
complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
The ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation hereinafter referred to as the "Complainant", may file a formal 
complaint, either orally or in writing, with a teacher, Principal, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, 
or other District employeeofficial. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment 
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should 
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs 
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher, 
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialemployee, either orally or in writing, about any 
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance 
Officer/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably 
informed of the status of the investigation and the decision decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is based 
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the 
Complainant. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 354 of 446



If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the 
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be 
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be 
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation, 
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or 
the Respondentalleged harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance 
Officer may still take whatever actions deemeds/he deem appropriate in consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will 
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation. The( ) A Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to 
do so by the Compliance Officer. 
  
Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to 
have engaged in the harassing or retaliatory conduct, hereinafter referred to as the "Respondent", 
that a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the 
allegations and provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including 
the Board's Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to 
submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will attempt 
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business 
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver 
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation 
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful 
harassment/retaliation of the ComplainantComplainant has been subjected to unlawful harassment. 
The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the circumstances., 
including the ages and maturity levels of those involved. In determining if discriminatory harassment or 

DRAFT

Packet page 355 of 446



retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. ( ) The Compliance Officer may 
consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the 
Compliance Officer/or the designee, the Superintendent must either issue a final written decision 
regarding whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. 
A copy of the Superintendent's finalwritten decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the 
Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[X ] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final written decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representative within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Third 
Partythird party alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also 
reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in 
accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its 
designee. 
  
[X ] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 
  
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, 
the Respondentindividual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as 

DRAFT

Packet page 356 of 446



possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to 
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this 
policy and related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted 
by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must be 
provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent. 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or his/her designee will instruct all 
members of the School District community and third parties who are interviewed about the importance 
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is 
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns or that s/he 
provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment. 
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All 
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant 
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the 
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter, including the ages and maturity levels of those 
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider 
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, 
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the 
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall 
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil right law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or the 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 357 of 446



The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
  
Any act of retaliation against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation is prohibited. 
  
Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child Student Abuse/Sexual Misconduct 
  
State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a child student 
under the age of eighteen (18) or that a person with a disability receiving services as a student from the 
school regardless of age who has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, 
disability or condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately 
report that knowledge or suspicion to the proper authorities, which must include protective services; for 
students under the age of 18 is children's protective services agency, and for students 18 and over is 
adult protective services agency.   See Admin Guideline 1662 for more information. 
county children's services agency. If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the Compliance 
Officer or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably indicates 
abuse or neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance with 
State law and Board Policy. 
  
Any reports made to a county children's protective services agency, adult’s protective services agency  
or to local law enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and 
responsibility to continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a 
designee may work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no 
event shall the harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without 
good cause after consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to 
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall 
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the 
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where 
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment 
in general, will be age and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 358 of 446



B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/
responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy; 

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 

D. written witness statements;

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage of 
the incident); 

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the Complainant
and/or the Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no contact 
orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the dates the 
parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the alleged
discrimination or harassment; 

[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 

DRAFT

Packet page 359 of 446



following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this policy 
and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, including 
their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation of an 
alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be maintained 
regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this policy.  It is best 
practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, along with the 
date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed and/or presented 
during the training.] 

O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged perpetrator/responding party of the allegations
constituting a potential violation of this policy; 

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondentcomplainant and alleged
perpetrator in advance of any interview, meeting, or hearing; 

R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent.complainant or the alleged perpetrator. 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 

© Neola 201820214 

Legal 

Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. 

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA) 

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq. 

42 U.S.C. 1983 

DRAFT

Packet page 360 of 446



42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The Handicappers’ Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq. 

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq. 

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01 

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006 

National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis – May 2008 

 

DRAFT

Packet page 361 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Section: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update 

Title: ANTI-HARASSMENT 

Code: po4362 

4362 - ANTI-HARASSMENT 

General Policy Statement 

It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free 
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all 
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all 
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of 
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another 
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board. 

The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against harassment based on race, color, national 
origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age (except as authorized 
by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic information 
(collectively, Protected Classes) that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter referred to as 
unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well 
as tThird pParties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board will 
investigate all allegations of harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is substantiated, 
the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its 
effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to 
appropriate disciplinary action. 

[ ] The District will offer counseling services to any person found to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, and, where appropriate, the person(s) who committed the unlawful harassment. 

For purposes of this policy, School District community means students, administrators, and 
professional and support staff, as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

For purposes of this policy, third parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on 
School District property (e.g., visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), 
vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who 
come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related events/activities 
(whether on or off School District property). 

Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy 

DRAFT

Packet page 362 of 446



The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of 
the following prohibited acts: 
  

A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation. 
  

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment. 
  

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of 
harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating unlawful harassment charges 
comprises part of one's supervisory duties. 

  
Definitions 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant  is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal 
resolution to the alleged harassment. 
  
Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment, 
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution 
to the alleged harassment. 
  
School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and support staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s):  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday – 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 
  
Bullying 
  
Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and 
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and 
that bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected 
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical 
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is 
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work 
environment; cause discomfort or humiliation; or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or 
work performance or participation; and may involve: 

DRAFT

Packet page 363 of 446



  
A. teasing; 

  
B. threats; 

  
C. intimidation; 

  
D. stalking; 

  
E. cyberstalking; 

  
F. cyberbullying; 

  
G. physical violence; 

  
H. theft; 

  
I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment; 

  
J. public humiliation; or 

  
K. destruction of property. 

  
Harassment 
 
Harassment means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written, 
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that: 
  

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to 
his/her property; 
  

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, 
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or 
  

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school. 
  
Sexual Harassment 
  
Pursuant toFor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and 
Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, sexual harassment is defined as: 
  
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature, when: 
  

A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an 
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 364 of 446



B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
educational decisions affecting such individual. 
  

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational 
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning 
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an 
educational program or activity. 

  
Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of eitherany gender against a person of the 
same or oppositeanother gender. 
  
Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex Education 
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed 
solely by Policy 2266. 
  
Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms. 
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
  

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations. 
  

B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact. 
  

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion, 
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular 
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be 
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances. 
  

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions of a sexual nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about 
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually 
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds 
or whistles; obscene telephone calls. 
  

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or 
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich 
may embarrass or offend individuals. 
  

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures. 
  

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities. 
  

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own 
sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggest the desire for a romantic 
relationship. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 365 of 446



J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks, 
or groin. 
  

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another. 
  
Remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about 
one's own sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

L. In the context of employees, consensual sexual relationships where such relationship leads to 
favoritism of a subordinate employee with whom the superior is sexually involved and where 
such favoritism adversely affects other employees or otherwise creates a hostile work 
environment. 
  

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School 
District community into a student's personal space and personal life. 
  

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature. 

  
Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits, 
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive 
employment or educational environment. 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Sexual conduct/relationships with students by District employees or any other 
adult member of the School District community is prohibited, and any teacher, administrator, coach, 
or other school authority who engages in sexual conduct with a student may also be guilty of the 
criminal charge of sexual battery. The issue of consent is irrelevant in regard to such criminal charge 
and/or with respect to the application of this policy to District employees or other adult members of 
the School District community.] 
  
Race/Color Harassment 
  
Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the 
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, 
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class 
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the 
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets, 
and/or negative references relative to racial customs. 
  
Religious (Creed) Harassment 
  
Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 

DRAFT

Packet page 366 of 446



from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves 
religious slurs. 
  
National Origin/Ancestry Harassment 
  
Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal 
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose 
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's 
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment 
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such 
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs. 
  
Disability Harassment 
  
Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is 
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling condition, such as negative comments 
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such 
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic 
information. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) 
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”): 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in 
order to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender 
with which they feel most comfortable. The same individual(s) assigned to serve as Compliance 
Officer(s) may also be assigned to serve as the District's Section 504 Compliance Officer(s)/ADA 
Coordinator(s) and/or Title IX Coordinator(s). Additionally, by appointing two (2) Compliance Officers, 
there should also be a Compliance Officer available to investigate a claim of harassment that pertains 
to the other Compliance Officer.] 
  
_____________________________ 
(Name) 
  
 Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 367 of 446



1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
__________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
  
 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the 
School District's web site (X ) and: 
  

A. (X ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E. ( ) ___________________________________.  

  
The Compliance Officer(s) ( ) is ( ) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply with 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a prompt 
and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about unwelcome 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 368 of 446



Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an 
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official.  Upon receipt of a report of alleged 
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or 
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and 
Respondent.  In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident. 
  
 
  
Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct 
  
Members of the School District community, which includes all staff, and third parties along with Third 
Parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to an administrator, 
supervisor or other School District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes 
severe, pervasive, or persistent. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer within two 
(2) days of receiving the report of harassment.at his/her first convenience. 
  
Members of the School District community or third partiesand Third Parties who believe they have 
been unlawfully harassed by another member of the School District community or a Third Partythird 
party are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, 
whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect the Complainant'scomplaining 
individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-curricular programs. While there are no 
time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this policy, individuals should make every effort 
to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential 
witnesses are available. 
  
If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with 
Policy 5517.01 – Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the 
reported misconduct may have created a hostile work environment and may have constituted unlawful 
discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal will report the act of bullying, 
aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theone of the Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) who 
shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves Sexual 
Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the grievance 
process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates the 
allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall 
suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the 
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal 
informed of the status of the Policy 4362 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a copy of 
the resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the 
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 

DRAFT

Packet page 369 of 446



The Board designates the following individuals to serve as Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers for 
the District. They are hereinafter referred to as the Compliance Officers. 
[NOTE: School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in order 
to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender with 
which they feel most comfortable. In addition, the Compliance Officers may also serve as the District's 
Section 504 and Title IX Coordinators.] 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
____________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually: 

A. ( ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) ________________________________. 

The Compliance Officers will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about unwelcome 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a visitor to the District, or receive complaints that are initially filed with 

DRAFT

Packet page 370 of 446



a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school 
building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process 
(depending on the request of the member of the School District community alleging harassment or 
the nature of the alleged harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to 
conduct such a process. In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All members of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that 
are reported to them to the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the 
incident. 
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment of a student is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the Compliance Officers within two 
(2) business days. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer or designee must contact the student, if age 
eighteen (18) or older, or the student's parents if under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) business 
days to advise s/he/them of the Board's intent to investigate the alleged misconduct, including the 
obligation of the Compliance Officer or designee to conduct an investigation following all the 
procedures outlined for a formal complaint. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 4362 F1) 
  
Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities, anyAny employee or other member of the School District community 
or Third Partythird party (e.g., visitor to the District) who believes that they haves/he has been 
subjected to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through the procedures 
described below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims 
of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated.either the informal or formal procedures as described below. Further, a process for 
investigating claims of harassment and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the claim 
of legally prohibited harassment was substantiated are set forth below. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment, timelines are flexible for initiating 
the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint within thirty 
(30) calendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely 
manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 
  
The informal and formal procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any 
individual to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States 
Department of Education Office for Civil Rights and/or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
(EEOC). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is promptly to stop inappropriate behavior and 
to investigate and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint 
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student, other member of the School District 
community, or Third Party who alleges unlawful harassment or retaliation.third party who believes 
s/he has been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a 
precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those 

DRAFT

Packet page 371 of 446



circumstances where the Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it. and will 
only be utilized where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to 
participate in such process. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees, other members of the School District community, or third parties who 
believe that they have been unlawfully harassed or retaliated against may proceed immediately to the 
formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the informal procedure may 
request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District 
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However, all complaints of 
harassment involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District community, 
or a third party against a student will be formally investigated. Similarly, any allegations of sexual 
violence will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe inan individual feels that 
s/he is being unlawfully harassed and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the individual should tell or 
otherwise inform the Respondent that the alleged harassing harasser that the conduct is unwelcome 
and must stop. Such direct communication should not be utilized in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. The Complainantcomplaining individual should address the allegedly harassing conduct as 
soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel individuals 
when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainantindividual if requested to do 
so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach the Respondent 
about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform the harasser of his/her complaint is not 
prohibited from otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain 
types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
A Ccomplainant individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully harassed may make an informal 
complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator; 2) 
directly to one of the Compliance Officers; and/or 3) to the Superintendent or other District-level 
employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an 
informal resolution as described below on his/her own, or appoint another individual to facilitate an 
informal resolution. 
  
The Board's School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide employees, other 
members of the School District community, or third parties who believe they are being unlawfully 
harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their concerns. Depending 
upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantindividual claiming unlawful 
harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the 
behavior to the Respondentalleged harasser. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 372 of 446



B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the 
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individual whose behavior is 
being questioned works or attends. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation 
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the 
individual claiming harassment and the individual accused of harassment to work out a 
mutual resolution. Such a meeting is not appropriate in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance 
Officer/ or designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal 
complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant 
isParties who are dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may 
proceed to file a formal complaint. And, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the 
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the 
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations 
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,if the individual elects to file a formal 
complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
The ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation hereinafter referred to as the Complainant, may file a formal 
complaint, either orally or in writing, with a teacher, Principal, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, 
or other District employeeofficial. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment 
and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should 
make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs 
while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant informs a teacher, 
Principal, Superintendent, or other District officialemployee, either orally or in writing, about any 
complaint of harassment or retaliation, that employee must report such information to the Compliance 
Officer/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably 
informed of the status of the investigation and the decision decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is based 
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the 
Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the 

DRAFT

Packet page 373 of 446



Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be 
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be 
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation, 
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or 
the Respondentalleged harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance 
Officer may still take whatever actions deemeds/he deem appropriate in consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will 
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation. The( ) A Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to 
do so by the Compliance Officer. 
  
Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to 
have engaged in the harassing or retaliatory conduct, hereinafter referred to as the Respondent, that 
a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and 
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including the Board's 
Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to submit a written 
response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will attempt 
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business 
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver 
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation 
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful 
harassment/retaliation of the ComplainantComplainant has been subjected to unlawful harassment. 
The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the circumstances., 
including the ages and maturity levels of those involved. In determining if discriminatory harassment or 
retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. ( ) The Compliance Officer may 
consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the Superintendent. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 374 of 446



Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the 
Compliance Officer/or the designee, the Superintendent must either issue a final decision regarding 
whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of 
the Superintendent's finalwritten decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the 
Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[X ] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final  written decision. 
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representative within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the member of the School District community or Third 
Partythird party alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also 
reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation conducted by an external person in 
accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its 
designee. 
  
[X ] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 
  
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, 
the Respondentindividual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as 
possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to 
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this 
policy and related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent permitted 

DRAFT

Packet page 375 of 446



by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must be 
provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent. 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or his/her designee will instruct all 
members of the School District community and Third Parties who are interviewed about the importance 
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is 
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns or that s/he 
provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment. 
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All 
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant 
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the 
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter, including the ages and maturity levels of those 
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider 
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, 
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the 
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall 
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effects. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil right law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or the 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 376 of 446



Any act of retaliation against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation is prohibited. 
  
Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child Abuse/Sexual Misconduct 
  
State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a child under the 
age of eighteen (18) or that a person with a disability receiving services as a student from the school 
regardless of age has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or 
condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately report that 
knowledge or suspicion to the county children's services agency. If, during the course of a harassment 
investigation, the Compliance Officer or a designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged 
conduct reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be 
made in accordance with State law and Board Policy. 
  
Any reports made to a county children's services agency or to local law enforcement shall not terminate 
the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and responsibility to continue to investigate a 
complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a designee may work cooperatively with 
outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no event shall the harassment investigation be 
inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without good cause after consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to 
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall 
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the 
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where 
appropriate. All training, as well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment 
in general, will be age and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information (ESI), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/ statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/ 
complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 

DRAFT

Packet page 377 of 446



and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 
  

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and 
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 
  

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the 
Complainant and/or the Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including 
no contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 
  

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or 
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 
  

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the 
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M.  copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the 
alleged discrimination or harassment; 
 
[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 
  

M. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including 
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 

DRAFT

Packet page 378 of 446



of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 
  

N. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party 
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 
  

O. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged perpetrator/responding party of the allegations 
constituting a potential violation of this policy; 
  

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondentcomplainant and alleged 
perpetrator in advance of any interview, meeting, or hearing; 
  

Q. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary 
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent.complainant or the alleged perpetrator. 

  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 
  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 201820234 

 
 
Legal 

Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. 

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA) 

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq. 

42 U.S.C. 1983 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The Handicappers Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq. 

DRAFT

Packet page 379 of 446



The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq. 

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01 

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006 

National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis May 2008 

 

DRAFT

Packet page 380 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

  
Section: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021 

Title: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021 Revised ANTI-
HARASSMENT 

  
Code: po5517 

  
Adopted: May 22, 2012 

 
 
 
5517 - ANTI-HARASSMENT 
  
General Policy Statement 
  
It is the policy of the Board of Education to maintain an education and work environment that is free 
from all forms of unlawful harassment, including sexual harassment. This commitment applies to all 
School District operations, programs, and activities. All students, administrators, teachers, staff, and all 
other school personnel share responsibility for avoiding, discouraging, and reporting any form of 
unlawful harassment. This policy applies to unlawful conduct occurring on school property, or at another 
location if such conduct occurs during an activity sponsored by the Board. 
  
The Board will vigorously enforce its prohibition against discriminatory harassment based on race, color, 
national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age (except as 
authorized by law), religion, height, weight, marital or family status, military status, ancestry, or genetic 
information (collectively, Protected Classes) that are protected by Federal civil rights laws (hereinafter 
referred to as unlawful harassment), and encourages those within the School District community as well 
as Third Partiesthird parties, who feel aggrieved to seek assistance to rectify such problems. The Board 
will investigate all allegations of unlawful harassment and in those cases where unlawful harassment is 
substantiated, the Board will take immediate steps to end the harassment, prevent its recurrence, and 
remedy its effects. Individuals who are found to have engaged in unlawful harassment will be subject to 
appropriate disciplinary action. 
  
[ ] The District will offer counseling services to any person found to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, and, where appropriate, the person(s) who committed the unlawful harassment. 
  
For purposes of this policy, School District community means students, administrators, and 
professional and support staff, as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
For purposes of this policy, third parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on 
School District property (e.g., visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), 
vendors doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who 
come in contact with members of the School District community at school-related events/activities 
(whether on or off School District property). 
  

Packet page 381 of 446



Other Violations of the Anti-Harassment Policy 
  
The Board will also take immediate steps to impose disciplinary action on individuals engaging in any of 
the following prohibited acts: 
  

A. Retaliating against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation. 
  

B. Filing a malicious or knowingly false report or complaint of unlawful harassment. 
  

C. Disregarding, failing to investigate adequately, or delaying investigation of allegations of 
unlawful harassment, when responsibility for reporting and/or investigating harassment charges 
comprises part of one's supervisory duties. 

  
Definitions 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant  is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
harassment, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an informal 
resolution to the alleged harassment. 
  
Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful harassment, 
regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is seeking an informal resolution 
to the alleged harassment. 
  
School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and support staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s):  Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term “day” or “days” as used in this policy means 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday – 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 
  
Bullying 
  
Bullying rises to the level of unlawful harassment when one or more persons systematically and 
chronically inflict physical hurt or psychological distress on one (1) or more students or employees and 
the bullying is based upon one (1) or more Protected Classes, that is, characteristics that are protected 
by Federal civil rights laws. It is defined as any unwanted and repeated written, verbal, or physical 
behavior, including any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, by an adult or student, that is 
severe or pervasive enough to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work 

Packet page 382 of 446



environment; cause discomfort or humiliation, or unreasonably interfere with the individual's school or 
work performance or participation; and may involve: 
  

A. teasing; 
  

B. threats; 
  

C. intimidation; 
  

D. stalking; 
  

E. cyberstalking; 
  

F. cyberbullying; 
  

G. physical violence; 
  

H. theft; 
  

I. sexual, religious, or racial harassment; 
  

J. public humiliation; or 
  

K. destruction of property. 
  
Harassment 
  
Harassment means any threatening, insulting, or dehumanizing gesture, use of technology, or written, 
verbal or physical conduct directed against a student or school employee that: 
  

A. places a student or school employee in reasonable fear of harm to his/her person or damage to 
his/her property; 
  

B. has the effect of substantially interfering with a student's educational performance, 
opportunities, or benefits, or an employee's work performance; or 
  

C. has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of a school. 
  
Sexual Harassment 
  
Pursuant toFor purposes of this policy and consistent with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 
Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, sexual harassment is defined as: 
  
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual 
nature, when: 
  

Packet page 383 of 446



A. Submission to such conduct is made either implicitly or explicitly a term or condition of an 
individual's employment, or status in a class, educational program, or activity. 
  

B. Submission or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment or 
educational decisions affecting such individual. 
  

C. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational 
performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, and/or learning 
environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an 
educational program or activity. 

  
Sexual harassment may involve the behavior of a person of anyeither gender against a person of the 
same or anotheropposite gender. 
  
Sexual Harassment covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex Education 
Programs or Activities is not included in this policy. Allegations of such conduct shall be addressed 
solely by Policy 2266. 
  
Prohibited acts that constitute sexual harassment under this policy may take a variety of forms. 
Examples of the kinds of conduct that may constitute sexual harassment include, but are not limited to: 
  

A. Unwelcome sexual propositions, invitations, solicitations, and flirtations. 
  

B. Unwanted physical and/or sexual contact. 
  

C. Threats or insinuations that a person's employment, wages, academic grade, promotion, 
classroom work or assignments, academic status, participation in athletics or extra-curricular 
programs, activities, or events, or other conditions of employment or education may be 
adversely affected by not submitting to sexual advances. 
  

D. Unwelcome verbal expressions of a sexual nature, including graphic sexual commentaries about 
a person's body, dress, appearance, or sexual activities; the unwelcome use of sexually 
degrading language, profanity, jokes or innuendoes; unwelcome suggestive or insulting sounds 
or whistles; obscene telephone calls. 
  

E. Sexually suggestive objects, pictures, graffiti, videostapes, posters, audio recordings or 
literature, placed in the work or educational environment, that may reasonablywhich 
may embarrass or offend individuals. 
  

F. Unwelcome and inappropriate touching, patting, or pinching; obscene gestures. 
  

G. Asking about, or telling about, sexual fantasies, sexual preferences, or sexual activities. 
  

H. Speculations about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about one's own 
sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

Packet page 384 of 446



I. Giving unwelcome personal gifts such as lingerie that suggests the desire for a romantic 
relationship. 
  

J. Leering or staring at someone in a sexual way, such as staring at a person's breasts, buttocks, 
or groin. 
  

K. A pattern of conduct, which can be subtle in nature, that has sexual overtones and is intended 
to create or has the effect of creating discomfort and/or humiliation to another. 
  

L. Remarks speculating about a person's sexual activities or sexual history, or remarks about 
one's own sexual activities or sexual history. 
  

M. Inappropriate boundary invasions by a District employee or other adult member of the School 
District community into a student's personal space and personal life. 
  

N. Verbal, nonverbal or physical aggression, intimidation, or hostility based on sex or sex-
stereotyping that does not involve conduct of a sexual nature. 

  
Not all behavior with sexual connotations constitutes unlawful sexual harassment. Sex-based or gender-
based conduct must be sufficiently severe, pervasive, and persistent such that it adversely affects, limits, 
or denies an individual's employment or education, or such that it creates a hostile or abusive 
employment or educational environment, or such that it is intended to, or has the effect of, denying or 
limiting a student's ability to participate in or benefit from the educational program or activities. 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Sexual conduct/relationships with students by District employees or any other 
adult member of the School District community is prohibited, and any teacher, administrator, coach, 
or other school authority who engages in sexual conduct with a student may also be guilty of the 
criminal charge of sexual battery. The issue of consent is irrelevant in regard to such criminal charge 
and/or with respect to the application of this policy to District employees or other adult members of 
the School District community.] 
  
Race/Color Harassment 
  
Prohibited racial harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's race or color and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with the 
individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working, 
and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit from a class 
or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is directed at the 
characteristics of a person's race or color, such as racial slurs, nicknames implying stereotypes, epithets, 
and/or negative references relative to racial customs. 
  
Religious (Creed) Harassment 
  
Prohibited religious harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is based 
upon an individual's religion or creed and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 

Packet page 385 of 446



directed at the characteristics of a person's religious tradition, clothing, or surnames, and/or involves 
religious slurs. 
  
National Origin/Ancestry Harassment 
  
Prohibited national origin/ancestry harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal 
conduct is based upon an individual's national origin or ancestry and when the conduct has the purpose 
or effect of interfering with the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's 
ability to participate in or benefit from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment 
may occur where conduct is directed at the characteristics of a person's national origin or ancestry, such 
as negative comments regarding customs, manner of speaking, language, surnames, or ethnic slurs. 
  
Disability Harassment 
  
Prohibited disability harassment occurs when unwelcome physical, verbal, or nonverbal conduct is 
based upon an individual's disability and when the conduct has the purpose or effect of interfering with 
the individual's work or educational performance; of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working and/or learning environment; or of interfering with one's ability to participate in or benefit 
from a class or an educational program or activity. Such harassment may occur where conduct is 
directed at the characteristics of a person's disabilitydisabling condition, such as negative comments 
about speech patterns, movement, physical impairments or defects/appearances, or the like. Such 
harassment may further occur where conduct is directed at or pertains to a person's genetic 
information. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
  
The following individual(s) shall serve as the District’s Anti-Harassment Compliance Officer(s) 
(hereinafter, “the Compliance Officer(s)”): 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in 
order to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender 
with which they feel most comfortable. The same individual(s) assigned to serve as Compliance 
Officer(s) may also be assigned to serve as the District's Section 504 Compliance Officer(s) /ADA 
Coordinator(s) and/or Title IX Coordinator(s). Additionally, by appointing two (2) Compliance Officers, 
there should also be a Compliance Officer available to investigate a claim of harassment that pertains 
to the other Compliance Officer.] 
  
__________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 

Packet page 386 of 446



(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
 
  
_________________________ 
(Name) 
  
 Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
 
 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the 
School District's web site (X ) and: 
  

A. (X ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site.  
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E.B. ( ) __________________________ . 

  
The Compliance Officer(s) ( ) is ( X) are responsible for coordinating the District’s efforts to comply 
with applicable Federal and State laws and regulations, including the District’s duty to address in a 
prompt and equitable manner any inquiries or complaints regarding harassment. 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about unwelcome 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the individual in those instances where concerns have 
not resulted in the filing of a formal complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in 
an informal process. 
  

Packet page 387 of 446



Compliance Officers shall accept reports of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a Third Party or receive reports that are initially filed with an 
administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official.  Upon receipt of a report of alleged 
harassment, the Compliance Officer(s) will contact the Complainant and begin either an informal or 
formal complaint process (depending on the request of the Complainant or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer(s) will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The Compliance Officer(s) will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and 
Respondent.  In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer(s) will prepare 
recommendations for the Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations 
by a designee. All Board employees must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) days of learning of the incident. 
  
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment is obligated, in accordance with this 
policy, to report such observations to the Compliance Officer(s) within two (2) days. Additionally, any 
Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is expected to intervene to stop the 
harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention dangerous, in which case the staff 
member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or local law enforcement officials, as 
necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance Officer(s) or designee must contact the 
Complainant, if age eighteen (18) or older, or Complainant's parents/guardians if the Complainant is 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) days to advise of the Board's intent to investigate the 
alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Harassing Conduct 
  
Students and other members of the School District community along with Third Partiesand third 
parties are encouraged to promptly report incidents of harassing conduct to a teacher, administrator, 
supervisor or other District official so that the Board may address the conduct before it becomes severe, 
pervasive, or persistent. Any teacher, administrator, supervisor, or other District employee or official 
who receives such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the District's Anti-Harassment Compliance 
Officer within two (2) days of receiving the report of harassment.( ) at his/her first convenience ( ) 
within two (2) school days. 
  
Members of the School District community and Third Parties, which includes students, or third parties 
who believe they have been unlawfully harassed are entitled to utilize the Board's complaint process 
that is set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not adversely affect 
the Complainant'scomplaining individual's employment or participation in educational or extra-
curricular programs. While there are no time limits for initiating complaints of harassment under this 
policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as soon as possible after the conduct 
occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. 
  
If, during an investigation of alleged bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment in accordance with 
Policy 5517.01 – Bullying and Other Forms of Aggressive Behavior, the Principal believes that the 
reported misconduct may have created a hostile learning environment and may have constituted 
unlawful discriminatory harassment based on a Protected Class, the Principal shall report the act of 
bullying, aggressive behavior and/or harassment to theone of the Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
who shall investigate the allegation in accordance with this policy. If the alleged harassment involves 
Sexual Harassment as defined by Policy 2266, the matter will be handled in accordance with the 
grievance process and procedures outlined in Policy 2266. While the Compliance Officer investigates 

Packet page 388 of 446



the allegation, or the matter is being addressed pursuant to Policy 2266, the Principal shall 
suspend thehis/her Policy 5517.01 investigation to await the Compliance Officer's written report or the 
determination of responsibility pursuant to Policy 2266. The Compliance Officer shall keep the Principal 
informed of the status of Policy 5517 investigation and provide the Principalhim/her with a copy of the 
resulting written report. Likewise, the Title IX Coordinator will provide the Principal with the 
determination of responsibility that results from the Policy 2266 grievance process. 
  
Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers 
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as Anti-Harassment Compliance Officers for 
the District. They are hereinafter referred to as the Compliance Officers. 
[NOTE: School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a female Compliance Officer in order 
to provide Complainants with the option to report their concerns to an individual of the gender with 
which they feel most comfortable. The Compliance Officers may also serve as the District's Section 
504 and Title IX Coordinators.] 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
____________________________ 
(Name) 
_______________________________ 
(School District Title) 
_______________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
_______________________________ 
(Office Address) 
_______________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually: 

A. ( ) in the parent and staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) _____________________________________. 

Packet page 389 of 446



The Compliance Officers will be available during regular school/work hours to discuss concerns 
related to unlawful harassment, to assist students, other members of the District community, and 
third parties who seek support or advice when informing another individual about unwelcome 
conduct, or to intercede informally on behalf of the student, other member of the School District 
community or third party in those instances where concerns have not resulted in the filing of a formal 
complaint and where all parties are in agreement to participate in an informal process. 
Compliance Officers shall accept complaints of unlawful harassment directly from any member of the 
School District community or a visitor to the District, or receive complaints that are initially filed with 
a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a complaint either directly or through a school 
building administrator, a Compliance Officer will begin either an informal or formal process 
(depending on the request of the person alleging the harassment or the nature of the alleged 
harassment), or the Compliance Officer will designate a specific individual to conduct such a process. 
In the case of a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or will oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members 
of the School District community must report incidents of harassment that are reported to them to 
the Compliance Officer within two (2) business days of learning of the incident. 
Any Board employee who directly observes unlawful harassment of a student is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the Compliance Officers within two 
(2) business days. Additionally, any Board employee who observes an act of unlawful harassment is 
expected to intervene to stop the harassment, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or 
local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the harassment. Thereafter, the Compliance 
Officer or designee must contact the student, if age eighteen (18) or older, or the student's parents if 
under the age eighteen (18), within two (2) school days to advise s/he/them of the Board's intent to 
investigate the alleged misconduct, including the obligation of the Compliance Officer or designee to 
conduct an investigation following all the procedures outlined for a formal complaint. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure 
  
Except for Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in 
Education Programs or Activities, anyAny student who believes that they haves/he has been subjected 
to unlawful harassment may seek resolution of thehis/her complaint through the procedures described 
below. The formal complaint process involves an investigation of the Complainant's claims of 
harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated.either the informal or formal procedures as described below. Further, a process for 
investigating claims of harassment or retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding 
whether the claim of legally prohibited harassment or retaliation was substantiated are set forth 
below. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful harassment or retaliation, time lines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort to file a 
complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and 
potential witnesses are available. Once the formal complaint process is begun, the investigation will be 
completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being 
received). 
  

Packet page 390 of 446



The informal and formalprocedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of a 
student to pursue a complaint of unlawful harassment or retaliation with the United States Department 
of Education Office for Civil Rights. 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stop inappropriate behavior and to 
investigate and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint 
procedure is provided as a less formal option for a student who believes s/he has been unlawfully 
harassed or retaliated against. This informal procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a 
formal complaint. The informal process is only available in those circumstances where the 
Complainant and the Respondent mutually agree to participate in it.  
  
Students who believe that they have been unlawfully harassed may initiate their complaint through this 
informal complaint process, but are not required to do so. The informal process is only available in those 
circumstances where the parties (alleged target of harassment and alleged harasser(s)) agree to 
participate in the informal process. 
  
The ComplainantStudents who believe that they have been unlawfully harassed or retaliated may 
proceed immediately to the formal complaint process and individuals who seek resolution through the 
informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated at any time to move to the 
formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee, any other adult member of the School District 
community, or a Third Party and a student will be formally investigated.However, all complaints of 
harassment involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District community 
against a student will be formally investigated. Similarly, any allegations of sexual violence will be 
formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safe instudent feels that s/he is 
being unlawfully harassed and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the individual should tell or 
otherwise inform the Respondent that the allegedly harassingharasser that the conduct is unwelcome 
and must stop. Such direct communication should not be utilized in circumstances involving sexual 
violence. The complaining individual The Complainant should address the allegedly harassing conduct 
as soon after it occurs as possible. The Compliance Officers are available to support and counsel 
individuals when taking this initial step or to intervene on behalf of the Complainant individual if 
requested to do so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or unwilling to directly approach 
the Respondent about the alleged inappropriate conduct may fileinform the harasser of his/her 
complaint is not prohibited from otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with 
regard to certain types of unlawful harassment, such as sexual harassment, the Compliance Officer may 
advise against the use of the informal complaint process. 
  
A ComplainantA student who believes she/he has been unlawfully harassed may make an informal 
complaint, either orally or in writing: 1) to a teacher, other employee, or building administrator in the 
school the student attends; 2) to the Superintendent or other District-level employee; and/or 3) directly 
to one of the Compliance Officers. 
  

Packet page 391 of 446



All informal complaints must be reported to one of the Compliance Officers who will either facilitate an 
informal resolution as described below on his/her own, or appoint another individual to facilitate an 
informal resolution. 
  
The Board'sSchool District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide students who believe 
they are being unlawfully harassed with a range of options designed to bring about a resolution of their 
concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint and the wishes of the Complainantstudent 
claiming unlawful harassment, informal resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of 
the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantstudent about how to communicate the unwelcome nature of the 
behavior to the Respondent.alleged harasser. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of thisthe anti-harassment policy as a reminder to the individuals in the 
school building or office where the Respondent works or attends.individual whose behavior is 
being questioned works or attends. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the Compliance Officer may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation 
between the Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the 
student claiming harassment and the individual accused of harassment to work out a mutual 
resolution. Such a meeting is not appropriate in circumstances involving sexual violence. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the Compliance 
Officer/ or designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal 
complaints within fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant 
isParties who are dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may 
proceed to file a formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the 
informal process be terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties has requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or the 
Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the CO determines the allegations 
are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,if the student elects to file a formal 
complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
The ComplainantA student who believes s/he has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation hereinafter referred to as the Complainant, may file a formal 
complaint, either orally or in writing, with a teacher, principal, or other District employee at the 
student’s school, the Compliance Officer, Superintendent, or another District officialemployee who 
works at another school or at the district level. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful 
harassment and retaliation, timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, 
individuals should make every effort to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the 
conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are available. If a Complainant 
informs a teacher, principal, or other District officialemployee at the student’s school, Superintendent, 
or other District employee, either orally or in writing, about any complaint of harassment or retaliation, 

Packet page 392 of 446



that employee must report such information to the Compliance Officer/ or designee within two (2) 
business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the Compliance Officer should keep the parties reasonably 
informed of the status of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is based 
(i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by the 
Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the Compliance Officer shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the 
Compliance Officer will prepare a written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be 
asked to verify the accuracy of the reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the Compliance Officer will consider whether any action should be 
taken in the investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further harassment or retaliation, 
including, but not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or 
the Respondentalleged harasser. In making such a determination, the Compliance Officer should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the Compliance 
Officer may still take whatever actions deemeds/he deem appropriate in consultation with the 
Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will 
initiate a formal investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to offensive 
conduct/harassment/retaliation. ( ) AThe Principal will not conduct an investigation unless directed to 
do so by the Compliance Officer. 
  
Simultaneously, the Compliance Officer will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to 
have engaged in the harassing or retaliatory conduct, hereinafter referred to as the Respondent, that 
a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and 
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including the Board's 
Anti-Harassment policy. The Respondent must also be informed of the opportunity to submit a written 
response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the Compliance Officer/ or a designee will attempt 
to complete an investigation into the allegations of harassment/retaliation within fifteen (15) business 
days of receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 

Packet page 393 of 446



  
D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 

Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 
  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver 
a written report to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation 
and provides recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful harassment as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent engaged in unlawful 
harassment/retaliation of the Complainant. Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
harassment. The Compliance Officer's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances., including the ages and maturity levels of those involved. In determining if 
discriminatory harassment or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence standard will be used. ( 
) The Compliance Officer may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report to the 
Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within ten (10) school days of receiving the report of the Compliance 
Officer/ or the designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding 
whether the complaint of harassment has been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of 
the Superintendent's final decision will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within ten (10) 
school days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent shall issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[ [X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representatives within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
harassment/retaliation regardless of whether the student alleging the unlawful harassment/retaliation 
pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal complaint investigation 
conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other manner as deemed 
appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[ X] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 

Packet page 394 of 446



  
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person's pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the complainant, 
the Respondentindividual(s) against whom the complaint is filed, and the witnesses as much as 
possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to investigate, to take appropriate action, and to 
conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All records generated under the terms of this 
policy and its related administrative guidelines shall be maintained as confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must 
be provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent. 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the Compliance Officer/ or his/her designee will instruct all 
members of the School District community and Third Parties who are interviewed about the importance 
of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as part of a harassment investigation is 
expected not to disclose any information that is learned or provideds/he learns or that s/he 
provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful harassment/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop the harassment and prevent further such harassment. 
While observing the principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action 
up to and including the discharge of an employee or the suspension/expulsion of a student. All 
disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State law and the terms of the relevant 
collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the Superintendent shall consider the 
totality of the circumstances involved in the matter, including the ages and maturity levels of those 
involved. In those cases where unlawful harassment is not substantiated, the Board may consider 
whether the alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, 
consistent with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against a member of the 
School District community, all subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall 
be reasonably calculated to end such conduct, prevent its reoccurrence, and remedy its effects. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 

Packet page 395 of 446



policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person from making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanction/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies.  
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
 
Any act of retaliation against a person who has made a report or filed a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment, or who has participated as a witness in a harassment investigation is prohibited. 
  
Allegations Constituting Criminal Conduct: Child Abuse/Sexual Misconduct 
  
State law requires any school teacher or school employee who knows or suspects that a student under 
the age of eighteen (18) or that a person with a disability receiving services as a student from the school 
regardless of age has suffered or faces a threat of suffering a physical or mental wound, disability or 
condition of a nature that reasonably indicates abuse or neglect of a child to immediately report that 
knowledge or suspicion to the to the proper authoritiescounty children's services agency. For students 
under the age of 18 is children's protective services agency; for students 18 and over is adult protective 
services agency.  If, during the course of a harassment investigation, the Compliance Officer or a 
designee has reason to believe or suspect that the alleged conduct reasonably indicates abuse or 
neglect of the Complainant, a report of such knowledge must be made in accordance with State law and 
Board Policy. 
  
Any reports made to a county children's services agency, adult service agency, or to local law 
enforcement shall not terminate the Compliance Officer or a designee's obligation and responsibility to 
continue to investigate a complaint of harassment. While the Compliance Officer or a designee may 
work cooperatively with outside agencies to conduct concurrent investigations, in no event shall the 
harassment investigation be inhibited by the involvement of outside agencies without good cause after 
consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this Anti-Harassment Policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to 
create greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall 
provide appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the 
implementation of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where 
appropriate. All training, as well as information provided regarding the Board's policy and harassment in 
general, will be age and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  

Packet page 396 of 446



The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy. All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information (ESI), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral 
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged 
violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 
  

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and 
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 
  

J. documentation of any supportiveinterim measures offered and/or provided to the Complainant 
and/or the Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no contact 
orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the dates the 
parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 
  

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or 
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 
  

Packet page 397 of 446



L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Code of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment; 

[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 
of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 

O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged perpetrator/responding party of the allegations
constituting a potential violation of this policy; 

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondentcomplainant and alleged
perpetrator in advance of any interview, meeting, or hearing; 

R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent.complainant or the alleged perpetrator. 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 

© Neola 20182024 

Legal 

Packet page 398 of 446



Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq. 

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA) 

29 U.S.C. 621 et seq., Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 

29 U.S.C. 6101, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq. 

U.S.C. 1983 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

Title IX of the Educational Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

29 U.S.C. 794, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

The Handicappers Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.1101 et seq. 

The Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, M.C.L. 37.2101, et seq. 

Policies on Bullying, Michigan State Board of Education, 7-19-01 

Model Anti-Bullying Policy, Michigan State Board of Education, 09-2006 

National School Boards Association Inquiry and Analysis May 2008 

 

Packet page 399 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Title:   NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY  

Code:   po1422 

Adopted:   New Policy 

 
 
 
1422 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 
  
The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including 
sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family 
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category, 
(collectively, Protected Classes), in its programs and activities, including employment opportunities. 
  
Definitions: 
  
Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 
  
Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an 
informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 
  
Respondent  is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is 
seeking an informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 
  
District Community means students and Board District employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 
  
Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 
  
Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term day or days as used in this policy means a business 
day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours.  
  
For purposes of this policy, “military status” refers to a person's status in the uniformed services, 
which includes the performance of duty, on a voluntary basis, or involuntary basis, in a uniformed 
service including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty for 
training, full-time National Guard duty. It also includes the period of time for which a person is absent 
from employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to 
perform any such duty as listed above. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 400 of 446



District Compliance Officers 
  
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’s Compliance Officers (also known 
as Civil Rights Coordinators) (hereinafter referred to as the COs). 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a 
female CO in order to provide Complainantscomplainants with the option to report their concerns to 
an individual of the gender with which they feel most comfortable. The COs may also serve as the 
District’s Section 504 Compliance Officer/ADA Coordinator and Title IX Coordinator. Additionally, by 
appointing two (2) COs, there should always be a CO available to investigate a claim of 
discrimination/retaliation that pertains to the other CO.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
 
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311_______________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
 
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103________ 
(Office Address) 
 
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org___________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
  
  
____________________________ 
(Name) 
 
Associate Superintendent____________________________ 
(School District Title) 
 
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300________________________ 
(Telephone Number) 
 
1819 S, Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103_________ 
(Office Address) 
 
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org___________________________ 
(E-mail Address) 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School 
District's web site ( ) and: 
  

A. (X ) in the staff handbooks. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 401 of 446



A. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

B. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

C. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

D. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

E. ( ) _____________________________. 

  
The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to comply with applicable Federal and 
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to address in a prompt and equitable manner 
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation or denial of equal access. The COs shall 
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (as 
amended), Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendment Act 
of 1972,Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as amended), and the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1975 is provided to staff members and the general public. ( ) Any sections of the 
District's collective bargaining agreements dealing with hiring, promotion, and tenure need to contain a 
statement of nondiscrimination similar to that in the Board's statement above. In addition, any gender-
specific terms should be eliminated from such contracts. [END OF OPTIONS] A copy of each of the Acts 
and regulations on which this notice is based onis available upon request from the CO.based may be 
found in the CO’s office. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation 
  
Employees are required to encouraged to promptly report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or 
retaliation to an administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official so that the Board District may 
address the conduct. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District-level employee or official who 
receives such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the CO ( ) at his/her first convenience ( ) within two 
(2) school days. All members of the School District community must report incidents of 
discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2) 
businessdays of learning of the incident/conduct. 
 
  
Employees who believe they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize 
the complaint process set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not 
adversely affect the Complainant's complaining individual's employment. While there are no time limits 
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as 
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. 
  
The COs will be available during regular school/work hours business days as defined above to discuss 
concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportscomplaints of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party, 
or received reports that are initially filed with another Board District employee.visitor to the District, 
or receive complaints that are initially filed with a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a 
complaint, either directly or through a school building administrator, a CO will begin either an 

Draf
t

Packet page 402 of 446



informal or formal process (depending on the request of the person alleging the 
discrimination/retaliation or the nature of the alleged discrimination/retaliation), Upon receipt of 
a report of alleged discrimination/retaliation, the CO will contact the Complainant and begin either an 
informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant's request and the nature of the 
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any person 
who files a complaint. In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members of the 
School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them 
to the CO within two (2) businessdays of learning of the incident/conduct. 
  
Any Board District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimination/retaliation is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the COs within two (2) business days. 
Additionally, any BoardDistrict employee who observes an act of unlawful discrimination/retaliation is 
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board District employees 
and/or local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the misconduct. Thereafter, the CO or 
designee must contact the Complainantemployee within two (2) businessdays to advise him/her of the 
Board's intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 1422 F2) 
  
Except for sex discrimination and/or Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - 
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities, any employee who alleges 
to have beenAny employee who believes that s/he has been subjected to unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation may seek resolution of the his/hercomplaint through the procedures described below. The 
formal complaint procedures involve an investigation of the individual’s claims of 
discrimination/retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals are encouragedshould make every 
effort to file a complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal 
complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within 
fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 
  
The procedures set forth in this policy are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to 
pursue a complaint of unlawful discrimination or retaliation with the United States Department of 
Education Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstop quickly inappropriate behavior 
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is 
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation.believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated or retaliated against. This informal 
procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only 
available in those circumstances where the  Complainant and the Respondent mutuallyparties (the 

Draf
t

Packet page 403 of 446



alleged target of the discrimination/retaliation and individual(s) alleged to have engaged in the 
discrimination) agree to participate in it. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees who believe that they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated 
against may proceed immediately to the formal complaint process, and the Respondent and 
CO’sindividuals who participate in the informal procedure may request that the informal process be 
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
 
All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District 
community andagainst a student will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safean individual feels that s/he is 
being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the 
individual should tell or otherwise inform the Respondent that person who engaged in the allegedly 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct that it is inappropriate and must stop. The Complainantcomplaining 
individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it occurs as possible. The COs are 
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals when taking this initial step or to intervene 
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or 
unwilling to directly approach the Respondent about the inappropriate conduct may fileinform the 
person who allegedly engaged in the unlawful misconduct of his/her concerns is not prohibited from 
otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain types of unlawful 
discrimination (e.g., sex discrimination),  such as sexual discrimination, the CO may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
An individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated againstA Complainant 
who alleges unlawful discrimination/retaliation may make an informal complaint, either orally or in 
writing: (1) to an administrator; (2) directly to one of the COs; and/or (3) to the Superintendent. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal 
resolution as described below, or appoint another individual to facilitate an informal resolution. 
  
The School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide the Complainant employees 
who believe they are being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against with a range of options aimed 
at bringing about a prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint 
and the wishes of the Complainant,individual claiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation, informal 
resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate his/her concerns to 
the Respondent.person who allegedly engaged in the discriminatory/retaliatory behavior. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 1422 – Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as 
a reminder to the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual 
whose behavior is being questioned works. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the 
Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the individual 
claiming discrimination/retaliation and the individual accused of engaging in the misconduct 
to work out a mutual resolution. 

Draf
t

Packet page 404 of 446



  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or 
designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within 
fifteen (15) businessdays of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Parties who are 
dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a 
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be 
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or if 
the Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the Compliance Officer(s) 
determines the allegations are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,individual 
elects to file a formal complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
A ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation (hereinafter referred to as the Complainant), may file a formal complaint, 
either orally or in writing, with a principal, the CO, Superintendent, or other District official-level 
employee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination and retaliation, 
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort 
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. If a Complainant 
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other District officiallevel employee, either orally or in writing, 
about any complaint of discrimination/retaliation, that employee must report such information to the 
CO/designee within two (2) businessdays. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the CO should keep the parties reasonably informed of the status 
of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, the 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is 
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by 
the Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the CO shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a 
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the 
reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the 
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but 
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the Respondent. 
person who allegedly engaged in the misconduct. In making such a determination, the CO should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still 
take whatever actions deemeds/he deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 405 of 446



Within two (2) businessdays of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal 
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation. 
  
Simultaneously, the CO will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to have engaged in 
the discriminatory or retaliatory conduct (hereinafter referred to as the Respondent), that a complaint 
has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and provided 
with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 1422 - Non- 
Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the 
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the CO or a designee will attempt to complete an 
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation within fifteen (15) businessdays of 
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the CO/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver a written report 
to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation and provides 
recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful discrimination/retaliation as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent has engaged in 
unlawful harassment/retaliation of the Complainant.Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation.  The CO's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances. In determining if discrimination or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence 
standard will be used. ( ) The CO may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report 
to the Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) businessdays of receiving the report of the CO or the 
designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges 
have been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision 
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
businessdays. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful discrimination/retaliation 
toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentComplainant was subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, s/he must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and 

Draf
t

Packet page 406 of 446



prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable, 
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) businessdays of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representatives within twenty (20) businessdays of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) businessdays of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal 
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other 
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[X ] The partiesComplainant may be represented, at their his/her own cost, at any of the above-
described meetings/hearings. 
 
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.The right of a person 
to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of 
other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights or the filing of a court 
case. Use of this internal complaint procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the 
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to 
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All 
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must 
be provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent(s). 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is 
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as 

Draf
t

Packet page 407 of 446



part of an investigation is expected not to to not disclose to tThird pParties any information that is 
learned or provided  s/he learns and/or provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the 
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State 
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the 
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involved in the matter. In those cases 
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, the Board may consider whether the 
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, consistent 
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against an employee, all 
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall be reasonably calculated to 
end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the 
Board nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because 
the person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or 
because that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused 
to participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Specifically, 
the Board will not retaliate against, coerce, intimidate, threaten or interfere with any individual 
because the person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, 
or because that individual made a charge, testified, assisted or participated in any manner in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, 
aided or encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected 
by those laws. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 408 of 446



Education and Training 

In support of this policy, the Board District promotes preventative educational measures to create 
greater awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or  designee shall provide 
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation 
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as 
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age 
and content appropriate. 

Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 

The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy.  All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information (ESI), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to: 

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an
alleged violation of this policy; 

B. any narratives that memorialize oral reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/
responses pertaining to an alleged violation of this policy; 

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 

D. written witness statements;

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements;

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 

Draf
t

Packet page 409 of 446



result of a violation of this policy; 

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the
Complainant and/or Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no 
contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment; 

[DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.] 

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 
of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 

O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged Respondentperpetrator/responding party of the
allegations constituting a potential violation of this policy; 

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondent in advance of any
interview, meeting, or hearing; 

R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent. complainant or the alleged perpetrator 

Draf
t

Packet page 410 of 446



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 
  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 20182024 

 
 
Legal 

M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seq. 

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution 

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act 

20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act of 1974 

20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act 

42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

34 C.F.R. Part 110 (7/27/93) 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1964 

29 U.S.C. 701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

 

 Draf
t

Packet page 411 of 446



-Book: Policy Manual 

Title: NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

Code: po3122 

Adopted: August 21, 2012 

3122 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including 
sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family 
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category, 
(collectively, "Protected Classes"), in its programs and activities, including employment opportunities. 

Definitions: 

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an 
informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 

Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is 
seeking an informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 

School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term "day" or "days" as used in this policy means a 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday - 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 

For purposes of this policy, "military status" refers to a person's status in the uniformed services, 
which includes the performance of duty, on a voluntary basis, or involuntary basis, in a uniformed 
service including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty for 
training, full-time National Guard duty. It also includes the period of time for which a person is absent 
from employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to 
perform any such duty as listed above. 

DRAFT

Packet page 412 of 446



  
District Compliance Officers 
  
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’s "Compliance Officers" (also 
known as "Civil Rights Coordinators") (hereinafter referred to as the "COs"). 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a 
female CO in order to provide Complainants complainants with the option to report their concerns to 
an individual of the gender with which they feel most comfortable. The COs may also serve as the 
District’s Section 504 Compliance Officer/ADA Coordinator and Title IX Coordinator. Additionally, by 
appointing two (2) COs, there should always be a CO available to investigate a claim of 
discrimination/retaliation that pertains to the other CO.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
 
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
 
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
  
The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School 
District's web site ( x) and: 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 413 of 446



A. (X ) in the staff handbooks. 
  

B. ( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

C. ( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

E. ( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) _____________________________. 

  
The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to comply with applicable Federal and 
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to address in a prompt and equitable manner 
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation or denial of equal access. The COs shall 
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (as 
amended), Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendment Act 
of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as amended), and the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1975 is provided to staff members and the general public. ( ) Any sections of the 
District's collective bargaining agreements dealing with hiring, promotion, and tenure need to contain a 
statement of nondiscrimination similar to that in the Board's statement above. In addition, any gender-
specific terms should be eliminated from such contracts. [END OF OPTIONS] A copy of each of the Acts 
and regulations on which this notice is based is available upon request from the CO.based may be 
found in the CO’s office. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation 
  
Employees are required to encouraged to promptly report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or 
retaliation to an administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official so that the Board may address 
the conduct. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District-level employee or official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the CO ( ) at his/her first convenience ( ) within two (2) school 
days. All members of the School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation 
that are reported to them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2) businessdays of learning of 
the incident/conduct. 
 
  
Employees who believe they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize 
the complaint process set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not 
adversely affect the Complainant's complaining individual's employment. While there are no time limits 
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as 
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. 
  
The COs will be available during regular school/work hours business days as defined above to discuss 
concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportscomplaints of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party, 
or received reports that are initially filed with another Board District employee.visitor to the District, 

DRAFT

Packet page 414 of 446



or receive complaints that are initially filed with a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a 
complaint, either directly or through a school building administrator, a CO will begin either an 
informal or formal process (depending on the request of the person alleging the 
discrimination/retaliation or the nature of the alleged discrimination/retaliation), Upon receipt of 
a report of alleged discrimination/retaliation, the CO will contact the Complainant and begin either an 
informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant's request and the nature of the 
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any person 
who files a complaint. In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members of the 
School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them 
to the CO within two (2) business days of learning of the incident/conduct. 
  
Any Board District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimination/retaliation is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the COs within two (2) business days. 
Additionally, any Board District employee who observes an act of unlawful discrimination/retaliation is 
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board District employees 
and/or local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the misconduct. Thereafter, the CO or 
designee must contact the Complainantemployee within two (2) business days to advise him/her of the 
Board's intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 3122 F2) 
  
Except for sex discrimination and/or Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - 
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities, any employee who alleges 
to have beenAny employee who believes that s/he has been subjected to unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation may seek resolution of the his/hercomplaint through the procedures described below. The 
formal complaint procedures involve an investigation of the individual’s claims of 
discrimination/retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals are encouragedshould make every 
effort to file a complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal 
complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within 
fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 
  
The procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to pursue 
a complaint of unlawful discrimination or retaliation with the United States Department of Education 
Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstop quickly inappropriate behavior 
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is 
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation.believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated or retaliated against. This informal 

DRAFT

Packet page 415 of 446



procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only 
available in those circumstances where the  Complainant and the Respondent mutuallyparties (the 
alleged target of the discrimination/retaliation and individual(s) alleged to have engaged in the 
discrimination) agree to participate in it. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees who believe that they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated 
against may proceed immediately to the formal complaint process and individuals who participate 
inseek resolution through the informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated 
at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District 
community andagainst a student will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safean individual feels that s/he is 
being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the 
individual should tell or otherwise inform the Respondent that person who engaged in the allegedly 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct that it is inappropriate and must stop. The Complainantcomplaining 
individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it occurs as possible. The COs are 
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals when taking this initial step or to intervene 
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or 
unwilling to directly approach the Respondent about the inappropriate conduct may fileinform the 
person who allegedly engaged in the unlawful misconduct of his/her concerns is not prohibited from 
otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain types of unlawful 
discrimination (e.g., sex discrimination),  such as sexual discrimination, the CO may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
An individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated againstA Complainant 
who alleges unlawful discrimination/retaliation may make an informal complaint, either orally or in 
writing: (1) to a building administrator; (2) directly to one of the COs; and/or (3) to the Superintendent 
or other District-level employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal 
resolution as described below, or appoint another individual to facilitate an informal resolution. 
  
The School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide the Complainant employees 
who believe they are being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against with a range of options aimed 
at bringing about a prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint 
and the wishes of the Complainant,individual claiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation, informal 
resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate his/her concerns to 
the Respondent.person who allegedly engaged in the discriminatory/retaliatory behavior. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 3122 – Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as 
a reminder to the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual 
whose behavior is being questioned works. 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 416 of 446



C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the 
Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the individual 
claiming discrimination/retaliation and the individual accused of engaging in the misconduct 
to work out a mutual resolution. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or 
designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within 
fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Parties who are 
dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a 
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be 
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or if 
the Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the Compliance Officer(s) 
determines the allegations are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,individual 
elects to file a formal complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
A ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation (hereinafter referred to as the "Complainant"), may file a formal complaint, 
either orally or in writing, with a principal, the CO, Superintendent, or other District official-level 
employee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination and retaliation, 
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort 
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. If a Complainant 
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other District officiallevel employee, either orally or in writing, 
about any complaint of discrimination/retaliation, that employee must report such information to the 
CO/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the CO should keep the parties reasonably informed of the status 
of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, the 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is 
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by 
the Complainant. 
  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the CO shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a 
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the 
reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the 
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but 
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the Respondent. 
person who allegedly engaged in the misconduct. In making such a determination, the CO should 

DRAFT

Packet page 417 of 446



consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still 
take whatever actions deemeds/he deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal 
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation. 
  
Simultaneously, the CO will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to have engaged in 
the discriminatory or retaliatory conduct (hereinafter referred to as the "Respondent"), that 
a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and 
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 3122 - 
Non- Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the 
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the CO or a designee will attempt to complete an 
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation within fifteen (15) business days of 
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the CO/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver a written report 
to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation and provides 
recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful discrimination/retaliation as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent has engaged in 
unlawful harassment/retaliation of the Complainant.Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation.  The CO's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances. In determining if discrimination or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence 
standard will be used. ( ) The CO may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report 
to the Superintendent. 
  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the CO or the 
designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges 
have been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision 
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 

DRAFT

Packet page 418 of 446



  
If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful discrimination/retaliation 
toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentComplainant was subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, s/he must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and 
prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable, 
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[x ] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representatives within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal 
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other 
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[ x] The parties may be represented, at their own cost, at any of the above-described 
meetings/hearings. 
 
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.The right of a person 
to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of 
other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights or the filing of a court 
case. Use of this internal complaint procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 
  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the 
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to 
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All 
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must 
be provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent(s). 

DRAFT

Packet page 419 of 446



  
During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is 
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as 
part of an investigation is expected not to to not disclose to third parties any information that is learned 
or provided  s/he learns and/or provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the 
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State 
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the 
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involved in the matter. In those cases 
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, the Board may consider whether the 
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, consistent 
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against an employee, all 
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall be reasonably calculated to 
end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  
Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Specifically, 
the Board will not retaliate against, coerce, intimidate, threaten or interfere with any individual 
because the person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, 
or because that individual made a charge, testified, assisted or participated in any manner in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, 

DRAFT

Packet page 420 of 446



aided or encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected 
by those laws. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to create greater 
awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall provide 
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation 
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as 
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age 
and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy.  All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to:  
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral 
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged 
violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 
  

DRAFT

Packet page 421 of 446



I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the
Complainant and/or Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no 
contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the
alleged discrimination or harassment; 

[REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be maintained regardless of whether there is 
an investigation of an alleged violation of this policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all 
staff members who participate in a training, along with the date, time and location of the 
training, and a copy of the materials reviewed and/or presented during the training.] 

N. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 

O. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged Respondentperpetrator/responding party of the
allegations constituting a potential violation of this policy; 

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondent in advance of any
interview, meeting, or hearing; 

Q. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent. complainant or the alleged perpetrator 

The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 

DRAFT

Packet page 422 of 446



The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 201820214 

 
 
Legal 

M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seq. 

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution 

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act 

20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act of 1974 

20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act 

42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

34 C.F.R. Part 110 (7/27/93) 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1964 

29 U.S.C. 701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

 

DRAFT

Packet page 423 of 446



Book: Policy Manual 

Section: Nondiscrimination/Anti-Harassment Policies Update - February 2021 

Title: NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

Code: po4122 

4122 - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

The Board of Education does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex (including 
sexual orientation and transgender identity), disability, age, religion, height, weight, marital or family 
status, military status, ancestry, genetic information, or any other legally protected category, 
(collectively, "Protected Classes"), in its programs and activities, including employment opportunities. 

Definitions: 

Words used in this policy shall have those meanings defined herein; words not defined herein shall be 
construed according to their plain and ordinary meanings. 

Complainant is the individual who alleges, or is alleged, to have been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the person files a formal complaint or is pursuing an 
informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 

Respondent is the individual who has been alleged to have engaged in unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, regardless of whether the Reporting Party files a formal complaint or is 
seeking an informal resolution to the alleged discrimination/retaliation. 

School District community means students and Board employees (i.e., administrators, and 
professional and classified staff), as well as Board members, agents, volunteers, contractors, or other 
persons subject to the control and supervision of the Board. 

Third Parties include, but are not limited to, guests and/or visitors on School District property (e.g., 
visiting speakers, participants on opposing athletic teams, parents), vendors doing business with, or 
seeking to do business with, the Board, and other individuals who come in contact with members of 
the School District community at school-related events/activities (whether on or off District property). 

Day(s): Unless expressly stated otherwise, the term "day" or "days" as used in this policy means a 
business day(s) (i.e., a day(s) that the Board office is open for normal operating hours, Monday - 
Friday, excluding State-recognized holidays). 

For purposes of this policy, "military status" refers to a person's status in the uniformed services, 
which includes the performance of duty, on a voluntary basis, or involuntary basis, in a uniformed 
service including active duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty for 
training, full-time National Guard duty. It also includes the period of time for which a person is absent 

Draf
t

Packet page 424 of 446



from employment for the purpose of an examination to determine the fitness of the person to 
perform any such duty as listed above. 
  
District Compliance Officers 
  
The Board designates the following individuals to serve as the District’s "Compliance Officers" (also 
known as "Civil Rights Coordinators") (hereinafter referred to as the "COs"). 
  
[DRAFTING NOTE: Neola suggests the Board School Districts are advised to appoint both a male and a 
female CO in order to provide Complainants complainants with the option to report their concerns to 
an individual of the gender with which they feel most comfortable. The COs may also serve as the 
District’s Section 504 Compliance Officer/ADA Coordinator and Title IX Coordinator. Additionally, by 
appointing two (2) COs, there should always be a CO available to investigate a claim of 
discrimination/retaliation that pertains to the other CO.] 
  
_______________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Executive Director of Human Resources and Legal Services 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1311 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
charmonhiggins@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
  
  
____________________________ 
(Name) 
  
Associate Superintendent 
(School District Title) 
  
(734) 994-8100 extension 1300 
(Telephone Number) 
  
1819 S. Wagner Road, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48103 
(Office Address) 
  
bmarcel@washtenawisd.org 
(E-mail Address) 
  
 

Draf
t

Packet page 425 of 446



The names, titles, and contact information of these individuals will be published annually on the School 
District's web site ( ) and: 
  

A. ( (X) in the staff handbooks. 
  

( ) in the School District Annual Report to the public. 
  

( ) on the School District's web site. 
  

D. ( ) on each individual school's web site. 
  

( ) in the School District's calendar. 
  

F. ( ) _____________________________. 

  
The COs are responsible for coordinating the District's efforts to comply with applicable Federal and 
State laws and regulations, including the District's duty to address in a prompt and equitable manner 
any inquiries or complaints regarding discrimination/retaliation or denial of equal access. The COs shall 
also verify that proper notice of nondiscrimination for Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (as 
amended), Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendment Act 
of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (as amended), and the Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1975 is provided to staff members and the general public. ( ) Any sections of the 
District's collective bargaining agreements dealing with hiring, promotion, and tenure need to contain a 
statement of nondiscrimination similar to that in the Board's statement above. In addition, any gender-
specific terms should be eliminated from such contracts. [END OF OPTIONS] A copy of each of the Acts 
and regulations on which this notice is based is available upon request from the CO.based may be 
found in the CO’s office. 
  
Reports and Complaints of Unlawful Discrimination and Retaliation 
  
Employees are required to encouraged to promptly report incidents of unlawful discrimination and/or 
retaliation to an administrator, supervisor, or other District-level official so that the Board may address 
the conduct. Any administrator, supervisor, or other District-level employee or official who receives 
such a reportcomplaint shall file it with the CO ( ) at his/her first convenience ( ) within two (2) school 
days. All members of the School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation 
that are reported to them, or have knowledge of, to the CO within two (2) business days of learning of 
the incident/conduct. 
 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 426 of 446



Employees who believe they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against are entitled to utilize 
the complaint process set forth below. Initiating a complaint, whether formally or informally, will not 
adversely affect the Complainant's complaining individual's employment. While there are no time limits 
for initiating complaints under this policy, individuals should make every effort to file a complaint as 
soon as possible after the conduct occurs while the facts are known and potential witnesses are 
available. 
  
The COs will be available during regular school/work hours business days as defined above to discuss 
concerns related to unlawful discrimination/retaliation. COs shall accept reportscomplaints of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation directly from any member of the School District community or a Third Party, 
or received reports that are initially filed with another Board employee.visitor to the District, or 
receive complaints that are initially filed with a school building administrator. Upon receipt of a 
complaint, either directly or through a school building administrator, a CO will begin either an 
informal or formal process (depending on the request of the person alleging the 
discrimination/retaliation or the nature of the alleged discrimination/retaliation), Upon receipt of 
a report of alleged discrimination/retaliation, the CO will contact the Complainant and begin either an 
informal or formal complaint process (depending on the Complainant's request and the nature of the 
alleged discrimination/retaliation), or the CO will designate a specific individual to conduct such a 
process. The CO will provide a copy of this policy to the Complainant and the Respondent.any person 
who files a complaint. In the case of a formal complaint, the CO will prepare recommendations for the 
Superintendent or oversee the preparation of such recommendations by a designee. All members of the 
School District community must report incidents of discrimination/retaliation that are reported to them 
to the CO within two (2) business days of learning of the incident/conduct. 
  
Any Board District employee who directly observes unlawful discrimination/retaliation is obligated, in 
accordance with this policy, to report such observations to one of the COs within two (2) business days. 
Additionally, any Board District employee who observes an act of unlawful discrimination/retaliation is 
expected to intervene to stop the misconduct, unless circumstances make such an intervention 
dangerous, in which case the staff member should immediately notify other Board employees and/or 
local law enforcement officials, as necessary, to stop the misconduct. Thereafter, the CO or designee 
must contact the Complainantemployee within two (2) business days to advise him/her of the Board's 
intent to investigate the alleged wrongdoing. 
  
Investigation and Complaint Procedure (See Form 4122 F2) 
  
Except for sex discrimination and/or Sexual Harassment that is covered by Policy 2266 - 
Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities, any employee who alleges 
to have beenAny employee who believes that s/he has been subjected to unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation may seek resolution of the his/hercomplaint through the procedures described below. The 
formal complaint procedures involve an investigation of the individual’s claims of 
discrimination/retaliation and a process for rendering a decision regarding whether the charges are 
substantiated. 
  
Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination or retaliation, timelines are 
flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals are encouragedshould make every 
effort to file a complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. Once the formal 
complaint process is begun, the investigation will be completed in a timely manner (ordinarily, within 
fifteen (15) business days of the complaint being received). 

Draf
t

Packet page 427 of 446



  
The procedures set forth below are not intended to interfere with the rights of any individual to pursue 
a complaint of unlawful discrimination or retaliation with the United States Department of Education 
Office for Civil Rights or Equal Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC"). 
  
Informal Complaint Procedure 
  
The goal of the informal complaint procedure is to promptly stopstop quickly inappropriate behavior 
and facilitate resolution through an informal means, if possible. The informal complaint procedure is 
provided as a less formal option for an employee who alleges unlawful discrimination or 
retaliation.believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated or retaliated against. This informal 
procedure is not required as a precursor to the filing of a formal complaint. The informal process is only 
available in those circumstances where the  Complainant and the Respondent mutuallyparties (the 
alleged target of the discrimination/retaliation and individual(s) alleged to have engaged in the 
discrimination) agree to participate in it. 
  
The ComplainantEmployees who believe that they have been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated 
against may proceed immediately to the formal complaint process and individuals who participate 
inseek resolution through the informal procedure may request that the informal process be terminated 
at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
All complaints involving a District employee or any other adult member of the School District 
community andagainst a student will be formally investigated. 
  
As an initial course of action, if a Complainant feels comfortable and safean individual feels that s/he is 
being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against and s/he is able and feels safe doing so, the 
individual should tell or otherwise inform the Respondent that person who engaged in the allegedly 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct that it is inappropriate and must stop. The Complainantcomplaining 
individual should address the alleged misconduct as soon after it occurs as possible. The COs are 
available to support and counsel the Complainantindividuals when taking this initial step or to intervene 
on behalf of the individual if requested to do so. A ComplainantAn individual who is uncomfortable or 
unwilling to directly approach the Respondent about the inappropriate conduct may fileinform the 
person who allegedly engaged in the unlawful misconduct of his/her concerns is not prohibited from 
otherwise filing an informal or a formal complaint. In addition, with regard to certain types of unlawful 
discrimination (e.g., sex discrimination),  such as sexual discrimination, the CO may advise against the 
use of the informal complaint process. 
  
An individual who believes s/he has been unlawfully discriminated/retaliated againstA Complainant 
who alleges unlawful discrimination/retaliation may make an informal complaint, either orally or in 
writing: (1) to a building administrator; (2) directly to one of the COs; and/or (3) to the Superintendent 
or other District-level employee. 
  
All informal complaints must be reported to one of the COs who will either facilitate an informal 
resolution as described below, or appoint another individual to facilitate an informal resolution. 
  
The School District's informal complaint procedure is designed to provide the Complainant employees 
who believe they are being unlawfully discriminated/retaliated against with a range of options aimed 
at bringing about a prompt resolution of their concerns. Depending upon the nature of the complaint 

Draf
t

Packet page 428 of 446



and the wishes of the Complainant,individual claiming unlawful discrimination/retaliation, informal 
resolution may involve, but not be limited to, one or more of the following: 
  

A. Advising the Complainantindividual about how to communicate his/her concerns to 
the Respondent.person who allegedly engaged in the discriminatory/retaliatory behavior. 
  

B. Distributing a copy of Policy 4122 – Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity as 
a reminder to the individuals in the school building or office where the Respondentindividual 
whose behavior is being questioned works. 
  

C. If both parties agree, the CO may arrange and facilitate a meeting or mediation between the 
Complainant and the Respondent to work out a mutual resolution.between the individual 
claiming discrimination/retaliation and the individual accused of engaging in the misconduct 
to work out a mutual resolution. 

  
While there are no set time limits within which an informal complaint must be resolved, the CO or 
designee is directedwill exercise his/her authority to attempt to resolve all informal complaints within 
fifteen (15) business days of receiving the informal complaint. If the Complainant is Parties who are 
dissatisfied with the results of the informal complaint process, the Complainant may proceed to file a 
formal complaint and, as stated above, either partyparties may request that the informal process be 
terminated at any time to move to the formal complaint process. 
  
Formal Complaint Procedure 
  
If a complaint is not resolved through the informal complaint process, if one of the parties requested 
that the informal complaint process be terminated to move to the formal complaint process, or if 
the Complainant, from the outset, elects to file a formal complaint, or the Compliance Officer(s) 
determines the allegations are not appropriate for resolution through the informal process,individual 
elects to file a formal complaint initially, the formal complaint process shall be implemented. 
  
A ComplainantAn individual who believes s/he has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation (hereinafter referred to as the "Complainant"), may file a formal complaint, 
either orally or in writing, with a principal, the CO, Superintendent, or other District official-level 
employee. Due to the sensitivity surrounding complaints of unlawful discrimination and retaliation, 
timelines are flexible for initiating the complaint process; however, individuals should make every effort 
to file a formal complaint within thirty (30) calendar days after the conduct occurs. If a Complainant 
informs a principal, Superintendent, or other District officiallevel employee, either orally or in writing, 
about any complaint of discrimination/retaliation, that employee must report such information to the 
CO/designee within two (2) business days. 
  
Throughout the course of the process, the CO should keep the parties reasonably informed of the status 
of the investigation and the decision-making process. 
  
All formal complaints must include the following information to the extent knownit is available: the 
identity of the Respondentindividual believed to have engaged in, or be engaging in, the 
discriminatory/retaliatory conduct; a detailed description of the facts upon which the complaint is 
based (i.e., when, where, and what occurred); a list of potential witnesses; and the resolution sought by 
the Complainant. 

Draf
t

Packet page 429 of 446



  
If the Complainant is unwilling or unable to provide a written statement including the information set 
forth above, the CO shall ask for such details in an oral interview. Thereafter, the CO will prepare a 
written summary of the oral interview, and the Complainant will be asked to verify the accuracy of the 
reported charge by signing the document. 
  
Upon receiving a formal complaint, the CO will consider whether any action should be taken in the 
investigatory phase to protect the Complainant from further discrimination or retaliation, including, but 
not limited to, a change of work assignment or schedule for the Complainant and/or the Respondent. 
person who allegedly engaged in the misconduct. In making such a determination, the CO should 
consult the Complainant to assess whether the individual agrees withhis/her agreement to the 
proposed action. If the Complainant is unwilling to consent to the proposed change, the CO may still 
take whatever actions deemeds/he deems appropriate in consultation with the Superintendent. 
  
Within two (2) business days of receiving the complaint, the CO or designee will initiate a formal 
investigation to determine whether the Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation. 
  
Simultaneously, the CO will inform the Respondent that a formalindividual alleged to have engaged in 
the discriminatory or retaliatory conduct (hereinafter referred to as the "Respondent"), that 
a complaint has been received. The Respondent will be informed about the nature of the allegations and 
provided with a copy of any relevant policies and/or administrative guidelines, including Policy 4122 - 
Non- Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. The Respondent must also be informed of the 
opportunity to submit a written response to the formal complaint within five (5) business days. 
  
Although certain cases may require additional time, the CO or a designee will attempt to complete an 
investigation into the allegations of discrimination/retaliation within fifteen (15) business days of 
receiving the formal complaint. The investigation will include: 
  

A. interviews with the Complainant; 
  

B. interviews with the Respondent; 
  

C. interviews with any other witnesses who may reasonably be expected to have any information 
relevant to the allegations; 
  

D. consideration of any documentation or other information presented by the Complainant, 
Respondent, or any other witness that is reasonably believed to be relevant to the allegations. 

  
At the conclusion of the investigation, the CO/ or the designee shall prepare and deliver a written report 
to the Superintendent that summarizes the evidence gathered during the investigation and provides 
recommendations based on the evidence and the definition of unlawful discrimination/retaliation as 
provided in Board policy and State and Federal law as to whether the Respondent has engaged in 
unlawful harassment/retaliation of the Complainant.Complainant has been subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation.  The CO's recommendations must be based upon the totality of the 
circumstances. In determining if discrimination or retaliation occurred, a preponderance of evidence 
standard will be used. ( ) The CO may consult with the Board’s legal counsel before finalizing the report 
to the Superintendent. 

Draf
t

Packet page 430 of 446



  
Absent extenuating circumstances, within five (5) business days of receiving the report of the CO or the 
designee, the Superintendent must either issue a writtenfinal decision regarding whether the charges 
have been substantiated or request further investigation. A copy of the Superintendent's final decision 
will be delivered to both the Complainant and the Respondent. 
  
If the Superintendent requests additional investigation, the Superintendent must specify the additional 
information that is to be gathered, and such additional investigation must be completed within five (5) 
business days. At the conclusion of the additional investigation, the Superintendent must issue a final 
written decision as described above. 
  
If the Superintendent determines the Respondent engaged in unlawful discrimination/retaliation 
toward the Complainant, the SuperintendentComplainant was subjected to unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, s/he must identify what corrective action will be taken to stop, remedy, and 
prevent the recurrence of the discrimination/retaliation. The corrective action should be reasonable, 
timely, age-appropriate, and effective, and tailored to the specific situation. 
  
[ ] The decision of the Superintendent shall be final. 
  
OR 
  
[ [X] A Complainant or Respondent who is dissatisfied with the final decision of the Superintendent may 
appeal through a signed written statement to the Board within five (5) business days of the 
party'shis/her receipt of the Superintendent's final decision.  
  
In an attempt to resolve the complaint, the Board shall meet with the concerned parties and their 
representatives within twenty (20) business days of the receipt of such an appeal. A copy of the Board's 
disposition of the appeal shall be sent to each concerned party within ten (10) business days of this 
meeting. The decision of the Board will be final. 
  
[END OF OPTIONS] 
  
The Board reserves the right to investigate and resolve a complaint or report of unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation regardless of whether the employee alleging the unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation pursues the complaint. The Board also reserves the right to have the formal 
complaint investigation conducted by an external person in accordance with this policy or in such other 
manner as deemed appropriate by the Board or its designee. 
  
[X ] The partiesComplainant may be represented, at theirhis/her own cost, at any of the above-
described meetings/hearings. 
 
The right of a person to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by 
the person’s pursuit of other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights, 
the filing of charges with local law enforcement, or the filing of a civil action in court. Use of this 
internal complaint process is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies.The right of a person 
to a prompt and equitable resolution of the complaint shall not be impaired by the person’s pursuit of 
other remedies such as the filing of a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights or the filing of a court 
case. Use of this internal complaint procedure is not a prerequisite to the pursuit of other remedies. 

Draf
t

Packet page 431 of 446



  
Privacy/Confidentiality 
  
The School District will employ all reasonable efforts to protect the rights of the Complainant, the 
Respondent(s), and the witnesses as much as possible, consistent with the Board’s legal obligations to 
investigate, to take appropriate action, and to conform with any discovery or disclosure obligations. All 
records generated under the terms of this policy shall be maintained as confidential to the extent 
permitted by law. Confidentiality, however, cannot be guaranteed. Additionally, the Respondent must 
be provided the Complainant's identity.All Complainants proceeding through the formal investigation 
process will be advised that their identities may be disclosed to the Respondent(s). 
  
During the course of a formal investigation, the CO or designee will instruct each person who is 
interviewed about the importance of maintaining confidentiality. Any individual who is interviewed as 
part of an investigation is expected not to to not disclose to third parties any information that is learned 
or provided  s/he learns and/or provides during the course of the investigation. 
  
Sanctions and Monitoring 
  
The Board shall vigorously enforce its prohibitions against unlawful discrimination/retaliation by taking 
appropriate action reasonably calculated to stop and prevent further misconduct. While observing the 
principles of due process, a violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
the discharge of an employee. All disciplinary action will be taken in accordance with applicable State 
law and the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). When imposing discipline, the 
Superintendent shall consider the totality of the circumstances involved in the matter. In those cases 
where unlawful discrimination/retaliation is not substantiated, the Board may consider whether the 
alleged conduct nevertheless warrants discipline in accordance with other Board policies, consistent 
with the terms of the relevant collective bargaining agreement(s). 
  
Where the Board becomes aware that a prior remedial action has been taken against an employee, all 
subsequent sanctions imposed by the Board and/or Superintendent shall be reasonably calculated to 
end such conduct, prevent its recurrence, and remedy its effect. 
  
Retaliation 
  
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
harassment/retaliation or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Neither the Board 
nor any other person may intimidate, threaten, coerce or interfere with any individual because the 
person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, or because 
that individual made a report, formal complaint, testified, assisted or participated or refused to 
participate in any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws and/or this 
policy, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, aided or encouraged any other person in the 
exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected by those laws and/or this policy. 
  
Retaliation against a person for making a report of discrimination, filing a formal complaint, or 
participating in an investigation or meeting is a serious violation of this policy that can result in 
imposition of disciplinary sanctions/consequences and/or other appropriate remedies. 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 432 of 446



Formal complaints alleging retaliation may be filed according to the internal complaint process set 
forth above. 
  
The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment of the United States Constitution does 
not constitute retaliation prohibited under this policy. 
Retaliation against a person who makes a report or files a complaint alleging unlawful 
discrimination/retaliation, or participates as a witness in an investigation is prohibited. Specifically, 
the Board will not retaliate against, coerce, intimidate, threaten or interfere with any individual 
because the person opposed any act or practice made unlawful by any Federal or State civil rights law, 
or because that individual made a charge, testified, assisted or participated in any manner in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing under those laws, or because that individual exercised, enjoyed, 
aided or encouraged any other person in the exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or protected 
by those laws. 
  
Education and Training 
  
In support of this policy, the Board promotes preventative educational measures to create greater 
awareness of unlawful discriminatory practices. The Superintendent or designee shall provide 
appropriate information to all members of the School District community related to the implementation 
of this policy and shall provide training for District students and staff where appropriate. All training, as 
well as all information provided regarding the Board's policy and discrimination in general, will be age 
and content appropriate. 
  
Retention of Investigatory Records and Materials 
  
The Compliance Officer(s) is responsible for overseeing retention of all records that must be 
maintained pursuant to this policy.  All individuals charged with conducting investigations under this 
policy shall retain all documents, electronically stored information ("ESI"), and electronic media (as 
defined in Policy 8315) created and/or received as part of an investigation, which may include but not 
be limited to:  
  

A. all written reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an 
alleged violation of this policy; 
  

B. any narratives that memorialize oral 
reports/allegations/complaints/grievances/statements/responses pertaining to an alleged 
violation of this policy; 
  

C. any documentation that memorializes the actions taken by District personnel or individuals 
contracted or appointed by the Board to fulfill its responsibilities related to the investigation 
and/or the District’s response to the alleged violation of this policy; 
  

D. written witness statements; 
  

E. narratives, notes from, or audio, video, or digital recordings of witness interviews/statements; 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 433 of 446



F. e-mails, texts, or social media posts that directly relate to or constitute evidence pertaining to 
an alleged violation of this policy (i.e., not after-the-fact commentary about or media coverage 
of the incident); 
  

G. notes or summaries prepared contemporaneously by the investigator in whatever form made 
(e.g., handwritten, keyed into a computer or tablet, etc.), but not including transitory notes 
whose content is otherwise memorialized in other documents; 
  

H. written disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees and other documentation that 
memorializes oral disciplinary sanctions issued to students or employees for violations of this 
policy; 
  

I. dated written determinations/reports (including summaries of relevant exculpatory and 
inculpatory evidence) and other documentation that memorializes oral notifications to the 
parties concerning the outcome of the investigation, including any consequences imposed as a 
result of a violation of this policy; 
  

J. documentation of any supportive interim measures offered and/or provided to the 
Complainant and/or Respondent,complainants and/or the alleged perpetrators, including no 
contact orders issued to both parties, the dates the no contact orders were issued, and the 
dates the parties acknowledged receipt of the no contact orders; 
  

K. documentation of all actions taken, both individual and systemic, to stop the discrimination or 
harassment, prevent its recurrence, eliminate any hostile environment, and remedy its 
discriminatory effects; 
  

L. copies of the Board policy and/or procedures/guidelines used by the District to conduct the 
investigation, and any documents used by the District at the time of the alleged violation to 
communicate the Board’s expectations to students and staff with respect to the subject of this 
policy (e.g., Student Codes of Conduct and/or Employee Handbooks or Codes of Conduct); 
  

M. copies of any documentation that memorializes any formal or informal resolutions to the 
alleged discrimination or harassment; 
 
 [DRAFTING NOTE:  The following options should be selected if the district concludes that the 
following items are not adequately encompassed in the preceding paragraphs.]  
  

N. ( ) documentation of any training provided to District personnel related to this policy, including 
but not limited to, notification of the prohibitions and expectations of staff set forth in this 
policy and the role and responsibility of all District personnel involved in enforcing this policy, 
including their duty to report alleged violations of this policy and/or conducting an investigation 
of an alleged violation of this policy;  [REMINDER:  Documentation of training should be 
maintained regardless of whether there is an investigation of an alleged violation of this 
policy.  It is best practice to maintain a log of all staff members who participate in a training, 
along with the date, time and location of the training, and a copy of the materials reviewed 
and/or presented during the training.] 
  

Draf
t

Packet page 434 of 446



O. ( ) documentation that any rights or opportunities that the District made available to one party 
during the investigation were made available to the other party on equal terms; 
  

P. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the alleged Respondentperpetrator/responding party of the 
allegations constituting a potential violation of this policy; 
  

Q. ( ) copies of any notices sent to the Complainant and the Respondent in advance of any 
interview, meeting, or hearing; 
  

R. ( ) copies of any documentation or evidence used during informal and formal disciplinary 
meetings and hearings, including the investigation report, and any written responses submitted 
by the Complainant or the Respondent. complainant or the alleged perpetrator 

  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) retained may include public 
records and records exempt from disclosure under Federal (e.g., FERPA, ADA) and/or State law – e.g., 
student records and confidential medical records. 
  
The documents, ESI, and electronic media (as defined in Policy 8315) created or received as part of an 
investigation shall be retained in accordance with Policy 8310, Policy 8315, Policy 8320, and Policy 8330 
for not less than three (3) years, but longer if required by the District’s records retention schedule. 
  
© Neola 20182023 

 
 
Legal 

M.C.L. 37.2101 et seq., 37.1101 et seq. 

Fourteenth Amendment, U.S. Constitution 

20 U.S.C. Section 1681, Title IX of Education Amendment Act 

20 U.S.C. Section 1701 et seq., Equal Educational Opportunities Act of 1974 

20 U.S.C. Section 7905, Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act 

42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq., The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended 

34 C.F.R. Part 110 (7/27/93) 

42 U.S.C. 2000ff et seq., The Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act 

42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., Civil Rights Act of 1964 

29 U.S.C. 701 et seq., Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended 

29 C.F.R. Part 1635 

 

Draf
t

Packet page 435 of 446



 

 

 

© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  This client newsletter is intended to provide helpful information on school law topics and is not intended as legal advice or opinion 
for specific facts, matters, situations, or issues. Legal counsel should be consulted about the application of this information to a specific circumstance or situation. 

School Law Notes 
February 29, 2024 THRUN 

Law Firm, P.C. 

ESSER Funds: Use Them or Lose Them! 
In 2020 and 2021, Congress enacted several relief packages 

allocating almost $200 billion nationally to support public schools 
during the COVID-19 pandemic and its aftermath. Those 
appropriations derive from the Elementary and Secondary School 
Emergency Relief (ESSER) Fund, issued in phases known as ESSER I, 
ESSER II, and ESSER III (or the American Rescue Plan ESSER). 
Reportedly, MDE has received and allocated at least 90% of 
approximately $5.6 billion dollars in ESSER funds to local schools.  

As ESSER grants wind down, school officials should be aware of 
upcoming deadlines to avoid forfeiting funds. Schools must 
“obligate” ESSER grant money to eligible programs and 
expenditures by specific deadlines. Funds are obligated on the date 
the school enters into a written binding agreement for services. The 
obligation deadlines for ESSER I and ESSER II funds have passed, but 
the ESSER III obligation deadline is September 30, 2024.  

Obligation deadlines are not eligible for extension. If your school 
has not yet obligated all of its ESSER III grant money, now is the time 
to refer back to the school’s ESSER III Use of Funds Plan to identify 
additional projects. 

In addition to the obligation deadline, school officials must 
ensure satisfaction of the liquidation deadline. Schools must spend, 
or liquidate, the funds by December 30, 2024.  

 Unlike the obligation deadline, the ESSER III funds liquidation 
deadline is eligible for extension, as explained in MDE’s Septem-
ber 28, 2023 memo to Michigan public schools. MDE will receive 
liquidation extension requests for ESSER III funds between 
October 1, 2024 and December 1, 2024, and evaluate whether to 
submit requests to the U.S. Department of Education (DOE).  

Extensions, if granted, provide up to an additional 14 months to 
liquidate obligated funds. In January 2024, the DOE released an 
updated extension request form for ESSER III funds. That form 
requires MDE, on behalf of individual schools, to list examples of 
supporting documentation and to provide a cover letter explaining 
how the ESSER III liquidation extension request contributes to the 
“acceleration of academic success for students, including those 
furthest from opportunity and with the greatest need.” The 
extension form also asks for an “explanation” for late liquidation and 
a description of measures taken to liquidate in a timely fashion. DOE 
has issued guidance identifying situations that might warrant an 
extension.  

The ESSER III allocations were the largest of the COVID-19 relief 
funds, so the September 30, 2024 deadline is critical for schools to 
obligate those funds. Schools not expecting to spend the funds by the 
December 30, 2024 liquidation deadline should submit an extension 
request to MDE within the October 1 - December 1 window. 

•    •    •

Transactions 
ESSER Funds: Use Them or Lose Them! .................. 1 

Labor and Employment 
Newly Effective PERA Disclosure 

Requirements ........................................................... 2 
Probationary Teacher Non-Renewal 

Timelines .................................................................... 2 
Independent Contractor Rule Updated ................... 3 
Court Dismisses Teacher’s Claims Against 

School Regarding Mask Mandate ...................... 3 

Student Issues 
Filling You In on Oral Health Assessment 

Requirements ........................................................... 4 
No Parental Right to Opt Out of State 

Assessments............................................................... 5 

Special Education 
New Special Education Guidance .............................. 5 

Miscellaneous 
Comprehensive Title IX Sexual Harassment 

Training ..................................................................... 6 
 

Upcoming Speaking Engagements 

Title IX Training Registration Form 

 
 
 
 

JEFFREY J. SOLES RYAN J. NICHOLSON 

ROY H. HENLEY CRISTINA T. PATZELT 

MICHAEL D. GRESENS PHILIP G. CLARK 

CHRISTOPHER J. IAMARINO PIOTR M. MATUSIAK 

RAYMOND M. DAVIS JESSICA E. MCNAMARA 

MICHELE R. EADDY RYAN J. MURRAY 

KIRK C. HERALD ERIN H. WALZ 

ROBERT A. DIETZEL MACKENZIE D. FLYNN 

KATHERINE WOLF BROADDUS KATHRYN R. CHURCH 

DANIEL R. MARTIN MARYJO D. BANASIK 

JENNIFER K. STARLIN CATHLEEN M. DOOLEY 

TIMOTHY T. GARDNER, JR. AUSTIN M. DELANO 

IAN F. KOFFLER KELLY S. BOWMAN 

FREDRIC G. HEIDEMANN   

GORDON W. VAN WIEREN, JR. (of counsel) 

LISA L. SWEM (of counsel) 

 
 
 
 
 

THRUNLAW.COM 
East Lansing 

Novi 

West Michigan 
 
 

Packet page 436 of 446

https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/project/websites/mde/ofm/grants/grants/americanrescueplan_20220225_748925_7.pdf?rev=1bca0429d5be4af89ddbaece23e64631&hash=eaa85e774af40dcad7350210b148e01f
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/Memos/2023/09/Liquidation-Extension-Request-Letter.pdf?rev=7a8c7fadfd924e1ea5a6385931377048
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2024/01/ARP-Liquidation-Extension-Letter-1.9.24-final-for-signature-v3.pdf
https://oese.ed.gov/files/2024/01/ARP-Liquidation-Extension-Letter-1.9.24-final-for-signature-v3.pdf


 

 
School Law Notes  Page 2 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

Newly Effective PERA Disclosure 
Requirements 

Public Act 236 of 2023, effective February 13, 
2024, adds Section 11a to the Public Employment 
Relations Act. Section 11a requires within 30 days after 
hiring a bargaining unit employee, a school must 
provide employee information to the union 
representing that bargaining unit regardless of the 
employee’s dues paying status. Additionally, every 90 
days a school must provide that information to each 
bargaining unit employee’s union. Section 11a does not 
specify when the 90-day period starts. Therefore, 
schools should consider providing the first notice 
within 90 days of Section 11a’s effective date 
(February 13, 2024) and every 90 days after that first 
notice.  

The statute lists the following employee 
information schools must provide within 30 days of 
hire and every 90 days thereafter: 

• first, middle, and last name 
• department or agency 
• classification 
• primary work location address 
• home address, unless the employee has a 

confidential address under the Address 
Confidentiality Program Act, in which case the 
school must provide the designated address 
assigned 

• personal telephone number 
• personal email address 
• work email address 
• hire date 
• employee identification number, if applicable 
• part-time or full-time employment status 
• wage 

Section 11a does not specify a penalty for non-
compliance. But schools should still comply to mitigate 
against the risk of an unfair labor practice charge.  

•    •    • 

Probationary Teacher 
Non-Renewal Timelines 

 To avoid an unintended contract extension or 
obtainment of tenure, school officials must follow the 
applicable timelines and procedures to non-renew a 
probationary teacher’s contract.  

Probationary Period 

 Amendments to RSC Section 1249 (teacher 
evaluation) and to the Teachers’ Tenure Act 
(probationary period for non-tenured teachers) take 
effect July 1, 2024. For the rest of this school year, RSC 
Section 1249 remains unchanged. Teachers must serve 
an initial five-year probationary period and receive an 

“effective” or “highly effective” evaluation rating on 
their three most recent performance evaluations to 
acquire tenure. This five-year probationary period is 
reduced to four years if a teacher is rated “highly 
effective” on three consecutive annual year-end 
performance evaluations. If a teacher previously 
acquired tenure with another Michigan public school, 
the probationary period is only two years, unless 
reduced in duration or waived to allow immediate 
tenure. 

School officials must accurately compute the 
probationary period and apply the correct timelines for 
non-renewal. Different timelines apply depending on a 
teacher’s hire date or if a lengthy leave of absence or 
layoff interrupts the probationary period. We 
recommend that school officials create and regularly 
monitor a chart that identifies each teacher’s hire date, 
status as a previously tenured teacher, annual 
performance evaluation ratings, and expected date for 
acquiring tenure.  

Non-Renewal 

The Tenure Act states that “before the end of each 
school year, the controlling board shall provide the 
probationary teacher with a definite written statement 
as to whether or not the teacher’s work has been 
effective.” The Michigan Supreme Court has established 
June 30 as the uniform date for the end of the school 
year for Tenure Act purposes. For a teacher hired after 
the start of a school year, however, the hire date 
(known as the “anniversary date”) defines the end of 
the teacher’s probationary period, which is measured 
in “full school years.” 

For a probationary teacher who previously 
acquired tenure in another Michigan public school and 
is on the two-year probationary cycle, the teacher must 
receive a non-renewal notice at least 60 days before the 
end of the probationary period (i.e., May 1 or 60 days 
before the anniversary date). The board must authorize 
the non-renewal and provide written notice of non-
renewal to the teacher. For all other probationary 
teachers, the teacher must receive written notice of 
non-renewal at least 15 days before the end of the 
school year (i.e., June 15 or 15 days before the 
anniversary date). 

Administrators must allow sufficient time for the 
board to act to non-renew a probationary teacher’s 
contract and to provide written notice to that teacher 
within these timelines. The common belief that a school 
board “grants” tenure to a probationary teacher is not 
accurate. Rather, a probationary teacher automatically 
acquires tenure by operation of law upon the successful 
completion of the probationary period, unless the 
school board timely acts to non-renew the contract. 

Although non-renewal is within the board’s 
discretion, school officials must comply with statutory 

Packet page 437 of 446



 

 
School Law Notes  Page 3 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

procedures, timelines, and criteria to successfully non-
renew a probationary teacher’s contract. For example, 
administrators must ensure that the probationary 
teacher:  

(1) was evaluated in compliance with RSC Section 
1249 and board policy;  

(2) had an individual development plan in place 
for each year from the start of the probationary 
period; 

(3) received a mid-year review; and  
(4) received multiple classroom observations and 

ample opportunity to improve consistent with 
the Tenure Act. 

School officials must follow the applicable 
timelines and procedures required to properly make 
these important personnel decisions to avoid 
unintended consequences. 

•    •    • 

Independent Contractor Rule Updated  
The U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) recently 

published a final Independent Contractor Rule, 
effective March 11, 2024, which revises guidance on 
determining whether an individual is an employee or 
independent contractor under the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA).  

The National Labor Relations Board (NLRB), a 
federal agency whose standards the Michigan 
Employment Relations Commission often adopts, also 
revised its independent contractor standard. Effective 
March 11, 2024, DOL and NLRB will use the same 
analysis to determine whether an individual is an 
independent contractor or an employee. This analysis 
is important because misclassifying an individual as an 
independent contractor can result in penalties to a 
school for failing to: (1) deduct employment-related 
taxes, (2) make required retirement contributions, (3) 
offer insurance coverage, and (4) pay minimum wage, 
overtime, and paid leave. 

Previously, the DOL’s 2021 independent contractor 
analysis relied on two (core) factors, control and 
opportunity for profit or loss. The 2024 final rule 
instead uses a totality of the circumstances economic 
reality test by which all factors are weighed equally.  

The 2024 final rule aligns with Michigan courts’ 
current analysis, which follows an “economic realities 
test.” This test is consistent with the final rule under the 
FLSA, and includes the following factors: (1) 
opportunity for profit or loss depending on managerial 
skill, (2) investments by the worker and potential 
employer, (3) degree of permanence of the work 
relationship, (4) nature and degree of control, (5) 
extent to which the work performed is an integral part 

of the potential employer’s business, and (6) skill and 
initiative.  

To reduce the risk of incurring penalties for making 
an erroneous designation, school officials should 
carefully consider these factors and exercise caution 
when designating an individual as an independent 
contractor. For example, an independent contractor 
who provides counseling, speech therapy, or other 
specialized services to students on a full-time basis 
could be classified as an employee if that contractor 
works the full school year and school employees direct 
the contractor on how and when to complete tasks. 

If you are unclear about the employee or 
independent contractor status of an individual, please 
contact your Thrun labor and employment attorney for 
assistance. 

•    •    • 

Court Dismisses Teacher’s Claims Against 
School Regarding Mask Mandate 

The Michigan Court of Appeals recently ruled in 
favor of a school’s COVID-19 mask mandate. The court 
affirmed the dismissal of a lawsuit in which a teacher 
alleged disability discrimination and whistleblower 
retaliation after the school refused to exempt her from 
the mask mandate and reprimanded her for 
noncompliance. Tyler v Kalamazoo Pub Schs, COA 
Docket No. 363249 (January 18, 2024). 

For the 2021-22 school year, the Kalamazoo Public 
Schools (KPS) board of education adopted a policy that 
required its employees to wear masks at school. 
Teacher Patricia Tyler opposed the mandate and took a 
7-day leave of absence under the Family and Medical 
Leave Act.  

Upon returning, Tyler provided KPS with two 
doctors’ notes. One stated that she required “ample 
mask breaks when safely able to do so” due to 
overheating and anxiety; the other identified her 
return-to-work date. Neither note stated that Tyler 
should be exempt from the mask mandate, nor did they 
say that she had a disability that required more than 
intermittent mask breaks when safely able to do so. In 
response, KPS allowed Tyler to take breaks from mask 
wearing between classes and on her lunch break, but 
did not exempt her from the mandate at all times.  

In February 2022, Michigan Department of Health 
and Human Services and the Centers for Disease 
Control scaled back their mask advisory for indoor 
settings. Tyler then requested a mask exemption at all 
times based on her previous doctors’ notes. KPS denied 
the request. Tyler sued, asserting that KPS exceeded its 
statutory authority by imposing a mask mandate and 
that KPS unlawfully ignored her medical exemption.  

Packet page 438 of 446

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/01/10/2024-00067/employee-or-independent-contractor-classification-under-the-fair-labor-standards-act


 

 
School Law Notes  Page 4 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

Two days later, Tyler refused to wear a mask in 
front of students and in common areas. She told KPS 
administration that she “didn’t want to” wear a mask. 
KPS placed Tyler on paid administrative leave pending 
the outcome of an investigation and later issued a letter 
of reprimand for insubordination. At the end of the 
school year, KPS rescinded its mask mandate. Tyler 
amended her lawsuit to add that KPS violated 
Michigan’s Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act 
(PWDCRA) and the Whistleblowers’ Protection Act 
(WPA).  

KPS moved to dismiss the case, asserting that no 
material issues of fact existed supporting the PWDCRA 
and WPA claims. In other words, KPS claimed the 
parties did not dispute the factual issues, but Tyler’s 
claims still failed. Additionally, KPS argued the claims 
became moot with the mask mandate’s rescission. The 
trial court agreed and dismissed the case. Tyler 
appealed. The Michigan Court of Appeals agreed that 
the mask rescission rendered the case moot, but still 
analyzed the individual claims. 

PWDCRA Claim 

Under the PWDCRA, a “disability” is a physical or 
mental impairment that substantially limits a major life 
activity. Establishing a discrimination claim requires 
the employee to prove that: (1) the employee was 
disabled, (2) the employee’s disability was unrelated to 
the ability to perform job duties, and (3) the employee 
was discriminated against based on the disability.  

The Court of Appeals found that although anxiety 
may be a mental impairment that substantially limits a 
major life activity, Tyler failed to present evidence that 
mask wearing “induced anxiety that substantially 
limited her work, sleep, or breathing.” Tyler therefore 
did not establish that she was disabled and her claim 
failed.  

WPA Claim 

Under the WPA, an employer may not discharge, 
threaten, or otherwise discriminate against an 
employee who reports or is about to report a violation 
or suspected violation of a law, unless the employee 
knows that the report is false. Establishing a WPA claim 
requires the employee to prove that: (1) the employee 
engaged in protected activity, (2) the employee was 
discharged or discriminated against, and (3) a causal 
connection existed between the protected activity and 
the discharge or discrimination. 

The Court of Appeals ruled that Tyler failed to 
establish the second and third elements of a WPA claim. 
Although KPS placed Tyler on paid administrative leave 
and issued a letter of reprimand, she did not experience 
a loss of pay, demotion, or any other adverse action. 
Tyler also failed to establish a causal connection 
between the protected activity and the alleged 

discrimination. The court held that a closeness in time 
between protected activity and adverse action is not 
sufficient by itself to satisfy the required causal 
connection.  

While the COVID-19 pandemic may have ended, 
this decision reminds school officials to exercise 
caution when handling disability accommodation 
requests. School officials should maintain records of 
each step of the accommodation request process, 
including the medical documentation received and 
school action taken. Before disciplining an employee 
who potentially engaged in a protected activity, such as 
reporting a violation of the law or challenging a board 
policy, please contact legal counsel.  

•    •    • 

Filling You In on Oral Health 
Assessment Requirements 

The Michigan Department of Health and Human 
Services (MDHHS) demands the tooth, the whole tooth, 
and nothing but the tooth! Recently, the Michigan 
Legislature passed Public Act 316 of 2023, which 
amends the Public Health Code to require a child’s 
parent, guardian, or person in loco parentis (i.e., the 
person legally responsible for the child) to provide a 
dental oral assessment for the child before the child’s 
first school enrollment.  

Beginning with the 2024-2025 school year, a 
parent registering a child for the first time in 
kindergarten or first grade must have the child undergo 
a dental oral assessment (i.e., dental screening). The 
assessment must occur within six months before the 
start of school.  

This assessment can be conducted by: (1) a dentist 
or dental hygienist selected by the parent, (2) a 
qualified professional working through the local health 
department, or (3) at a pre-enrollment event (i.e., 
school registration). An assessment done at a local 
health department is free. If follow-up is necessary, the 
dental professional must give the parent a written 
statement that further treatments are required.  

At the time of school registration or not later than 
the first day of school, a parent must provide to the 
school either a written statement on MDHHS Form-
6067 from the dental professional or a written 
statement of exemption stating this requirement 
violates the parent’s personal religious beliefs. If the 
required statements are not provided, a school cannot 
exclude a child from attendance. 

The school must keep a record of each child’s 
assessment. Beginning in 2024, by November 1 of each 
year, the principal or administrator of each school must 
give MDHHS a summary of dental reports at the time 
new kindergarten and first grade students enter school. 

Packet page 439 of 446

https://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Adult-and-Childrens-Services/Children-and-Families/Healthy-Children-and-Healthy-Families/Oral-Health/MDHHS-6067.dotx?rev=576f0771b5fb4007a65ceb0de49450bd&hash=83F919E89BBB434C635A007967D68F01
https://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/-/media/Project/Websites/mdhhs/Adult-and-Childrens-Services/Children-and-Families/Healthy-Children-and-Healthy-Families/Oral-Health/MDHHS-6067.dotx?rev=576f0771b5fb4007a65ceb0de49450bd&hash=83F919E89BBB434C635A007967D68F01


 

 
School Law Notes  Page 5 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

The reports must be on forms provided by MDHHS, 
which have not yet been created. 

MDHHS further encourages schools to include 
information about dental assessments and the MDHHS 
Form 6067 in school registration packets and other 
distribution channels (i.e., social media, parent letters) 
to raise awareness about the requirements and the 
importance of good oral health.  

For more information about the Kindergarten Oral 
Health Assessment (KOHA) Program, please visit the 
MDHHS KOHA website or contact MDHHS at MDHHS-
KOHA@michigan.gov. 

•    •    • 

No Parental Right to Opt 
Out of State Assessments 

In the spring, students prepare for and take the 
Michigan Student Test of Educational Progress (M-
STEP). Some parents will submit opt-out requests to 
exempt their children from the M-STEP and other 
standardized tests, asserting opting out is their legal 
right.  

Michigan schools have no legal obligation to grant 
testing opt-out requests. The Revised School Code 
grants parents opt-out rights only for sex education and 
instruction in the characteristics or symptoms of 
diseases. Accordingly, schools may deny parent opt-out 
requests that do not fall within these mandates. 

Federal law similarly does not support a testing 
opt-out right. The Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals held 
that the “timing and content of examinations . . . are 
generally committed to the control of state and local 
authorities.” While recognizing a parent’s right to be 
involved in their child’s education, many federal court 
decisions acknowledge a school’s ultimate authority to 
control the manner and content of instruction. 

In a memo dated March 26, 2015, MDE stated that 
“there is no official ability in state or federal law for 
parents to have their child opt out of the assessments, 
without counting against their school and district’s 
participation rates.”  

In a March 2023 letter, MDE State Superintendent 
Michael Rice echoed this point: 

While we support parents in making 
choices for their children, there is no 
“opt-out” of state assessments under 
state or federal law. Students who are 
not assessed will count against their 
school's required 95 percent 
participation rate, which will create an 
incomplete picture of their school's 
performance. 

The legal standard is clear. There is no opt-out right 
from the M-STEP or other examinations. When a 
student is absent, either intentionally or 
unintentionally, during part(s) of a standardized test, 
school officials should consider arranging to have the 
student complete the missed part(s) in a makeup 
session. If you receive an opt-out request from a parent 
or organization, please contact a Thrun attorney to 
discuss an appropriate response. 

•    •    • 

New Special Education Guidance 
MDE recently issued two new special education 

guidance documents: “Least Restrictive Environment: 
Nonacademic Settings” and “Intersection of McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act and the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).”  

In December 2023, MDE issued “Least Restrictive 
Environment: Nonacademic Settings,” which analyzes 
the IDEA’s least restrictive environment mandate in the 
context of nonacademic and extracurricular settings. 
This mandate requires that schools provide opportuni-
ties for students with disabilities to participate in 
nonacademic and extracurricular services and 
activities with nondisabled students to the maximum 
extent appropriate to the student’s needs. To ensure 
access, the student’s IEP Team determines which 
supplementary aids, services, and accommodations are 
appropriate and necessary. 

Nonacademic and extracurricular services and 
activities may include athletics, transportation, health 
services, recreational activities, and school-sponsored 
special interest groups or clubs. Students with disabili-
ties are not guaranteed a position on a competitive 
team or club activity; rather, requirements apply 
uniformly to students with and without disabilities.  

In January 2024, MDE issued “Intersection of 
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act and the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.” This 
question-and-answer guidance addresses issues that 
involve both federal acts.  

McKinney-Vento defines “homeless children and 
youth” broadly as children and youth who: 

• share housing of other persons due to housing 
loss, economic hardship, or similar reason; 

• live in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or 
campgrounds due to the lack of adequate 
alternative accommodations; 

• live in emergency or transitional shelters; 
• are abandoned in hospitals; 
• have a primary nighttime residence that is a 

public or private place not designed for, or 
ordinarily used as, a regular sleeping 
accommodation for human beings, including 

Packet page 440 of 446

https://www.michigan.gov/mdhhs/adult-child-serv/childrenfamilies/familyhealth/oralhealth/koha/schools
mailto:MDHHS-KOHA@michigan.gov
mailto:MDHHS-KOHA@michigan.gov
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/2016/08/31/OptOut_Positionb.pdf?rev=b07456df087d4c9b9745eac183ee4cb6
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/OEAA/M-STEP/S23-Superintendent-Parent-Letter.pdf?rev=1350cfd80dc14219a74132bc3b094463
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/LRE-NonacademicSettings.pdf?rev=54aa2a466b384dedb43b9340fc22b1ac#:%7E:text=According%20to%2034%20CFR%20%C2%A7300.117%20of%20the%20IDEA%2C%20which,forth%20in%2034%20CFR%20%C2%A7
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/LRE-NonacademicSettings.pdf?rev=54aa2a466b384dedb43b9340fc22b1ac#:%7E:text=According%20to%2034%20CFR%20%C2%A7300.117%20of%20the%20IDEA%2C%20which,forth%20in%2034%20CFR%20%C2%A7
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/McKinneyVento-IDEA.pdf?rev=5de405ad5bac4031aebaca657780b6a9
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/McKinneyVento-IDEA.pdf?rev=5de405ad5bac4031aebaca657780b6a9
https://www.michigan.gov/mde/-/media/Project/Websites/mde/specialeducation/iep/McKinneyVento-IDEA.pdf?rev=5de405ad5bac4031aebaca657780b6a9


 

 
School Law Notes  Page 6 of 6 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C.  February 29, 2024 

   Thrun Law Firm, P.C.                                                School Law Notes  

cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned 
buildings, substandard housing, bus or train 
stations, or similar settings; 

• live in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned 
buildings, substandard housing, bus or train 
stations, or similar settings; and 

• are migratory children living in the above 
situations. 

The guidance also explains when students 
experiencing homelessness should attend their “school 
of origin” or “school of residency.” Several factors 
determine this issue, including the student’s best 
interests and the parent or guardian’s preference. The 
questions and answers in this guidance are fact-
intensive. We recommend school officials review them 
carefully. 

The MDE guidance document identifies various 
resources for schools assisting a student with a 
disability who is experiencing homelessness. MDE’s 
website contains additional related resources, 
including a list of regional coordinators.  

•    •    • 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Title IX Sexual 
Harassment Training 

Thrun Law Firm is offering its Comprehensive 
Title IX Sexual Harassment Training on March 6, 2024. 
This webinar satisfies training requirements for all 
K-12 employees who serve as Title IX Coordinators, 
Investigators, Decision-Makers, Informal Resolution 
Facilitators, or Appeals Officers under the current Title 
IX Grievance Process. Once the anticipated new federal 
regulations are published, we expect that additional or 
different training will be required. The publication date 
for the new regulations remains unknown. A detailed 
description of the webinar and the cost to attend is 
included on the attached registration form. We hope to 
see you there! 

•    •    • 

 

 

 

Packet page 441 of 446

https://www.michigan.gov/mde/services/school-performance-supports/educational-supports/programs/mckinney-vento-homeless


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

March 1, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Teacher Placement, Layoff, and 
Recall Webinar 

March 5, 2024 MSP School Safety 
Academy 

Jessica E. McNamara School Safety Legal 
Considerations 

March 6, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Special Education Evaluations: 
It’s Not Only About Eligibility 
Webinar 

March 6, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Jennifer K. Starlin 
Cristina T. Patzelt 

Title IX Comprehensive Training 
Webinar 

March 7, 2024 Monroe County ISD Michele R. Eaddy Section 504 

March 7 & 8, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Policy Implementation Meetings 
Webinar 

March 8, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Teacher Evaluation and Merit 
Pay Webinar 

March 13, 2024 SWMBO Raymond M. Davis Managing the New Labor Law 
Changes 

March 14, 2024 MNA Spring Conference Katherine Broaddus Contract Language from the Past 
Offers a Window to the Future – 
Pre-2011 Examples to Use and 
Avoid 

March 14, 2024 MNA Spring Conference Raymond M. Davis Unprohibited Subjects Revisited 

March 14, 2024 MNA Spring Conference Lisa L. Swem Top Ten Priorities at the Table 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference MaryJo D. Banasik Employment Relationships/ 
Employee Evaluations, Due 
Process and Discipline 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference MaryJo D. Banasik Common Contract Issues for 
School Officials 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Ryan J. Murray Collective Bargaining and Public 
Employee Relations Act (PERA) 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Piotr M. Matusiak  
Kelly S. Bowman 

Personnel Records 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Piotr M. Matusiak Disabilities and 
Accommodations and Family 
Medical Leave Act (FMLA) 

Packet page 442 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Timothy T. Gardner, Jr. Workplace Discrimination 
Issues/Teachers’ Tenure Act 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Mackenzie D. Flynn Workplace Privacy 
Considerations 

March 14, 2024 MSBO Labor Conference Cathleen M. Dooley Sexual Harassment 

March 15, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Dues Deduction and Teacher 
Discipline Webinar 

March 15, 2024 MNA Spring Conference Robert A. Dietzel Legal Update 

March 20, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

On Notice! Drafting Prior 
Written Notices that Cover Your 
Legal Bases Webinar 

March 21, 2024 MASA Region VII Raymond M. Davis New Labor Law Changes 

April 3, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Developing Legally Compliant 
IEPs = FAPE Webinar 

April 9, 2024 MSP School Safety 
Academy 

Jessica E. McNamara School Safety Legal 
Considerations 

April 16, 2024 Oakland Schools Michele R. Eaddy Special Education Discipline 

April 17, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

LRE and Placement – 
Considering the Full Continuum 
Webinar 

April 19, 2024 Calhoun ISD Raymond M. Davis Legal Update 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Piotr M. Matusiak Grievance Management: 
Effective Strategies for Collective 
Bargaining Agreement Disputes 

(8:30 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Ryan J. Nicholson A Year in the Life of a Business 
Official: From Budget Hearings 
to Election Deadlines  

(8:45 a.m. – 9:45 a.m.) 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Timothy T. Gardner, Jr. Collective Bargaining: 
Innovations and Advanced 
Strategies 

(9:30 a.m. – 10:30 a.m.) 

Packet page 443 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Katherine Broaddus Reintroduction of Prohibited 
Subjects of Bargaining and How 
It Affects Negotiations 

 (10:55 a.m. – 11:45 a.m.) 

April 23, 2024 MSBO Daniel R. Martin 
Jennifer K. Starlin 

Legal Update  

(1:15 p.m. – 2:00 p.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Christopher J. Iamarino Arbitrage Rebate Compliance 
and Strategies for Bonds in the 
Current Interest Rate 
Environment 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Michael D. Gresens 
Mackenzie D. Flynn 

Cash Flow and Short-Term 
Borrowing Options 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Ian F. Koffler Practical Implementation of the 
Inflation Reduction Act 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Daniel R. Martin 
Jennifer K. Starlin 

Legal Update 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO MaryJo D. Banasik 
Austin M. DeLano 

Collective Bargaining Basics 

(9:20 a.m. – 10:20 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Fredric G. Heidemann Construction: Dealing with 
Material and Performance 
Delays 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Ryan J. Nicholson Booster Clubs and Support 
Groups: Limiting Potential 
Liability 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Cathleen M. Dooley Employee Leave and 
Compensation: Get It Right or 
Pay the Price 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

Packet page 444 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

April 24, 2024 MSBO MaryJo D. Banasik 
Austin M. DeLano 

Everything You Need to Know 
About Employment Contracts 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Timothy T. Gardner, Jr. Payroll Processing and Legal 
Compliance 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 24, 2024 MSBO Jennifer K. Starlin 
Piotr M. Matusiak 

Pupil Accounting Fundamentals 

(10:40 a.m. – 11:40 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Piotr M. Matusiak 
Mackenzie D. Flynn 

 

The Bond Passed: Now What 
About Construction Contracts? 

(8:20 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Michael D. Gresens Get to Know the L4029 and 
Other Property Tax Issues 

(8:20 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Daniel R. Martin Recent Developments in Labor 
and Employment Law 

(8:20 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Raymond M. Davis Collective Bargaining: 
Innovations and Advanced 
Strategies 

(8:20 a.m. – 9:30 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Ian F. Koffler Lessons Learned: Community 
Engagement During a Successful 
Bond Campaign 

(9:40 a.m. – 10:40 a.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Ryan J. Nicholson Cybersecurity: An Overview 

(1:15 p.m. – 2:30 p.m.) 

April 25, 2024 MSBO Ryan J. Murray Unemployment Claims 101 

(1:15 p.m. – 1:45 p.m.) 

April 30, 2024 MASA School Safety 
Summit 

Jessica E. McNamara School Safety Legal 
Considerations 

May 1, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Avoiding Mistakes in the MDR 
Process Webinar 

Packet page 445 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list


Schedule of Upcoming Speaking Engagements 
Thrun Law Firm attorneys are scheduled to speak on the legal topics listed below. 

For additional information, please contact the sponsoring organization. 
www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list 

 

 
School Law Notes 
© 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 

THRUN 
Law Firm, P.C. 

Date Organization Attorney(s) Topic 

May 6, 2024 MPAAA Jennifer K. Starlin Legal Update 

May 15, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Responding to State, OCR, and 
Due Process Complaints 
Webinar 

June 13 & 14, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Policy Implementation Meetings 
Webinar 

August 5, 2024 Charlevoix-Emmet ISD Lisa L. Swem School Law Update 

August 7, 2024 UP Administrators 
Academy 

Lisa L. Swem School Law Update 

September 5 & 6, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Policy Implementation Meetings 
Webinar 

December 5 & 6, 2024 Thrun Law Firm, P.C. Thrun Law Firm, P.C. 
Attorneys 

Policy Implementation Meetings 
Webinar 

 

Packet page 446 of 446

http://www.thrunlaw.com/calendar/list

	Agenda (p. 1)
	March 12, 2024 Memo (p. 3)
	February 27, 2024 Minutes (p. 230)
	New Hire_M. DiFranco (p. 234)
	New Hire_T. Talley (p. 237)
	Reclassification_G. Myers (p. 240)
	Reclassification_T. Woods (p. 248)
	Reclassification_Position Number of Work Days (p. 250)
	Reclassification_Position Title Change (p. 252)
	New Position_Special Education Coordinator (p. 258)
	New Position_Special Education Supervisor (p. 263)
	Retirement_L. O'Neal (p. 268)
	Parent Advisory Committee Recommendation (p. 270)
	Chapelle Lease Renewal (p. 280)
	Early Literacy Coaching Contract Memo (p. 305)
	Early Literacy Coaching Contract (p. 306)
	Supplemental Services Pilot Plan for Ypsilanti Community Schools (p. 315)
	Board Policies - Memo (p. 323)
	PO 1662 - Anti-harassment (p. 324)
	PO 3362 - Anti-harassment (p. 343)
	PO 4362 - Anti-harassment (p. 362)
	PO 5517 - Anti-harassment (p. 381)
	PO 1422 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 400)
	PO 3122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 412)
	PO 4122 - Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity (p. 424)
	February 2024 School Law Notes (p. 436)

